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                 CHESAPEAKE ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 
                           CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
                                   (UNAUDITED) 
 
 
 
 
                                                                                                      JUNE 30,       DECEMBER 31, 
                                                                                                        2000            1999 
                                                                                                    -----------      ----------- 
                                                                                                         ($ IN THOUSANDS) 
                                                                                                                
                                                   ASSETS 
CURRENT ASSETS: 
  Cash and cash equivalents ...................................................................     $    12,019      $    38,658 
  Restricted cash .............................................................................           4,754              192 
  Accounts receivable: 
    Oil and gas sales .........................................................................          33,380           17,045 
    Oil and gas marketing sales ...............................................................          29,141           18,199 
    Joint interest and other, net of allowances of $1,714,000 and $3,218,000, respectively ....          14,399           11,247 
    Related parties ...........................................................................           3,455            4,574 
  Inventory ...................................................................................           3,596            4,582 
  Other .......................................................................................           3,025            3,049 
                                                                                                    -----------      ----------- 
         Total current assets .................................................................         103,769           97,546 
                                                                                                    -----------      ----------- 
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT: 
  Oil and gas properties, at cost based on full-cost accounting: 
    Evaluated oil and gas properties ..........................................................       2,422,373        2,315,348 
    Unevaluated properties ....................................................................          32,146           40,008 
    Less: accumulated depreciation, depletion and amortization ................................      (1,719,259)      (1,670,542) 
                                                                                                    -----------      ----------- 
                                                                                                        735,260          684,814 
  Other property and equipment ................................................................          70,155           67,712 
  Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization .............................................         (35,099)         (33,429) 
                                                                                                    -----------      ----------- 
         Total property and equipment .........................................................         770,316          719,097 
                                                                                                    -----------      ----------- 
INVESTMENT IN GOTHIC ENERGY CORPORATION .......................................................          87,509           10,000 
                                                                                                    -----------      ----------- 
OTHER ASSETS ..................................................................................          19,388           23,890 
                                                                                                    -----------      ----------- 
TOTAL ASSETS ..................................................................................     $   980,982      $   850,533 
                                                                                                    ===========      =========== 
 
                                    LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 
CURRENT LIABILITIES: 
  Notes payable and current maturities of long-term debt ......................................     $       799      $       763 
  Accounts payable ............................................................................          23,768           24,822 
  Accrued liabilities and other ...............................................................          43,103           34,713 
  Revenues and royalties due others ...........................................................          33,753           27,888 
                                                                                                    -----------      ----------- 
         Total current liabilities ............................................................         101,423           88,186 
                                                                                                    -----------      ----------- 
LONG-TERM DEBT, NET ...........................................................................         983,230          964,097 
                                                                                                    -----------      ----------- 
REVENUES AND ROYALTIES DUE OTHERS .............................................................           8,405            9,310 
                                                                                                    -----------      ----------- 
DEFERRED INCOME TAXES .........................................................................           7,904            6,484 
                                                                                                    -----------      ----------- 
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT): 
  Preferred Stock, $.01 par value, 10,000,000 shares authorized; 
    1,557,037 and 4,596,400 shares of 7% cumulative convertible stock 
    issued and outstanding at June 30, 2000 and December 31, 1999, respectively, 
    entitled in liquidation (including dividends in arrears) to $87.4 million 
    and $249.1 million, respectively ..........................................................          77,852          229,820 
  Common Stock, par value of $.01, 250,000,000 shares authorized; 
    143,297,346 and 105,858,580 shares issued at June 30, 2000 and 
    December 31, 1999, respectively ...........................................................           1,433            1,059 
  Paid-in capital .............................................................................         862,230          682,905 
  Accumulated earnings (deficit) ..............................................................      (1,045,984)      (1,093,929) 
  Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) ...............................................          (2,757)             196 
  Less:  treasury stock, at cost; 3,806,185 and 10,856,185 common shares at 
    June 30, 2000 and December 31, 1999, respectively .........................................         (12,754)         (37,595) 
                                                                                                    -----------      ----------- 
         Total stockholders' equity (deficit) .................................................        (119,980)        (217,544) 
                                                                                                    -----------      ----------- 
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT) ..........................................     $   980,982      $   850,533 
                                                                                                    ===========      =========== 
 
 
                 The accompanying notes are an integral part of 
                    these consolidated financial statements. 
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                 CHESAPEAKE ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 
                      CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 
                                   (UNAUDITED) 
                      (IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA) 
 
 
 
 
                                                                   THREE MONTHS ENDED             SIX MONTHS ENDED 
                                                                         JUNE 30,                     JUNE 30, 
                                                                 ------------------------      ------------------------ 
                                                                    2000          1999           2000           1999 
                                                                 ---------      ---------      ---------      --------- 
                                                                                                   
REVENUES: 
 Oil and gas sales .........................................     $ 100,221      $  68,272      $ 187,514      $ 120,078 
 Oil and gas marketing sales ...............................        34,242         12,620         61,610         26,491 
                                                                 ---------      ---------      ---------      --------- 
     Total revenues ........................................       134,463         80,892        249,124        146,569 
                                                                 ---------      ---------      ---------      --------- 
OPERATING COSTS: 
 Production expenses .......................................        12,581         11,183         25,126         25,175 
 Production taxes ..........................................         5,717          2,798         10,933          4,788 
 General and administrative ................................         3,188          3,268          6,220          7,292 
 Oil and gas marketing expenses ............................        33,122         11,673         59,666         24,958 
 Oil and gas depreciation, depletion and amortization ......        24,877         24,233         49,360         47,386 
 Depreciation and amortization of other assets .............         1,836          1,972          3,702          4,138 
                                                                 ---------      ---------      ---------      --------- 
     Total operating costs .................................        81,321         55,127        155,007        113,737 
                                                                 ---------      ---------      ---------      --------- 
INCOME FROM OPERATIONS .....................................        53,142         25,765         94,117         32,832 
                                                                 ---------      ---------      ---------      --------- 
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE): 
 Interest and other income .................................         1,667          2,967          2,859          3,840 
 Interest expense ..........................................       (21,813)       (20,259)       (42,677)       (40,149) 
                                                                 ---------      ---------      ---------      --------- 
     Total other income (expense) ..........................       (20,146)       (17,292)       (39,818)       (36,309) 
                                                                 ---------      ---------      ---------      --------- 
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAXES ..........................        32,996          8,473         54,299         (3,477) 
                                                                 ---------      ---------      ---------      --------- 
INCOME TAX EXPENSE .........................................         1,362            326          1,463            326 
                                                                 ---------      ---------      ---------      --------- 
NET INCOME (LOSS) ..........................................        31,634          8,147         52,836         (3,803) 
 Preferred stock dividends .................................        (2,907)        (4,026)        (6,949)        (8,052) 
 Gain on redemption of preferred stock .....................         1,481             --         11,895             -- 
                                                                 ---------      ---------      ---------      --------- 
NET INCOME (LOSS) AVAILABLE TO COMMON SHAREHOLDERS .........     $  30,208      $   4,121      $  57,782      $ (11,855) 
                                                                 =========      =========      =========      ========= 
 
EARNINGS (LOSS) PER COMMON SHARE: 
 Basic .....................................................     $    0.26      $    0.04      $    0.53      $   (0.12) 
                                                                 =========      =========      =========      ========= 
 Assuming Dilution .........................................     $    0.22      $    0.04      $    0.36      $   (0.12) 
                                                                 =========      =========      =========      ========= 
 
WEIGHTED AVERAGE COMMON AND COMMON EQUIVALENT 
 SHARES OUTSTANDING: 
 Basic .....................................................       116,466         97,049        108,196         97,049 
                                                                 =========      =========      =========      ========= 
 Assuming dilution .........................................       146,113        101,450        146,285         97,049 
                                                                 =========      =========      =========      ========= 
 
 
                 The accompanying notes are an integral part of 
                    these consolidated financial statements. 
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                 CHESAPEAKE ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 
                      CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
                                   (UNAUDITED) 
 
 
 
 
                                                                                     SIX MONTHS ENDED 
                                                                                         JUNE 30, 
                                                                                 ------------------------ 
                                                                                    2000           1999 
                                                                                 ---------      --------- 
                                                                                     ($ IN THOUSANDS) 
                                                                                           
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
  Net income (loss) ........................................................     $  52,836      $  (3,803) 
  Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by 
   operating activities: 
   Depreciation, depletion and amortization ................................        51,258         49,923 
   Amortization of loan costs ..............................................         1,804          1,601 
   Amortization of bond discount ...........................................            42             35 
   (Gain) loss on sale of fixed assets and other ...........................            (1)            98 
   Equity in losses (earnings) of equity investees .........................           131            (35) 
   Bad debt expense ........................................................           256             -- 
   Other ...................................................................           (36)            -- 
   Deferred income taxes ...................................................         1,463            326 
                                                                                 ---------      --------- 
     Cash provided by operating activities before changes in 
        current assets and liabilities .....................................       107,753         48,145 
   Changes in current assets and liabilities ...............................       (23,883)          (579) 
                                                                                 ---------      --------- 
     Cash provided by operating activities .................................        83,870         47,566 
                                                                                 ---------      --------- 
 
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
  Exploration and development of oil and gas properties ....................       (78,947)       (79,303) 
  Purchases of oil and gas properties ......................................       (24,981)        (6,484) 
  Sales of oil and gas properties ..........................................         1,368         17,387 
  Sales of non-oil and gas assets ..........................................           835          1,306 
  Additions to other property and equipment ................................        (3,390)           (65) 
  Long-term loans made to third parties ....................................            --           (511) 
  Long-term investments ....................................................        (2,000)            -- 
  Investment in Gothic senior discount notes ...............................       (22,352)            -- 
  Other ....................................................................        (1,102)           325 
                                                                                 ---------      --------- 
     Cash used in investing activities .....................................      (130,569)       (67,345) 
                                                                                 ---------      --------- 
 
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
  Proceeds from long-term borrowings .......................................       113,000         14,000 
  Payments on long-term borrowings .........................................       (93,500)            -- 
  Purchase of treasury stock ...............................................            --            (53) 
  Cash received from exercise of stock options .............................           764            240 
                                                                                 ---------      --------- 
     Cash provided by financing activities .................................        20,264         14,187 
                                                                                 ---------      --------- 
 
EFFECT OF CHANGES IN EXCHANGE RATE ON CASH .................................          (204)         3,625 
                                                                                 ---------      --------- 
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ..................................       (26,639)        (1,967) 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF PERIOD .............................        38,658         29,520 
                                                                                 ---------      --------- 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF PERIOD ...................................     $  12,019      $  27,553 
                                                                                 =========      ========= 
 
 
                 The accompanying notes are an integral part of 
                    these consolidated financial statements. 
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                 CHESAPEAKE ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 
             CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) 
                                   (UNAUDITED) 
 
 
 
 
                                                                                        THREE MONTHS ENDED    SIX MONTHS ENDED 
                                                                                              JUNE 30,             JUNE 30, 
                                                                                        -------------------  ------------------- 
                                                                                          2000       1999      2000       1999 
                                                                                        --------   --------  --------   -------- 
                                                                                                    ($ IN THOUSANDS) 
                                                                                                             
Net income (loss) ....................................................................  $ 31,634   $  8,147  $ 52,836   $ (3,803) 
Other comprehensive income (loss) - foreign currency translation adjustments .........    (2,475)     2,813    (2,953)     3,625 
                                                                                        --------   --------  --------   -------- 
Comprehensive income (loss) ..........................................................  $ 29,159   $ 10,960  $ 49,883   $   (178) 
                                                                                        ========   ========  ========   ======== 
 
 
                 The accompanying notes are an integral part of 
                    these consolidated financial statements. 
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                 CHESAPEAKE ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 
                   NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
                                  JUNE 30, 2000 
                                   (UNAUDITED) 
 
 
1. ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES 
 
The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements of Chesapeake 
Energy Corporation and Subsidiaries (the "Company") have been prepared in 
accordance with the instructions to Form 10-Q as prescribed by the Securities 
and Exchange Commission. This Form 10-Q should be read in conjunction with the 
Company's December 31, 1999 Form 10-K. All material adjustments (consisting 
solely of normal recurring adjustments) which, in the opinion of management, are 
necessary for a fair presentation of the results for the interim periods have 
been reflected. The results for the three and six months ended June 30, 2000 are 
not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for the full year. 
 
This Form 10-Q relates to the three and six months ended June 30, 2000 (the 
"Current Quarter" and "Current Period," respectively) and June 30, 1999 (the 
"Prior Quarter" and "Prior Period," respectively). 
 
2. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 
 
Bayard Securities Litigation 
 
This putative class action alleging violations of the Securities Act of 1933 and 
the Oklahoma Securities Act was first filed in February 1998 against the Company 
and others on behalf of investors who purchased common stock of Bayard Drilling 
Technologies, Inc. ("Bayard") in, or traceable to, its initial public offering 
in November 1997. Total proceeds of the offering were $254 million, of which the 
Company received net proceeds of $90 million as a selling shareholder. 
Plaintiffs allege that the Company, a major customer of Bayard's drilling 
services and the owner of 30.1% of Bayard's common stock outstanding prior to 
the offering, was a controlling person of Bayard. Alleged defective disclosures 
are claimed to have resulted in a decline in Bayard's share price following the 
public offering. Plaintiffs seek a determination that the suit is a proper class 
action and damages in an unspecified amount or rescission, together with 
interest and costs of litigation, including attorneys' fees. 
 
On August 24, 1999, the court dismissed plaintiffs' claims against the Company 
under Section 15 of the Securities Act of 1933 alleging that the Company was a 
"controlling person" of Bayard. Claims under Section 11 of the Securities Act of 
1933 and Section 408 of the Oklahoma Securities Act continue to be asserted 
against the Company. The Company believes that it has meritorious defenses to 
these claims and intends to defend this action vigorously. No estimate of loss 
or range of estimate of loss, if any, can be made at this time. Bayard, which 
was acquired by Nabors Industries, Inc. in April 1999, has been reimbursing the 
Company for its costs of defense as incurred. 
 
Patent Litigation 
 
On September 21, 1999, judgment was entered in favor of the Company in a patent 
infringement lawsuit tried to the U.S. District Court for the Northern District 
of Texas, Fort Worth Division. Filed in October 1996, the lawsuit asserted that 
the Company had infringed a patent belonging to Union Pacific Resources Company. 
The court declared the patent invalid, held that the Company could not have 
infringed the patent, dismissed all of UPRC's claims with prejudice and assessed 
court costs against UPRC. Appeals of the judgment by both the Company and UPRC 
are pending in the Federal Circuit Court of Appeals. The Company has appealed 
the trial court's ruling denying the Company's request for attorneys' fees. 
Management is unable to predict the outcome of these appeals, but believes the 
invalidity of the patent will be upheld on appeal. 
 
West Panhandle Field Cessation Cases 
 
A subsidiary of the Company, Chesapeake Panhandle Limited Partnership ("CP") 
(f/k/a MC Panhandle, Inc.), and two subsidiaries of Kinder Morgan, Inc. are 
defendants in 13 lawsuits filed between June 1997 and January 1999 by royalty 
owners seeking the cancellation of oil and gas leases in the West Panhandle 
Field in Texas. The Company 
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                 CHESAPEAKE ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 
                   NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
                                  JUNE 30, 2000 
                                   (UNAUDITED) 
 
 
acquired MC Panhandle, Inc. on April 28, 1998. MC Panhandle, Inc. has owned the 
leases since January 1, 1997, and the co-defendants are prior lessees. 
Plaintiffs claim the leases terminated upon the cessation of production for 
various periods occurring primarily during the 1960s. In addition, plaintiffs 
seek to recover conversion damages, exemplary damages, attorneys' fees and 
interest. Defendants assert that any cessation of production was excused and 
have pled affirmative defenses of limitations, waiver, temporary estoppel, 
laches and title by adverse possession. Four of the 13 cases have been tried, no 
trial dates have been set for the other cases. 
 
Of the ten cases filed in the District Court of Moore County, Texas, 69th 
Judicial District, three have been tried to a jury. Judgment has been entered 
against CP and its co-defendants in all three cases, although there was 
initially a jury verdict in two of the cases in favor of defendants. The 
Company's aggregate liability for these judgments is $1.3 million of actual 
damages and $1.2 million of exemplary damages, and jointly and severally with 
the other two defendants, $1.5 million of actual damages and $337,000 of 
attorneys' fees in the event of an appeal, sanctions, interest and court costs. 
The court also quieted title to the leases in dispute in plaintiffs. CP and the 
other defendants have each appealed the judgments and posted supersedeas bonds 
in all of these cases. There are three related cases pending in other courts. 
One was tried in the U.S. District Court, Northern District of Texas, Amarillo 
Division, and resulted in a jury verdict for CP and its co-defendants. Judgment 
has not yet been entered in that case. 
 
The Company has previously established an accrued liability that management 
believes will be sufficient to cover the estimated costs of litigation for each 
of these cases. Because of the inconsistent verdicts reached by the juries in 
the four cases tried to date and because the amount of damages sought is not 
specified in all of the other cases, the outcome of the remaining trials and the 
amount of damages that might ultimately be awarded could differ from 
management's estimates. Management believes, however, that the leases are valid, 
there is no basis for exemplary damages and that any findings of fraud or bad 
faith will be overturned on appeal. CP and the other defendants intend to 
vigorously defend against the plaintiffs' claims. 
 
The Company is currently involved in various other routine disputes incidental 
to its business operations. While it is not possible to determine the ultimate 
disposition of these matters, management, after consultation with legal counsel, 
is of the opinion that the final resolution of all such currently pending or 
threatened litigation is not likely to have a material adverse effect on the 
consolidated financial position or results of operations of the Company. 
 
3. NET INCOME (LOSS) PER SHARE 
 
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 128, Earnings Per Share ("SFAS 
128") requires presentation of "basic" and "diluted" earnings per share, as 
defined, on the face of the statements of operations for all entities with 
complex capital structures. SFAS 128 requires a reconciliation of the numerator 
and denominators of the basic and diluted EPS computations. 
 
The following weighted securities were not included in the calculation of 
diluted earnings per share, as the effect was antidilutive: 
 
o    In the Prior Period, options to purchase 12.8 million shares of common 
     stock at a weighted average exercise price of $1.77 and the assumed 
     conversion of the outstanding preferred stock (convertible into 33.1 
     million common shares) were antidilutive as a result of the Company's loss 
     for the period. 
 
o    For the Prior Quarter, outstanding options to purchase 2.3 million shares 
     of common stock at a weighted average exercise price of $5.02 were 
     antidilutive because the exercise prices of the options were greater than 
     the average market price of the Company's common stock. Additionally, the 
     assumed conversion of the outstanding preferred stock (convertible into 
     33.1 million common shares) was not included. 
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                 CHESAPEAKE ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 
                   NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
                                  JUNE 30, 2000 
                                   (UNAUDITED) 
 
 
o    In the Current Quarter and the Current Period, outstanding options to 
     purchase 0.7 million and 1.6 million shares of common stock, respectively, 
     at a weighted average exercise price of $10.57 and $6.76, respectively, 
     were antidilutive because the exercise prices of the options were greater 
     than the average market price of the Company's common stock. 
 
A reconciliation for the Current Quarter, Prior Quarter and Current Period is as 
follows: 
 
 
 
                                                       INCOME        SHARES       PER SHARE 
                                                     (NUMERATOR)  (DENOMINATOR)    AMOUNT 
                                                     -----------  -------------   --------- 
FOR THE QUARTER ENDED JUNE 30, 2000:                              (in thousands) 
                                                                          
BASIC EPS 
Income available to common stockholders ..........     $ 30,208       116,466     $   0.26 
                                                                                  ======== 
EFFECT OF DILUTIVE SECURITIES 
  Assumed conversion of preferred stock at 
     beginning of period .........................        2,907        21,797 
  Gain on redemption of preferred stock ..........       (1,481)           -- 
  Employee stock options .........................           --         7,850 
                                                       --------      -------- 
DILUTED EPS 
Income available to common stockholders 
   and assumed conversions .......................     $ 31,634       146,113     $   0.22 
                                                       ========      ========     ======== 
 
FOR THE QUARTER ENDED JUNE 30, 1999: 
BASIC EPS 
  Income available to common stockholders ........     $  4,121        97,049     $   0.04 
                                                                                  ======== 
EFFECT OF DILUTIVE SECURITIES 
  Employee stock options .........................           --         4,401 
                                                       --------      -------- 
DILUTED EPS 
  Income available to common stockholders 
     and assumed conversions .....................     $  4,121       101,450     $   0.04 
                                                       ========      ========     ======== 
 
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2000: 
BASIC EPS 
Income available to common stockholders ..........     $ 57,782       108,196     $   0.53 
                                                                                  ======== 
EFFECT OF DILUTIVE SECURITIES 
  Assumed conversion of preferred stock at 
     beginning of period .........................        6,949        31,158 
  Gain on redemption of preferred stock ..........      (11,895)           -- 
  Employee stock options .........................           --         6,931 
                                                       --------      -------- 
DILUTED EPS 
Income available to common stockholders 
   and assumed conversions .......................     $ 52,836       146,285     $   0.36 
                                                       ========      ========     ======== 
 
 
In the Current Quarter, the Company engaged in a number of unsolicited stock 
exchange transactions with institutional investors. The Company exchanged a 
total of 24.7 million shares of common stock (newly issued shares), plus a cash 
payment of $8.3 million, for 2,364,363 shares of its issued and outstanding 
preferred stock with a liquidation value of $118.2 million plus dividends in 
arrears of $13.6 million. All preferred shares acquired in these transactions 
were cancelled and retired and have the status of authorized but unissued shares 
of undesignated preferred stock. A gain on redemption of the preferred shares 
equal to $1.5 million was recognized as an increase to net income available to 
common shareholders in the Current Quarter in determining basic earnings per 
share. The gain represented the excess of (i) the liquidation value of the 
preferred shares that were retired plus dividends in arrears which had reduced 
prior EPS over (ii) the market value of the common stock issued, and the cash 
payment made, in exchange for the preferred shares. 
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                 CHESAPEAKE ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 
                   NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
                                  JUNE 30, 2000 
                                   (UNAUDITED) 
 
 
In the Current Period, a total of 34.2 million shares of common stock, plus a 
cash payment of $8.3 million, were exchanged for 3,039,363 shares of preferred 
stock. These transactions reduced (i) the number of preferred shares from 4.6 
million to 1.6 million, (ii) the liquidation value of the preferred stock from 
$229.8 million to $77.9 million, and (iii) dividends in arrears by $16.8 million 
to $9.5 million. A gain on redemption of all preferred shares exchanged through 
June 30, 2000 of $11.9 million ($1.5 million related to the Current Quarter) is 
reflected in net income available to common shareholders in determining basic 
earnings per share. 
 
Subsequent to June 30, 2000, the Company engaged in additional transactions in 
which 8.2 million shares of common stock (newly issued shares) were exchanged 
for 823,500 shares of its issued and outstanding preferred stock with a 
liquidation value of $41.2 million plus dividends in arrears of $5.3 million. A 
$4.8 million loss on the redemption of these preferred shares will be reflected 
in net income available to common shareholders in determining earnings per share 
in the third quarter. 
 
The Company may acquire additional shares of preferred stock in the future 
through negotiations with individual holders and, beginning May 1, 2001, it may 
redeem outstanding shares of preferred stock for $52.45 per share plus 
accumulated and unpaid dividends in cash and/or common stock. 
 
4. SENIOR NOTES 
 
9.625% Notes 
 
The Company has outstanding $500 million in aggregate principal amount of 9.625% 
Senior Notes which mature May 1, 2005. The 9.625% Notes bear interest at the 
rate of 9.625%, payable semiannually on each May 1 and November 1. The 9.625% 
Notes are senior, unsecured obligations of the Company and are fully and 
unconditionally guaranteed, jointly and severally, by the Guarantor 
Subsidiaries. 
 
9.125% Notes 
 
The Company has outstanding $120 million in aggregate principal amount of 9.125% 
Senior Notes which mature April 15, 2006. The 9.125% Notes bear interest at an 
annual rate of 9.125%, payable semiannually on each April 15 and October 15. The 
9.125% Notes are senior, unsecured obligations of the Company and are fully and 
unconditionally guaranteed, jointly and severally, by the Guarantor 
Subsidiaries. 
 
7.875% Notes 
 
The Company has outstanding $150 million in aggregate principal amount of 7.875% 
Senior Notes which mature March 15, 2004. The 7.875% Notes bear interest at the 
rate of 7.875%, payable semiannually on each March 15 and September 15. The 
7.875% Notes are senior, unsecured obligations of the Company and are fully and 
unconditionally guaranteed, jointly and severally, by the Guarantor 
Subsidiaries. 
 
8.5% Notes 
 
The Company has outstanding $150 million in aggregate principal amount of 8.5% 
Senior Notes which mature March 15, 2012. The 8.5% Notes bear interest at the 
rate of 8.5%, payable semiannually on each March 15 and September 15. The 8.5% 
Notes are senior, unsecured obligations of the Company and are fully and 
unconditionally guaranteed, jointly and severally, by the Guarantor 
Subsidiaries. 
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                 CHESAPEAKE ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 
                   NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
                                  JUNE 30, 2000 
                                   (UNAUDITED) 
 
 
The Company is a holding company and owns no operating assets and has no 
significant operations independent of its subsidiaries. The Company's 
obligations under its Senior Notes have been fully and unconditionally 
guaranteed, on a joint and several basis, by each of the Company's "Restricted 
Subsidiaries" (as defined in the respective indentures governing the Senior 
Notes) (collectively, the "Guarantor Subsidiaries"). Each of the Guarantor 
Subsidiaries is a direct or indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. 
 
The Senior Note Indentures contain certain covenants, including covenants 
limiting the Company and the Guarantor Subsidiaries with respect to asset sales, 
restricted payments, the incurrence of additional indebtedness and the issuance 
of preferred stock, liens, sale and leaseback transactions, lines of business, 
dividend and other payment restrictions affecting Guarantor Subsidiaries, 
mergers or consolidations, and transactions with affiliates. The Company is 
obligated to repurchase the 9.625% and 9.125% Senior Notes in the event of a 
change of control or certain asset sales. 
 
These senior note indentures also limit the Company's ability to make restricted 
payments (as defined), including the payment of preferred stock dividends, 
unless certain tests are met. From December 31, 1998 through March 31, 2000, the 
Company was unable to meet the requirements to incur additional unsecured 
indebtedness, and consequently was not able to pay cash dividends on its 7% 
cumulative convertible preferred stock. The Company had accumulated dividends in 
arrears of $9.5 million related to its preferred stock as of June 30, 2000. This 
restriction does not affect the Company's ability to borrow under or expand its 
secured commercial bank facility. The Company was unable to pay a dividend on 
the preferred stock on May 1, 2000, the sixth consecutive dividend payment date 
on which dividends had not been paid. As a result of the Company's failure to 
pay dividends for six quarterly periods, the holders of preferred stock are 
entitled to elect two new directors to the Board. Based on the Current Quarter 
financial results, the Company was able to pay a dividend on the preferred stock 
on August 1, 2000, although the Board of Directors did not declare a dividend 
that would have been payable on that date. 
 
Set forth below are condensed consolidating financial statements of the 
Guarantor Subsidiaries, the Company's subsidiaries which are not guarantors of 
the Senior Notes (the "Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries") and the Company. Separate 
financial statements of each Guarantor Subsidiary have not been provided because 
management has determined that they are not material to investors. 
 
Chesapeake Energy Marketing, Inc. ("CEMI") was the only Non-Guarantor Subsidiary 
for all periods presented. All of the Company's other subsidiaries were 
Guarantor Subsidiaries during all periods presented. 
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                 CHESAPEAKE ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 
                   NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
                                   (UNAUDITED) 
 
 
 
                      CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET 
 
                               AS OF JUNE 30, 2000 
                                ($ IN THOUSANDS) 
 
 
                                     ASSETS 
 
 
 
                                               GUARANTOR      NON-GUARANTOR      COMPANY 
                                             SUBSIDIARIES     SUBSIDIARIES       (PARENT)      ELIMINATIONS     CONSOLIDATED 
                                             ------------     -------------    -----------     ------------     ------------ 
                                                                                                   
CURRENT ASSETS: 
  Cash and cash equivalents ............     $    (9,048)     $     5,057      $    20,764      $        --      $    16,773 
  Accounts receivable, net .............          68,523           29,041               --          (17,189)          80,375 
  Inventory ............................           3,375              221               --               --            3,596 
  Other ................................           2,456               28              541               --            3,025 
                                             -----------      -----------      -----------      -----------      ----------- 
     Total current assets ..............          65,306           34,347           21,305          (17,189)         103,769 
                                             -----------      -----------      -----------      -----------      ----------- 
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT: 
  Oil and gas properties ...............       2,422,373               --               --               --        2,422,373 
  Unevaluated leasehold ................          32,146               --               --               --           32,146 
  Other property and equipment .........          29,899           20,568           19,688               --           70,155 
  Less: accumulated depreciation, 
    depletion and amortization .........      (1,734,280)         (17,974)          (2,104)              --       (1,754,358) 
                                             -----------      -----------      -----------      -----------      ----------- 
     Net property and equipment ........         750,138            2,594           17,584               --          770,316 
                                             -----------      -----------      -----------      -----------      ----------- 
INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND 
  INTERCOMPANY ADVANCES ................         922,163               --          432,912       (1,355,075)              -- 
                                             -----------      -----------      -----------      -----------      ----------- 
INVESTMENT IN GOTHIC ENERGY 
  CORPORATION ..........................          10,000               --           77,509               --           87,509 
                                             -----------      -----------      -----------      -----------      ----------- 
OTHER ASSETS ...........................           1,438            8,496           17,266           (7,812)          19,388 
                                             -----------      -----------      -----------      -----------      ----------- 
TOTAL ASSETS ...........................     $ 1,749,045      $    45,437      $   566,576      $(1,380,076)     $   980,982 
                                             ===========      ===========      ===========      ===========      =========== 
 
                 LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT) 
 
 
                                                                                                   
CURRENT LIABILITIES: 
  Notes payable and current maturities 
    of long-term debt ..................     $       799      $        --      $        --      $        --      $       799 
  Accounts payable and other ...........          61,540           30,312           26,087          (17,315)         100,624 
                                             -----------      -----------      -----------      -----------      ----------- 
     Total current liabilities .........          62,339           30,312           26,087          (17,315)         101,423 
                                             -----------      -----------      -----------      -----------      ----------- 
LONG-TERM DEBT, NET ....................          64,028               --          919,202               --          983,230 
                                             -----------      -----------      -----------      -----------      ----------- 
REVENUES AND ROYALTIES DUE 
  OTHERS ...............................           8,405               --               --               --            8,405 
                                             -----------      -----------      -----------      -----------      ----------- 
DEFERRED INCOME TAXES ..................           7,904               --               --               --            7,904 
                                             -----------      -----------      -----------      -----------      ----------- 
INTERCOMPANY PAYABLES ..................       1,473,601           (1,531)      (1,472,070)              --               -- 
                                             -----------      -----------      -----------      -----------      ----------- 
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT): 
  Common stock .........................              26                1            1,424              (18)           1,433 
  Other ................................         132,742           16,655        1,091,933       (1,362,743)        (121,413) 
                                             -----------      -----------      -----------      -----------      ----------- 
                                                 132,768           16,656        1,093,357       (1,362,761)        (119,980) 
                                             -----------      -----------      -----------      -----------      ----------- 
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND 
  STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT) .......     $ 1,749,045      $    45,437      $   566,576      $(1,380,076)     $   980,982 
                                             ===========      ===========      ===========      ===========      =========== 
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                 CHESAPEAKE ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 
                   NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
                                   (UNAUDITED) 
 
 
 
                      CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET 
 
                             AS OF DECEMBER 31, 1999 
                                ($ IN THOUSANDS) 
 
 
                                     ASSETS 
 
 
 
                                              GUARANTOR       NON-GUARANTOR      COMPANY 
                                             SUBSIDIARIES     SUBSIDIARIES       (PARENT)      ELIMINATIONS     CONSOLIDATED 
                                             ------------     -------------    -----------     ------------     ------------ 
                                                                                                   
CURRENT ASSETS: 
  Cash and cash equivalents ............     $    (6,964)     $    20,409      $    25,405      $        --      $    38,850 
  Accounts receivable ..................          45,170           18,297               73          (12,475)          51,065 
  Inventory ............................           4,183              399               --               --            4,582 
  Other ................................           1,997              700              352               --            3,049 
                                             -----------      -----------      -----------      -----------      ----------- 
          Total current assets .........          44,386           39,805           25,830          (12,475)          97,546 
                                             -----------      -----------      -----------      -----------      ----------- 
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT: 
  Oil and gas properties ...............       2,311,633            3,715               --               --        2,315,348 
  Unevaluated leasehold ................          40,008               --               --               --           40,008 
  Other property and equipment .........          29,088           20,521           18,103               --           67,712 
  Less: accumulated depreciation, 
     depletion and amortization ........      (1,683,890)         (18,205)          (1,876)              --       (1,703,971) 
                                             -----------      -----------      -----------      -----------      ----------- 
          Net property and equipment ...         696,839            6,031           16,227               --          719,097 
                                             -----------      -----------      -----------      -----------      ----------- 
INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND 
  INTERCOMPANY ADVANCES ................         806,180               --          493,738       (1,299,918)              -- 
                                             -----------      -----------      -----------      -----------      ----------- 
INVESTMENT IN GOTHIC ENERGY 
  CORPORATION ..........................          10,000               --               --               --           10,000 
OTHER ASSETS ...........................           6,402            8,409           16,765           (7,686)          23,890 
                                             -----------      -----------      -----------      -----------      ----------- 
TOTAL ASSETS ...........................     $ 1,563,807      $    54,245      $   552,560      $(1,320,079)     $   850,533 
                                             ===========      ===========      ===========      ===========      =========== 
 
 
                 LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT) 
 
 
 
                                                                                                   
CURRENT LIABILITIES: 
  Notes payable and current 
     maturities of long-term debt ......     $        --      $       763      $        --      $        --      $       763 
  Accounts payable and other ...........          63,194           19,265           17,466          (12,502)          87,423 
                                             -----------      -----------      -----------      -----------      ----------- 
          Total current liabilities ....          63,194           20,028           17,466          (12,502)          88,186 
                                             -----------      -----------      -----------      -----------      ----------- 
LONG-TERM DEBT, NET ....................          43,500            1,437          919,160               --          964,097 
                                             -----------      -----------      -----------      -----------      ----------- 
REVENUES AND ROYALTIES DUE 
  OTHERS ...............................           9,310               --               --               --            9,310 
                                             -----------      -----------      -----------      -----------      ----------- 
DEFERRED INCOME TAXES ..................           6,484               --               --               --            6,484 
                                             -----------      -----------      -----------      -----------      ----------- 
INTERCOMPANY PAYABLES ..................       1,356,466           (2,450)      (1,354,043)              27               -- 
                                             -----------      -----------      -----------      -----------      ----------- 
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT): 
  Common stock .........................              27                1            1,048              (17)           1,059 
  Other ................................          84,826           35,229          968,929       (1,307,587)        (218,603) 
                                             -----------      -----------      -----------      -----------      ----------- 
                                                  84,853           35,230          969,977       (1,307,604)        (217,544) 
                                             -----------      -----------      -----------      -----------      ----------- 
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 
(DEFICIT) ..............................     $ 1,563,807      $    54,245      $   552,560      $(1,320,079)     $   850,533 
                                             ===========      ===========      ===========      ===========      =========== 
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                 CHESAPEAKE ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 
                   NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
                                   (UNAUDITED) 
 
 
 
                CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 
                                ($ IN THOUSANDS) 
 
 
 
                                                       GUARANTOR    NON-GUARANTOR     COMPANY 
                                                      SUBSIDIARIES    SUBSIDIARY     (PARENT)      ELIMINATIONS  CONSOLIDATED 
                                                      ------------  -------------    ---------     ------------  ------------ 
                                                                                                   
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2000 
REVENUES: 
  Oil and gas sales ..............................     $ 100,221      $      --      $      --      $      --      $ 100,221 
  Oil and gas marketing sales ....................            --         79,973             --        (45,731)        34,242 
                                                       ---------      ---------      ---------      ---------      --------- 
     Total revenues ..............................       100,221         79,973             --        (45,731)       134,463 
                                                       ---------      ---------      ---------      ---------      --------- 
OPERATING COSTS: 
  Production expenses and taxes ..................        18,298             --             --             --         18,298 
  General and administrative .....................         2,841            299             48             --          3,188 
  Oil and gas marketing expenses .................            --         78,853             --        (45,731)        33,122 
  Oil and gas depreciation, depletion 
    and amortization .............................        24,876              1             --             --         24,877 
  Other depreciation and amortization ............         1,008             20            808             --          1,836 
                                                       ---------      ---------      ---------      ---------      --------- 
     Total operating costs .......................        47,023         79,173            856        (45,731)        81,321 
                                                       ---------      ---------      ---------      ---------      --------- 
INCOME (LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS ....................        53,198            800           (856)            --         53,142 
                                                       ---------      ---------      ---------      ---------      --------- 
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE): 
  Interest and other income ......................         1,165            467         20,945        (20,910)         1,667 
  Interest expense ...............................       (21,484)            --        (21,239)        20,910        (21,813) 
                                                       ---------      ---------      ---------      ---------      --------- 
                                                         (20,319)           467           (294)            --        (20,146) 
                                                       ---------      ---------      ---------      ---------      --------- 
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAXES ................        32,879          1,267         (1,150)            --         32,996 
INCOME TAX EXPENSE ...............................         1,362             --             --             --          1,362 
                                                       ---------      ---------      ---------      ---------      --------- 
NET INCOME (LOSS) ................................     $  31,517      $   1,267      $  (1,150)     $      --      $  31,634 
                                                       =========      =========      =========      =========      ========= 
 
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 
REVENUES: 
  Oil and gas sales ..............................     $  68,272      $      --      $      --      $      --      $  68,272 
  Oil and gas marketing sales ....................            --         38,420             --        (25,800)        12,620 
                                                       ---------      ---------      ---------      ---------      --------- 
     Total revenues ..............................        68,272         38,420             --        (25,800)        80,892 
                                                       ---------      ---------      ---------      ---------      --------- 
OPERATING COSTS: 
  Production expenses and taxes ..................        13,981             --             --             --         13,981 
  General and administrative .....................         2,942            324              2             --          3,268 
  Oil and gas marketing expenses .................            --         37,473             --        (25,800)        11,673 
  Oil and gas depreciation, depletion 
    and amortization .............................        24,233             --             --             --         24,233 
  Other depreciation and amortization ............         1,138             20            814             --          1,972 
                                                       ---------      ---------      ---------      ---------      --------- 
     Total operating costs .......................        42,294         37,817            816        (25,800)        55,127 
                                                       ---------      ---------      ---------      ---------      --------- 
INCOME (LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS ....................        25,978            603           (816)            --         25,765 
                                                       ---------      ---------      ---------      ---------      --------- 
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE): 
  Interest and other income ......................           440          2,408         29,188        (29,069)         2,967 
  Interest expense ...............................       (29,009)            --        (20,319)        29,069        (20,259) 
                                                       ---------      ---------      ---------      ---------      --------- 
                                                         (28,569)         2,408          8,869             --        (17,292) 
                                                       ---------      ---------      ---------      ---------      --------- 
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAXES ................        (2,591)         3,011          8,053             --          8,473 
INCOME TAX EXPENSE ...............................           326             --             --             --            326 
                                                       ---------      ---------      ---------      ---------      --------- 
NET INCOME (LOSS) ................................     $  (2,917)     $   3,011      $   8,053      $      --      $   8,147 
                                                       =========      =========      =========      =========      ========= 
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                 CHESAPEAKE ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 
                   NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
                                   (UNAUDITED) 
 
 
                CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 
                                ($ IN THOUSANDS) 
 
 
 
 
                                                       GUARANTOR    NON-GUARANTOR     COMPANY 
                                                     SUBSIDIARIES     SUBSIDIARY      (PARENT)     ELIMINATIONS  CONSOLIDATED 
                                                     ------------   -------------    ---------     ------------  ------------ 
                                                                                                   
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2000 
REVENUES: 
  Oil and gas sales ..............................     $ 187,167      $     347      $      --      $      --      $ 187,514 
  Oil and gas marketing sales ....................            --        149,098             --        (87,488)        61,610 
                                                       ---------      ---------      ---------      ---------      --------- 
     Total revenues ..............................       187,167        149,445             --        (87,488)       249,124 
                                                       ---------      ---------      ---------      ---------      --------- 
OPERATING COSTS: 
  Production expenses and taxes ..................        35,979             80             --             --         36,059 
  General and administrative .....................         5,561            590             69             --          6,220 
  Oil and gas marketing expenses .................            --        147,154             --        (87,488)        59,666 
  Oil and gas depreciation, depletion 
    and amortization .............................        49,259            101             --             --         49,360 
  Other depreciation and amortization ............         2,034             40          1,628             --          3,702 
                                                       ---------      ---------      ---------      ---------      --------- 
     Total operating costs .......................        92,833        147,965          1,697        (87,488)       155,007 
                                                       ---------      ---------      ---------      ---------      --------- 
INCOME (LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS ....................        94,334          1,480         (1,697)            --         94,117 
                                                       ---------      ---------      ---------      ---------      --------- 
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE): 
  Interest and other income ......................         1,963            803         41,912        (41,819)         2,859 
  Interest expense ...............................       (42,439)           (34)       (42,023)        41,819        (42,677) 
                                                       ---------      ---------      ---------      ---------      --------- 
                                                         (40,476)           769           (111)            --        (39,818) 
                                                       ---------      ---------      ---------      ---------      --------- 
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAXES ................        53,858          2,249         (1,808)            --         54,299 
INCOME TAX EXPENSE ...............................         1,463             --             --             --          1,463 
                                                       ---------      ---------      ---------      ---------      --------- 
NET INCOME (LOSS) ................................     $  52,395      $   2,249      $  (1,808)     $      --      $  52,836 
                                                       =========      =========      =========      =========      ========= 
 
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 
REVENUES: 
  Oil and gas sales ..............................     $ 120,078      $      --      $      --      $      --      $ 120,078 
  Oil and gas marketing sales ....................            --         73,258             --        (46,767)        26,491 
                                                       ---------      ---------      ---------      ---------      --------- 
     Total revenues ..............................       120,078         73,258             --        (46,767)       146,569 
                                                       ---------      ---------      ---------      ---------      --------- 
OPERATING COSTS: 
  Production expenses and taxes ..................        29,963             --             --             --         29,963 
  General and administrative .....................         6,464            781             47             --          7,292 
  Oil and gas marketing expenses .................            --         71,725             --        (46,767)        24,958 
  Oil and gas depreciation, depletion 
    and amortization .............................        47,386             --             --             --         47,386 
  Other depreciation and amortization ............         2,476             40          1,622             --          4,138 
                                                       ---------      ---------      ---------      ---------      --------- 
     Total operating costs .......................        86,289         72,546          1,669        (46,767)       113,737 
                                                       ---------      ---------      ---------      ---------      --------- 
INCOME (LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS ....................        33,789            712         (1,669)            --         32,832 
                                                       ---------      ---------      ---------      ---------      --------- 
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE): 
  Interest and other income ......................           707          2,845         58,328        (58,040)         3,840 
  Interest expense ...............................       (57,415)            --        (40,774)        58,040        (40,149) 
                                                       ---------      ---------      ---------      ---------      --------- 
                                                         (56,708)         2,845         17,554             --        (36,309) 
                                                       ---------      ---------      ---------      ---------      --------- 
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAXES ................       (22,919)         3,557         15,885             --         (3,477) 
INCOME TAX EXPENSE ...............................           326             --             --             --            326 
                                                       ---------      ---------      ---------      ---------      --------- 
NET INCOME (LOSS) ................................     $ (23,245)     $   3,557      $  15,885      $      --      $  (3,803) 
                                                       =========      =========      =========      =========      ========= 
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                 CHESAPEAKE ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 
                   NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
                                   (UNAUDITED) 
 
 
                CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
                                ($ IN THOUSANDS) 
 
 
 
 
                                                           GUARANTOR     NON-GUARANTOR    COMPANY 
                                                          SUBSIDIARIES     SUBSIDIARY     (PARENT)     ELIMINATIONS   CONSOLIDATED 
                                                          ------------   -------------    ---------    ------------   ------------ 
                                                                                                        
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2000 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES ..................     $  88,395      $  (4,753)     $     228      $      --      $  83,870 
                                                            ---------      ---------      ---------      ---------      --------- 
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
  Oil and gas properties ..............................      (104,075)         1,515             --             --       (102,560) 
  Proceeds from sale of assets ........................           835             --             --             --            835 
  Investment in Gothic senior discount notes ..........            --        (22,352)            --             --        (22,352) 
  Other investments ...................................            --             --         (2,000)            --         (2,000) 
  Other additions .....................................        (2,570)           (46)        (1,876)            --         (4,492) 
                                                            ---------      ---------      ---------      ---------      --------- 
                                                             (105,810)       (20,883)        (3,876)            --       (130,569) 
                                                            ---------      ---------      ---------      ---------      --------- 
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
  Proceeds from borrowings ............................       113,000             --             --             --        113,000 
  Payments on borrowings ..............................       (93,500)            --             --             --        (93,500) 
  Cash received from exercise of stock options ........            --             --            764             --            764 
  Intercompany advances, net ..........................        (8,527)        10,284         (1,757)            --             -- 
                                                            ---------      ---------      ---------      ---------      --------- 
                                                               10,973         10,284           (993)            --         20,264 
                                                            ---------      ---------      ---------      ---------      --------- 
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES 
  ON CASH .............................................          (204)            --             --             --           (204) 
                                                            ---------      ---------      ---------      ---------      --------- 
  Net increase (decrease) in cash .....................        (6,646)       (15,352)        (4,641)            --        (26,639) 
  Cash, beginning of period ...........................        (7,156)        20,409         25,405             --         38,658 
                                                            ---------      ---------      ---------      ---------      --------- 
  Cash, end of period .................................     $ (13,802)     $   5,057      $  20,764      $      --      $  12,019 
                                                            =========      =========      =========      =========      ========= 
 
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES ..................     $  22,128      $   8,119      $  17,319      $      --      $  47,566 
                                                            ---------      ---------      ---------      ---------      --------- 
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
  Oil and gas properties ..............................       (68,400)            --             --             --        (68,400) 
  Proceeds from sale of other assets ..................         1,306             --             --             --          1,306 
  Other additions .....................................           427            308           (986)            --           (251) 
                                                            ---------      ---------      ---------      ---------      --------- 
                                                              (66,667)           308           (986)            --        (67,345) 
                                                            ---------      ---------      ---------      ---------      --------- 
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
  Proceeds from borrowings ............................        14,000             --             --             --         14,000 
  Cash paid for purchase of treasury stock ............            --            (53)            --             --            (53) 
  Cash received from exercise of stock options ........            --             --            240             --            240 
  Intercompany advances, net ..........................        33,665          2,217        (35,882)            --             -- 
                                                            ---------      ---------      ---------      ---------      --------- 
                                                               47,665          2,164        (35,642)            --         14,187 
                                                            ---------      ---------      ---------      ---------      --------- 
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES 
  ON CASH .............................................         3,625             --             --             --          3,625 
                                                            ---------      ---------      ---------      ---------      --------- 
  Net increase (decrease) in cash .....................         6,751         10,591        (19,309)            --         (1,967) 
  Cash, beginning of period ...........................       (17,319)         7,000         39,839             --         29,520 
                                                            ---------      ---------      ---------      ---------      --------- 
  Cash, end of period .................................     $ (10,568)     $  17,591      $  20,530      $      --      $  27,553 
                                                            =========      =========      =========      =========      ========= 
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                 CHESAPEAKE ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 
                   NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
                                   (UNAUDITED) 
 
 
        CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) 
                                ($ IN THOUSANDS) 
 
 
 
 
                                                       GUARANTOR   NON-GUARANTOR    COMPANY 
                                                     SUBSIDIARIES   SUBSIDIARIES    (PARENT)     ELIMINATIONS  CONSOLIDATED 
                                                     ------------  -------------    ---------    ------------  ------------ 
                                                                                                 
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2000: 
  Net income (loss) ..............................     $  31,517      $   1,267     $  (1,150)     $      --     $  31,634 
  Other comprehensive income (loss) - 
    foreign currency translation .................        (2,475)            --            --             --        (2,475) 
                                                       ---------      ---------     ---------      ---------     --------- 
  Comprehensive income ...........................     $  29,042      $   1,267     $  (1,150)     $      --     $  29,159 
                                                       =========      =========     =========      =========     ========= 
 
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 1999: 
  Net income (loss) ..............................     $  (2,917)     $   3,011     $   8,053      $      --     $   8,147 
  Other comprehensive income (loss) - 
    foreign currency translation .................         2,813             --            --             --         2,813 
                                                       ---------      ---------     ---------      ---------     --------- 
  Comprehensive income (loss) ....................     $    (104)     $   3,011     $   8,053      $      --     $  10,960 
                                                       =========      =========     =========      =========     ========= 
 
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2000: 
  Net income (loss) ..............................     $  52,395      $   2,249     $  (1,808)     $      --     $  52,836 
  Other comprehensive income (loss) - 
    foreign currency translation .................        (2,953)            --            --             --        (2,953) 
                                                       ---------      ---------     ---------      ---------     --------- 
  Comprehensive income ...........................     $  49,442      $   2,249     $  (1,808)     $      --     $  49,883 
                                                       =========      =========     =========      =========     ========= 
 
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 1999: 
  Net income (loss) ..............................     $ (23,245)     $   3,557     $  15,885      $      --     $  (3,803) 
  Other comprehensive income (loss) - 
    foreign currency translation .................         3,625             --            --             --         3,625 
                                                       ---------      ---------     ---------      ---------     --------- 
  Comprehensive income (loss) ....................     $ (19,620)     $   3,557     $  15,885      $      --     $    (178) 
                                                       =========      =========     =========      =========     ========= 
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                 CHESAPEAKE ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 
                   NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
                                   (UNAUDITED) 
 
 
5. INVESTMENT IN GOTHIC ENERGY CORPORATION ("GOTHIC") 
 
On June 27, 2000, CEMI purchased in a series of private transactions 96% of 
Gothic's $104 million of 14.125% Series B Senior Secured Discount Notes for 
consideration of $77.5 million, comprised of $22.4 million in cash and $55.2 
million of Chesapeake common stock (9,468,985 shares valued at $5.825 per 
share), subject to adjustment. The acquired discount notes accrete at a rate per 
annum of 14.125%, compounded semi-annually to an aggregate principal amount of 
$99.7 million at May 1, 2002. Thereafter, the discount notes accrue interest at 
the rate of 14.125% per annum, payable in cash semi-annually in arrears on May 1 
and November 1 of each year commencing November 1, 2002. The discount notes 
mature on May 1, 2006. 
 
On June 30, 2000, the Company entered into a letter of intent to acquire the 
common stock of Gothic for 4.0 million shares of Chesapeake common stock. Upon 
the closing of the transaction, Gothic's shareholders will own approximately 
2.7% of Chesapeake's common stock. The total acquisition cost to Chesapeake will 
be approximately $345 million, including $235 million of Senior Secured Notes 
issued by Gothic's operating subsidiary. The Gothic acquisition is subject to 
the completion of definitive documentation and approval by Gothic's 
shareholders. Completion of the transaction is expected by year-end 2000. 
 
Also included in the Company's investment in Gothic is the Company's April 1998 
investment in Gothic's 12% Preferred Stock with a carrying value of $10.0 
million. 
 
6. REVOLVING CREDIT FACILITY 
 
At June 30, 2000, the Company had a $75 million revolving bank credit facility, 
maturing in July 2002, with a committed borrowing base of $75 million. As of 
June 30, 2000, the Company had borrowed $63.0 million under this facility. 
Borrowings under the facility are secured by certain producing oil and gas 
properties and bear interest at variable rates, which averaged 10.0% per annum 
as of June 30, 2000. On August 1, 2000, the revolving bank credit facility and 
the borrowing base were increased to $100 million. 
 
7. RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS 
 
On June 15, 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued FAS No. 133, 
Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities. FAS 133 
establishes a new model for accounting for derivatives and hedging activities 
and supersedes and amends a number of existing standards. FAS 133 (as amended by 
FAS 137 and FAS 138) is effective for all fiscal quarters of fiscal years 
beginning after June 15, 2000. 
 
FAS 133 standardizes the accounting for derivative instruments by requiring that 
all derivatives be recognized as assets and liabilities and measured at fair 
value. The accounting for changes in the fair value of derivatives (gains and 
losses) depends on (i) whether the derivative is designated and qualifies as a 
hedge, and (ii) the type of hedging relationship that exists. Changes in the 
fair value of derivatives that are not designated as hedges or that do not meet 
the hedge accounting criteria in FAS 133 are required to be reported in 
earnings. In addition, all hedging relationships must be designated, reassessed 
and documented pursuant to the provisions of FAS 133. The Company has not yet 
determined the impact that adoption of FAS 133 will have on the financial 
statements. However, the Company believes that its commodity derivatives will be 
designated as hedges in accordance with the relevant accounting criteria. 
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                          PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
 
ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS 
OF OPERATIONS 
 
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 
 
Three Months Ended June 30, 2000 vs. June 30, 1999 
 
General. For the three months ended June 30, 2000 (the "Current Quarter"), the 
Company realized net income of $31.6 million, or $0.22 per diluted common share. 
This compares to net income of $8.1 million, or $0.04 per diluted common share, 
in the three months ended June 30, 1999 (the "Prior Quarter"). 
 
Oil and Gas Sales. During the Current Quarter, oil and gas sales increased 47% 
to $100.2 million from $68.3 million in the Prior Quarter. For the Current 
Quarter, the Company produced 34.1 billion cubic feet equivalent ("bcfe"), 
consisting of 0.8 million barrels of oil ("mmbo") and 29.3 billion cubic feet of 
natural gas ("bcf"), compared to 1.1 mmbo and 27.0 bcf, or 33.6 bcfe, in the 
Prior Quarter. Average oil prices realized were $24.46 per barrel of oil ("bo") 
in the Current Quarter compared to $16.01 per bo in the Prior Quarter, an 
increase of 53%. Average gas prices realized were $2.76 per thousand cubic feet 
("mcf") in the Current Quarter compared to $1.88 per mcf in the Prior Quarter, 
an increase of 47%. 
 
For the Current Quarter, the Company realized an average price of $2.94 per 
thousand cubic feet equivalent ("mcfe"), compared to $2.03 per mcfe in the Prior 
Quarter. The Company's hedging activities resulted in decreased oil and gas 
revenues of $11.0 million, or $0.32 per mcfe, in the Current Quarter, compared 
to increased oil and gas revenues of $2.9 million, or $0.09 per mcfe, in the 
Prior Quarter. 
 
The following table shows the Company's production by region for the Current 
Quarter and the Prior Quarter: 
 
 
 
                              FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 
                         -------------------------------------------- 
                                 2000                     1999 
                         -------------------      ------------------- 
  OPERATING AREAS         MMCFE      PERCENT       MMCFE      PERCENT 
  ---------------        -------     -------      -------     ------- 
                                                   
Mid-Continent ......      19,265          57%      17,520          52% 
Gulf Coast .........       8,650          25       10,683          32 
Canada .............       3,579          10        3,134           9 
Other Areas ........       2,591           8        2,229           7 
                         -------     -------      -------     ------- 
     Total .........      34,085         100%      33,566         100% 
                         =======     =======      =======     ======= 
 
 
Natural gas production represented approximately 86% of the Company's total 
production volume on an equivalent basis in the Current Quarter, compared to 81% 
in the Prior Quarter. 
 
Oil and Gas Marketing Sales. The Company realized $34.2 million in oil and gas 
marketing sales to third parties in the Current Quarter, with corresponding oil 
and gas marketing expenses of $33.1 million, for a margin of $1.1 million. This 
compares to sales of $12.6 million, expenses of $11.7 million, and a margin of 
$0.9 million in the Prior Quarter. The increase in marketing sales and cost of 
sales was due primarily to higher oil and gas prices in the Current Quarter as 
compared to the Prior Quarter and the Company's initial marketing of oil which 
began in June 1999. 
 
Production Expenses. Production expenses increased to $12.6 million in the 
Current Quarter, a $1.4 million increase from the $11.2 million of production 
expenses incurred in the Prior Quarter. On a unit of production basis, 
production expenses were $0.37 and $0.33 per mcfe in the Current and Prior 
Quarters, respectively. The Company anticipates production expenses will not 
vary significantly from current levels during the remainder of 2000. 
 
Production Taxes. Production taxes, which consist primarily of wellhead 
severance taxes, were $5.7 million and $2.8 million in the Current and Prior 
Quarters, respectively. On a per unit basis, production taxes were $0.17 per 
mcfe in the Current Quarter compared to $0.08 per mcfe in the Prior Quarter. The 
increase in the Current Quarter is 
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due to higher oil and gas prices. In general, production taxes are calculated 
using value-based formulas that produce higher per unit costs when oil and gas 
prices are higher. 
 
Oil and Gas Depreciation, Depletion and Amortization. Depreciation, depletion 
and amortization of oil and gas properties ("DD&A") for the Current Quarter was 
$24.9 million, compared to $24.2 million in the Prior Quarter. The DD&A rate per 
mcfe increased from $0.72 in the Prior Quarter to $0.73 in the Current Quarter. 
The Company expects the DD&A rate will increase moderately from current levels 
during the remainder of 2000 and is expected to increase further upon the 
completion of the Gothic acquisition. 
 
Depreciation and Amortization of Other Assets. Depreciation and amortization of 
other assets ("D&A") was $1.8 million in the Current Quarter compared to $2.0 
million in the Prior Quarter. The Company anticipates D&A will continue at 
current levels during the remainder of 2000. 
 
General and Administrative. General and administrative expenses ("G&A"), which 
are net of capitalized internal payroll and non-payroll expenses, were $3.2 
million in the Current Quarter compared to $3.3 million in the Prior Quarter. 
The Company capitalized $1.5 million of internal costs in the Current Quarter 
directly related to the Company's oil and gas exploration and development 
efforts, compared to $0.8 million in the Prior Quarter. The increase in 
capitalized internal costs is primarily due to the addition of technical 
employees and other related costs. The Company anticipates that G&A costs during 
the remainder of 2000 will remain at approximately the same level as the Current 
Quarter. 
 
Interest and Other Income. Interest and other income for the Current Quarter was 
$1.7 million compared to $3.0 million in the Prior Quarter. The decrease is due 
primarily to a $1.5 million gain on the sale of certain marketing assets located 
in the Mid-Continent in the Prior Quarter. 
 
Interest Expense. Interest expense increased to $21.8 million in the Current 
Quarter from $20.3 million in the Prior Quarter as a result of lower capitalized 
interest and higher amounts of indebtedness. In addition to the interest expense 
reported, the Company capitalized $0.6 million of interest during the Current 
Quarter compared to $1.0 million capitalized in the Prior Quarter. 
 
Provision for Income Taxes. The Company recorded income tax expense of $1.4 
million for the Current Quarter and $0.3 million in the Prior Quarter. The 
income tax expense recorded in both the Current Quarter and Prior Quarter is 
related to the Company's Canadian operations. At June 30, 2000, the Company had 
a U.S. net operating loss carryforward of approximately $640 million for regular 
federal income taxes which will expire in future years beginning in 2007. 
Management believes that it cannot be demonstrated at this time that it is more 
likely than not that the deferred income tax assets, comprised primarily of the 
U.S. net operating loss carryforwards, will be realized in future years, and 
therefore a valuation allowance of $424.3 million has been recorded. However, 
management continues to evaluate the deferred tax assets. If oil and gas prices 
as well as improvements in the Company's operating performance continue to 
strengthen and stabilize in future periods, all or a portion of the valuation 
allowance may be reversed. 
 
Six Months Ended June 30, 2000 vs. June 30, 1999 
 
General. For the six months ended June 30, 2000 (the "Current Period"), the 
Company realized net income of $52.8 million, or $0.36 per diluted common share. 
This compares to a net loss of $3.8 million, or a net loss of $0.12 per diluted 
common share after deducting preferred dividends of $8.1 million, in the six 
months ended June 30, 1999 (the "Prior Period"). 
 
Oil and Gas Sales. During the Current Period, oil and gas sales increased to 
$187.5 million from $120.1 million, an increase of $67.4 million, or 56%. For 
the Current Period, the Company produced 1.7 mmbo and 58.1 bcf, compared to 2.4 
mmbo and 52.7 bcf in the Prior Period. Average oil prices realized were $24.52 
per barrel in the Current Period compared to $13.27 per barrel in the Prior 
Period, an increase of 85%. Average gas prices realized were $2.53 per mcf in 
the Current Period compared to $1.68 per mcf in the Prior Period, an increase of 
51%. 
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For the Current Period, the Company realized an average price of $2.76 per mcfe, 
compared to $1.80 per mcfe in the Prior Period. The Company's hedging activities 
resulted in decreased oil and gas revenues of $13.2 million, or $0.19 per mcfe, 
in the Current Period, compared to increased oil and gas revenues of $3.2 
million in the Prior Period. 
 
The following table shows the Company's production by region for the Current 
Period and the Prior Period: 
 
 
 
                                 FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 
                         ------------------------------------------------ 
                                 2000                        1999 
                         ---------------------      --------------------- 
   OPERATING AREAS        MMCFE       PERCENT         MMCFE      PERCENT 
   ---------------       --------     --------      --------     -------- 
                                                      
Mid-Continent ......       38,294           56%       33,828           51% 
Gulf Coast .........       18,832           28        22,086           33 
Canada .............        6,504           10         5,564            8 
Other areas ........        4,386            6         5,400            8 
                         --------     --------      --------     -------- 
     Total .........       68,016          100%       66,878          100% 
                         ========     ========      ========     ======== 
 
 
Natural gas production represented approximately 85% of the Company's total 
production volume on an equivalent basis in the Current Period, compared to 79% 
in the Prior Period. 
 
Oil and Gas Marketing Sales. The Company realized $61.6 million in oil and gas 
marketing sales to third parties in the Current Period, with corresponding oil 
and gas marketing expenses of $59.7 million for a margin of $1.9 million. This 
compares to sales of $26.5 million and expenses of $25.0 million in the Prior 
Period for a margin of $1.5 million. The increase in marketing sales and cost of 
sales was due primarily to higher oil and gas prices in the Current Period as 
compared to the Prior Period and the Company's initial marketing of oil which 
began in June 1999. 
 
Production Expenses. Production expenses decreased to $25.1 million in the 
Current Period, a $0.1 million decrease from $25.2 million incurred in the Prior 
Period. On a production unit basis, production expenses were $0.37 and $0.38 per 
mcfe in the Current and Prior Periods, respectively. 
 
Production Taxes. Production taxes, which consist primarily of wellhead 
severance taxes, were $10.9 million and $4.8 million in the Current and Prior 
Periods, respectively. This increase was the result of increased natural gas 
production and higher oil and gas prices. On a per unit basis, production taxes 
were $0.16 per mcfe in the Current Period compared to $0.07 per mcfe in the 
Prior Period. 
 
Oil and Gas Depreciation, Depletion and Amortization. DD&A for the Current 
Period was $49.4 million, compared to $47.4 million in the Prior Period. This 
increase was caused by increased production as well as an increase in the DD&A 
rate per mcfe from $0.71 to $0.73 in the Prior and Current Periods, 
respectively. 
 
Depreciation and Amortization of Other Assets. D&A decreased to $3.7 million in 
the Current Period compared to $4.1 million in the Prior Period. 
 
General and Administrative. G&A, which is net of capitalized internal payroll 
and non-payroll expenses, was $6.2 million in the Current Period compared to 
$7.3 million in the Prior Period. This decrease was primarily due to cost 
efficiencies that were generated throughout 1999 and an increase in capitalized 
internal costs between periods. The Company capitalized $3.4 million of internal 
costs in the Current Period directly related to the Company's oil and gas 
exploration and development efforts, compared to $2.0 million in the Prior 
Period. The increase in capitalized internal costs is primarily due to the 
addition of technical employees and other related costs. 
 
Interest and Other Income. Interest and other income for the Current Period was 
$2.9 million compared to $3.8 million in the Prior Period. This decrease is due 
primarily to a $1.5 million gain on the sale of certain marketing assets located 
in the Mid-Continent in the Prior Period. 
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Interest. Interest expense increased to $42.7 million in the Current Period from 
$40.1 million in the Prior Period as a result of lower capitalized interest and 
higher amounts of indebtedness. The Company capitalized $1.3 million of interest 
during the Current Period compared to $2.2 million capitalized in the Prior 
Period. 
 
Provision for Income Taxes. The Company recorded income tax expense of $1.5 
million for the Current Period, compared to $0.3 million in the Prior Period. 
The income tax expense in both Periods is entirely related to the Company's 
operations in Canada. Management believes that it cannot be demonstrated that it 
is more likely than not that its domestic deferred income tax assets will be 
realizable in future years, and therefore a valuation allowance of $424.3 
million has been recorded. However, management continues to evaluate the 
deferred tax assets. If oil and gas prices as well as improvements in the 
Company's operating performance continue to strengthen and stabilize in future 
periods, all or a portion of the valuation allowance may be reversed. 
 
RISK MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES 
 
See Item 3 - "Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risks." 
 
LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES 
 
The Company had working capital of $2.3 million at June 30, 2000 and a cash 
balance (including restricted cash) of $16.8 million. The Company has a $100 
million revolving bank credit facility, which matures in July 2002, with a 
committed borrowing base of $100 million. As of June 30, 2000, the Company had 
borrowed $63.0 million under this facility. Borrowings under the facility are 
secured by certain producing oil and gas properties and bear interest at 
variable rates, which averaged 10.0% per annum as of June 30, 2000. On August 1, 
2000, the borrowing base increased to $100 million from $75 million. 
 
On June 27, 2000, CEMI purchased in a series of private transactions 96% of 
Gothic's $104 million of 14.125% Series B Senior Secured Discount Notes for 
consideration of $77.5 million, comprised of $22.4 million in cash and $55.2 
million of Chesapeake common stock (9,468,985 shares valued at $5.825 per 
share), subject to adjustment. The discount notes accrete at a rate per annum of 
14.125%, compounded semi-annually to an aggregate principal amount of $99.7 
million at May 1, 2002. Thereafter, the discount notes accrue interest at the 
rate of 14.125% per annum, payable in cash semi-annually in arrears on May 1 and 
November 1 of each year commencing November 1, 2002. The discount notes mature 
on May 1, 2006. 
 
On June 30, 2000, the Company entered into a letter of intent to acquire the 
common stock of Gothic for 4.0 million shares of Chesapeake common stock. Upon 
the closing of the transaction, Gothic's shareholders will own approximately 
2.7% of Chesapeake's common stock. The total acquisition cost to Chesapeake will 
be approximately $345 million, including $235 million of Senior Secured Notes 
issued by Gothic's operating subsidiary. The Gothic acquisition is subject to 
the completion of definitive documentation and approval by Gothic's 
shareholders. Completion of the transaction is expected by year-end 2000. 
 
At June 30, 2000, the Company's senior notes represented $919.2 million of its 
$999.5 million of long-term liabilities. Debt ratings for the senior notes are 
B2 by Moody's Investors Service and B by Standard & Poor's Corporation as of 
August 1, 2000. On July 5, 2000, Standard & Poor's Corporation placed its 
ratings on the Company on credit watch with positive implications. There are no 
scheduled principal payments required on any of the senior notes until March 
2004, when $150 million is due. 
 
The senior note indentures restrict the ability of the Company and its 
restricted subsidiaries to incur additional indebtedness. This restriction does 
not affect the Company's ability to borrow under or expand its secured 
commercial bank facility. As of June 30, 2000, the Company estimates that 
secured commercial bank indebtedness of $152.2 million could have been incurred 
under the indentures. The indenture restrictions do not apply to borrowings 
incurred by CEMI, an unrestricted subsidiary. 
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The senior note indentures also limit the Company's ability to make restricted 
payments (as defined), including the payment of preferred stock dividends, 
unless certain tests are met. From December 31, 1998 through March 31, 2000, the 
Company was unable to meet the requirements to incur additional unsecured 
indebtedness, and consequently was not able to pay cash dividends on its 7% 
cumulative convertible preferred stock. The Company had accumulated dividends in 
arrears of $9.5 million related to its preferred stock as of June 30, 2000. The 
Company was unable to pay a dividend on the preferred stock on May 1, 2000, the 
sixth consecutive dividend payment date on which dividends had not been paid. As 
a result of the Company's failure to pay dividends for six quarterly periods, 
the holders of preferred stock are entitled to elect two new directors to the 
Board. Based on the Current Quarter financial results, the Company was able to 
pay a dividend on the preferred stock on August 1, 2000, although the Board of 
Directors did not declare a dividend that would have been payable on that date. 
 
In the Current Quarter, the Company engaged in unsolicited transactions in which 
a total of 24.7 million shares of common stock (newly issued shares), plus a 
cash payment of $8.3 million, were exchanged for 2,364,363 shares of its issued 
and outstanding preferred stock with a liquidation value of $118.2 million plus 
dividends in arrears of $13.6 million. A total of 34.2 million shares of common 
stock, plus a cash payment of $8.3 million, have been exchanged for 3,039,363 
shares of preferred stock during the Current Period. These transactions have 
reduced (i) the number of preferred shares from 4.6 million to 1.6 million, (ii) 
the liquidation value of the preferred stock from $229.8 million to $77.9 
million, and (iii) dividends in arrears by $16.8 million to $9.5 million. A gain 
on redemption of all preferred shares exchanged through June 30, 2000 of $11.9 
million ($1.5 million related to the Current Quarter) is reflected in net income 
available to common shareholders in determining basic earnings per share. 
 
Subsequent to June 30, 2000, the Company engaged in additional transactions in 
which 8.2 million shares of common stock (newly issued shares) were exchanged 
for 823,500 shares of its issued and outstanding preferred stock with a 
liquidation value of $41.2 million plus dividends in arrears of $5.3 million. A 
$4.8 million loss on the redemption of these preferred shares will be reflected 
in net income available to common shareholders in determining earnings per share 
in the third quarter. 
 
The Company believes it has adequate resources, including cash on hand and 
budgeted cash flow from operations, to fund its capital expenditure budget for 
exploration and development activities during 2000, which are currently 
estimated to be approximately $160 million. However, low oil and gas prices or 
unfavorable drilling results could cause the Company to reduce its drilling 
program, which is largely discretionary. Based on current oil and gas prices, 
the Company expects to generate excess cash flow that will be available to fund 
acquisitions, reduce debt, make preferred stock dividend payments, acquire 
Gothic debt securities or a combination of the above. 
 
If the Gothic merger is completed, the holders of $235 million principal amount 
of 11.125% Senior Secured Notes issued by Gothic's operating subsidiary will 
have the right, but not the obligation, to require the Company to redeem the 
Senior Secured Notes at a purchase price equal to 101% of the principal amount 
of the Senior Secured Notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest to the date of 
repurchase. 
 
The Company's cash provided by operating activities increased 76% to $83.9 
million during the Current Period compared to $47.6 million during the Prior 
Period. The increase was due primarily to higher oil and gas prices realized 
during the Current Period. 
 
Cash used in investing activities increased to $130.6 million during the Current 
Period from $67.3 million in the Prior Period. During the Current Period the 
Company expended approximately $68.3 million to initiate drilling on 66 gross 
(35.6 net) wells and invested approximately $10.6 million in leasehold 
acquisitions. This compares to $68.3 million to initiate drilling on 80 gross 
(48.9 net) wells and $11.1 million to purchase leasehold in the Prior 
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Period. During the Current Period, the Company had acquisitions of oil and gas 
properties of $25.0 million, divestitures of oil and gas properties of $1.4 
million, and a cash payment of $22.4 million related to the acquisition of the 
Gothic Discount Notes. This compares to acquisitions of $6.5 million and 
divestitures of $17.4 million in the Prior Period. 
 
There was $20.3 million of cash provided by financing activities in the Current 
Period, compared to $14.2 million in the Prior Period. The activity in the 
Current Period and the Prior Period reflects the net increase in borrowings 
under the Company's commercial bank credit facility of $19.5 million and $14.0 
million in the Current and Prior Periods, respectively, and cash received 
through the exercise of stock options. 
 
RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS 
 
On June 15, 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued FAS No. 133, 
Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities. FAS 133 
establishes a new model for accounting for derivatives and hedging activities 
and supersedes and amends a number of existing standards. FAS 133 (as amended by 
FAS 137 and FAS 138) is effective for all fiscal quarters of fiscal years 
beginning after June 15, 2000. 
 
FAS 133 standardizes the accounting for derivative instruments by requiring that 
all derivatives be recognized as assets and liabilities and measured at fair 
value. The accounting for changes in the fair value of derivatives (gains and 
losses) depends on (i) whether the derivative is designated and qualifies as a 
hedge, and (ii) the type of hedging relationship that exists. Changes in the 
fair value of derivatives that are not designated as hedges or that do not meet 
the hedge accounting criteria in FAS 133 are required to be reported in 
earnings. In addition, all hedging relationships must be designated, reassessed 
and documented pursuant to the provisions of FAS 133. The Company has not yet 
determined the impact that adoption of FAS 133 will have on the financial 
statements. However, the Company believes that its commodity derivatives will be 
designated as hedges in accordance with the relevant accounting criteria. 
 
FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS 
 
This Form 10-Q includes "forward-looking statements" within the meaning of 
Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934. Forward-looking statements include statements regarding 
oil and gas reserve estimates, planned capital expenditures, expected oil and 
gas production, the Company's financial position, business strategy and other 
plans and objectives for future operations, expected future expenses and 
preferred stock dividend payments, realization of deferred tax assets, the 
proposed acquisition of Gothic and the combined entity's financial operations. 
Although the Company believes that the expectations reflected in these and other 
forward-looking statements are reasonable, it can give no assurance that such 
expectations will prove to have been correct. Factors that could cause actual 
results to differ materially from those expected by the Company, including, 
without limitation, factors discussed under Risk Factors in the Company's Form 
10-K for the period ended December 31, 1999, are substantial indebtedness, 
impairment of asset value, need to replace reserves, substantial capital 
requirements, fluctuations in the prices of oil and gas, uncertainties inherent 
in estimating quantities of oil and gas reserves, projecting future rates of 
production and the timing of development expenditures, operating risks, 
restrictions imposed by lenders, the effects of governmental and environmental 
regulation, pending litigation, importance of our CEO and COO to Company 
operations and shareholder votes and conflicts of interest they may have, and 
uncertainties related to the business combination with Gothic. Readers are 
cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which 
speak only as of the date this report is filed, and the Company undertakes no 
obligation to update this information. 
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ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISKS 
 
COMMODITY PRICE RISK 
 
The Company's results of operations are highly dependent upon the prices 
received for oil and natural gas production. 
 
COMMODITY HEDGING ACTIVITIES 
 
Periodically the Company utilizes hedging strategies to hedge the price of a 
portion of its future oil and gas production. These strategies include: 
 
       (i)    swap arrangements that establish an index-related price above 
              which the Company pays the counterparty and below which the 
              Company is paid by the counterparty, 
 
       (ii)   the purchase of index-related puts that provide for a "floor" 
              price below which the counterparty pays the Company the amount by 
              which the price of the commodity is below the contracted floor, 
 
       (iii)  the sale of index-related calls that provide for a "ceiling" price 
              above which the Company pays the counterparty the amount by which 
              the price of the commodity is above the contracted ceiling, and 
 
       (iv)   basis protection swaps, which are arrangements that guarantee the 
              price differential of oil or gas from a specified delivery point 
              or points. 
 
Results from commodity hedging transactions are reflected in oil and gas sales 
to the extent related to the Company's oil and gas production. The Company only 
enters into commodity hedging transactions related to the Company's oil and gas 
production volumes or CEMI's physical purchase or sale commitments. Gains or 
losses on crude oil and natural gas hedging transactions are recognized as price 
adjustments in the months of related production. 
 
As of June 30, 2000, the Company had the following open natural gas swap 
arrangements designed to hedge a portion of the Company's domestic gas 
production for periods after June 2000: 
 
 
 
                                         NYMEX-INDEX 
                          VOLUME         STRIKE PRICE 
MONTHS                    (MMBTU)        (PER MMBTU) 
- ------                 -------------    ------------- 
                                   
July 2000 ..........     2,790,000          3.03 
August 2000 ........     2,790,000          3.03 
September 2000 .....     2,100,000          3.07 
October 2000 .......     1,240,000          2.55 
 
 
 
If the swap arrangements listed above had been settled on June 30, 2000, the 
Company would have incurred a loss of $13.2 million. Subsequent to June 30, 2000 
the Company settled the July 2000 natural gas swaps for a loss of $4.5 million, 
which will be recognized as a price adjustment in July. Additionally, the 
Company has closed hedges on 920,000 MMBtu of the August through October swaps 
which resulted in a loss of $0.6 million. This loss will be recognized as price 
adjustments from August through October 2000. 
 
On June 2, 2000, the Company entered into a natural gas basis protection swap 
transaction for 13,500,000 MMBtu for the period of January 2001 through March 
2001. This transaction requires that the counterparty pay the Company if the 
NYMEX price exceeds the Houston Ship Channel Beaumont/Texas Index by more than 
$0.0675 for each of the related months of production. If the NYMEX price less 
$0.0675 does not exceed the Houston Ship Channel Beaumont/Texas Index for each 
month, the Company will pay the counterparty. Gains or losses on basis swap 
transactions are recognized as price adjustments in the month of related 
production. 
 
As of June 30, 2000, the Company had the following open crude oil swap 
arrangements designed to hedge a portion of the Company's domestic crude oil 
production for periods after June 2000: 
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                                     MONTHLY      NYMEX-INDEX 
                                     VOLUME      STRIKE PRICE 
MONTHS                               (BBLS)        (PER BBL) 
- ------                               -------     ------------ 
                                            
July 2000.......................     125,000        $28.420 
August 2000.....................     125,000         28.420 
September 2000..................     125,000         28.420 
October 2000....................     125,000         28.420 
November 2000...................     125,000         28.420 
December 2000...................     125,000         28.420 
 
 
If the swap arrangements listed above had been settled on June 30, 2000, the 
Company would have incurred a loss of $1.9 million. 
 
The Company has also closed transactions designed to hedge a portion of the 
Company's domestic oil and natural gas production as of June 30, 2000. The net 
unrecognized losses resulting from these transactions, $1.4 million as of June 
30, 2000, will be recognized as price adjustments in the months of related 
production. These hedging losses are set forth below ($ in thousands): 
 
 
 
                              HEDGING GAINS (LOSSES) 
                         --------------------------------- 
MONTHS                     GAS          OIL         TOTAL 
- ------                   -------      -------      ------- 
                                           
July 2000 ..........     $  (422)     $  (231)     $  (653) 
August 2000 ........        (432)          --         (432) 
September 2000 .....        (149)          --         (149) 
October 2000 .......        (196)          --         (196) 
                         -------      -------      ------- 
                         $(1,199)     $  (231)     $(1,430) 
                         =======      =======      ======= 
 
 
In addition to commodity hedging transactions related to the Company's oil and 
gas production, CEMI periodically enters into various hedging transactions 
designed to hedge against physical purchase and sale commitments made by CEMI. 
Gains or losses on these transactions are recorded as adjustments to oil and gas 
marketing sales in the consolidated statements of operations and are not 
considered by management to be material. 
 
INTEREST RATE RISK 
 
The Company also utilizes hedging strategies to manage fixed-interest rate 
exposure. Through the use of a swap arrangement, the Company has reduced its 
interest expense by $2.7 million from May 1998 through June 2000. During the 
Current Quarter, the Company's interest rate swap resulted in a $36,000 increase 
of interest expense. The terms of the swap agreement are as follows: 
 
 
 
      Months                      Notional Amount    Fixed Rate        Floating Rate 
      ------                      ---------------    ----------        ------------- 
                                                               
      May 1998 - April 2001       $230,000,000           7%            Average of three-month Swiss Franc LIBOR, 
                                                                       Deutsche Mark and Australian Dollar plus 
                                                                       300 basis points 
 
      May 2001 - April 2008       $230,000,000           7%            Three-month LIBOR (USD) plus 300 basis points 
 
 
If the floating rate is less than the fixed rate, the counterparty will pay the 
Company accordingly. If the floating rate exceeds the fixed rate, the Company 
will pay the counterparty. The interest rate swap agreement contains a "knockout 
provision" whereby the agreement will terminate on or after May 1, 2001 if the 
average closing price for the previous twenty business days for the shares of 
the Company's common stock is greater than or equal to $7.50 per share. The 
agreement also provides for a maximum floating rate of 8.5% from May 2001 
through April 2008. 
 
As of June 30, 2000, based upon prevailing interest rates, the present value of 
the Company's estimated future payments under the interest rate swap agreement, 
without ascribing any value to the knock-out provision, was $17.7 million. 
However, because of the knock-out provision discussed above and the volatility 
of interest rates, the Company does not believe that this worst-case scenario is 
a fair measure of the market value of the swap agreement and, therefore, would 
not pay this amount to cancel the transaction. Results from interest rate 
hedging transactions are reflected as adjustments to interest expense in the 
corresponding months covered by the swap agreement. 
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The table below presents principal cash flows and related weighted average 
interest rates by expected maturity dates. The fair value of the long-term debt 
has been estimated based on quoted market prices. 
 
 
 
                                                                               JUNE 30, 2000 
                                           -----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
                                                                             YEARS OF MATURITY 
                                           -----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
                                           2000        2001        2002        2003       2004    THEREAFTER     TOTAL    FAIR VALUE
                                           ----        ----        ----        ----       ----    ----------     -----    ----------
LIABILITIES:                                                                   ($ IN MILLIONS) 
                                                                                                      
Long-term debt, including current 
     portion - fixed rate ............    $  0.4      $  0.8      $  0.6      $   --     $150.0      $770.0      $921.8      $867.7 
     Average interest rate ...........       9.1%        9.1%        9.1%         --        7.9%        9.3%        9.1%         -- 
Long-term debt - variable rate .......    $   --      $   --      $ 63.0      $   --     $   --      $   --      $ 63.0      $ 63.0 
     Average interest rate ...........        --          --        10.0%         --         --          --        10.0%         -- 
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                           PART II. OTHER INFORMATION 
 
ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 
 
The Company is subject to ordinary routine litigation incidental to its 
business. In addition, the Company and certain of its officers and directors are 
defendants in other pending actions which are described in Part I, Item 3 of the 
Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1999. 
 
ITEM 2. CHANGES IN SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS 
 
During the quarter ended June 30, 2000, the Company exchanged 24,711,906 shares 
of common stock, plus a cash payment of $8.3 million, for 2,364,363 shares of 
its outstanding preferred stock in private transactions with institutional 
investors. The exchanges were exempt from registration under Section 3(a) (9) of 
the Securities Act of 1933 inasmuch as the Company exchanged securities 
exclusively with its existing shareholders and no commission or other 
remuneration was paid with respect to the exchanges. 
 
ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES OR DIVIDEND ARREARAGES 
 
August 1, 2000 was the seventh consecutive payment date on which the Company 
failed to pay dividends on its 7% cumulative convertible preferred stock. 
Dividends accrue at the annual rate of $3.50 per share. Dividends which are not 
declared and paid when due compound quarterly on each dividend payment date at 
the dividend payment rate. Accrued and unpaid dividends on 1,557,037 shares 
outstanding as of June 30, 2000 were $9.5 million. Additional information on 
preferred stock dividends is provided in Part I, Item 2 under "Liquidity and 
Capital Resources," the fourth and fifth paragraphs of which are incorporated 
herein by reference. 
 
ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS 
 
The Company's annual meeting of shareholders was held on June 16, 2000. In the 
election of directors, Breene M. Kerr received 95,879,326 votes for election, 
and 459,350 shares were withheld from voting. There were no broker non-votes. 
The other directors whose terms continued after the meeting are Edgar F. Heizer, 
Jr., Aubrey K. McClendon, Shannon T. Self, Tom L. Ward and Frederick B. 
Whittemore. 
 
ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION 
 
- - Not applicable 
 
ITEM 6. EXHIBITS AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K 
 
(a)  Exhibits 
 
          The following exhibits are filed as a part of this report: 
 
 
     Exhibit No.    Description 
     -----------    ----------- 
                  
        4.7         Amended and Restated Credit Agreement among 
                    Chesapeake Exploration Limited Partnership, as borrower; 
                    Chesapeake Energy Corporation and certain of its 
                    subsidiaries, as guarantors; and Union Bank of California, 
                    N.A., as agent; and certain financial institutions, as 
                    lenders, dated May 30, 2000 
 
        4.7.1       First Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, 
                    dated August 1, 2000 
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        10.2.5      Employment Agreement between Steven C. Dixon and Chesapeake 
                    Energy Corporation effective July 1, 2000 
 
        10.2.6      Employment Agreement between J. Mark Lester and Chesapeake 
                    Energy Corporation effective July 1, 2000 
 
        10.2.7      Employment Agreement between Henry J. Hood and Chesapeake 
                    Energy Corporation effective July 1, 2000 
 
        10.2.8      Employment Agreement between Michael A. Johnson and 
                    Chesapeake Energy Corporation effective July 1, 2000 
 
        10.2.9      Employment Agreement between Martha A. Burger and Chesapeake 
                    Energy Corporation effective July 1, 2000 
 
        27          Financial Data Schedule 
 
 
(b)  Reports on Form 8-K 
 
          During the quarter ended June 30, 2000, the Company filed the 
     following Current Reports on Form 8-K: 
 
     On May 4, 2000, the Company filed a current report on Form 8-K reporting 
     under Item 5 that the Company issued a press release reporting record 
     earnings, cash flow and EBITDA for the first quarter of 2000. 
 
     On June 19, 2000, the Company filed a current report on Form 8-K reporting 
     under Item 5 that the Company issued a press release announcing three 
     Mid-Continent natural gas reserve purchases. 
 
     On June 30, 2000, the Company filed a current report on Form 8-K reporting 
     under Item 5 that the Company issued a press release announcing an 
     agreement to acquire Gothic Energy Corporation. 
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                                   SIGNATURES 
 
 
     Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the 
registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the 
undersigned thereunto duly authorized. 
 
 
                                               CHESAPEAKE ENERGY CORPORATION 
                                               -------------------------------- 
                                                         (Registrant) 
 
 
 
      August 11, 2000 
- ----------------------------                   --------------------------------- 
           Date                                Aubrey K. McClendon 
                                               Chairman and 
                                               Chief Executive Officer 
 
 
 
 
 
      August 11, 2000 
- ----------------------------                   --------------------------------- 
           Date                                Marcus C. Rowland 
                                               Executive Vice President and 
                                               Chief Financial Officer 
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                                                                     EXHIBIT 4.7 
================================================================================ 
 
 
                      AMENDED AND RESTATED CREDIT AGREEMENT 
 
             ------------------------------------------------------- 
 
 
                   CHESAPEAKE EXPLORATION LIMITED PARTNERSHIP, 
 
                                   as Borrower 
 
 
                          CHESAPEAKE ENERGY CORPORATION 
 
                                       and 
 
                          CERTAIN OF ITS SUBSIDIARIES, 
 
                                  as Guarantors 
 
 
                                       and 
 
 
                         UNION BANK OF CALIFORNIA, N.A., 
 
                                    as Agent 
 
 
                       and CERTAIN FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS, 
 
                                   as Lenders 
 
             ------------------------------------------------------- 
 
                                  $100,000,000 
 
 
                                  May 30, 2000 
 
 
================================================================================ 
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                      AMENDED AND RESTATED CREDIT AGREEMENT 
 
 
         THIS AMENDED AND RESTATED CREDIT AGREEMENT is made as of May 30, 2000, 
by and among Chesapeake Exploration Limited Partnership, an Oklahoma limited 
partnership (herein called "Borrower"), Chesapeake Energy Corporation, an 
Oklahoma corporation (herein called "Parent"), certain Subsidiaries of Parent, 
as Guarantors, Union Bank of California, N.A., individually and as agent (herein 
called "Agent") and the Lenders referred to below. In consideration of the 
mutual covenants and agreements contained herein the parties hereto agree as 
follows: 
 
                     ARTICLE I - Definitions and References 
 
         Section 1.1. Defined Terms. As used in this Agreement, each of the 
following terms has the meaning given it in this Section 1.1 or in the sections 
and subsections referred to below: 
 
         "Affiliate" means, as to any Person, each other Person that directly or 
indirectly (through one or more intermediaries or otherwise) controls, is 
controlled by, or is under common control with, such Person. A Person shall be 
deemed to be "controlled by" any other Person if such other Person possesses, 
directly or indirectly, power 
 
                  (a) to vote 20% or more of the securities (on a fully diluted 
         basis) having ordinary voting power for the election of directors or 
         managing general partners; or 
 
                  (b) to direct or cause the direction of the management and 
         policies of such Person whether by contract or otherwise. 
 
         "Agent" means Union Bank of California, N.A., as Agent hereunder, and 
its successors in such capacity; provided, however, that until such time as a 
Lender other than Union Bank of California, N.A. becomes a party hereto, "Agent" 
shall mean Union Bank of California, N.A., individually. 
 
         "Agreement" means this Amended and Restated Credit Agreement. 
 
         "Applicable Lending Office" means, with respect to each Lender, such 
Lender's Domestic Lending Office in the case of Base Rate Loans and such 
Lender's Eurodollar Lending Office in the case of Eurodollar Loans. 
 
         "Applicable Utilization Level" means on any date the level set forth 
below that corresponds to the percentage, at the close of business on such day, 
equivalent to the (i) Facility Usage divided by (ii) the Borrowing Base (the 
"Utilization Percent"): 
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                       Applicable Utilization Level                Utilization Percent 
                   -------------------------------------- -------------------------------------- 
                                                        
                                Level I                               less than 20% 
 
                                Level II                    equal to or greater than 20% but 
                                                                      less than 40% 
 
                                Level III                   equal to or greater than 40% but 
                                                                      less than 60% 
 
                                Level IV                      equal to or greater than 60% 
 
 
         "Bank Parties" means Agent, LC Issuer, and all Lenders. 
 
         "Base Rate" means the Base Rate Margin plus the higher of (a) Agent's 
Reference Rate and (b) the Federal Funds Rate plus one-half percent (0.5%) per 
annum. As used in this paragraph, Agent's "Reference Rate" means that variable 
rate of interest per annum established by Agent from time to time as its 
"reference rate" (which rate of interest may not be the lowest rate charged on 
similar loans). Each change in the Base Rate shall become effective without 
prior notice to Borrower automatically as of the opening of business on the date 
of such change in the Base Rate. The Base Rate shall in no event, however, 
exceed the Highest Lawful Rate. 
 
         "Base Rate Loan" means a Loan which bears interest at the Base Rate. 
 
         "Base Rate Margin" means, on any date, with respect to each Base Rate 
portion of a Loan, the number of basis points per annum set forth below based on 
the Applicable Utilization Level on such date: 
 
 
 
                          Applicable Utilization Level            Base Rate Margin 
                     ---------------------------------------- -------------------------- 
                                                            
                                    Level I                              50 
 
                                    Level II                             75 
 
                                    Level III                            100 
 
                                    Level IV                             125 
 
 
Changes in the applicable Base Rate Margin will occur automatically without 
prior notice as changes in the Applicable Utilization Level occur. Agent will 
give notice promptly to Borrower and the Lenders of changes in the Base Rate 
Margin. 
 
         "Borrower" means Chesapeake Exploration Limited Partnership, an 
Oklahoma limited partnership. 
 
         "Borrowing" means a borrowing of new Loans of a single Type pursuant to 
Section 2.2 or a Continuation or Conversion of existing Loans into a single Type 
(and, in the case of Eurodollar Loans, with the same Interest Period) pursuant 
to Section 2.3. 
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         "Borrowing Base" means, at the particular time in question, either the 
amount provided for in Section 2.8 or the amount determined by Agent and 
Required Lenders in accordance with the provisions of Section 2.9, as reduced by 
Borrower pursuant to Section 2.10 or as reduced pursuant to Section 7.5; 
provided, however, that in no event shall the Borrowing Base ever exceed the 
Maximum Loan Amount. 
 
         "Borrowing Base Deficiency" has the meaning given it in Section 2.7(b). 
 
         "Borrowing Notice" means a written or telephonic request, or a written 
confirmation, made by Borrower which meets the requirements of Section 2.2. 
 
         "Business Day" means a day, other than a Saturday or Sunday, on which 
commercial banks are open for business with the public in Los Angeles, 
California. Any Business Day in any way relating to Eurodollar Loans (such as 
the day on which an Interest Period begins or ends) must also be a day on which, 
in the judgment of Agent, significant transactions in dollars are carried out in 
the interbank eurocurrency market. 
 
         "Cash Equivalents" means investments in: 
 
         (a) marketable obligations, maturing within 12 months after acquisition 
thereof, issued or unconditionally guaranteed by the United States of America or 
an instrumentality or agency thereof and entitled to the full faith and credit 
of the United States of America. 
 
         (b) demand deposits, and time deposits (including certificates of 
deposit) maturing within 12 months from the date of deposit thereof, with any 
office of any Lender or with a domestic office of any national or state bank or 
trust company which is organized under the Laws of the United States of America 
or any state therein, which has capital, surplus and undivided profits of at 
least $500,000,000, and whose certificates of deposit have at least the third 
highest credit rating given by either Rating Agency. 
 
         (c) repurchase obligations with a term of not more than seven days for 
underlying securities of the types described in clause (a) above entered into 
with any commercial bank meeting the specifications of clause (b) above 
 
         (d) open market commercial paper, maturing within 270 days after 
acquisition thereof, which has the highest or second highest credit rating given 
by either Rating Agency. 
 
         (e) money market or other mutual funds substantially all of whose 
assets comprise securities of the types described in clauses (a) through (d) 
above. 
 
         "Change of Control" means the occurrence of any of the following 
events: (i) any Person other than Parent or one of its wholly-owned Subsidiaries 
shall acquire or hold any legal or beneficial ownership of Borrower or any 
Guarantor, (ii) any Person or two or more Persons acting as a group shall 
acquire beneficial ownership (within the meaning of Rule 13d-3 of the SEC under 
the Securities Act of 1934, as amended, and including holding proxies to vote 
for the 
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election of directors other than proxies held by Parent's management or their 
designees to be voted in favor of Persons nominated by Parent's Board of 
Directors) of 35% or more of the outstanding voting securities of Parent, 
measured by voting power (including both common stock and any preferred stock or 
other equity securities entitling the holders thereof to vote with the holders 
of common stock in elections for directors of Parent), (iii) one-third or more 
of the directors of Parent shall consist of Persons not nominated by Parent's 
Board of Directors (not including as Board nominees any directors which the 
Board is obligated to nominate pursuant to shareholders agreements, voting trust 
arrangements or similar arrangements) or (iv) neither Aubrey K. McClendon nor 
Tom Ward shall be executive officers and directors of Parent. 
 
         "Chesapeake Canada" means Chesapeake Canada Corporation, an Alberta 
corporation. 
 
         "Chesapeake Marketing" means Chesapeake Marketing, Inc., an Oklahoma 
corporation. 
 
         "Collateral" means all property of any kind which is subject to a Lien 
in favor of Lenders (or in favor of Agent for the benefit of Lenders) or which, 
under the terms of any Security Document, is purported to be subject to such a 
Lien. 
 
         "Commitment Period" means the period from and including the date hereof 
until and including the Maturity Date (or, if earlier, the day on which the 
commitments of the Lenders are terminated pursuant to Section 8.1, or the day 
the Notes first become due and payable in full). 
 
         "Consolidated" refers to the consolidation of any Person, in accordance 
with GAAP, with its properly consolidated subsidiaries. References herein to a 
Person's Consolidated financial statements, financial position, financial 
condition, liabilities, etc. refer to the consolidated financial statements, 
financial position, financial condition, liabilities, etc. of such Person and 
its properly consolidated subsidiaries. 
 
         "Consolidated EBITDA" means, with respect to any period, the sum of (a) 
the Consolidated Net Income of Parent and its Subsidiaries during such period, 
plus (b) Consolidated interest expense which was deducted in determining such 
Consolidated Net Income, plus (c) all income taxes which were deducted in 
determining such Consolidated Net Income, plus (d) all depreciation, 
amortization (including amortization of good will and debt issue costs) and 
other non-cash charges (including any provision for the reduction in the 
carrying value of assets recorded in accordance with GAAP) which were deducted 
in determining such Consolidated Net Income, minus (e) all non-cash items of 
income which were included in determining such Consolidated Net Income. Revenues 
and expenses derived from Hedging Contracts related to interest rates or 
dividend rates will be treated as adjustments to interest expense for purposes 
of this definition. 
 
         "Consolidated Fixed Charges" means, with respect to any period, the sum 
(without duplication) of the following (in each case, eliminating all offsetting 
debits and credits between Parent and its Subsidiaries and all other items 
required to be eliminated in the course of the preparation of Consolidated 
financial statements of Parent and its Subsidiaries in accordance with GAAP): 
(a) all Consolidated Interest Expense during such period, plus (b) all 
scheduled, required and actual payments or prepayments of principal on 
Indebtedness (other than revolving 
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credit Indebtedness) of Parent and its Subsidiaries during such period, plus (c) 
all dividends (other than dividend payable in common stock) declared by Parent 
and attributable to such period. For purposes of this Agreement a dividend is 
"attributed" to the Fiscal Quarter immediately preceding the Fiscal Quarter in 
which such dividend is actually declared by Parent. 
 
         "Consolidated Interest Expense" means, with respect to any period, the 
sum (without duplication) of the following (in each case, eliminating all 
offsetting debits and credits between Parent and its Subsidiaries and all other 
items required to be eliminated in the course of the preparation of Consolidated 
financial statements of Parent and its Subsidiaries in accordance with GAAP): 
(a) all interest, commitment fees and loan fees in respect of Indebtedness of 
Parent or any of its Subsidiaries (including imputed interest on Capital Lease 
Obligations) deducted in determining Consolidated Net Income for such period, 
together with all interest capitalized or deferred during such period and not 
deducted in determining Consolidated Net Income for such period, plus (b) all 
fees, expenses and charges in respect of letters of credit issued for the 
account of Parent or any of its Subsidiaries deducted in determining 
Consolidated Net Income for such period, together with all such fees, expenses 
and charges in respect of letters of credit capitalized or deferred during such 
period and not deducted in determining Consolidated Net Income for such period. 
Revenues and expenses derived from Hedging Contracts related to interest rates 
or dividend rates will be treated as adjustments to interest expense for 
purposes of this definition. 
 
         "Consolidated Net Income" means, with respect to any period, Parent 's 
and its Subsidiaries' gross revenues for such period, including any cash 
dividends or distributions actually received from any other Person during such 
period, minus Parent's and its Subsidiaries' expenses and other proper charges 
against income (including but not limited to income taxes), determined on a 
Consolidated basis after eliminating earnings or losses attributable to 
outstanding minority interests and excluding the net earnings of any Person 
other than a Subsidiary in which Parent or any of its Subsidiaries has an 
ownership interest 
 
         "Continuation/Conversion Notice" means a written or telephonic request, 
or a written confirmation, made by Borrower which meets the requirements of 
Section 2.3. 
 
         "Continue", "Continuation", and "Continued" shall refer to the 
continuation pursuant to Section 2.3 hereof of a Eurodollar Loan as a Eurodollar 
Loan from one Interest Period to the next Interest Period. 
 
         "Convert", "Conversion", and "Converted" shall refer to a conversion 
pursuant to Section 2.3 or Article III of one Type of Loan into another Type of 
Loan. 
 
         "Default" means any Event of Default and any default, event or 
condition which would, with the giving of any requisite notices and the passage 
of any requisite periods of time, constitute an Event of Default. 
 
         "Default Rate" means, at the time in question, three percent (3.0%) per 
annum plus the Base Rate then in effect; provided that, with respect to any 
Eurodollar Loan with an Interest Period extending beyond the date such 
Eurodollar Loan becomes due and payable, "Default 
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Rate" shall mean three percent (3.0%) per annum plus the related Eurodollar 
Rate. The Default Rate shall never exceed the Highest Lawful Rate. 
 
         "Deficiency Notice" has the meaning given it in Section 2.7. 
 
         "Determination Date" has the meaning given it in Section 2.9. 
 
         "Disclosure Report" means either a notice given by Borrower or Parent 
under Section 6.4 or a certificate given by Borrower's or Parent's chief 
financial officer under Section 6.2(b). 
 
         "Disclosure Schedule" means Schedule 1 hereto. 
 
         "Distribution" means (a) any dividend or other distribution made by a 
Restricted Person on or in respect of any stock, partnership interest, or other 
equity interest in such Restricted Person (including any option or warrant to 
buy such an equity interest), or (b) any payment made by a Restricted Person to 
purchase, redeem, acquire or retire any stock, partnership interest, or other 
equity interest in such Restricted Person (including any such option or 
warrant). 
 
         "Domestic Lending Office" means, with respect to any Lender, the office 
of such Lender specified as its "Domestic Lending Office" below its name on the 
Lender Schedule attached hereto, or such other office as such Lender may from 
time to time specify to Borrower and Agent; and, with respect to Agent, the 
office, branch, or agency through which it administers this Agreement. 
 
         "Eligible Transferee" means a Person which either (a) is a Lender or 
Lender Affiliate or (b) is consented to as an Eligible Transferee by Agent and, 
so long as no Event of Default is continuing, by Borrower, which consents in 
each case will not be unreasonably withheld (provided that no Person organized 
outside the United States may be an Eligible Transferee if Borrower would be 
required to pay withholding taxes on interest or principal owed to such Person). 
 
         "Engineering Report" means the Initial Engineering Report and each 
engineering report delivered pursuant to Section 6.2. 
 
         "Environmental Laws" means any and all Laws relating to the environment 
or to emissions, discharges, releases or threatened releases of pollutants, 
contaminants, chemicals, or industrial, toxic or hazardous substances or wastes 
into the environment including ambient air, surface water, ground water, or 
land, or otherwise relating to the manufacture, processing, distribution use, 
treatment, storage, disposal, transport, or handling of pollutants, 
contaminants, chemicals, or industrial, toxic or hazardous substances or wastes. 
 
         "ERISA" means the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as 
amended from time to time, together with all rules and regulations promulgated 
with respect thereto. 
 
         "ERISA Affiliate" means Restricted Persons and all members of a 
controlled group of corporations and all trades or businesses (whether or not 
incorporated) under common control 
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that, together with Restricted Persons, are treated as a single employer under 
Section 414 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 
 
         "ERISA Plan" means any employee pension benefit plan subject to Title 
IV of ERISA maintained by any ERISA Affiliate with respect to which any 
Restricted Person has a fixed or contingent liability. 
 
         "Eurodollar Lending Office" means, with respect to any Lender, the 
office of such Lender specified as its "Eurodollar Lending Office" below its 
name on the Lender Schedule attached hereto (or, if no such office is specified, 
its Domestic Lending Office), or such other office of such Lender as such Lender 
may from time to time specify to Borrower and Agent. 
 
         "Eurodollar Loan" means a Loan which is properly designated as a 
Eurodollar Loan pursuant to Section 2.2 or 2.3. 
 
         "Eurodollar Margin" means, on any date, with respect to each Eurodollar 
Loan, the number of basis points per annum set forth below based on the 
Applicable Utilization Level on such date: 
 
 
 
                          Applicable Utilization Level            Eurodollar Margin 
                     ---------------------------------------- -------------------------- 
                                                            
                                     Level I                             200 
                                    Level II                             225 
                                    Level III                            250 
                                    Level IV                             275 
 
 
Changes in the applicable Eurodollar Margin will occur automatically without 
prior notice as changes in the Applicable Utilization Level occur. Agent will 
give notice promptly to Borrower and the Lenders of changes in the Eurodollar 
Margin. 
 
         "Eurodollar Rate" means, with respect to each particular Eurodollar 
Loan and the associated LIBOR Rate and Reserve Percentage, the rate per annum 
calculated by Agent (rounded upwards, if necessary, to the next higher 0.01%) 
determined on a daily basis pursuant to the following formula: 
 
         Eurodollar Rate = 
 
         LIBOR Rate                  + Eurodollar Margin 
         100.0% - Reserve Percentage 
 
The Eurodollar Rate for any Eurodollar Loan shall change whenever the Eurodollar 
Margin or the Reserve Percentage changes. No Eurodollar Rate shall ever exceed 
the Highest Lawful Rate. 
 
         "Evaluation Date" means each of the following: 
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         (a) January 1 and July 1 of each year, beginning July 1, 2000; 
 
         (b) Each other date which either Borrower or Required Lenders, at their 
respective options, specifies as a date as of which the Borrowing Base is to be 
redetermined, provided that each such date must be the first or last date of a 
current calendar month and that Borrower shall not be entitled to request any 
such redetermination more than once during any six (6) month period beginning 
with any January 1 or July 1. 
 
         "Event of Default" has the meaning given it in Section 8.1. 
 
         "Facility Usage" means, at the time in question, the aggregate amount 
of outstanding Loans and existing LC Obligations at such time. 
 
         "Federal Funds Rate" shall mean, for any day, the rate per annum 
(rounded upwards, if necessary, to the nearest 1/100th of one percent) equal to 
the weighted average of the rates on overnight Federal funds transactions with 
members of the Federal Reserve System arranged by Federal funds brokers on such 
day, as published by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York on the Business Day 
next succeeding such day, provided that (i) if the day for which such rate is to 
be determined is not a Business Day, the Federal Funds Rate for such day shall 
be such rate on such transactions on the next preceding Business Day as so 
published on the next succeeding Business Day, and (ii) if such rate is not so 
published for any day, the Federal Funds Rate for such day shall be the average 
rate quoted to Agent on such day on such transactions as determined by Agent. 
 
         "Fiscal Quarter" means the fiscal quarter of Parent. 
 
         "Fiscal Year" means the fiscal year of Parent. 
 
         "GAAP" means those generally accepted accounting principles and 
practices which are recognized as such by the Financial Accounting Standards 
Board (or any generally recognized successor) and which, in the case of Parent 
and its Consolidated Subsidiaries, are applied for all periods after the date 
hereof in a manner consistent with the manner in which such principles and 
practices were applied to the audited Initial Financial Statements. If any 
change in any accounting principle or practice is required by the Financial 
Accounting Standards Board (or any such successor) in order for such principle 
or practice to continue as a generally accepted accounting principle or 
practice, all reports and financial statements required hereunder with respect 
to Parent or with respect to Parent and its Consolidated Subsidiaries may be 
prepared in accordance with such change, but all calculations and determinations 
to be made hereunder may be made in accordance with such change only after 
notice of such change is given to each Lender and Majority Lenders agree to such 
change insofar as it affects the accounting of Parent or of Parent and its 
Consolidated Subsidiaries. 
 
         "Guarantor" means any Person who has guaranteed some or all of the 
Obligations pursuant to a guaranty listed on the Security Schedule or any other 
Person who has guaranteed some or all of the Obligations and who has been 
accepted by Agent as a Guarantor or any 
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Subsidiary of Borrower which now or hereafter executes and delivers a guaranty 
to Agent pursuant to Section 6.17. 
 
         "Hazardous Materials" means any substances regulated under any 
Environmental Law, whether as pollutants, contaminants, or chemicals, or as 
industrial, toxic or hazardous substances or wastes, or otherwise. 
 
         "Hedging Contract" means (a) any agreement providing for options, 
swaps, floors, caps, collars, forward sales or forward purchases involving 
interest rates, commodities or commodity prices, equities, currencies, bonds, or 
indexes based on any of the foregoing, (b) any option, futures or forward 
contract traded on an exchange, and (c) any other derivative agreement or other 
similar agreement or arrangement. 
 
         "Highest Lawful Rate" means, with respect to each Lender, the maximum 
nonusurious rate of interest that such Lender is permitted under applicable Law 
to contract for, take, charge, or receive with respect to its Loan. All 
determinations herein of the Highest Lawful Rate, or of any interest rate 
determined by reference to the Highest Lawful Rate, shall be made separately for 
each Lender as appropriate to assure that the Loan Documents are not construed 
to obligate any Person to pay interest to any Lender at a rate in excess of the 
Highest Lawful Rate applicable to such Lender. 
 
         "Indebtedness" of any Person means Liabilities (without duplication) in 
any of the following categories: 
 
         (a) Liabilities for borrowed money, 
 
         (b) Liabilities constituting an obligation to pay the deferred purchase 
price of property or services, 
 
         (c) Liabilities evidenced by a bond, debenture, note or similar 
instrument, 
 
         (d) Liabilities which (i) would under GAAP be shown on such Person's 
balance sheet as a liability, and (ii) are payable more than one year from the 
date of creation thereof (other than reserves for taxes and reserves for 
contingent obligations), 
 
         (e) Liabilities arising under Hedging Contracts, 
 
         (f) Liabilities constituting principal under leases capitalized in 
accordance with GAAP or arising under operating leases, 
 
         (g) Liabilities arising under conditional sales or other title 
retention agreements, 
 
         (h) Liabilities owing under direct or indirect guaranties of 
Liabilities of any other Person or constituting obligations to purchase or 
acquire or to otherwise protect or insure a creditor against loss in respect of 
Liabilities of any other Person (such as obligations under working capital 
maintenance agreements, agreements to keep-well, or agreements to purchase 
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Liabilities, assets, goods, securities or services), but excluding endorsements 
in the ordinary course of business of negotiable instruments in the course of 
collection, 
 
         (i) Liabilities (for example, repurchase agreements, mandatorily 
redeemable preferred stock and sale/leaseback agreements) consisting of an 
obligation to purchase or redeem securities or other property, if such 
Liabilities arises out of or in connection with the sale of or issuance of the 
same or similar securities or property, 
 
         (j) Liabilities with respect to letters of credit or applications or 
reimbursement agreements therefor, 
 
         (k) Liabilities with respect to payments received in consideration of 
oil, gas, or other minerals yet to be acquired or produced at the time of 
payment (including obligations under "take-or-pay" contracts to deliver gas in 
return for payments already received and the undischarged balance of any 
production payment created by such Person or for the creation of which such 
Person directly or indirectly received payment), 
 
         (l) Liabilities with respect to other obligations to deliver goods or 
services in consideration of advance payments therefor, or 
 
         (m) Liabilities in respect of banker's acceptances or similar 
instruments issued or accepted by banks; 
 
provided, however, that the "Indebtedness" of any Person shall not include 
Liabilities that were incurred by such Person on ordinary trade terms to 
vendors, suppliers, or other Persons providing goods and services for use by 
such Person in the ordinary course of its business, unless and until such 
Liabilities are outstanding more than 120 days past the original invoice or 
billing date therefor (but excluding such Liabilities so outstanding which are 
contested in good faith by appropriate proceedings and for which adequate 
reserves are maintained on the books of such Person in accordance with GAAP). 
 
         "Indentures" means (i) that certain Indenture dated April 1, 1996 among 
Parent, as Issuer, the Subsidiary Guarantors, as Guarantors, and United States 
Trust Company of New York, as Trustee, providing for $120,000,000 in principal 
amount of 9.125% Senior Notes due 2006, as supplemented prior to the date hereof 
(the "`96 Indenture"), (ii) that certain Indenture dated March 15, 1997 among 
Parent, as Issuer, the Subsidiary Guarantors, as Guarantors, and United States 
Trust Company of New York, as Trustee, providing for $150,000,000 in principal 
amount of 7.875% Senior Notes due 2004, as supplemented prior to the date 
hereof, and that certain Indenture dated March 15, 1997 among Parent, as Issuer, 
the Subsidiary Guarantors, as Guarantors, and United States Trust Company of New 
York, as Trustee, providing for $150,000,000 in principal amount of 8.5% Senior 
Notes due 2012, as supplemented prior to the date hereof (the "`97 Indenture"), 
and (iii) that certain Indenture dated April 1, 1998 among Parent, as Issuer, 
the Subsidiary Guarantors, as Guarantors, and United States Trust Company of New 
York, as Trustee, providing for $500,000,000 in principal amount of 9 5/8% 
Senior Notes due 2005 (the "`98 Indenture"). 
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         "Initial Engineering Report" means the following engineering reports 
concerning oil and gas properties of Restricted Persons: 
 
         (i) Report dated January 1, 2000 prepared by Williamson Petroleum 
         Consultants, Inc.; 
 
         (ii) Report dated January 1, 2000 prepared by Ryder Scott Company; and 
 
         (iii) Report dated January 1, 2000 prepared by Parent's employee 
         engineers. 
 
         "Initial Financial Statements" means (i) the audited annual 
Consolidated financial statements of Parent dated as of December 31, 1999, and 
(ii) the unaudited quarterly Consolidated financial statements of Parent dated 
as of March 31, 2000. 
 
         "Insurance Schedule" means Schedule 3 attached hereto. 
 
         "Interest Period" means, with respect to each particular Eurodollar 
Loan in a Borrowing, a period of 1, 2, 3 or 6 months, as specified in the 
Borrowing Notice or Continuation/Conversion Notice applicable thereto, beginning 
on and including the date specified in such Borrowing Notice or 
Continuation/Conversion Notice (which must be a Business Day), and ending on but 
not including the same day of the month as the day on which it began (e.g., a 
period beginning on the third day of one month shall end on but not include the 
third day of another month), provided that each Interest Period which would 
otherwise end on a day which is not a Business Day shall end on the next 
succeeding Business Day (unless such next succeeding Business Day is the first 
Business Day of a calendar month, in which case such Interest Period shall end 
on the immediately preceding Business Day). No Interest Period may be elected 
which would extend past the date on which the associated Note is due and payable 
in full. 
 
         "Investment" means any investment, in cash or by delivery of property 
made, directly or indirectly in any Person, whether by acquisition of shares of 
capital stock, indebtedness or other obligations or securities or by loan, 
advance, capital contribution or otherwise. 
 
         "Law" means any statute, law, regulation, ordinance, rule, treaty, 
judgment, order, decree, permit, concession, franchise, license, agreement or 
other governmental restriction of the United States or any state or political 
subdivision thereof or of any foreign country or any department, province or 
other political subdivision thereof. 
 
         "LC Application" means any application for a Letter of Credit hereafter 
made by Borrower to LC Issuer. 
 
         "LC Collateral" has the meaning given to such term in Section 2.16(a). 
 
         "LC Issuer" means Union Bank of California, N.A. in its capacity as the 
issuer of Letters of Credit hereunder, and its successors in such capacity. 
Agent may, with the consent of Borrower and the Lender in question, appoint any 
Lender hereunder as the LC Issuer in place of or in addition to Union Bank of 
California, N.A. 
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         "LC Obligations" means, at the time in question, the sum of all Matured 
LC Obligations plus the maximum amounts which LC Issuer might then or thereafter 
be called upon to advance under all Letters of Credit then outstanding. 
 
         "Lenders" means each signatory hereto (other than Borrower and 
Restricted Persons that are party hereto), including Union Bank of California, 
N.A. in its capacity as a Lender hereunder rather than as Agent or LC Issuer, 
and the successors of each such party as holder of a Note. 
 
         "Lender Affiliate" means, with respect to a Lender, any Person that 
directly or indirectly (through one or more intermediaries or otherwise) 
controls, is controlled by or is under the common control with such Lender; 
control meaning the power to vote more than 50% of the securities having 
ordinary voting power for election of directors. 
 
         "Lending Office" means, with respect to any Lender, such Lender's 
Domestic Lending Office or Eurodollar Lending Office, as applicable; with 
respect to LC Issuer, the office, branch, or agency through which it issues 
Letters of Credit; and, with respect to Agent, the office, branch, or agency 
through which it administers this Agreement. 
 
         "Letter of Credit" means any letter of credit issued by LC Issuer 
hereunder at the application of Borrower. 
 
         "Letter of Credit Fee Rate" means, on any date the number of basis 
points per annum set forth below based on the Applicable Utilization Level on 
such date: 
 
 
 
 
                      Applicable Utilization Level          Letter of Credit Fee Rate 
                 --------------------------------------- --------------------------------- 
                                                       
                                Level I                                200 
                                Level II                               225 
                                Level III                              250 
                                Level IV                               275 
 
 
Changes in the applicable Letter of Credit Fee Rate will occur automatically 
without prior notice as changes in the Applicable Utilization Level occur. Agent 
will give notice promptly to Borrower and the Lenders of changes in the Letter 
of Credit Fee Rate. 
 
         "Liabilities" means, as to any Person, all indebtedness, liabilities 
and obligations of such Person, whether matured or unmatured, liquidated or 
unliquidated, primary or secondary, direct or indirect, absolute, fixed or 
contingent. 
 
         "LIBOR Rate" means, with respect to each particular Eurodollar Loan and 
the related Interest Period, the rate of interest per annum determined by Agent 
in accordance with its 
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customary general practices to be representative of the rates at which deposits 
of dollars are offered to Agent at approximately 9:00 a.m. New York, New York 
time two Business Days prior to the first day of such Interest Period (by prime 
banks in the interbank eurocurrency market which have been selected by Agent in 
accordance with its customary general practices) for delivery on the first day 
of such Interest Period in an amount equal or comparable to the amount of the 
applicable Eurodollar Loan and for a period of time equal or comparable to the 
length of such Interest Period. The LIBOR Rate determined by Agent with respect 
to a particular Eurodollar Loan shall be fixed at such rate for the duration of 
the associated Interest Period. If Agent is unable so to determine the LIBOR 
Rate for any Eurodollar Loan, Borrower shall be deemed not to have elected such 
Eurodollar Loan. 
 
         "Lien" means, with respect to any property or assets, any right or 
interest therein of a creditor to secure Liabilities owed to it or any other 
arrangement with such creditor which provides for the payment of such 
Liabilities out of such property or assets or which allows such creditor to have 
such Liabilities satisfied out of such property or assets prior to the general 
creditors of any owner thereof, including any lien, mortgage, security interest, 
pledge, deposit, production payment, rights of a vendor under any title 
retention or conditional sale agreement or lease substantially equivalent 
thereto, tax lien, mechanic's or materialman's lien, or any other charge or 
encumbrance for security purposes, whether arising by Law or agreement or 
otherwise, but excluding any right of offset which arises without agreement in 
the ordinary course of business. "Lien" also means any filed financing 
statement, any registration of a pledge (such as with an issuer of 
uncertificated securities), or any other arrangement or action which would serve 
to perfect a Lien described in the preceding sentence, regardless of whether 
such financing statement is filed, such registration is made, or such 
arrangement or action is undertaken before or after such Lien exists. 
 
         "Loan" has the meaning given to such term in Section 2.1. 
 
         "Loan Documents" means this Agreement, the Notes, the Security 
Documents, the Letters of Credit, the LC Applications, and all other agreements, 
certificates, documents, instruments and writings at any time delivered in 
connection herewith or therewith (exclusive of term sheets, commitment letters, 
correspondence and similar documents used in the negotiation hereof, except to 
the extent the same contain information about Borrower or its Affiliates, 
properties, business or prospects). 
 
         "Majority Lenders" means Agent and Lenders whose aggregate Percentage 
Shares equal or exceed sixty-six and two-thirds percent (66 2/3%). 
 
         "Material Adverse Change" means a material and adverse change, from the 
state of affairs presented in the Initial Financial Statements or as represented 
or warranted in any Loan Document, to (a) Restricted Persons' Consolidated 
financial condition, (b) the operations or properties of Restricted Persons, 
considered as a whole, (c) Borrower's or any other Restricted Persons' ability 
to timely pay the Obligations, or (d) the enforceability of the material terms 
of any Loan Documents. 
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         "Matured LC Obligations" means all amounts paid by LC Issuer on drafts 
or demands for payment drawn or made under or purported to be under any Letter 
of Credit and all other amounts due and owing to LC Issuer under any LC 
Application for any Letter of Credit, to the extent the same have not been 
repaid to LC Issuer (with the proceeds of Loans or otherwise). 
 
         "Maturity Date" means July 15, 2002. 
 
         "Maximum Drawing Amount" means at the time in question the sum of the 
maximum amounts which LC Issuer might then or thereafter be called upon to 
advance under all Letters of Credit then outstanding. 
 
         "Maximum Loan Amount" means the amount of $75,000,000. 
 
         "Moody's" means Moody's Investors Service, Inc. and any successor 
thereto that is a nationally-recognized rating agency. 
 
         "Mortgaged Properties" means all properties subject to the Security 
Documents. 
 
         "Note" has the meaning given it in Section 2.1. 
 
         "Obligations" means all Liabilities from time to time owing by any 
Restricted Person to any Bank Party under or pursuant to any of the Loan 
Documents, including all LC Obligations. "Obligation" means any part of the 
Obligations. 
 
         "Parent" means Chesapeake Energy Corporation, an Oklahoma corporation. 
 
         "Percentage Share" means, with respect to any Lender (a) when used in 
Sections 2.1 or 2.5, in any Borrowing Notice or when no Loans are outstanding 
hereunder, the percentage set forth opposite such Lender's name on Lender 
Schedule attached hereto, and (b) when used otherwise, the percentage obtained 
by dividing (i) the sum of the unpaid principal balance of such Lender's Loans 
at the time in question plus the Matured LC Obligations which such Lender has 
funded pursuant to Section 2.13(c) plus the portion of the Maximum Drawing 
Amount which such Lender might be obligated to fund under Section 2.13(c), by 
(ii) the sum of the aggregate unpaid principal balance of all Loans at such time 
plus the aggregate amount of LC Obligations outstanding at such time. 
 
         "Permitted Investments" means: 
 
         (i) Cash Equivalents, 
 
         (ii) Investments by any Restricted Person in any of its Subsidiaries 
(other than Chesapeake Canada) provided that such Subsidiary is a Guarantor, 
 
         (iii) additional capital contributions to or other investments in 
Chesapeake Canada not in excess of the aggregate amount of $60,000,000 after 
August 27, 1998, 
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         (iv) the entry into operating agreements, joint ventures, processing 
agreements, farm-out agreements, development agreements, area of mutual interest 
agreements, contracts for the sale, transportation or exchange of oil and 
natural gas, unitization agreements, pooling arrangements, joint bidding 
agreements, service contracts, partnership agreements (whether general or 
limited) or other similar customary agreements, transactions, properties, 
interests or arrangements, and investments and expenditures in connection 
therewith or pursuant thereto, in each case made or entered into in the ordinary 
course of the oil and gas business, 
 
         (v) Investments consisting of loans or credit extensions permitted 
under Section 7.8, and 
 
         (vi) Investments existing on the date hereof listed on Schedule 4 
hereto. 
 
         "Permitted Lien" has the meaning given to such term in Section 7.2. 
 
         "Person" means an individual, corporation, partnership, limited 
liability company, association, joint stock company, trust or trustee thereof, 
estate or executor thereof, unincorporated organization or joint venture, 
Tribunal, or any other legally recognizable entity. 
 
         "Rating Agency" means either S&P or Moody's or their respective 
successors. 
 
         "Regulation D" means Regulation D of the Board of Governors of the 
Federal Reserve System as from time to time in effect. 
 
         "Required Lenders" means Agent and Lenders whose aggregate Percentage 
Shares equal or exceed seventy-five percent (75%). 
 
         "Reserve Percentage" means, on any day with respect to each particular 
Eurodollar Loan, the maximum reserve requirement, as determined by Agent 
(including without limitation any basic, supplemental, marginal, emergency or 
similar reserves), expressed as a percentage and rounded to the next higher 
0.01%, which would then apply under Regulation D with respect to "Eurocurrency 
liabilities", as such term is defined in Regulation D, of $1,000,000 or more. If 
such reserve requirement shall change after the date hereof, the Reserve 
Percentage shall be automatically increased or decreased, as the case may be, 
from time to time as of the effective time of each such change in such reserve 
requirement. 
 
         "Restricted Person" means Parent, Borrower, and each Subsidiary of 
Parent, (whether or not such Subsidiary is a Guarantor). 
 
         "S&P" means Standard & Poor's Ratings Group and any successor thereto 
that is a nationally-recognized rating agency. 
 
         "SEC" means the Securities and Exchange Commission. 
 
         "Security Documents" means the instruments listed in the Security 
Schedule and all other security agreements, deeds of trust, mortgages, chattel 
mortgages, pledges, guaranties, financing 
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statements, continuation statements, extension agreements and other agreements 
or instruments now, heretofore, or hereafter delivered by any Restricted Person 
to Agent in connection with this Agreement or any transaction contemplated 
hereby to secure or guarantee the payment of any part of the Obligations or the 
performance of any Restricted Person's other duties and obligations under the 
Loan Documents. 
 
         "Security Schedule" means Schedule 2 hereto. 
 
         "Senior Debt Limit" means on any day (a) the maximum amount of 
Indebtedness that Parent and its Subsidiaries may incur and secure pursuant to 
the terms of each of the following: (I) clause (i) of the definition of 
"Permitted Indebtedness" and clause (ii) of the definition of "Permitted Liens" 
under the `96 Indenture, (II) clause (i) of Section 4.8 of the `97 Indentures 
and (III) clause (i) of the definition of "Permitted Indebtedness" and clause 
(ii) of the definition of "Permitted Liens" under the `98 Indenture minus (b) 
the amount of Indebtedness (other than Indebtedness under the Borrowing Base) 
that Parent or any of its Subsidiaries have incurred and/or secured by Liens on 
such day that counts against the restrictions on the maximum amount of 
Indebtedness referred to in clause (a). 
 
         "Subsidiary" means, with respect to any Person, any corporation, 
association, partnership, joint venture, or other business or corporate entity, 
enterprise or organization which is directly or indirectly (through one or more 
intermediaries) controlled by or owned fifty percent or more by such Person. 
 
         "Termination Event" means (a) the occurrence with respect to any ERISA 
Plan of (i) a reportable event described in Sections 4043(b)(5) or (6) of ERISA 
or (ii) any other reportable event described in Section 4043(b) of ERISA other 
than a reportable event not subject to the provision for 30-day notice to the 
Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation pursuant to a waiver by such corporation 
under Section 4043(a) of ERISA, or (b) the withdrawal of any ERISA Affiliate 
from an ERISA Plan during a plan year in which it was a "substantial employer" 
as defined in Section 4001(a)(2) of ERISA, or (c) the filing of a notice of 
intent to terminate any ERISA Plan or the treatment of any ERISA Plan amendment 
as a termination under Section 4041 of ERISA, or (d) the institution of 
proceedings to terminate any ERISA Plan by the Pension Benefit Guaranty 
Corporation under Section 4042 of ERISA, or (e) any other event or condition 
which might constitute grounds under Section 4042 of ERISA for the termination 
of, or the appointment of a trustee to administer, any ERISA Plan. 
 
         "Tribunal" means any government, any arbitration panel, any court or 
any governmental department, commission, board, bureau, agency or 
instrumentality of the United States of America or any state, province, 
commonwealth, nation, territory, possession, county, parish, town, township, 
village or municipality, whether now or hereafter constituted or existing. 
 
         "Type" means, with respect to any Loans, the characterization of such 
Loans as either Base Rate Loans or Eurodollar Loans. 
 
         Section 1.2. Exhibits and Schedules; Additional Definitions. All 
Exhibits and Schedules attached to this Agreement are a part hereof for all 
purposes. Reference is hereby made to the 
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Security Schedule for the meaning of certain terms defined therein and used but 
not defined herein, which definitions are incorporated herein by reference. 
 
         Section 1.3. Amendment of Defined Instruments. Unless the context 
otherwise requires or unless otherwise provided herein the terms defined in this 
Agreement which refer to a particular agreement, instrument or document also 
refer to and include all renewals, extensions, modifications, amendments and 
restatements of such agreement, instrument or document, provided that nothing 
contained in this section shall be construed to authorize any such renewal, 
extension, modification, amendment or restatement. 
 
         Section 1.4. References and Titles. All references in this Agreement to 
Exhibits, Schedules, articles, sections, subsections and other subdivisions 
refer to the Exhibits, Schedules, articles, sections, subsections and other 
subdivisions of this Agreement unless expressly provided otherwise. Titles 
appearing at the beginning of any subdivisions are for convenience only and do 
not constitute any part of such subdivisions and shall be disregarded in 
construing the language contained in such subdivisions. The words "this 
Agreement", "this instrument", "herein", "hereof", "hereby", "hereunder" and 
words of similar import refer to this Agreement as a whole and not to any 
particular subdivision unless expressly so limited. The phrases "this section" 
and "this subsection" and similar phrases refer only to the sections or 
subsections hereof in which such phrases occur. The word "or" is not exclusive, 
and the word "including" (in its various forms) means "including without 
limitation". Pronouns in masculine, feminine and neuter genders shall be 
construed to include any other gender, and words in the singular form shall be 
construed to include the plural and vice versa, unless the context otherwise 
requires. 
 
         Section 1.5. Calculations and Determinations. All calculations under 
the Loan Documents of interest chargeable with respect to Eurodollar Loans and 
of fees shall be made on the basis of actual days elapsed (including the first 
day but excluding the last) and a year of 360 days. All other calculations of 
interest made under the Loan Documents shall be made on the basis of actual days 
elapsed (including the first day but excluding the last) and a year of 365 or 
366 days, as appropriate. Each determination by a Bank Party of amounts to be 
paid under Sections 3.2 through 3.6 or any other matters which are to be 
determined hereunder by a Bank Party (such as any Eurodollar Rate, LIBOR Rate, 
Business Day, Interest Period, or Reserve Percentage) shall, in the absence of 
manifest error, be conclusive and binding. Unless otherwise expressly provided 
herein or unless Majority Lenders otherwise consent all financial statements and 
reports furnished to any Bank Party hereunder shall be prepared and all 
financial computations and determinations pursuant hereto shall be made in 
accordance with GAAP. 
 
         Section 1.6. Joint Preparation; Construction of Indemnities and 
Releases. This Agreement and the other Loan Documents have been prepared through 
the joint efforts of the various parties hereto and their counsel, and all such 
parties shall equally be considered to be the drafters hereof and thereof. All 
indemnification and release provisions of this Agreement shall be construed 
broadly (and not narrowly) in favor of the Persons receiving indemnification 
from or being released. 
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                  ARTICLE II - The Loans and Letters of Credit 
 
 
         Section 2.1. Commitments to Lend; Notes. Subject to the terms and 
conditions hereof, each Lender agrees to make loans to Borrower (herein called 
such Lender's "Loans") upon Borrower's request from time to time during the 
Commitment Period, provided that (a) subject to Sections 3.3, 3.4 and 3.6, all 
Lenders are requested to make Loans of the same Type in accordance with their 
respective Percentage Shares and as part of the same Borrowing, (b) after giving 
effect to such Loans, the Facility Usage does not exceed the Borrowing Base in 
effect as of the date on which the requested Loans are to be made, (c) after 
giving effect to such Loans, the Facility Usage does not exceed the Senior Debt 
Limit in effect as of the date on which the requested Loans are to be made, and 
(d) after giving effect to such Loans, the outstanding principal amount of each 
Lender's Loans, plus such Lender's Percentage Share of LC Obligations does not 
exceed such Lender's Percentage Share of the Borrowing Base in effect as of the 
date on which the requested Loans are to be made. The aggregate amount of all 
Loans in any Borrowing must be greater than or equal to $2,500,000 or must equal 
the remaining availability under the Borrowing Base. Borrower may have no more 
than five Borrowings of Eurodollar Loans outstanding at any time. The obligation 
of Borrower to repay to each Lender the aggregate amount of all Loans made by 
such Lender, together with interest accruing in connection therewith, shall be 
evidenced by a single promissory note (herein called such Lender's "Note") made 
by Borrower payable to the order of such Lender in the form of Exhibit A with 
appropriate insertions. It is expressly understood that Lenders' commitment to 
make Loans is determined only by reference to the Borrowing Base from time to 
time in effect, and the aggregate face amount of the Notes and the amount 
specified in the Security Documents are specified at a greater amount only for 
the convenience of the parties to avoid the necessity of preparing and recording 
supplements to the Security Documents. The amount of principal owing on any 
Lender's Note at any given time shall be the aggregate amount of all Loans 
theretofore made by such Lender minus all payments of principal theretofore 
received by such Lender on such Note. Interest on each Note shall accrue and be 
due and payable as provided herein and therein, with Eurodollar Loans bearing 
interest at the Eurodollar Rate and Base Rate Loans bearing interest at the Base 
Rate (subject to the applicability of the Default Rate and limited by the 
provisions of Section 10.7). On the last day of the Commitment Period, unless 
sooner paid as provided herein, all Loans shall be paid in full. Subject to the 
terms and conditions hereof, Borrower may borrow, repay, and reborrow hereunder. 
 
         Section 2.2. Requests for New Loans. Borrower must give to Agent 
written notice (or telephonic notice promptly confirmed in writing) of any 
requested Borrowing of new Loans to be advanced by Lenders. Each such notice 
constitutes a "Borrowing Notice" hereunder and must: 
 
                  (a) specify (i) the aggregate amount of any such Borrowing of 
         new Base Rate Loans and the date on which such Base Rate Loans are to 
         be advanced, or (ii) the aggregate amount of any such Borrowing of new 
         Eurodollar Loans, the date on which such Eurodollar Loans are to be 
         advanced (which shall be the first day of the Interest Period which is 
         to apply thereto), and the length of the applicable Interest Period; 
         and 
 
                  (b) be received by Agent not later than 8:00 a.m., Los 
         Angeles, California time, on (i) the day on which any such Base Rate 
         Loans are to be made, or (ii) the third Business Day preceding the day 
         on which any such Eurodollar Loans are to be made. 
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Each such written request or confirmation must be made in the form and substance 
of the "Borrowing Notice" attached hereto as Exhibit B, duly completed. Each 
such telephonic request shall be deemed a representation, warranty, 
acknowledgment and agreement by Borrower as to the matters which are required to 
be set out in such written confirmation. Upon receipt of any such Borrowing 
Notice, Agent shall give each Lender prompt notice of the terms thereof. If all 
conditions precedent to such new Loans have been met, each Lender will on the 
date requested promptly remit to Agent at Agent's office in Los Angeles, 
California the amount of such Lender's new Loan in immediately available funds, 
and upon receipt of such funds, unless to its actual knowledge any conditions 
precedent to such Loans have been neither met nor waived as provided herein, 
Agent shall promptly make such Loans available to Borrower. Unless Agent shall 
have received prompt notice from a Lender that such Lender will not make 
available to Agent such Lender's new Loan, Agent may in its discretion assume 
that such Lender has made such Loan available to Agent in accordance with this 
section and Agent may if it chooses, in reliance upon such assumption, make such 
Loan available to Borrower. If and to the extent such Lender shall not so make 
its new Loan available to Agent, such Lender and Borrower severally agree to pay 
or repay to Agent within three days after demand the amount of such Loan 
together with interest thereon, for each day from the date such amount was made 
available to Borrower until the date such amount is paid or repaid to Agent, 
with interest at (i) the Federal Funds Rate, if such Lender is making such 
payment and (ii) the interest rate applicable at the time to the other new Loans 
made on such date, if Borrower is making such repayment. If neither such Lender 
nor Borrower pay or repay to Agent such amount within such three-day period, 
Agent shall in addition to such amount be entitled to recover from such Lender 
and from Borrower, on demand, interest thereon at the Default Rate, calculated 
from the date such amount was made available to Borrower. The failure of any 
Lender to make any new Loan to be made by it hereunder shall not relieve any 
other Lender of its obligation hereunder, if any, to make its new Loan, but no 
Lender shall be responsible for the failure of any other Lender to make any new 
Loan to be made by such other Lender. 
 
         Section 2.3. Interest Rates; Continuations and Conversions of Existing 
Loans. 
 
         (a) Interest Rates. Unless the Default Rate shall be applicable, Base 
Rate Loans from time to time outstanding shall bear interest on each day 
outstanding at the sum of the Base Rate in effect on such day, but in no event 
in excess of the Highest Lawful Rate. Unless the Default Rate shall be 
applicable, each Eurodollar Loan shall bear interest on each day during the 
related Interest Period at the related Eurodollar Rate in effect on such day, 
but in no event in excess of the Highest Lawful Rate. Such interest shall be 
payable on the dates specified in the Note. After the occurrence and during the 
continuance of an Event of Default and a notice to the Borrower by Agent that 
the Default Rate shall apply, all Loans shall bear interest on each day at the 
Default Rate in effect on such day, and such interest shall be due and payable 
daily as it accrues. 
 
         (b) Continuations and Conversions. Borrower may make the following 
elections with respect to Loans already outstanding: to Convert Base Rate Loans 
to Eurodollar Loans, to Convert Eurodollar Loans to Base Rate Loans on the last 
day of the Interest Period applicable thereto, or to Continue Eurodollar Loans 
beyond the expiration of such Interest Period by designating a new Interest 
Period to take effect at the time of such expiration. In making such 
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elections, Borrower may combine existing Loans made pursuant to separate 
Borrowings into one new Borrowing or divide existing Loans made pursuant to one 
Borrowing into separate new Borrowings, provided that Borrower may have no more 
than five Borrowings of Eurodollar Loans outstanding at any time. To make any 
such election, Borrower must give to Agent written notice (or telephonic notice 
promptly confirmed in writing) of any such Conversion or Continuation of 
existing Loans, with a separate notice given for each new Borrowing. Each such 
notice constitutes a "Continuation/Conversion Notice" hereunder and must: 
 
                  (i) specify the existing Loans which are to be Continued or 
         Converted; 
 
                  (ii) specify (A) the aggregate amount of any Borrowing of Base 
         Rate Loans into which such existing Loans are to be Continued or 
         Converted and the date on which such Continuation or Conversion is to 
         occur, or (B) the aggregate amount of any Borrowing of Eurodollar Loans 
         into which such existing Loans are to be Continued or Converted, the 
         date on which such Continuation or Conversion is to occur (which shall 
         be the first day of the Interest Period which is to apply to such 
         Eurodollar Loans), and the length of the applicable Interest Period; 
         and 
 
                  (iii) be received by Agent not later than 8:00 a.m., Los 
         Angeles, California time, on (A) the day on which any such Continuation 
         or Conversion to Base Rate Loans is to occur, or (B) the third Business 
         Day preceding the day on which any such Continuation or Conversion to 
         Eurodollar Loans is to occur. 
 
Each such written request or confirmation must be made in the form and substance 
of the "Continuation/Conversion Notice" attached hereto as Exhibit C, duly 
completed. Each such telephonic request shall be deemed a representation, 
warranty, acknowledgment and agreement by Borrower as to the matters which are 
required to be set out in such written confirmation. Upon receipt of any such 
Continuation/Conversion Notice, Agent shall give each Lender prompt notice of 
the terms thereof. Each Continuation/Conversion Notice shall be irrevocable and 
binding on Borrower. During the continuance of any Default, Borrower may not 
make any election to Convert existing Loans into Eurodollar Loans or Continue 
existing Loans as Eurodollar Loans. If (due to the existence of a Default or for 
any other reason) Borrower fails to timely and properly give any notice of 
Continuation or Conversion with respect to a Borrowing of existing Eurodollar 
Loans at least three days prior to the end of the Interest Period applicable 
thereto, such Eurodollar Loans shall automatically be Converted into Base Rate 
Loans at the end of such Interest Period. No new funds shall be repaid by 
Borrower or advanced by any Lender in connection with any Continuation or 
Conversion of existing Loans pursuant to this section, and no such Continuation 
or Conversion shall be deemed to be a new advance of funds for any purpose; such 
Continuations and Conversions merely constitute a change in the interest rate 
applicable to already outstanding Loans. 
 
         Section 2.4. Use of Proceeds. Borrower shall use all Loans to finance 
capital expenditures, to refinance existing Indebtedness of Borrower to Agent, 
and provide working capital for its operations and for other general business 
purposes. Borrower shall use all Letters of Credit for its general corporate 
purposes. In no event shall the funds from any Loan or any Letter of Credit be 
used directly or indirectly by any Person for personal, family, household or 
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agricultural purposes or for the purpose, whether immediate, incidental or 
ultimate, of purchasing, acquiring or carrying any "margin stock" (as such term 
is defined in Regulation U and Regulation G promulgated by the Board of 
Governors of the Federal Reserve System) or to extend credit to others directly 
or indirectly for the purpose of purchasing or carrying any such margin stock. 
Borrower represents and warrants that Borrower is not engaged principally, or as 
one of Borrower's important activities, in the business of extending credit to 
others for the purpose of purchasing or carrying such margin stock. 
 
         Section 2.5. Fees. 
 
         (a) Commitment Fees. In consideration of each Lender's commitment to 
make Loans, Borrower will pay to Agent for the account of each Lender a 
commitment fee determined on a daily basis at the rate of one-half of one 
percent (.50%) per annum times such Lender's Percentage Share of the unused 
portion of the Borrowing Base on each day during the Commitment Period, 
determined for each such day by deducting the Facility Usage from the amount of 
the Borrowing Base at the end of such day. This commitment fee shall be due and 
payable in arrears on the last day of each September, December, March, and June, 
and at the end of the Commitment Period. 
 
         (b) Agent's Fees. In addition to all other amounts due to Agent under 
the Loan Documents, Borrower will pay fees to Agent as described in a letter 
agreement of even date herewith between Agent and Borrower. 
 
         Section 2.6. Optional Prepayments. Borrower may, upon three Business 
Days' notice to each Lender, from time to time and without premium or penalty 
prepay the Notes, in whole or in part, so long as the aggregate amounts of all 
partial prepayments of principal on the Notes equals $1,000,000 or any higher 
integral multiple of $1,000,000, so long as Borrower does not prepay any 
Eurodollar Loan, and so long as Borrower does not make any prepayments which 
would reduce the unpaid principal balance of any Loan to less than $100,000 
without first either (a) terminating this Agreement or (b) providing assurance 
satisfactory to Agent in its discretion that Lenders' legal rights under the 
Loan Documents are in no way affected by such reduction. Each prepayment of 
principal under this section shall be accompanied by all interest then accrued 
and unpaid on the principal so prepaid. Any principal or interest prepaid 
pursuant to this section shall be in addition to, and not in lieu of, all 
payments otherwise required to be paid under the Loan Documents at the time of 
such prepayment. 
 
         Section 2.7. Mandatory Prepayments. 
 
         (a) If at any time the Facility Usage exceeds the Maximum Loan Amount 
(whether due to a reduction in the Maximum Loan Amount in accordance with this 
Agreement, or otherwise), Borrower shall immediately prepay the principal of the 
Loans in an amount at least equal to such excess. 
 
         (b) If at any time the Facility Usage is less than the Maximum Loan 
Amount but in excess of the Borrowing Base (such excess being herein called a 
"Borrowing Base Deficiency"), 
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Agent shall give notice of such fact to Borrower (herein called a "Deficiency 
Notice"), and Borrower shall: 
 
                  (i) within thirty (30) days after the Deficiency Notice give 
         notice to Agent electing to prepay the principal of the Loans in a 
         single payment, in which event Borrower shall prepay the principal of 
         the Loans in an aggregate amount at least equal to such Borrowing Base 
         Deficiency (or, if the Loans have been paid in full, pay to LC Issuer 
         LC Collateral as required under Section 2.16(a)) on or before the date 
         which is sixty (60) days after the Deficiency Notice, or 
 
                  (ii) within 30 days after the Deficiency Notice give notice to 
         Agent electing to prepay the principal of the Loans in installments, in 
         which event Borrower shall prepay the principal of the Loans in six 
         consecutive monthly installments, in an aggregate amount at least equal 
         to such Borrowing Base Deficiency (or, if the Loans have been paid in 
         full, pay to LC Issuer LC Collateral as required under Section 
         2.16(a)), with the first such installment due 30 days after the 
         Deficiency Notice, the next five such installments due on the same day 
         of each consecutive month, each such installment being in the amount of 
         one-sixth of such Borrowing Base Deficiency, or 
 
                  (iii) within 30 days after the Deficiency Notice, certify to 
         Agent that Borrower has marketable title, free of any Liens, to oil and 
         gas properties not included in such existing Borrowing Base, which 
         properties are not subject to any Liens except Permitted Liens, in an 
         amount which eliminates such Borrowing Base Deficiency, and provide to 
         each Lender the same information regarding such property as would be 
         required for an evaluation by Required Lenders under Section 2.9. If 
         Required Lenders determine that such properties will not serve to 
         eliminate such Borrowing Base Deficiency, then, within five Business 
         Days after receiving notice of such determination, Borrower will elect 
         to make, and thereafter make, the prepayments specified in either of 
         the preceding subsections (i) or (ii) of this subsection (b). 
 
         (c) Each prepayment of principal under this section shall be 
accompanied by all interest then accrued and unpaid on the principal so prepaid. 
Any principal or interest prepaid pursuant to this section shall be in addition 
to, and not in lieu of, all payments otherwise required to be paid under the 
Loan Documents at the time of such prepayment. 
 
         Section 2.8. Initial Borrowing Base. During the period from the date 
hereof to the first Determination Date, the Borrowing Base shall be $75,000,000. 
 
         Section 2.9. Subsequent Determinations of Borrowing Base. Within 90 
days after each Evaluation Date commencing October 1, 2000, Borrower shall 
furnish to each Lender all information, reports and data which Agent has then 
requested concerning Restricted Persons' businesses and properties (including 
their oil and gas properties and interests and the reserves and production 
relating thereto), together with the Engineering Report described in Section 
6.2. Within forty-five days after receiving such information, reports and data, 
or as promptly thereafter as practicable, Required Lenders shall agree upon an 
amount for the Borrowing Base (provided that all Lenders must agree to any 
increase in the Borrowing Base) and Agent shall by 
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notice to Borrower designate such amount as the new Borrowing Base available to 
Borrower hereunder, which designation shall take effect immediately on the date 
such notice is sent (herein called a "Determination Date") and shall remain in 
effect until but not including the next date as of which the Borrowing Base is 
redetermined. If Borrower does not furnish all such information, reports and 
data by the date specified in the first sentence of this section, Agent may 
nonetheless designate the Borrowing Base at any amount which Required Lenders 
determine and may redesignate the Borrowing Base from time to time thereafter 
until each Lender receives all such information, reports and data, whereupon 
Required Lenders shall designate a new Borrowing Base as described above. 
Required Lenders shall determine the amount of the Borrowing Base based (i) upon 
the total debt of Restricted Persons and upon the loan value which they in their 
discretion assign to the various oil and gas properties of Restricted Persons at 
the time in question and (ii) based upon such other credit factors (including 
without limitation the assets, liabilities, cash flow, hedged and unhedged 
exposure to price, foreign exchange rate, and interest rate changes, business, 
properties, prospects, management and ownership of Restricted Persons) as they 
in their discretion deem significant. It is expressly understood that Lenders 
and Agent have no obligation to agree upon or designate the Borrowing Base at 
any particular amount, whether in relation to the Maximum Loan Amount or 
otherwise, and that Lenders' commitments to advance funds hereunder is 
determined by reference to the Borrowing Base from time to time in effect, which 
Borrowing Base shall be used for calculating commitment fees under Section 2.5 
and, to the extent permitted by Law and regulatory authorities, for the purposes 
of capital adequacy determination and reimbursements under Section 3.2. 
 
         Section 2.10. Borrower's Reduction of the Borrowing Base. 
 
Until the termination of the Commitment Period Borrower may, during the 
fifteen-day period beginning on each Determination Date (each such period being 
called in this section an "Option Period"), reduce the Borrowing Base from the 
amount designated by Agent to any lesser amount. To exercise such option 
Borrower must within an Option Period send notice to Agent of the amount of the 
Borrowing Base chosen by Borrower. If Borrower does not affirmatively exercise 
this option during an Option Period, the Borrowing Base shall be the amount 
designated by Agent. Any choice by Borrower of a Borrowing Base shall be 
effective as of the first day of the Option Period during which such choice was 
made and shall continue in effect until the next date as of which the Borrowing 
Base is redetermined. 
 
         Section 2.11. Letters of Credit. Subject to the terms and conditions 
hereof, Borrower may during the Commitment Period request LC Issuer to issue one 
or more Letters of Credit, provided that, after taking such Letter of Credit 
into account: 
 
                  (a) the Facility Usage does not exceed the Borrowing Base at 
         such time; 
 
                  (b) the aggregate amount of LC Obligations at such time does 
         not exceed $15,000,000; 
 
                  (c) the expiration date of such Letter of Credit is prior to 
         the earlier of (i) twelve (12) months after the date of issuance of 
         such Letter of Credit or (ii) 30 days before the Maturity Date; 
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                  (d) such Letter of Credit is to be used for general corporate 
         purposes of Borrower; 
 
                  (e) such Letter of Credit is not directly or indirectly used 
         to assure payment of or otherwise support any Indebtedness of any 
         Person, except for Liabilities of any Restricted Person in respect of 
         Hedging Contracts permitted pursuant to Section 7.3; 
 
                  (f) the issuance of such Letter of Credit will be in 
         compliance with all applicable governmental restrictions, policies, and 
         guidelines and will not subject LC Issuer to any cost which is not 
         reimbursable under Article III; 
 
                  (g) the form and terms of such Letter of Credit are acceptable 
         to LC Issuer in its sole discretion; and 
 
                  (h) all other conditions in this Agreement to the issuance of 
         such Letter of Credit have been satisfied. 
 
LC Issuer will honor any such request if the foregoing conditions (a) through 
(h) (in the following Section 2.12 called the "LC Conditions") have been met as 
of the date of issuance of such Letter of Credit. LC Issuer may choose to honor 
any such request for any other Letter of Credit but has no obligation to do so 
and may refuse to issue any other requested Letter of Credit for any reason 
which LC Issuer in its sole discretion deems relevant. 
 
         Section 2.12. Requesting Letters of Credit. Borrower must make written 
application for any Letter of Credit at least five Business Days before the date 
on which Borrower desires for LC Issuer to issue such Letter of Credit. By 
making any such written application Borrower shall be deemed to have represented 
and warranted that the LC Conditions described in Section 2.11 will be met as of 
the date of issuance of such Letter of Credit. Each such written application for 
a Letter of Credit must be made in writing in the form and substance of Exhibit 
E, the terms and provisions of which are hereby incorporated herein by reference 
(or in such other form as may mutually be agreed upon by LC Issuer and 
Borrower). Two Business Days after the LC Conditions for a Letter of Credit have 
been met as described in Section 2.11 (or if LC Issuer otherwise desires to 
issue such Letter of Credit), LC Issuer will issue such Letter of Credit at LC 
Issuer's office in Los Angeles, California. If any provisions of any LC 
Application conflict with any provisions of this Agreement, the provisions of 
this Agreement shall govern and control. 
 
         Section 2.13. Reimbursement and Participations. 
 
         (a) Reimbursement by Borrower. Each Matured LC Obligation shall 
constitute a loan by LC Issuer to Borrower. Borrower promises to pay to LC 
Issuer, or to LC Issuer's order, on demand, the full amount of each Matured LC 
Obligation, together with interest thereon at the Base Rate from the date such 
matured LC obligation accrues until the third Business Day after demand, and 
thereafter at the Default Rate until paid, but in no event in excess of the 
Highest Lawful Rate. 
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         (b) Letter of Credit Advances. If the beneficiary of any Letter of 
Credit makes a draft or other demand for payment thereunder then Borrower may, 
during the interval between the making thereof and the honoring thereof by LC 
Issuer, request Lenders to make Loans to Borrower in the amount of such draft or 
demand, which Loans shall be made concurrently with LC Issuer's payment of such 
draft or demand and shall be immediately used by LC Issuer to repay the amount 
of the resulting Matured LC Obligation. Such a request by Borrower shall be made 
in compliance with all of the provisions hereof, provided that for the purposes 
of the first sentence of Section 2.1 the amount of such Loans shall be 
considered but the amount of the Matured LC Obligation to be concurrently paid 
by such Loans shall not be considered. 
 
         (c) Participation by Lenders. LC Issuer irrevocably agrees to grant and 
hereby grants to each Lender, and -- to induce LC Issuer to issue Letters of 
Credit hereunder -- each Lender irrevocably agrees to accept and purchase and 
hereby accepts and purchases from LC Issuer, on the terms and conditions 
hereinafter stated and for such Lender's own account and risk an undivided 
interest equal to such Lender's Percentage Share of LC Issuer's obligations and 
rights under each Letter of Credit issued hereunder and the amount of each 
Matured LC Obligation paid by LC Issuer thereunder. Each Lender unconditionally 
and irrevocably agrees with LC Issuer that, if a Matured LC Obligation is paid 
under any Letter of Credit for which LC Issuer is not reimbursed in full by 
Borrower in accordance with the terms of this Agreement and the related LC 
Application (including any reimbursement by means of concurrent Loans or by the 
application of LC Collateral), such Lender shall (in all circumstances and 
without set-off or counterclaim) pay to LC Issuer on demand, in immediately 
available funds at LC Issuer's address for notices hereunder, such Lender's 
Percentage Share of such Matured LC Obligation (or any portion thereof which has 
not been reimbursed by Borrower). Each Lender's obligation to pay LC Issuer 
pursuant to the terms of this subsection is irrevocable and unconditional. If 
any amount required to be paid by any Lender to LC Issuer pursuant to this 
subsection is paid by such Lender to LC Issuer within three Business Days after 
the date such payment is due, LC Issuer shall in addition to such amount be 
entitled to recover from such Lender, on demand, interest thereon calculated 
from such due date at the Federal Funds Rate. If any amount required to be paid 
by any Lender to LC Issuer pursuant to this subsection is not paid by such 
Lender to LC Issuer within three Business Days after the date such payment is 
due, LC Issuer shall in addition to such amount be entitled to recover from such 
Lender, on demand, interest thereon calculated from such due date at the Default 
Rate. 
 
         (d) Distributions to Participants. Whenever LC Issuer has in accordance 
with this section received from any Lender payment of such Lender's Percentage 
Share of any Matured LC Obligation, if LC Issuer thereafter receives any payment 
of such Matured LC Obligation or any payment of interest thereon (whether 
directly from Borrower or by application of LC Collateral or otherwise, and 
excluding only interest for any period prior to LC Issuer's demand that such 
Lender make such payment of its Percentage Share), LC Issuer will distribute to 
such Lender its Percentage Share of the amounts so received by LC Issuer; 
provided, however, that if any such payment received by LC Issuer must 
thereafter be returned by LC Issuer, such Lender shall return to LC Issuer the 
portion thereof which LC Issuer has previously distributed to it. 
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         (e) Calculations. A written advice setting forth in reasonable detail 
the amounts owing under this section, submitted by LC Issuer to Borrower or any 
Lender from time to time, shall be conclusive, absent manifest error, as to the 
amounts thereof. 
 
         Section 2.14. Letter of Credit Fees. In consideration of LC Issuer's 
issuance of any Letter of Credit, Borrower agrees to pay (a) to Agent, for the 
account of all Lenders, a letter of credit fee determined on a daily basis by 
applying the Letter of Credit Fee Rate to such Lender's Percentage Share of the 
face amount of the Letter of Credit (but in no event less than $500 per annum), 
and (b) to such LC Issuer for its own account, a letter of credit fronting fee 
at a rate equal to one-eighth percent (.125%) per annum times the face amount of 
such Letter of Credit (but in no event less than $250 per annum). The letter of 
credit fee and the letter of credit fronting fee will be calculated on the face 
amount of each Letter of Credit outstanding on each day at the above-applicable 
rates and will be due and payable in arrears on the last day of each March, 
June, September and December. 
 
         Section 2.15. No Duty to Inquire. 
 
         (a) Drafts and Demands. LC Issuer is authorized and instructed to 
accept and pay drafts and demands for payment under any Letter of Credit without 
requiring, and without responsibility for, any determination as to the existence 
of any event giving rise to said draft, either at the time of acceptance or 
payment or thereafter. LC Issuer is under no duty to determine the proper 
identity of anyone presenting such a draft or making such a demand (whether by 
tested telex or otherwise) as the officer, representative or agent of any 
beneficiary under any Letter of Credit, and payment by LC Issuer to any such 
beneficiary when requested by any such purported officer, representative or 
agent is hereby authorized and approved. Borrower agrees to hold LC Issuer and 
each other Bank Party harmless and indemnified against any liability or claim in 
connection with or arising out of the subject matter of this section, WHICH 
INDEMNITY SHALL APPLY WHETHER OR NOT ANY SUCH LIABILITY OR CLAIM IS IN ANY WAY 
OR TO ANY EXTENT CAUSED, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, BY ANY NEGLIGENT ACT OR OMISSION 
OF ANY KIND BY ANY BANK PARTY, provided only that no Bank Party shall be 
entitled to indemnification for that portion, if any, of any liability or claim 
which is proximately caused by its own individual gross negligence or willful 
misconduct, as determined in a final judgment. 
 
         (b) Extension of Maturity. If the maturity of any Letter of Credit is 
extended by its terms or by Law or governmental action, if any extension of the 
maturity or time for presentation of drafts or any other modification of the 
terms of any Letter of Credit is made at the request of any Restricted Person, 
or if the amount of any Letter of Credit is increased at the request of any 
Restricted Person, this Agreement shall be binding upon all Restricted Persons 
with respect to such Letter of Credit as so extended, increased or otherwise 
modified, with respect to drafts and property covered thereby, and with respect 
to any action taken by LC Issuer, LC Issuer's correspondents, or any Bank Party 
in accordance with such extension, increase or other modification. 
 
         (c) Transferees of Letters of Credit. If any Letter of Credit provides 
that it is transferable, LC Issuer shall have no duty to determine the proper 
identity of anyone appearing as transferee of such Letter of Credit, nor shall 
LC Issuer be charged with responsibility of any 
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nature or character for the validity or correctness of any transfer or 
successive transfers, and payment by LC Issuer to any purported transferee or 
transferees as determined by LC Issuer is hereby authorized and approved, and 
Borrower further agrees to hold LC Issuer and each other Bank Party harmless and 
indemnified against any liability or claim in connection with or arising out of 
the foregoing, WHICH INDEMNITY SHALL APPLY WHETHER OR NOT ANY SUCH LIABILITY OR 
CLAIM IS IN ANY WAY OR TO ANY EXTENT CAUSED, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, BY ANY 
NEGLIGENT ACT OR OMISSION OF ANY KIND BY ANY BANK PARTY, provided only that no 
Bank Party shall be entitled to indemnification for that portion, if any, of any 
liability or claim which is proximately caused by its own individual gross 
negligence or willful misconduct, as determined in a final judgment. 
 
         Section 2.16. LC Collateral. 
 
         (a) LC Obligations in Excess of Borrowing Base. If, after the making of 
all mandatory prepayments required under Section 2.7, the principal balance of 
the Loans is zero, but the outstanding LC Obligations will exceed the Borrowing 
Base, then in addition to such prepayment of the entire principal balance of the 
Loans Borrower will immediately pay to LC Issuer an amount equal to such excess. 
LC Issuer will hold such amount as security for the remaining LC Obligations 
(all such amounts held as security for LC Obligations being herein collectively 
called "LC Collateral") until (i) such LC Obligations become Matured LC 
Obligations, at which time such LC Collateral may be applied to such Matured LC 
Obligations or (ii) such LC Obligations expire at which time any LC Collateral 
in excess of any remaining LC Obligations will be returned to Borrower. Neither 
this subsection nor the following subsection shall, however, limit or impair any 
rights which LC Issuer may have under any other document or agreement relating 
to any Letter of Credit, LC Collateral or LC Obligation, including any LC 
Application, or any rights which any Bank Party may have to otherwise apply any 
payments by Borrower and any LC Collateral under Section 3.1. 
 
         (b) Acceleration of LC Obligations. If the Obligations or any part 
thereof become immediately due and payable pursuant to Section 8.1 then, unless 
Majority Lenders otherwise specifically elect to the contrary (which election 
may thereafter be retracted by Majority Lenders at any time), all LC Obligations 
shall become immediately due and payable without regard to whether or not actual 
drawings or payments on the Letters of Credit have occurred, and Borrower shall 
be obligated to pay to LC Issuer immediately an amount equal to the aggregate LC 
Obligations which are then outstanding. All amounts so paid shall first be 
applied to Matured LC Obligations and then held by LC Issuer as LC Collateral 
until such LC Obligations become Matured LC Obligations, at which time such LC 
Collateral shall be applied to such Matured LC Obligations. 
 
         (c) Investment of LC Collateral. Pending application thereof, all LC 
Collateral shall be invested by LC Issuer in such investments as LC Issuer may 
choose in its sole discretion. All interest on such investments shall be 
reinvested or applied to Matured LC Obligations. When all Obligations have been 
satisfied in full, including all LC Obligations, all Letters of Credit have 
expired or been terminated, and all of Borrower's reimbursement obligations in 
connection therewith have been satisfied in full, LC Issuer shall release any 
remaining LC Collateral. Borrower hereby assigns and grants to LC Issuer a 
continuing security interest in all LC 
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Collateral paid by it to LC Issuer, all investments purchased with such LC 
Collateral, and all proceeds thereof to secure its Matured LC Obligations and 
its Obligations under this Agreement, each Note, and the other Loan Documents, 
and Borrower agrees that such LC Collateral and investments shall be subject to 
all of the terms and conditions of the Security Documents. Borrower further 
agrees that LC Issuer shall have all of the rights and remedies of a secured 
party under the Uniform Commercial Code as adopted in the State of Texas with 
respect to such security interest and that an Event of Default under this 
Agreement shall constitute a default for purposes of such security interest. 
 
         (d) Payment of LC Collateral. When Borrower is required to provide LC 
Collateral for any reason and fails to do so on the day when required, LC Issuer 
may without notice to Borrower or any other Restricted Person provide such LC 
Collateral (whether by application of proceeds of other Collateral, by transfers 
from other accounts maintained with LC Issuer, or otherwise) using any available 
funds of Borrower or any other Person also liable to make such payments. Any 
such amounts which are required to be provided as LC Collateral and which are 
not provided on the date required shall, for purposes of each Security Document, 
be considered past due Obligations owing hereunder, and LC Issuer is hereby 
authorized to exercise its respective rights under each Security Document to 
obtain such amounts. 
 
 
                        ARTICLE III - Payments to Lenders 
 
         Section 3.1. General Procedures. Borrower will make each payment which 
it owes under the Loan Documents to Agent for the account of the Bank Party to 
whom such payment is owed. Each such payment must be received by Agent not later 
than 10:00 a.m., Los Angeles, California time, on the date such payment becomes 
due and payable, in lawful money of the United States of America, without 
set-off, deduction or counterclaim, and in immediately available funds. Any 
payment received by Agent after such time will be deemed to have been made on 
the next following Business Day. Should any such payment become due and payable 
on a day other than a Business Day, the maturity of such payment shall be 
extended to the next succeeding Business Day, and, in the case of a payment of 
principal or past due interest, interest shall accrue and be payable thereon for 
the period of such extension as provided in the Loan Document under which such 
payment is due. Each payment under a Loan Document shall be due and payable at 
the place provided therein and, if no specific place of payment is provided, 
shall be due and payable at the place of payment of Agent's Note. When Agent 
collects or receives money on account of the Obligations, Agent shall distribute 
all money so collected or received, and each Bank Party shall apply all such 
money so distributed, as follows: 
 
                  (a) first, for the payment of all Obligations which are then 
         due (and if such money is insufficient to pay all such Obligations, 
         first to any reimbursements due Agent under Section 6.9 or 10.4 and 
         then to the partial payment of all other Obligations then due in 
         proportion to the amounts thereof, or as Bank Parties shall otherwise 
         agree); 
 
                  (b) then for the prepayment of amounts owing under the Loan 
         Documents (other than principal on the Notes) if so specified by 
         Borrower; 
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                  (c) then for the prepayment of principal on the Notes, 
         together with accrued and unpaid interest on the principal so prepaid; 
         and 
 
                  (d) last, for the payment or prepayment of any other 
         Obligations. 
 
All payments applied to principal or interest on any Note shall be applied first 
to any interest then due and payable, then to principal then due and payable, 
and last to any prepayment of principal and interest in compliance with Section 
2.6. All distributions of amounts described in any of subsections (b), (c) or 
(d) above shall be made by Agent pro rata to each Bank Party then owed 
Obligations described in such subsection in proportion to all amounts owed to 
all Bank Parties which are described in such subsection; provided that if any 
Lender then owes payments to LC Issuer for the purchase of a participation under 
Section 2.13(c) or to Agent under Article II or Section 9.4, any amounts 
otherwise distributable under this section to such Lender shall be deemed to 
belong to LC Issuer or Agent, respectively, to the extent of such unpaid 
payments, and Agent shall apply such amounts to make such unpaid payments rather 
than distribute such amounts to such Lender. 
 
         Section 3.2. Increased Cost and Reduced Return. 
 
         (a) If, after the date hereof, the adoption of any applicable Law, 
rule, or regulation, or any change in any applicable Law, rule, or regulation, 
or any change in the interpretation or administration thereof by any 
governmental authority, central bank, or comparable agency charged with the 
interpretation or administration thereof, or compliance by any Lender (or its 
Applicable Lending Office) with any request or directive (whether or not having 
the force of Law) of any such governmental authority, central bank, or 
comparable agency: 
 
                  (i) shall subject such Lender (or its Applicable Lending 
         Office) to any tax, duty, or other charge with respect to any 
         Eurodollar Loans, its Notes, or its obligation to make Eurodollar 
         Loans, or change the basis of taxation of any amounts payable to such 
         Lender (or its Applicable Lending Office) under this Agreement or its 
         Notes in respect of any Eurodollar Loans (other than taxes imposed on 
         the overall net income of such Lender by the jurisdiction in which such 
         Lender has its principal office or such Applicable Lending Office); 
 
                  (ii) shall impose, modify, or deem applicable any reserve, 
         special deposit, assessment, or similar requirement (other than the 
         Reserve Requirement utilized in the determination of the Eurodollar 
         Rate) relating to any extensions of credit or other assets of, or any 
         deposits with or other liabilities or commitments of, such Lender (or 
         its Applicable Lending Office), including the Commitment of such Lender 
         hereunder; or 
 
                  (iii) shall impose on such Lender (or its Applicable Lending 
         Office) or the London interbank market any other condition affecting 
         this Agreement or its Notes or any of such extensions of credit or 
         liabilities or commitments; 
 
and the result of any of the foregoing is to increase the cost to such Lender 
(or its Applicable Lending Office) of making, Converting into, Continuing, or 
maintaining any Eurodollar Loans or 
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to reduce any sum received or receivable by such Lender (or its Applicable 
Lending Office) under this Agreement or its Notes with respect to any Eurodollar 
Loans, then Borrower shall pay to such Lender on demand such amount or amounts 
as will compensate such Lender for such increased cost or reduction. If any 
Lender requests compensation by Borrower under this Section 3.2(a), Borrower 
may, by notice to such Lender (with a copy to Agent), suspend the obligation of 
such Lender to make or Continue Loans of the Type with respect to which such 
compensation is requested, or to Convert Loans of any other Type into Loans of 
such Type, until the event or condition giving rise to such request ceases to be 
in effect (in which case the provisions of Section 3.5 shall be applicable); 
provided that such suspension shall not affect the right of such Lender to 
receive the compensation so requested. 
 
         (b) If, after the date hereof, any Lender shall have determined that 
the adoption of any applicable law, rule, or regulation regarding capital 
adequacy or any change therein or in the interpretation or administration 
thereof by any governmental authority, central bank, or comparable agency 
charged with the interpretation or administration thereof, or any request or 
directive regarding capital adequacy (whether or not having the force of law) of 
any such governmental authority, central bank, or comparable agency, has or 
would have the effect of reducing the rate of return on the capital of such 
Lender or any corporation controlling such Lender as a consequence of such 
Lender's obligations hereunder to a level below that which such Lender or such 
corporation could have achieved but for such adoption, change, request, or 
directive (taking into consideration its policies with respect to capital 
adequacy), then from time to time upon demand Borrower shall pay to such Lender 
such additional amount or amounts as will compensate such Lender for such 
reduction but only to the extent that such Lender has not been compensated 
therefor by an increase in the Eurodollar Rate. 
 
         (c) Each Lender shall promptly notify Borrower and Agent of any event 
of which it has knowledge, occurring after the date hereof, which will entitle 
such Lender to compensation pursuant to this Section and will designate a 
different Applicable Lending Office if such designation will avoid the need for, 
or reduce the amount of, such compensation and will not, in the judgment of such 
Lender, be otherwise disadvantageous to it. Any Lender claiming compensation 
under this Section shall furnish to Borrower and Agent a statement setting forth 
the additional amount or amounts to be paid to it hereunder which shall be 
conclusive in the absence of manifest error. In determining such amount, such 
Lender shall act in good faith and may use any reasonable averaging and 
attribution methods. 
 
         Section 3.3. Limitation on Types of Loans. If on or prior to the first 
day of any Interest Period for any Eurodollar Loan: 
 
         (a) Agent determines (which determination shall be conclusive) that by 
reason of circumstances affecting the relevant market, adequate and reasonable 
means do not exist for ascertaining the Eurodollar Rate for such Interest 
Period; or 
 
         (b) the Majority Lenders determine (which determination shall be 
conclusive) and notify Agent that the Eurodollar Rate will not adequately and 
fairly reflect the cost to Lenders of funding Eurodollar Loans for such Interest 
Period; 
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then Agent shall give Borrower prompt notice thereof specifying the relevant 
Type of Loans and the relevant amounts or periods, and so long as such condition 
remains in effect, Lenders shall be under no obligation to make additional Loans 
of such Type, Continue Loans of such Type, or to Convert Loans of any other Type 
into Loans of such Type and Borrower shall, on the last day(s) of the then 
current Interest Period(s) for the outstanding Loans of the affected Type, 
either prepay such Loans or Convert such Loans into another Type of Loan in 
accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 
 
         Section 3.4. Illegality. Notwithstanding any other provision of this 
Agreement, in the event that it becomes unlawful for any Lender or its 
Applicable Lending Office to make, maintain, or fund Eurodollar Loans hereunder, 
then such Lender shall promptly notify Borrower thereof and such Lender's 
obligation to make or Continue Eurodollar Loans and to Convert other Types of 
Loans into Eurodollar Loans shall be suspended until such time as such Lender 
may again make, maintain, and fund Eurodollar Loans (in which case the 
provisions of Section 3.5 shall be applicable). 
 
         Section 3.5. Treatment of Affected Loans. If the obligation of any 
Lender to make a particular Type of Eurodollar Loan or to continue, or to 
Convert Loans of any other Type into, Loans of a particular Type shall be 
suspended pursuant to Section 3.2 or 3.4 hereof (Loans of such Type being herein 
called "Affected Loans" and such Type being herein called the "Affected Type"), 
such Lender's Affected Loans shall be automatically Converted into Base Rate 
Loans on the last day(s) of the then current Interest Period(s) for Affected 
Loans (or, in the case of a Conversion required by Section 3.4 hereof, on such 
earlier date as such Lender may specify to Borrower with a copy to Agent) and, 
unless and until such Lender gives notice as provided below that the 
circumstances specified in Section 3.2 or 3.4 hereof that gave rise to such 
Conversion no longer exist: 
 
         (a) to the extent that such Lender's Affected Loans have been so 
Converted, all payments and prepayments of principal that would otherwise be 
applied to such Lender's Affected Loans shall be applied instead to its Base 
Rate Loans; and 
 
         (b) all Loans that would otherwise be made or Continued by such Lender 
as Loans of the Affected Type shall be made or Continued instead as Base Rate 
Loans, and all Loans of such Lender that would otherwise be Converted into Loans 
of the Affected Type shall be Converted instead into (or shall remain as) Base 
Rate Loans. 
 
If such Lender gives notice to Borrower (with a copy to Agent) that the 
circumstances specified in Section 3.2 or 3.4 hereof that gave rise to the 
Conversion of such Lender's Affected Loans pursuant to this Section 3.5 no 
longer exist (which such Lender agrees to do promptly upon such circumstances 
ceasing to exist) at a time when Loans of the Affected Type made by other 
Lenders are outstanding, such Lender's Base Rate Loans shall be automatically 
Converted, on the first day(s) of the next succeeding Interest Period(s) for 
such outstanding Loans of the Affected Type, to the extent necessary so that, 
after giving effect thereto, all Loans held by Lenders holding Loans of the 
Affected Type and by such Lender are held pro rata (as to principal amounts, 
Types, and Interest Periods) in accordance with their Percentage Shares of the 
Commitment. 
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         Section 3.6. Compensation. Upon the request of any Lender, Borrower 
shall pay to such Lender such amount or amounts as shall be sufficient (in the 
reasonable opinion of such Lender) to compensate it for any loss, cost, or 
expense (including loss of anticipated profits) incurred by it as a result of: 
 
         (a) any payment, prepayment, or Conversion of a Eurodollar Loan for any 
reason (including, without limitation, the acceleration of the Loans pursuant to 
Section 8.1) on a date other than the last day of the Interest Period for such 
Loan; or 
 
         (b) any failure by Borrower for any reason (including, without 
limitation, the failure of any condition precedent specified in Article IV to be 
satisfied) to borrow, Convert, Continue, or prepay a Eurodollar Loan on the date 
for such borrowing, Conversion, Continuation, or prepayment specified in the 
relevant notice of borrowing, prepayment, Continuation, or Conversion under this 
Agreement. 
 
         Section 3.7. Taxes. 
 
         (a) Any and all payments by Borrower to or for the account of any 
Lender or Agent hereunder or under any other Loan Document shall be made free 
and clear of and without deduction for any and all present or future taxes, 
duties, levies, imposts, deductions, charges or withholdings, and all 
liabilities with respect thereto, excluding, in the case of each Lender and 
Agent, taxes imposed on its income, and franchise taxes imposed on it, by the 
jurisdiction under the Laws of which such Lender (or its Applicable Lending 
Office) or Agent (as the case may be) is organized or any political subdivision 
thereof (all such non-excluded taxes, duties, levies, imposts, deductions, 
charges, withholdings, and liabilities being hereinafter referred to as 
"Taxes"). If Borrower shall be required by Law to deduct any Taxes from or in 
respect of any sum payable under this Agreement or any other Loan Document to 
any Lender or Agent, (i) the sum payable shall be increased as necessary so that 
after making all required deductions (including deductions applicable to 
additional sums payable under this Section 3.7) such Lender or Agent receives an 
amount equal to the sum it would have received had no such deductions been made, 
(ii) Borrower shall make such deductions, and (iii) Borrower shall pay the full 
amount deducted to the relevant taxation authority or other authority in 
accordance with applicable Law. 
 
         (b) In addition, Borrower agrees to pay any and all present or future 
stamp or documentary taxes and any other excise or property taxes or charges or 
similar levies which arise from any payment made under this Agreement or any 
other Loan Document or from the execution or delivery of, or otherwise with 
respect to, this Agreement or any other Loan Document (hereinafter referred to 
as "Other Taxes"). 
 
         (c) Borrower agrees to indemnify each Lender and Agent for the full 
amount of Taxes and Other Taxes (including, without limitation, any Taxes or 
Other Taxes imposed or asserted by any jurisdiction on amounts payable under 
this Section 3.7) paid by such Lender or Agent (as the case may be) and any 
liability (including penalties, interest, and expenses) arising therefrom or 
with respect thereto. 
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         (d) Each Lender organized under the Laws of a jurisdiction outside the 
United States, on or prior to the date of its execution and delivery of this 
Agreement in the case of each Lender listed on the signature pages hereof and on 
or prior to the date on which it becomes a Lender in the case of each other 
Lender, and from time to time thereafter if requested in writing by Borrower or 
Agent (but only so long as such Lender remains lawfully able to do so), shall 
provide Borrower and Agent with (i) Internal Revenue Service Form 1001 or 4224, 
as appropriate, or any successor form prescribed by the Internal Revenue 
Service, certifying that such Lender is entitled to benefits under an income tax 
treaty to which the United States is a party which reduces the rate of 
withholding tax on payments of interest or certifying that the income receivable 
pursuant to this Agreement is effectively connected with the conduct of a trade 
or business in the United States, (ii) Internal Revenue Service Form W-8 or W-9, 
as appropriate, or any successor form prescribed by the Internal Revenue 
Service, and (iii) any other form or certificate required by any taxing 
authority (including any certificate required by Sections 871(h) and 881(c) of 
the Internal Revenue Code), certifying that such Lender is entitled to an 
exemption from or a reduced rate of tax on payments pursuant to this Agreement 
or any of the other Loan Documents. 
 
         (e) For any period with respect to which a Lender has failed to provide 
Borrower and Agent with the appropriate form pursuant to Section 3.7(d) (unless 
such failure is due to a change in treaty, Law, or regulation occurring 
subsequent to the date on which a form originally was required to be provided), 
such Lender shall not be entitled to indemnification under Section 3.7(a) or 
3.7(b) with respect to Taxes imposed by the United States; provided, however, 
that should a Lender, which is otherwise exempt from or subject to a reduced 
rate of withholding tax, become subject to Taxes because of its failure to 
deliver a form required hereunder, Borrower shall take such steps as such Lender 
shall reasonably request to assist such Lender to recover such Taxes. 
 
         (f) If Borrower is required to pay additional amounts to or for the 
account of any Lender pursuant to this Section 3.7, then such Lender will agree 
to use reasonable efforts to change the jurisdiction of its Applicable Lending 
Office so as to eliminate or reduce any such additional payment which may 
thereafter accrue if such change, in the judgment of such Lender, is not 
otherwise disadvantageous to such Lender and in the event Lender is reimbursed 
for an amount paid by Borrower pursuant to this Section 3.7, it shall promptly 
return such amount to Borrower. 
 
         (g) Within thirty (30) days after the date of any payment of Taxes, 
Borrower shall furnish to Agent the original or a certified copy of a receipt 
evidencing such payment. 
 
         (h) Without prejudice to the survival of any other agreement of 
Borrower hereunder, the agreements and obligations of Borrower contained in this 
Section 3.7 shall survive the termination of the Commitment and the payment in 
full of the Notes. 
 
         Section 3.8. Compensation Procedure. Any Lender or LC Issuer notifying 
Borrower of the incurrence of additional costs under Sections 3.2 through 3.7 
shall in such notice to Borrower and Agent set forth in reasonable detail the 
basis and amount of its request for compensation. 
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Determinations and allocations by each Lender or LC Issuer for purposes of 
Sections 3.2 through 3.7 of the effect of any change in applicable laws, 
treaties, rules or regulations or in the interpretation or administration 
thereof, any losses or expenses incurred by reason of the liquidation or 
reemployment of deposits or other funds, any Taxes imposed, or the effect of 
capital maintained on its costs or rate of return of maintaining Loans or its 
obligation to make Loans, or on amounts receivable by it in respect of Loans, 
and of the amounts required to compensate such Lender under Sections 3.2 through 
3.7, shall be conclusive and binding for all purposes, absent manifest error. 
Any request for compensation under this Section 3.8 shall be paid by Borrower 
within thirty (30) Business Days of the receipt by Borrower of the notice 
described in this Section 3.8. 
 
         Section 3.9. Change of Applicable Lending Office. Each Bank Party 
agrees that, upon the occurrence of any event giving rise to the operation of 
Sections 3.2 through 3.6 with respect to such Bank Party, it will, if requested 
by Borrower, use reasonable efforts (subject to overall policy considerations of 
such Bank Party) to designate another Lending Office, provided that such 
designation is made on such terms that such Bank Party and its Lending Office 
suffer no economic, legal or regulatory disadvantage, with the object of 
avoiding the consequence of the event giving rise to the operation of any such 
section. Nothing in this section shall affect or postpone any of the obligations 
of Borrower or the rights of any Bank Party provided in Sections 3.2 through 
3.6. 
 
 
                  ARTICLE IV - Conditions Precedent to Lending 
 
         Section 4.1. Documents to be Delivered. No Lender has any obligation to 
make its first Loan, and LC Issuer has no obligation to issue the first Letter 
of Credit unless Agent shall have received all of the following, at Agent's 
office in Los Angeles, California, duly executed and delivered and in form, 
substance and date satisfactory to Agent: 
 
                  (a) This Agreement and any other documents that Lenders are to 
         execute in connection herewith. 
 
                  (b) Each Note. 
 
                  (c) Each Security Document listed in the Security Schedule. 
 
                  (d) Certain certificates of Borrower including: 
 
                           (i) An "Omnibus Certificate" of the Secretary and of 
                  the Chairman of the Board or President of the general partner 
                  of Borrower, which shall contain the names and signatures of 
                  the officers of the general partner of Borrower authorized to 
                  execute Loan Documents and which shall certify to the truth, 
                  correctness and completeness of the following exhibits 
                  attached thereto: (1) a copy of resolutions duly adopted by 
                  the Board of Directors of the general partner of Borrower and 
                  in full force and effect at the time this Agreement is entered 
                  into, authorizing the execution of this Agreement and the 
                  other Loan Documents delivered or to be 
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                  delivered in connection herewith and the consummation of the 
                  transactions contemplated herein and therein, (2) a copy of 
                  the charter documents of Borrower and all amendments thereto, 
                  certified by the appropriate official of Borrower's and 
                  general partner's state of organization, and (3) a copy of any 
                  bylaws of the general partner of Borrower; and 
 
                           (ii) A "Compliance Certificate" of the Chairman of 
                  the Board or President and of the Treasurer of Parent, of even 
                  date with such Loan or such Letter of Credit, in which such 
                  officers certify to the satisfaction of the conditions set out 
                  in subsections (a), (b), (c) and (d) of Section 4.2. 
 
                  (e) A certificate (or certificates) of the due formation, 
         valid existence and good standing of Borrower in its state of 
         organization, issued by the appropriate authorities of such 
         jurisdiction, and certificates of Borrower's good standing and due 
         qualification to do business, issued by appropriate officials in any 
         states in which Borrower owns property subject to Security Documents. 
 
                  (f) Documents similar to those specified in subsections (d)(i) 
         and (e) of this Section with respect to each Guarantor and the 
         execution by it of its guaranty of Borrower's Obligations. 
 
                  (g) A favorable opinion of Messrs. Self, Giddens and Lees, 
         counsel for Restricted Persons, substantially in the form set forth in 
         Exhibit F. 
 
                  (h) The Initial Engineering Report and the Initial Financial 
         Statements. 
 
                  (i) Certificates or binders evidencing Restricted Persons' 
         insurance in effect on the date hereof. 
 
                  (j) Payment of all commitment, facility, agency and other fees 
         required to be paid to any Bank Party pursuant to any Loan Documents or 
         any commitment agreement heretofore entered into. 
 
         Section 4.2. Additional Conditions Precedent. No Lender has any 
obligation to make any Loan (including its first), and LC Issuer has no 
obligation to issue any Letter of Credit (including its first), unless the 
following conditions precedent have been satisfied: 
 
                  (a) All representations and warranties made by any Restricted 
         Person in any Loan Document shall be true on and as of the date of such 
         Loan or the date of issuance of such Letter of Credit (except to the 
         extent that the facts upon which such representations are based have 
         been changed by the extension of credit hereunder) as if such 
         representations and warranties had been made as of the date of such 
         Loan or the date of issuance of such Letter of Credit. 
 
                  (b) No Default shall exist at the date of such Loan or the 
         date of issuance of such Letter of Credit. 
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                  (c) After giving effect to all Loans and Letters of Credit 
         requested to be issued on such day (i) the Facility Usage does not 
         exceed the Borrowing Base in effect on such day and (ii) the Facility 
         Usage does not exceed the Senior Debt Limit in effect on such day. 
 
                  (d) No Material Adverse Change shall have occurred to, and no 
         event or circumstance shall have occurred that could cause a Material 
         Adverse Change to Parent's Consolidated financial condition or 
         businesses or Borrower's financial condition or businesses since the 
         date of this Agreement. 
 
                  (e) Each Restricted Person shall have performed and complied 
         with all agreements and conditions required in the Loan Documents to be 
         performed or complied with by it on or prior to the date of such Loan 
         or the date of issuance of such Letter of Credit. 
 
                  (f) The making of such Loan or the issuance of such Letter of 
         Credit shall not be prohibited by any Law and shall not subject any 
         Lender or any LC Issuer to any penalty or other onerous condition under 
         or pursuant to any such Law. 
 
                  (g) Agent shall have received all documents and instruments 
         which Agent has then requested, in addition to those described in 
         Section 4.1 (including opinions of legal counsel for Restricted Persons 
         and Agent; corporate documents and records; documents evidencing 
         governmental authorizations, consents, approvals, licenses and 
         exemptions; and certificates of public officials and of officers and 
         representatives of Borrower and other Persons), as to (iii) the 
         accuracy and validity of or compliance with all representations, 
         warranties and covenants made by any Restricted Person in this 
         Agreement and the other Loan Documents, (iv) the satisfaction of all 
         conditions contained herein or therein, and (v) all other matters 
         pertaining hereto and thereto. All such additional documents and 
         instruments shall be satisfactory to Agent in form, substance and date. 
 
 
                   ARTICLE V - Representations and Warranties 
 
         To confirm each Bank Party's understanding concerning Restricted 
Persons and Restricted Persons' businesses, properties and obligations and to 
induce each Bank Party to enter into this Agreement and to extend credit 
hereunder, Parent and Borrower represents and warrants to each Bank Party that: 
 
         Section 5.1. No Default. No Restricted Person is in default in the 
performance of any of the covenants and agreements contained in any Loan 
Document. No event has occurred and is continuing which constitutes a Default. 
 
         Section 5.2. Organization and Good Standing. Each Restricted Person is 
duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the Laws of its 
jurisdiction of organization, having 
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all powers required to carry on its business and enter into and carry out the 
transactions contemplated hereby. Each Restricted Person is duly qualified, in 
good standing, and authorized to do business in all other jurisdictions within 
the United States wherein the character of the properties owned or held by it or 
the nature of the business transacted by it makes such qualification necessary. 
Each Restricted Person has taken all actions and procedures customarily taken in 
order to enter, for the purpose of conducting business or owning property, each 
jurisdiction outside the United States wherein the character of the properties 
owned or held by it or the nature of the business transacted by it makes such 
actions and procedures desirable. 
 
         Section 5.3. Authorization. Each Restricted Person has duly taken all 
action necessary to authorize the execution and delivery by it of the Loan 
Documents to which it is a party and to authorize the consummation of the 
transactions contemplated thereby and the performance of its obligations 
thereunder. Borrower is duly authorized to borrow funds hereunder. 
 
         Section 5.4. No Conflicts or Consents. The execution and delivery by 
the various Restricted Persons of the Loan Documents to which each is a party, 
the performance by each of its obligations under such Loan Documents, and the 
consummation of the transactions contemplated by the various Loan Documents, do 
not and will not (i) conflict with any provision of (1) any Law, (2) the 
organizational documents of any Restricted Person, or (3) any agreement, 
judgment, license, order or permit applicable to or binding upon any Restricted 
Person, (ii) result in the acceleration of any Indebtedness owed by any 
Restricted Person, (iii) result in or require the creation of any Lien upon any 
assets or properties of any Restricted Person, (iv) result in or require the 
creation of any guaranty by any Restricted Person of any Indebtedness of any 
other Person except for the guaranties listed in the Security Schedule or (v) 
violate the restrictions imposed by any of the Indentures. Except as expressly 
contemplated in the Loan Documents no consent, approval, authorization or order 
of, and no notice to or filing with, any Tribunal or third party is required in 
connection with the execution, delivery or performance by any Restricted Person 
of any Loan Document or to consummate any transactions contemplated by the Loan 
Documents. 
 
         Section 5.5. Enforceable Obligations. This Agreement is, and the other 
Loan Documents when duly executed and delivered will be, legal, valid and 
binding obligations of each Restricted Person which is a party hereto or 
thereto, enforceable in accordance with their terms except as such enforcement 
may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency or similar Laws of general application 
relating to the enforcement of creditors' rights. 
 
         Section 5.6. Initial Financial Statements. Borrower has heretofore 
delivered to each Bank Party true, correct and complete copies of the Initial 
Financial Statements. The Initial Financial Statements fairly present Parent's 
Consolidated financial position at the respective dates thereof and the 
Consolidated results of Parent's operations and Parent's Consolidated cash flows 
for the respective periods thereof. Since the date of the annual Initial 
Financial Statements no Material Adverse Change has occurred, except as 
reflected in the Disclosure Schedule. All Initial Financial Statements were 
prepared in accordance with GAAP. 
 
         Section 5.7. Other Obligations and Restrictions. No Restricted Person 
has any outstanding Liabilities of any kind (including contingent obligations, 
tax assessments, and 
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unusual forward or long-term commitments) which are, in the aggregate, material 
to such Restricted Person or material with respect to Restricted Persons' 
Consolidated financial condition and not shown in the Initial Financial 
Statements or disclosed in the Disclosure Schedule or a Disclosure Report. 
Except as shown in the Initial Financial Statements or disclosed in the 
Disclosure Schedule or a Disclosure Report, no Restricted Person is subject to 
or restricted by any franchise, contract, deed, charter restriction, or other 
instrument or restriction which could cause a Material Adverse Change. 
 
         Section 5.8. Full Disclosure. No certificate, statement or other 
information delivered herewith or heretofore by any Restricted Person to any 
Bank Party in connection with the negotiation of this Agreement or in connection 
with any transaction contemplated hereby contains any untrue statement of a 
material fact or omits to state any material fact known to any Restricted Person 
(other than industry-wide risks normally associated with the types of businesses 
conducted by Restricted Persons) necessary to make the statements contained 
herein or therein not misleading as of the date made or deemed made. There is no 
fact known to any Restricted Person (other than industry-wide risks normally 
associated with the types of businesses conducted by Restricted Persons) that 
has not been disclosed to each Bank Party in writing which could cause a 
Material Adverse Change. There are no statements or conclusions in any 
Engineering Report which are based upon or include misleading information or 
fail to take into account material information regarding the matters reported 
therein, it being understood that each Engineering Report is necessarily based 
upon professional opinions, estimates and projections and that no Restricted 
Person warrants that such opinions, estimates and projections will ultimately 
prove to have been accurate. Borrower has heretofore delivered to each Bank 
Party true, correct and complete copies of the Initial Engineering Report. 
 
         Section 5.9. Litigation. Except as disclosed in the Initial Financial 
Statements or in the Disclosure Schedule: (i) there are no actions, suits or 
legal, equitable, arbitrative or administrative proceedings pending, or to the 
knowledge of any Restricted Person threatened, against any Restricted Person 
before any Tribunal which could cause a Material Adverse Change, and (ii) there 
are no outstanding judgments, injunctions, writs, rulings or orders by any such 
Tribunal against any Restricted Person or any Restricted Person's directors or 
officers which could cause a Material Adverse Change. 
 
         Section 5.10. Labor Disputes and Acts of God. Except as disclosed in 
the Disclosure Schedule or a Disclosure Report, neither the business nor the 
properties of any Restricted Person has been affected by any fire, explosion, 
accident, strike, lockout or other labor dispute, drought, storm, hail, 
earthquake, embargo, act of God or of the public enemy or other casualty 
(whether or not covered by insurance), which could cause a Material Adverse 
Change. 
 
         Section 5.11. ERISA Plans and Liabilities. All currently existing ERISA 
Plans are listed in the Disclosure Schedule or a Disclosure Report. Except as 
disclosed in the Initial Financial Statements or in the Disclosure Schedule or a 
Disclosure Report, no Termination Event has occurred with respect to any ERISA 
Plan and all ERISA Affiliates are in compliance with ERISA in all material 
respects. No ERISA Affiliate is required to contribute to, or has any other 
absolute or contingent liability in respect of, any "multiemployer plan" as 
defined in Section 4001 of ERISA. Except as set forth in the Disclosure Schedule 
or a Disclosure Report: (i) no 
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"accumulated funding deficiency" (as defined in Section 412(a) of the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended) exists with respect to any ERISA Plan, whether 
or not waived by the Secretary of the Treasury or his delegate, and (ii) the 
current value of each ERISA Plan's benefits does not exceed the current value of 
such ERISA Plan's assets available for the payment of such benefits by more than 
$500,000. 
 
         Section 5.12. Environmental and Other Laws. Except as disclosed in the 
Disclosure Schedule or a Disclosure Report: (a) Restricted Persons are 
conducting their businesses in material compliance with all applicable Laws, 
including Environmental Laws, and have and are in compliance with all licenses 
and permits required under any such Laws; (b) none of the operations or 
properties of any Restricted Person is the subject of federal, state or local 
investigation evaluating whether any material remedial action is needed to 
respond to a release of any Hazardous Materials into the environment or to the 
improper storage or disposal (including storage or disposal at offsite 
locations) of any Hazardous Materials; (c) no Restricted Person (and to the best 
knowledge of Borrower, no other Person) has filed any notice under any Law 
indicating that any Restricted Person is responsible for the improper release 
into the environment, or the improper storage or disposal, of any material 
amount of any Hazardous Materials or that any Hazardous Materials have been 
improperly released, or are improperly stored or disposed of, upon any property 
of any Restricted Person; (d) no Restricted Person has transported or arranged 
for the transportation of any Hazardous Material to any location which is (i) 
listed on the National Priorities List under the Comprehensive Environmental 
Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980, as amended, listed for 
possible inclusion on such National Priorities List by the Environmental 
Protection Agency in its Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and 
Liability Information System List, or listed on any similar state list or (ii) 
the subject of federal, state or local enforcement actions or other 
investigations which may lead to claims against any Restricted Person for 
clean-up costs, remedial work, damages to natural resources or for personal 
injury claims (whether under Environmental Laws or otherwise); and (e) no 
Restricted Person otherwise has any known material contingent liability under 
any Environmental Laws or in connection with the release into the environment, 
or the storage or disposal, of any Hazardous Materials. 
 
         Section 5.13. Names and Places of Business. No Restricted Person has, 
during the preceding five years, had, been known by, or used any other trade or 
fictitious name, except as disclosed in the Disclosure Schedule. Except as 
otherwise indicated in the Disclosure Schedule or a Disclosure Report, the chief 
executive office and principal place of business of each Restricted Person are 
(and for the preceding five years have been) located at the address of Borrower 
set out in Section 10.3. Except as indicated in the Disclosure Schedule or a 
Disclosure Report, no Restricted Person has any other office or place of 
business. 
 
         Section 5.14. Borrower's Subsidiaries. Parent does not presently have 
any Subsidiary or own any stock in any other corporation or association except 
those listed in the Disclosure Schedule or a Disclosure Report. No Restricted 
Person is a member of any general or limited partnership, joint venture or 
association of any type whatsoever except those listed in the Disclosure 
Schedule or a Disclosure Report and except those associations, joint ventures or 
other relationships (a) which are established pursuant to a standard form 
operating agreement or similar agreement or which are partnerships for purposes 
of federal income taxation only, (b) 
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which are not corporations or partnerships (or subject to the Uniform 
Partnership Act) under applicable state Law, and (c) whose businesses are 
limited to the exploration, development and operation of oil, gas or mineral 
properties and interests owned directly by the parties in such associations, 
joint ventures or relationships. Except as otherwise revealed in a Disclosure 
Report, Borrower owns, directly or indirectly, the equity interest in each of 
its Subsidiaries which is indicated in the Disclosure Schedule. 
 
         Section 5.15. Title to Properties; Licenses. Each Restricted Person has 
good and defensible title to all of its material properties and assets, free and 
clear of all Liens other than Permitted Liens and of all impediments to the use 
of such properties and assets in such Restricted Person's business, except that 
no representation or warranty is made with respect to any oil, gas or mineral 
property or interest to which no proved oil or gas reserves are properly 
attributed. Other than Liens permitted under Section 7.2, each Restricted Person 
will respectively own in the aggregate, in all material respects, the net 
interests in production attributable to the wells and units evaluated in the 
Initial Engineering Reports. The ownership of such Properties shall not in the 
aggregate in any material respect obligate such Restricted Person to bear the 
costs and expenses relating to the maintenance, development and operations of 
such Properties in an amount materially in excess of the working interest of 
such Properties set forth in the Initial Engineering Reports. Each Restricted 
Person has paid all royalties payable under the oil and gas leases to which it 
is operator, except those contested in accordance with the terms of the 
applicable joint operating agreement or otherwise contested in good faith by 
appropriate proceedings. Upon delivery of each Engineering Report furnished to 
the Lenders pursuant to Section 6.2, the statements made in the preceding 
sentences of this Section 5.15 shall be true with respect to such Engineering 
Reports. All information contained in the Initial Engineering Reports is true 
and correct in all material respects as of the date thereof and as of the date 
of the first Loan hereunder. Each Restricted Person possesses all licenses, 
permits, franchises, patents, copyrights, trademarks and trade names, and other 
intellectual property (or otherwise possesses the right to use such intellectual 
property without violation of the rights of any other Person) which are 
necessary to carry out its business as presently conducted and as presently 
proposed to be conducted hereafter, and no Restricted Person is in violation in 
any material respect of the terms under which it possesses such intellectual 
property or the right to use such intellectual property. 
 
         Section 5.16. Government Regulation. Neither Borrower nor any other 
Restricted Person owing Obligations is subject to regulation under the Public 
Utility Holding Company Act of 1935, the Federal Power Act, the Investment 
Company Act of 1940 (as any of the preceding acts have been amended) or any 
other Law which regulates the incurring by such Person of Indebtedness, 
including Laws relating to common contract carriers or the sale of electricity, 
gas, steam, water or other public utility services. 
 
         Section 5.17. Insider. No Restricted Person, nor any Person having 
"control" (as that term is defined in 12 U.S.C. Section 375b(9) or in 
regulations promulgated pursuant thereto) of any Restricted Person, is a 
"director" or an "executive officer" or "principal shareholder" (as those terms 
are defined in 12 U.S.C. Section 375b(8) or (9) or in regulations promulgated 
pursuant thereto) of any Bank Party, of a bank holding company of which any Bank 
Party is a Subsidiary or of any Subsidiary of a bank holding company of which 
any Bank Party is a Subsidiary. 
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         Section 5.18. Officers, Directors and Shareholders. The officers and 
directors of Parent are those persons disclosed in the definitive proxy 
statement prepared by Parent and filed with the SEC in connection with Parent's 
most recent annual meeting, copies of which proxy statement have been previously 
furnished in connection with the negotiation hereof. 
 
         Section 5.19. Solvency. Upon giving effect to the issuance of the 
Notes, the execution of the Loan Documents by Borrower and the consummation of 
the transactions contemplated hereby, each Restricted Person will be "solvent" 
on the date hereof (as such term is used in applicable bankruptcy, liquidation, 
receivership, insolvency or similar Laws). Each Restricted Person's capital is 
adequate for the businesses in which such Restricted Person is engaged and 
intends to be engaged. No Restricted Person has incurred (whether hereby or 
otherwise), nor does any Restricted Person intend to incur or believe that it 
will incur, debts which will be beyond its ability to pay as such debts mature. 
 
                 ARTICLE VI - Affirmative Covenants of Borrower 
 
         To conform with the terms and conditions under which each Bank Party is 
willing to have credit outstanding to Borrower, and to induce each Bank Party to 
enter into this Agreement and extend credit hereunder, Parent, Borrower and each 
Guarantor warrants, covenants and agrees that until the full and final payment 
of the Obligations and the termination of this Agreement, unless Majority 
Lenders have previously agreed otherwise: 
 
         Section 6.1. Payment and Performance. Each Restricted Person will pay 
all amounts due under the Loan Documents in accordance with the terms thereof 
and will observe, perform and comply with every covenant, term and condition 
expressed or implied in the Loan Documents. Borrower will cause each other 
Restricted Person to observe, perform and comply with every such term, covenant 
and condition. 
 
         Section 6.2. Books, Financial Statements and Reports. Each Restricted 
Person will at all times maintain full and accurate books of account and 
records. Parent will maintain and will cause its Subsidiaries to maintain a 
standard system of accounting, will maintain its Fiscal Year, and will furnish 
the following statements and reports to each Bank Party at Parent's expense: 
 
                  (a) As soon as available, and in any event within ninety (90) 
         days after the end of each Fiscal Year, complete Consolidated and 
         consolidating financial statements of Parent together with all notes 
         thereto, prepared in reasonable detail in accordance with GAAP, 
         together with an unqualified opinion, based on an audit using generally 
         accepted auditing standards, by Price Waterhouse Coopers or another of 
         the five nationally recognized firms of, or other independent certified 
         public accountants selected by Borrower and acceptable to Agent, 
         stating that such Consolidated financial statements have been so 
         prepared. These financial statements shall contain a Consolidated and 
         consolidating balance sheet as of the end of such Fiscal Year and 
         Consolidated and consolidating statements of earnings, of cash flows, 
         and of changes in owners' equity for such Fiscal Year, each setting 
         forth in comparative form the corresponding figures for the preceding 
         Fiscal Year. In addition, within ninety (90) days after the end of each 
         Fiscal 
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         Year Borrower will furnish a report signed by such accountants (i) 
         stating that they have read this Agreement, (ii) containing 
         calculations showing compliance (or non-compliance) at the end of such 
         Fiscal Year with the requirements of Sections 7.11 and 7.12, and (iii) 
         further stating that in making their examination and reporting on the 
         Consolidated financial statements described above they did not conclude 
         that any Default existed at the end of such Fiscal Year or at the time 
         of their report, or, if they did conclude that a Default existed, 
         specifying its nature and period of existence. 
 
                  (b) As soon as available, and in any event within forty-five 
         (45) days after the end of each Fiscal Quarter, Parent's Consolidated 
         and consolidating balance sheet as of the end of such Fiscal Quarter 
         and Consolidated and consolidating statements of Parent's earnings and 
         cash flows for the period from the beginning of the then current Fiscal 
         Year to the end of such Fiscal Quarter, all in reasonable detail and 
         prepared in accordance with GAAP, subject to changes resulting from 
         normal year-end adjustments. In addition Borrower will, together with 
         each such set of financial statements and each set of financial 
         statements furnished under subsection (a) of this section, furnish a 
         certificate in the form of Exhibit D signed by the chief financial 
         officer or treasurer of Parent stating that such financial statements 
         are accurate and complete (subject to normal year-end adjustments), 
         stating that he has reviewed the Loan Documents, containing 
         calculations showing compliance (or non-compliance) at the end of such 
         Fiscal Quarter with the requirements of Sections 7.11 and 7.12 and 
         stating that no Default exists at the end of such Fiscal Quarter or at 
         the time of such certificate or specifying the nature and period of 
         existence of any such Default. 
 
                  (c) Promptly upon their becoming available, copies of all 
         financial statements, reports, notices and proxy statements sent by any 
         Restricted Person to its stockholders and all registration statements, 
         periodic reports and other statements and schedules filed by any 
         Restricted Person with any securities exchange, the SEC or any similar 
         governmental authority. 
 
                  (d) By April 15 of each year, an Engineering Report prepared 
         by independent petroleum engineers chosen by Borrower and acceptable to 
         Majority Lenders, concerning all oil and gas properties and interests 
         owned by any Restricted Person which are located in or offshore of the 
         United States and which have attributable to them proved oil or gas 
         reserves. This report shall be satisfactory to Agent, shall contain 
         sufficient information to enable Borrower to meet the reporting 
         requirements concerning oil and gas reserves contained in Regulations 
         S-K and S-X promulgated by the SEC, shall take into account any 
         "over-produced" status under gas balancing arrangements, and shall 
         contain information and analysis comparable in scope to that contained 
         in the Initial Engineering Report. Accompanying such report, Borrower 
         shall deliver a report reflecting, since the date reflected in the most 
         recent report delivered pursuant to this clause (d) or pursuant to the 
         following clause (e), the following (i) all property sales and pending 
         property sales identifying the property and sale price therefor, (ii) 
         all property purchases and pending property purchases identifying the 
         property and the purchase price therefor, and (iii) additional changes 
         in properties in each category from such previous report (i.e.: proven 
         undeveloped, proven developed non-producing, or proven producing). This 
         report shall 
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         distinguish (or shall be delivered together with a certificate from an 
         appropriate officer of Borrower which distinguishes) those properties 
         treated in the report which are Collateral from those properties 
         treated in the report which are not Collateral. 
 
                  (e) By September 15 of each year, and promptly following 
         notice of an additional Evaluation Date, an engineering report prepared 
         as of the preceding July 1 (or the first day of the second preceding 
         calendar month in the case of an additional redetermination) by 
         petroleum engineers who are employees of Borrower (or Chesapeake 
         Operating Inc. under the management services agreement), together with 
         an accompanying report on property sales, property purchases and 
         changes in categories, both in the same form and scope as the reports 
         in (d) above. 
 
                  (f) As soon as available, and in any event within ninety (90) 
         days after the end of each Fiscal Year, a business and financial plan 
         for Restricted Persons (in form reasonably satisfactory to Agent), 
         prepared by the chief financial officer thereof, setting forth for the 
         first year thereof, quarterly financial projections and budgets for 
         Restricted Persons, and thereafter yearly financial projections and 
         budgets during the Commitment Period. 
 
                  (g) As soon as available, and in any event within sixty (60) 
         days after the end of each month, a report describing by lease or unit 
         the gross volume of production and sales attributable to production 
         during such month from the properties described in subsection (d) above 
         and describing the related severance taxes, other taxes, leasehold 
         operating expenses and capital costs attributable thereto and incurred 
         during such month. 
 
                  (h) As soon as available, and in any event within sixty (60) 
         days after the end of each Fiscal Quarter, a report setting forth 
         volumes, prices and margins for all marketing activities of Borrower 
         and the other Restricted Persons and a report of all Hedging Contracts 
         in such detail as Agent may request. 
 
         Section 6.3. Other Information and Inspections. Each Restricted Person 
will furnish to each Bank Party any information which Agent may from time to 
time request in writing concerning any covenant, provision or condition of the 
Loan Documents or any matter in connection with Restricted Persons' businesses 
and operations. Each Restricted Person will permit representatives appointed by 
Agent (including independent accountants, auditors, agents, attorneys, 
appraisers and any other Persons) to visit and inspect during normal business 
hours any of such Restricted Person's property, including its books of account, 
other books and records, and any facilities or other business assets, and to 
make extra copies therefrom and photocopies and photographs thereof, and to 
write down and record any information such representatives obtain, and each 
Restricted Person shall permit Agent or its representatives to investigate and 
verify the accuracy of the information furnished to Agent or any Lender in 
connection with the Loan Documents and to discuss all such matters with its 
officers, employees and representatives. 
 
         Section 6.4. Notice of Material Events and Change of Address. Borrower 
will promptly notify each Bank Party in writing, stating that such notice is 
being given pursuant to this Agreement, of: 
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                  (a) the occurrence of any Material Adverse Change, 
 
                  (b) the occurrence of any Default, 
 
                  (c) the acceleration of the maturity of any Indebtedness owed 
         by any Restricted Person or of any default by any Restricted Person 
         under any indenture, mortgage, agreement, contract or other instrument 
         to which any of them is a party or by which any of them or any of their 
         properties is bound, if such acceleration or default could cause a 
         Material Adverse Change, 
 
                  (d) the occurrence of any Termination Event, 
 
                  (e) any claim of $1,000,000 or more, any notice of potential 
         liability under any Environmental Laws which might exceed such amount, 
         or any other material adverse claim asserted against any Restricted 
         Person or with respect to any Restricted Person's properties, and 
 
                  (f) the filing of any suit or proceeding against any 
         Restricted Person in which an adverse decision could cause a Material 
         Adverse Change. 
 
Upon the occurrence of any of the foregoing Borrower and Guarantors will take 
all necessary or appropriate steps to remedy promptly any such Material Adverse 
Change, Default, acceleration, default or Termination Event, to protect against 
any such adverse claim, to defend any such suit or proceeding, and to resolve 
all controversies on account of any of the foregoing. Borrower will also notify 
Agent and Agent's counsel in writing at least twenty Business Days prior to the 
date that Borrower or any Guarantor changes its name or the location of its 
chief executive office or principal place of business or the place where it 
keeps its books and records concerning the Collateral, furnishing with such 
notice any necessary financing statement amendments or requesting Agent and its 
counsel to prepare the same. 
 
         Section 6.5.  Maintenance of Properties. 
 
         (a) Each Restricted Person will (i) do or cause to be done all things 
reasonably necessary to preserve and keep in good repair, working order and 
efficiency (ordinary wear and tear excepted) all of the properties owned by each 
Restricted Person, including without limitation, all equipment, machinery and 
facilities, and (ii) make all the reasonably necessary repairs, renewals and 
replacements so that at all times the state and condition of the properties 
owned by each Restricted Person will be fully preserved and maintained, except 
to the extent a portion of such properties are oil and gas properties no longer 
capable of producing hydrocarbons in economically reasonable amounts. 
 
         (b) Each Restricted Person will promptly pay and discharge or cause to 
be paid and discharged all delay rentals, royalties, expenses and indebtedness 
accruing under, and perform or cause to be performed each and every act, matter 
or thing required by, each and all of the assignments, deeds, leases, 
sub-leases, contracts and agreements affecting its interests in its 
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properties and will do all other things necessary to keep unimpaired each 
Restricted Person's rights with respect thereto and prevent any forfeiture 
thereof or a default thereunder, except to the extent a portion of oil and gas 
properties is no longer capable of producing hydrocarbons in economically 
reasonable amounts. 
 
         (c) Each Restricted Person will operate its properties or cause or use 
commercially reasonably efforts to cause such properties to be operated in a 
careful and efficient manner in accordance with the practices of the industry 
and in compliance with all applicable contracts and agreements and in compliance 
in all material respects with all laws. 
 
         Section 6.6. Maintenance of Existence and Qualifications. Each 
Restricted Person will maintain and preserve its existence and its rights and 
franchises in full force and effect and will qualify to do business in all 
states or jurisdictions where required by applicable Law, except (i) for any 
Restricted Person which ceases to exist as a result of a merger, consolidation 
or other transaction permitted under Section 7.4 or (ii) where the failure so to 
qualify will not cause a Material Adverse Change. 
 
         Section 6.7. Payment of Trade Liabilities, Taxes, etc. Each Restricted 
Person will (a) timely file all required tax returns; (b) timely pay all taxes, 
assessments, and other governmental charges or levies imposed upon it or upon 
its income, profits or property; (c) within one hundred twenty (120) days after 
the original invoice or billing date therefor pay all Liabilities owed by it on 
ordinary trade terms to vendors, suppliers and other Persons providing goods and 
services used by it in the ordinary course of its business; (d) pay and 
discharge when due all other Liabilities now or hereafter owed by it; and (e) 
maintain appropriate accruals and reserves for all of the foregoing in 
accordance with GAAP. Each Restricted Person may, however, delay paying or 
discharging any of the foregoing so long as it is in good faith contesting the 
validity thereof by appropriate proceedings and has set aside on its books 
adequate reserves therefor. 
 
         Section 6.8. Insurance. Each Restricted Person will keep or cause to be 
kept insured by financially sound and reputable insurers its property in 
accordance with the Insurance Schedule. Borrower will maintain the additional 
insurance coverage as described in the respective Security Documents. Upon 
demand by Agent any insurance policies covering Collateral shall be endorsed (a) 
to provide for payment of losses to Agent as its interests may appear, (b) to 
provide that such policies may not be canceled or reduced or affected in any 
material manner for any reason without fifteen days prior notice to Agent, (c) 
to provide for any other matters specified in any applicable Security Document 
or which Agent may reasonably require; and (d) to provide for insurance against 
fire, casualty and any other hazards normally insured against, in the amount of 
the full value (less a reasonable deductible not to exceed amounts customary in 
the industry for similarly situated businesses and properties) of the property 
insured. Each Restricted Person shall at all times maintain insurance against 
its liability for injury to persons or property in accordance with the Insurance 
Schedule, which insurance shall be by financially sound and reputable insurers. 
Without limiting the foregoing, each Restricted Person shall at all times 
maintain liability insurance in accordance with the Insurance Schedule. 
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         Section 6.9. Performance on Borrower's Behalf. If any Restricted Person 
fails to pay any taxes, insurance premiums, expenses, attorneys' fees or other 
amounts it is required to pay under any Loan Document, Agent may pay the same. 
Borrower shall immediately reimburse Agent for any such payments and each amount 
paid by Agent shall constitute an Obligation owed hereunder which is due and 
payable on the date such amount is paid by Agent. 
 
         Section 6.10. Interest. Borrower hereby promises to each Bank Party to 
pay interest at the Default Rate on all Obligations (including Obligations to 
pay fees or to reimburse or indemnify any Bank Party) which Borrower has in this 
Agreement promised to pay to such Bank Party and which are not paid when due. 
Such interest shall accrue from the date such Obligations become due until they 
are paid. 
 
         Section 6.11. Compliance with Agreements and Law. Each Restricted 
Person will perform all material obligations it is required to perform under the 
terms of each indenture, mortgage, deed of trust, security agreement, lease, 
franchise, agreement, contract or other instrument or obligation to which it is 
a party or by which it or any of its properties is bound. Each Restricted Person 
will conduct its business and affairs in compliance with all Laws applicable 
thereto. 
 
         Section 6.12. Environmental Matters; Environmental Reviews. 
 
         (a) Each Restricted Person will comply in all material respects with 
all Environmental Laws now or hereafter applicable to such Restricted Person, as 
well as all contractual obligations and agreements with respect to environmental 
remediation or other environmental matters and shall obtain, at or prior to the 
time required by applicable Environmental Laws, all environmental, health and 
safety permits, licenses and other authorizations necessary for its operations 
and will maintain such authorizations in full force and effect. 
 
         (b) Each Restricted Person will promptly furnish to Agent all written 
notices of violation, orders, claims, citations, complaints, penalty 
assessments, suits or other proceedings received by any Restricted Person, or of 
which it has notice, pending or threatened against any Restricted Person, by any 
governmental authority with respect to any alleged violation of or 
non-compliance in any material respect with any Environmental Laws or any 
permits, licenses or authorizations in connection with its ownership or use of 
its properties or the operation of its business. 
 
         (c) Each Restricted Person will promptly furnish to Agent all requests 
for information, notices of claim, demand letters, and other notifications, 
received by any Restricted Person in connection with its ownership or use of its 
properties or the conduct of its business, relating to potential responsibility 
which could if adversely determined result in fines or liability of a material 
amount with respect to any investigation or clean-up of Hazardous Material at 
any location. 
 
         Section 6.13. Evidence of Compliance. Each Restricted Person will 
furnish to each Bank Party at such Restricted Person's or Borrower's expense all 
evidence which Agent from time to 
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time reasonably requests in writing as to the accuracy and validity of or 
compliance with all representations, warranties and covenants made by any 
Restricted Person in the Loan Documents, the satisfaction of all conditions 
contained therein, and all other matters pertaining thereto. 
 
         Section 6.14. Agreement to Deliver Security Documents. Borrower agrees 
to deliver and to cause each other Restricted Person to deliver, to further 
secure the Obligations whenever requested by Agent in its sole and absolute 
discretion, deeds of trust, mortgages, chattel mortgages, security agreements, 
financing statements and other Security Documents in form and substance 
satisfactory to Agent for the purpose of granting, confirming, and perfecting 
first and prior liens or security interests in any properties now owned or 
hereafter acquired by any Restricted Person which are Proved Developed 
Properties, as that term is defined in the `96 Indenture and the `98 Indenture. 
Without limiting the foregoing, Borrower also agrees to deliver deeds of trust, 
mortgages, chattel mortgages, security agreements, financing statements and 
other Security Documents in form and substance satisfactory to Agent for the 
purpose of granting, confirming, and perfecting first and prior liens or 
security interests on Proved Developed Properties (as that term is defined in 
the '96 Indenture and the '98 Indenture) owned by Borrower which have a value 
(determined by Agent, by the application of a 10% discount factor to determine 
the net present value of projected future net revenues attributable to the 
portion of reserves properly categorized as "Producing" under the Definitions 
for Oil and Gas Reserves promulgated by the Society of Petroleum Engineers (or 
any generally recognized successor), as of the most recent Evaluation Date) of 
at least 300% of the Borrowing Base. Borrower also agrees to deliver, whenever 
requested by Agent in its sole and absolute discretion, favorable title opinions 
from legal counsel acceptable to Agent with respect to any Restricted Person's 
properties and interests designated by Agent, based upon abstract or record 
examinations to dates acceptable to Agent and (i) stating that such Restricted 
Person has good and defensible title to such properties and interests, free and 
clear of all Liens other than Permitted Liens, (ii) confirming that such 
properties and interests are subject to Security Documents securing the 
Obligations that constitute and create legal, valid and duly perfected first 
deed of trust or mortgage liens in such properties and interests and first 
priority assignments of and security interests in the oil and gas attributable 
to such properties and interests and the proceeds thereof, and (iii) covering 
such other matters as Agent may request. Without limiting the foregoing, within 
ten (10) days following the date of this Agreement, Borrower shall execute and 
deliver to Agent Security Documents in form and substance satisfactory to Agent, 
granting to Agent first perfected Liens on and in the properties described on 
Schedule 5 attached hereto. 
 
         Section 6.15. Perfection and Protection of Security Interests and 
Liens. Borrower will from time to time deliver, and will cause each other 
Restricted Person from time to time to deliver, to Agent any financing 
statements, continuation statements, extension agreements and other documents, 
properly completed and executed (and acknowledged when required) by Restricted 
Persons in form and substance satisfactory to Agent, which Agent requests for 
the purpose of perfecting, confirming, or protecting any Liens or other rights 
in Collateral securing any Obligations. 
 
         Section 6.16. Bank Accounts; Offset. To secure the repayment of the 
Obligations Borrower hereby grants to each Bank Party a security interest, a 
lien, and a right of offset, each of 
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which shall be in addition to all other interests, liens, and rights of any Bank 
Party at common law, under the Loan Documents, or otherwise, and each of which 
shall be upon and against (a) any and all moneys, securities or other property 
(and the proceeds therefrom) of Borrower now or hereafter held or received by or 
in transit to any Bank Party from or for the account of Borrower, whether for 
safekeeping, custody, pledge, transmission, collection or otherwise, (b) any and 
all deposits (general or special, time or demand, provisional or final) of 
Borrower with any Bank Party, and (c) any other credits and claims of Borrower 
at any time existing against any Bank Party, including claims under certificates 
of deposit. At any time and from time to time after the occurrence of any 
Default, each Bank Party is hereby authorized to foreclose upon, or to offset 
against the Obligations then due and payable (in either case without notice to 
Borrower), any and all items hereinabove referred to. The remedies of 
foreclosure and offset are separate and cumulative, and either may be exercised 
independently of the other without regard to procedures or restrictions 
applicable to the other. 
 
         Section 6.17. Guaranties of Borrower's Subsidiaries. Each Subsidiary of 
Parent other than the Borrower, Chesapeake Marketing, Chesapeake Canada, and 
Chesapeake Acquisitions, Ltd., an Alberta corporation (the "Required 
Guarantors") now existing or created, acquired or coming into existence after 
the date hereof shall, promptly upon request by Agent, execute and deliver to 
Agent an absolute and unconditional guaranty of the timely repayment of the 
Obligations and the due and punctual performance of the obligations of Borrower 
hereunder, which guaranty shall be satisfactory to Agent in form and substance. 
Parent will cause each of the Required Guarantors to deliver to Agent, 
simultaneously with its delivery of such a guaranty, written evidence 
satisfactory to Agent and its counsel that such Required Guarantors has taken 
all corporate or partnership action necessary to duly approve and authorize its 
execution, delivery and performance of such guaranty and any other documents 
which it is required to execute. 
 
         Section 6.18. Production Proceeds. Notwithstanding that, by the terms 
of the various Security Documents, Restricted Persons are and will be assigning 
to Agent and Lenders all of the "Production Proceeds" (as defined therein) 
accruing to the property covered thereby, so long as no Default has occurred 
Restricted Persons may continue to receive from the purchasers of production all 
such Production Proceeds, subject, however, to the Liens created under the 
Security Documents, which Liens are hereby affirmed and ratified. Upon the 
occurrence of a Default, Agent and Lenders may exercise all rights and remedies 
granted under the Security Documents, including the right to obtain possession 
of all Production Proceeds then held by Restricted Persons or to receive 
directly from the purchasers of production all other Production Proceeds. In no 
case shall any failure, whether purposed or inadvertent, by Agent or Lenders to 
collect directly any such Production Proceeds constitute in any way a waiver, 
remission or release of any of their rights under the Security Documents, nor 
shall any release of any Production Proceeds by Agent or Lenders to Restricted 
Persons constitute a waiver, remission, or release of any other Production 
Proceeds or of any rights of Agent or Lenders to collect other Production 
Proceeds thereafter. 
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                  ARTICLE VII - Negative Covenants of Borrower 
 
         To conform with the terms and conditions under which each Bank Party is 
willing to have credit outstanding to Borrower, and to induce each Bank Party to 
enter into this Agreement and make the Loans, Parent, Borrower and each 
Guarantor warrants, covenants and agrees that until the full and final payment 
of the Obligations and the termination of this Agreement, unless Majority 
Lenders have previously agreed otherwise: 
 
         Section 7.1. Indebtedness. No Restricted Person will in any manner owe 
or be liable for Indebtedness except: 
 
         (a) the Obligations. 
 
         (b) obligations under operating leases entered into in the ordinary 
course of such Restricted Person's business in arm's length transactions at 
competitive market rates under competitive terms and conditions in all respects, 
provided that the obligations required to be paid in any Fiscal Year under any 
such operating leases do not in the aggregate exceed $500,000. 
 
         (c) unsecured Indebtedness among the Restricted Persons arising in the 
ordinary course of business. 
 
         (d) Indebtedness outstanding under the instruments and agreements 
described on the Disclosure Schedule, including any renewals or extensions of 
such Liabilities which (i) extend the maturity date thereof but not increase the 
principal amount thereof, (ii) provide for an interest rate at then prevailing 
market rates, and (iii) provide no additional restrictive covenants, negative 
covenants, defaults, or events of default than contained in the original of such 
documents. 
 
         (e) Indebtedness arising under Hedging Contracts permitted under 
Section 7.3. 
 
         (f) Indebtedness of Chesapeake Marketing, in respect of Letters of 
Credit issued for the Account of Chesapeake Marketing for use in the ordinary 
course of its marketing business in an aggregate principal amount at any one 
time outstanding not to exceed $10,000,000. 
 
         (g) Liabilities with respect to accrued revenues and royalties due to 
others during the period the payment thereof has been properly suspended in 
accordance with applicable agreements and applicable law. 
 
         Section 7.2. Limitation on Liens. No Restricted Person will create, 
assume or permit to exist any Lien upon any of the properties or assets which it 
now owns or hereafter acquires, except, to the extent not otherwise forbidden by 
the Security Documents the following ("Permitted Liens"): 
 
         (a) Liens which secure Obligations only. 
 
         (b) statutory Liens for taxes, statutory or contractual mechanics' and 
materialmen's Liens incurred in the ordinary course of business, and other 
similar Liens incurred in the ordinary course of business, provided such Liens 
do not secure Indebtedness and secure only obligations which are not delinquent 
or which are being contested as provided in Section 6.7. 
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         (c) as to property which is Collateral, any Liens expressly permitted 
to encumber such Collateral under any Security Document covering such 
Collateral. 
 
         (d) margins consisting of letters of credit or cash required to be put 
up pursuant to any Hedging Contract not to exceed at any time the actual 
liquidation liability of the Restricted Person thereon. 
 
         (e) Liens existing on the date hereof and listed on the Disclosure 
Schedule. 
 
         (f) Liens on accounts receivable and cash of Chesapeake Marketing 
securing Indebtedness permitted by Section 7.1(f). 
 
         Section 7.3. Hedging Contracts. No Restricted Person will be a party to 
or in any manner be liable on any Hedging Contract, except: 
 
         (a) Hedging Contracts entered into with the purpose and effect of 
fixing prices on oil or gas expected to be produced by Restricted Persons, 
provided that at all times: (1) no such contract fixes a price for a term of 
more than eighteen (18) months; (2) the aggregate monthly production covered by 
all such contracts (determined, in the case of contracts that are not settled on 
a monthly basis, by a monthly proration acceptable to Agent) for any single 
month does not in the aggregate exceed seventy-five percent (75%) of Restricted 
Persons' aggregate Projected Oil and Gas Production anticipated to be sold in 
the ordinary course of Restricted Persons' businesses for such month, and (3) 
each such contract is with a counterparty or has a guarantor of the obligation 
of the counterparty who (unless such counterparty is a Bank Party or one of its 
Affiliates) at the time the contract is made has long-term obligations rated AA 
or Aa2 or better, respectively, by either Rating Agency or is an investment 
grade-rated industry participant. As used in this subsection, the term 
"Projected Oil and Gas Production" means the projected production of oil or gas 
(measured by volume unit or BTU equivalent, not sales price) for the term of the 
contracts or a particular month, as applicable, from properties and interests 
owned by any Restricted Person which are located in or offshore of the United 
States and which have attributable to them proved oil or gas reserves, as such 
production is projected in the most recent report delivered pursuant to Section 
6.2(d), after deducting projected production from any properties or interests 
sold or under contract for sale that had been included in such report and after 
adding projected production from any properties or interests that had not been 
reflected in such report but that are reflected in a separate or supplemental 
reports meeting the requirements of such Section 6.3(d) above and otherwise are 
satisfactory to Agent. 
 
         (b) Hedging Contracts entered into by a Restricted Person with the 
purpose and effect of (i) fixing interest rates on a principal amount of 
indebtedness of such Restricted Person that is accruing interest at a variable 
rate, provided that the aggregate notional amount of such contracts never 
exceeds seventy-five percent (75%) of the anticipated outstanding principal 
balance of the indebtedness to be hedged by such contracts or an average of such 
principal balances calculated using a generally accepted method of matching 
interest swap contracts to declining principal balances, and the floating rate 
index of each such contract generally matches the index used to determine the 
floating rates of interest on the corresponding indebtedness to be hedged by 
such 
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contract, or (ii) contracting for variable interest rates on a principal amount 
of indebtedness or liquidation preference on preferred stock of such Restricted 
Person that is accruing interest or dividends at a fixed rate, provided that the 
aggregate notional amount of such contracts never exceeds the amount of the then 
liquidation preference on the Parent's 7% Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock 
(to the extent issued prior to the date hereof); and the fixed rate index of 
each such contract generally matches the interest on the corresponding 
obligation to be hedged by such contract; provided further that in either (i) or 
(ii) each such contract is with a counterparty or has a guarantor of the 
obligation of the counterparty who (unless such counterparty is a Bank Party or 
one of its Affiliates) at the time the contract is made has long-term 
obligations rated AA or Aa2 or better, respectively, by either Rating Agency. 
 
         Section 7.4. Limitation on Mergers, Issuances of Securities. Except as 
expressly provided in this subsection no Restricted Person will merge or 
consolidate with or into any other business entity. Any Subsidiary of Parent 
may, however, be merged into or consolidated with (i) another Subsidiary of 
Parent (other than Borrower), so long as a Guarantor is the surviving business 
entity, (ii) Borrower, so long as Borrower is the surviving business entity, or 
(iii) Parent, so long as Parent is the surviving business entity and Borrower 
shall not be a party to such merger or consolidation. Parent will not issue any 
securities or any option, warrant or other right to acquire shares or other 
securities other than (a) shares of its common stock and any options or warrants 
giving the holders thereof only the right to acquire such shares and (b) the 
Parent's 7% Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock outstanding on the date of 
this Agreement. No Subsidiary of Parent will issue any additional shares of its 
capital stock or other securities or any options, warrants or other rights to 
acquire such additional shares or other securities except to Parent and only to 
the extent not otherwise forbidden under the terms hereof. No Subsidiary of 
Borrower which is a partnership will allow any diminution of Borrower's interest 
(direct or indirect) therein. 
 
         Section 7.5. Limitation on Sales of Property. No Restricted Person will 
sell, transfer, lease, exchange, alienate or dispose of any of its material 
assets or properties or any material interest therein except, to the extent not 
otherwise forbidden under the Security Documents: 
 
         (a) equipment which is worthless or obsolete or which is replaced by 
equipment of equal suitability and value. 
 
         (b) inventory (including oil and gas sold as produced and seismic data) 
which is sold in the ordinary course of business on ordinary trade terms. 
 
         (c) interests in oil and gas properties, or portions thereof, to which 
no proved reserves of oil, gas or other liquid or gaseous hydrocarbons are 
properly attributed. 
 
         (d) other property which is sold for fair consideration to a Person who 
is not an Affiliate not to exceed, in the aggregate with respect to all sales of 
property after the date of this Agreement, the amount of $100,000,000; provided 
that to the extent the aggregate net proceeds of all such sales after the date 
of this Agreement exceeds $25,000,000 (i) so long as no Default or Event of 
Default shall have occurred and be continuing, the amount of such excess shall 
be placed in a segregated account (and, in the case of proceeds of Proved 
Developed Properties as 
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that term is defined in the `96 Indenture and the `98 Indenture, subject to a 
perfected, first-priority Lien to secure the Obligations) and within four months 
following the receipt of such proceeds by the Restricted Person, shall be either 
applied to permanently repay outstanding Indebtedness of any Restricted Person 
or to pay the purchase price of proved oil and gas properties acquired by a 
Restricted Person or to pay development costs with respect to proved oil and gas 
properties then owned by a Restricted Person, or (ii) if a Default or Event of 
Default shall have occurred and be continuing, the amount of such excess shall 
be applied to repay the Obligations and the Borrowing Base shall be reduced by 
the amount so applied; provided however no such sale shall include Collateral 
unless, in connection with such sale, the Borrowing Base has been redetermined 
by Required Lenders pursuant to Section 2.9 giving effect to such transaction 
and the Facility Usage will not exceed such Borrowing Base after giving effect 
to such transaction. The value of sales under this clause shall be the greater 
of the sale price or the discounted present value of the projected future net 
revenues (at 10% discount rate) reflected in the most recently delivered 
Engineering Report under Section 6.2. Any sale of property, other than as 
provided above, shall be subject to the prior written approval of Majority 
Lenders, in their sole discretion, which approval may be conditioned upon a 
redetermination and reduction of the Borrowing Base after giving effect to such 
sale. 
 
No Restricted Person will sell, transfer or otherwise dispose of capital stock 
of any of Parent's Subsidiaries. No Restricted Person will discount, sell, 
pledge or assign any notes payable to it, accounts receivable or future income 
except to the extent expressly permitted under the Loan Documents. 
 
         Section 7.6. Limitation on Dividends and Redemptions. No Restricted 
Person will declare or pay any dividends on, or make any other distribution in 
respect of, any class of its capital stock or any partnership or other interest 
in it, nor will any Restricted Person directly or indirectly make any capital 
contribution to or purchase, redeem, acquire or retire any shares of the capital 
stock of or partnership interests in any Restricted Person (whether such 
interests are now or hereafter issued, outstanding or created), or cause or 
permit any reduction or retirement of the capital stock of any Restricted 
Person, except as expressly provided in this section. Dividends, distributions, 
contributions, purchases, redemptions, acquisitions, retirements or reductions 
may be made by any Restricted Person to another Restricted Person. No other 
dividends of any type to any Person shall be paid without the prior written 
consent of the Agent and Required Lenders. 
 
         Section 7.7. Limitation on Investments and New Businesses. No 
Restricted Person will (i) make any expenditure or commitment or incur any 
obligation or enter into or engage in any transaction except in the ordinary 
course of business, (ii) engage directly or indirectly in any business or 
conduct any operations except in connection with or incidental to its present 
businesses and operations, (iii) make any acquisitions of or capital 
contributions to or other investments in any Person, other than Permitted 
Investments, or (iv) make any acquisitions or investments in any properties or 
assets (other than a Person) other than: (a) oil and gas properties, (b) gas 
gathering, treating and processing assets and assets directly related thereto, 
(c) inventory and equipment incidental to its business, (d) general and 
administrative assets such as vehicles, offices and office equipment, and (e) 
other types of assets not in excess of $500,000 in the aggregate; provided, 
however, Restricted Persons may make acquisitions of, capital contributions 
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to, or other investments in any Person or make acquisitions of or investments in 
any properties or assets, in each case which are not otherwise permitted by the 
foregoing, so long as the aggregate amount thereof made after the date of this 
Agreement does not exceed $2,500,000. 
 
         Section 7.8. Limitation on Credit Extensions. Except for Permitted 
Investments, no Restricted Person will extend credit, make advances or make 
loans other than (i) normal and prudent extensions of credit to customers buying 
goods and services in the ordinary course of business, which extensions shall 
not be for longer periods than those extended by similar businesses operated in 
a normal and prudent manner, (ii) loans to Borrower or to any Guarantor (iii) 
extensions of credit to executive officers pursuant to board of directors' 
authorizations so long as the aggregate amount of all such loans made by all 
Restricted Persons does not exceed the principal amount of such credit extended 
as of the date of this Agreement, and (iv) other extensions of credit to 
employees of any Restricted Person, so long as the aggregate amount of such 
loans to any single employee does not exceed $100,000 and the aggregate amount 
of all such loans made by all Restricted Persons does not exceed $500,000. 
 
         Section 7.9. Transactions with Affiliates. No Restricted Person will 
engage in any material transaction with any of its Affiliates on terms which are 
less favorable to it than those which would have been obtainable at the time in 
arm's-length dealing with Persons other than such Affiliates, provided that such 
restriction shall not apply to transactions among the Restricted Persons. 
 
         Section 7.10. Certain Contracts; Amendments; Multiemployer ERISA Plans. 
Except as expressly provided for in the Loan Documents, no Restricted Person 
will, directly or indirectly, enter into, create, or otherwise allow to exist 
any contract or other consensual restriction on the ability of any Subsidiary of 
Borrower to: (i) pay dividends or make other distributions to Borrower, (ii) to 
redeem equity interests held in it by Borrower, (iii) to repay loans and other 
indebtedness owing by it to Borrower, or (iv) to transfer any of its assets to 
Borrower. No Restricted Person will enter into any "take-or-pay" contract or 
other contract or arrangement for the purchase of goods or services which 
obligates it to pay for such goods or service regardless of whether they are 
delivered or furnished to it. No Restricted Person will amend or permit any 
amendment to any contract or lease which releases, qualifies, limits, makes 
contingent or otherwise detrimentally affects the rights and benefits of Agent 
or any Lender under or acquired pursuant to any Security Documents. No ERISA 
Affiliate will incur any obligation to contribute to any "multiemployer plan" as 
defined in Section 4001 of ERISA. 
 
         Section 7.11. Current Ratio. The ratio of (i) the sum of Consolidated 
current assets of Parent and the other Restricted Persons plus the portion, if 
any, of the Borrowing Base which exceeds the Facility Usage to (ii) Consolidated 
current liabilities of Parent and the other Restricted Persons will never be 
less than 1.0 to 1.0. For purposes of this section, all LC Obligations shall be 
included as current liabilities, regardless of whether or not contingent (but 
without duplication) and current liabilities shall exclude current maturities of 
long term debt and current maturities of the Loans. 
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         Section 7.12. Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio. The ratio of (a) 
Consolidated EBITDA for any Fiscal Quarter to (b) Consolidated Fixed Charges for 
such Fiscal Quarter shall never be less than 2.0 to 1.0. 
 
 
                  ARTICLE VIII - Events of Default and Remedies 
 
 
         Section 8.1. Events of Default. Each of the following events 
constitutes an Event of Default under this Agreement: 
 
         (a) Borrower or any Guarantor fails to pay the principal component of 
any Obligation when due and payable, whether at a date for the payment of a 
fixed installment or as a contingent or other payment becomes due and payable or 
as a result of acceleration or otherwise; 
 
         (b) Borrower or any Guarantor fails to pay any Obligation (other than 
the Obligations in subsection (a) above) when due and payable, whether at a date 
for the payment of a fixed installment or as a contingent or other payment 
becomes due and payable or as a result of acceleration or otherwise, within 
three Business Days after the same becomes due; 
 
         (c) Any "default" or "event of default" occurs under any Loan Document 
which defines either such term, and the same is not remedied within the 
applicable period of grace (if any) provided in such Loan Document; 
 
         (d) Borrower or any Guarantor fails to duly observe, perform or comply 
with any covenant, agreement or provision of Section 6.4 or Article VII; 
 
         (e) Borrower or any Guarantor fails (other than as referred to in 
subsections (a), (b), (c) or (d) above) to duly observe, perform or comply with 
any covenant, agreement, condition or provision of any Loan Document, and such 
failure remains unremedied for a period of thirty (30) days after notice of such 
failure is given by Agent to Borrower; 
 
         (f) Any representation or warranty previously, presently or hereafter 
made in writing by or on behalf of any Restricted Person in connection with any 
Loan Document shall prove to have been false or incorrect in any material 
respect on any date on or as of which made, or any Loan Document at any time 
ceases to be valid, binding and enforceable as warranted in Section 5.5 for any 
reason other than its release or subordination by Agent; 
 
         (g) Any Restricted Person fails to duly observe, perform or comply with 
any agreement with any Person or any term or condition of any instrument, if 
such agreement or instrument is materially significant to Parent or to Parent 
and its Subsidiaries on a Consolidated basis or materially significant to any 
Guarantor, and such failure is not remedied within the applicable period of 
grace (if any) provided in such agreement or instrument; 
 
         (h) Any Restricted Person (i) fails to pay any portion, when such 
portion is due, of any of its Indebtedness in excess of $1,000,000, or (ii) 
breaches or defaults in the performance of any agreement or instrument by which 
any such Indebtedness is issued, evidenced, governed, or 
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secured, and any such failure, breach or default continues beyond any applicable 
period of grace provided therefor; 
 
         (i) Either (i) any "accumulated funding deficiency" (as defined in 
Section 412(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended) in excess of 
$100,000 exists with respect to any ERISA Plan, whether or not waived by the 
Secretary of the Treasury or his delegate, or (ii) any Termination Event occurs 
with respect to any ERISA Plan and the then current value of such ERISA Plan's 
benefit liabilities exceeds the then current value of such ERISA Plan's assets 
available for the payment of such benefit liabilities by more than $100,000 (or 
in the case of a Termination Event involving the withdrawal of a substantial 
employer, the withdrawing employer's proportionate share of such excess exceeds 
such amount); and 
 
         (j) Any Restricted Person: 
 
                  (i) suffers the entry against it of a judgment, decree or 
         order for relief by a Tribunal of competent jurisdiction in an 
         involuntary proceeding commenced under any applicable bankruptcy, 
         insolvency or other similar Law of any jurisdiction now or hereafter in 
         effect, including the federal Bankruptcy Code, as from time to time 
         amended, or has any such proceeding commenced against it which remains 
         undismissed for a period of thirty days; or 
 
                  (ii) commences a voluntary case under any applicable 
         bankruptcy, insolvency or similar Law now or hereafter in effect, 
         including the federal Bankruptcy Code, as from time to time amended; or 
         applies for or consents to the entry of an order for relief in an 
         involuntary case under any such Law; or makes a general assignment for 
         the benefit of creditors; or fails generally to pay (or admits in 
         writing its inability to pay) its debts as such debts become due; or 
         takes corporate or other action to authorize any of the foregoing; or 
 
                  (iii) suffers the appointment of or taking possession by a 
         receiver, liquidator, assignee, custodian, trustee, sequestrator or 
         similar official of all or a substantial part of its assets or of any 
         part of the Collateral in a proceeding brought against or initiated by 
         it, and such appointment or taking possession is neither made 
         ineffective nor discharged within thirty days after the making thereof, 
         or such appointment or taking possession is at any time consented to, 
         requested by, or acquiesced to by it; or 
 
                  (iv) suffers the entry against it of a final judgment for the 
         payment of money in excess of $1,000,000 (not covered by insurance 
         satisfactory to Majority Lenders in their discretion), unless the same 
         is discharged within thirty days after the date of entry thereof or an 
         appeal or appropriate proceeding for review thereof is taken within 
         such period and a stay of execution pending such appeal is obtained; or 
 
                  (v) suffers a writ or warrant of attachment or any similar 
         process to be issued by any Tribunal against all or any substantial 
         part of its assets or any part of the Collateral, and such writ or 
         warrant of attachment or any similar process is not stayed or 
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         released within thirty days after the entry or levy thereof or after 
         any stay is vacated or set aside; and 
 
         (k) Any Change in Control occurs; and 
 
         (l) Any Material Adverse Change occurs. 
 
Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default described in subsection (j)(i), 
(j)(ii) or (j)(iii) of this section with respect to Borrower, all of the 
Obligations shall thereupon be immediately due and payable, without demand, 
presentment, notice of demand or of dishonor and nonpayment, protest, notice of 
protest, notice of intention to accelerate, declaration or notice of 
acceleration, or any other notice or declaration of any kind, all of which are 
hereby expressly waived by Borrower and each Guarantor who at any time ratifies 
or approves this Agreement. Upon any such acceleration, any obligation of any 
Lender to make any further Loans and any obligation of LC Issuer to issue 
Letters of Credit hereunder shall be permanently terminated. During the 
continuance of any other Event of Default, Agent at any time and from time to 
time may (and upon written instructions from Majority Lenders, Agent shall), 
without notice to Borrower or any Guarantor, do either or both of the following: 
(1) terminate any obligation of Lenders to make Loans hereunder and any 
obligation of LC Issuer to issue Letters of Credit hereunder, and (2) declare 
any or all of the Obligations immediately due and payable, and all such 
Obligations shall thereupon be immediately due and payable, without demand, 
presentment, notice of demand or of dishonor and nonpayment, protest, notice of 
protest, notice of intention to accelerate, declaration or notice of 
acceleration, or any other notice or declaration of any kind, all of which are 
hereby expressly waived by Borrower and each Guarantor who at any time ratifies 
or approves this Agreement. 
 
         Section 8.2. Remedies. If any Default shall occur and be continuing, 
each Bank Party may protect and enforce its rights under the Loan Documents by 
any appropriate proceedings, including proceedings for specific performance of 
any covenant or agreement contained in any Loan Document, and each Bank Party 
may enforce the payment of any Obligations due it or enforce any other legal or 
equitable right which it may have. All rights, remedies and powers conferred 
upon Bank Parties under the Loan Documents shall be deemed cumulative and not 
exclusive of any other rights, remedies or powers available under the Loan 
Documents or at Law or in equity. 
 
                               ARTICLE IX - Agent 
 
         Section 9.1. Appointment and Authority. Each Bank Party hereby 
irrevocably authorizes Agent, and Agent hereby undertakes, to receive payments 
of principal, interest and other amounts due hereunder as specified herein and 
to take all other actions and to exercise such powers under the Loan Documents 
as are specifically delegated to Agent by the terms hereof or thereof, together 
with all other powers reasonably incidental thereto. The relationship of Agent 
to the other Bank Parties is only that of one commercial lender acting as 
administrative agent for others, and nothing in the Loan Documents shall be 
construed to constitute Agent a trustee or other fiduciary for any holder of any 
of the Notes or of any participation therein nor to impose on Agent duties and 
obligations other than those expressly provided for in the Loan Documents. 
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With respect to any matters not expressly provided for in the Loan Documents and 
any matters which the Loan Documents place within the discretion of Agent, Agent 
shall not be required to exercise any discretion or take any action, and it may 
request instructions from Lenders with respect to any such matter, in which case 
it shall be required to act or to refrain from acting (and shall be fully 
protected and free from liability to all Lenders in so acting or refraining from 
acting) upon the instructions of Majority Lenders (including itself), provided, 
however, that Agent shall not be required to take any action which exposes it to 
a risk of personal liability that it considers unreasonable or which is contrary 
to the Loan Documents or to applicable Law. Upon receipt by Agent from Borrower 
of any communication calling for action on the part of Lenders or upon notice 
from any other Bank Party to Agent of any Default or Event of Default, Agent 
shall promptly notify each other Bank Party thereof. 
 
         Section 9.2. Exculpation, Agent's Reliance, Etc. Neither Agent nor any 
of its directors, officers, agents, attorneys, or employees shall be liable for 
any action taken or omitted to be taken by any of them under or in connection 
with the Loan Documents, INCLUDING THEIR NEGLIGENCE OF ANY KIND, except that 
each shall be liable for its own gross negligence or willful misconduct. Without 
limiting the generality of the foregoing, Agent (a) may treat the payee of any 
Note as the holder thereof until Agent receives written notice of the assignment 
or transfer thereof in accordance with this Agreement, signed by such payee and 
in form satisfactory to Agent; (b) may consult with legal counsel (including 
counsel for Borrower), independent public accountants and other experts selected 
by it and shall not be liable for any action taken or omitted to be taken in 
good faith by it in accordance with the advice of such counsel, accountants or 
experts; (c) makes no warranty or representation to any other Bank Party and 
shall not be responsible to any other Bank Party for any statements, warranties 
or representations made in or in connection with the Loan Documents; (d) shall 
not have any duty to ascertain or to inquire as to the performance or observance 
of any of the terms, covenants or conditions of the Loan Documents on the part 
of any Restricted Person or to inspect the property (including the books and 
records) of any Restricted Person; (e) shall not be responsible to any other 
Bank Party for the due execution, legality, validity, enforceability, 
genuineness, sufficiency or value of any Loan Document or any instrument or 
document furnished in connection therewith; (f) may rely upon the 
representations and warranties of each Restricted Person and the Lenders in 
exercising its powers hereunder; and (g) shall incur no liability under or in 
respect of the Loan Documents by acting upon any notice, consent, certificate or 
other instrument or writing (including any facsimile, telegram, cable or telex) 
believed by it to be genuine and signed or sent by the proper Person or Persons. 
 
         Section 9.3. Credit Decisions. Each Bank Party acknowledges that it 
has, independently and without reliance upon any other Bank Party, made its own 
analysis of Borrower and the transactions contemplated hereby and its own 
independent decision to enter into this Agreement and the other Loan Documents. 
Each Bank Party also acknowledges that it will, independently and without 
reliance upon any other Bank Party and based on such documents and information 
as it shall deem appropriate at the time, continue to make its own credit 
decisions in taking or not taking action under the Loan Documents. 
 
         Section 9.4. Indemnification. Each Lender agrees to indemnify Agent (to 
the extent not reimbursed by Borrower within ten (10) days after demand) from 
and against such Lender's 
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Percentage Share of any and all liabilities, obligations, claims, losses, 
damages, penalties, fines, actions, judgments, suits, settlements, costs, 
expenses or disbursements (including reasonable fees of attorneys, accountants, 
experts and advisors) of any kind or nature whatsoever (in this section 
collectively called "liabilities and costs") which to any extent (in whole or in 
part) may be imposed on, incurred by, or asserted against Agent growing out of, 
resulting from or in any other way associated with any of the Collateral, the 
Loan Documents and the transactions and events (including the enforcement 
thereof) at any time associated therewith or contemplated therein (whether 
arising in contract or in tort or otherwise and including any violation or 
noncompliance with any Environmental Laws by any Person or any liabilities or 
duties of any Person with respect to Hazardous Materials found in or released 
into the environment). 
 
THE FOREGOING INDEMNIFICATION SHALL APPLY WHETHER OR NOT SUCH LIABILITIES AND 
COSTS ARE IN ANY WAY OR TO ANY EXTENT OWED, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, UNDER ANY CLAIM 
OR THEORY OF STRICT LIABILITY, OR ARE CAUSED, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, BY ANY 
NEGLIGENT ACT OR OMISSION OF ANY KIND BY AGENT, 
 
provided only that no Lender shall be obligated under this section to indemnify 
Agent for that portion, if any, of any liabilities and costs which is 
proximately caused by Agent's own individual gross negligence or willful 
misconduct, as determined in a final judgment. Cumulative of the foregoing, each 
Lender agrees to reimburse Agent promptly upon demand for such Lender's 
Percentage Share of any costs and expenses to be paid to Agent by Borrower under 
Section 10.4(a) to the extent that Agent is not timely reimbursed for such 
expenses by Borrower as provided in such section. As used in this section the 
term "Agent" shall refer not only to the Person designated as such in Section 
1.1 but also to each director, officer, agent, attorney, employee, 
representative and Affiliate of such Person. 
 
         Section 9.5. Rights as Lender. In its capacity as a Lender, Agent shall 
have the same rights and obligations as any Lender and may exercise such rights 
as though it were not Agent. Agent may accept deposits from, lend money to, act 
as Trustee under indentures of, and generally engage in any kind of business 
with any Restricted Person or their Affiliates, all as if it were not Agent 
hereunder and without any duty to account therefor to any other Lender. 
 
         Section 9.6. Sharing of Set-Offs and Other Payments. Each Bank Party 
agrees that if it shall, whether through the exercise of rights under Security 
Documents or rights of banker's lien, set off, or counterclaim against Borrower 
or otherwise, obtain payment of a portion of the aggregate Obligations owed to 
it which, taking into account all distributions made by Agent under Section 3.1, 
causes such Bank Party to have received more than it would have received had 
such payment been received by Agent and distributed pursuant to Section 3.1, 
then (a) it shall be deemed to have simultaneously purchased and shall be 
obligated to purchase interests in the Obligations as necessary to cause all 
Bank Parties to share all payments as provided for in Section 3.1, and (b) such 
other adjustments shall be made from time to time as shall be equitable to 
ensure that Agent and all Lenders share all payments of Obligations as provided 
in Section 3.1; provided, however, that nothing herein contained shall in any 
way affect the right of any Bank Party to obtain payment (whether by exercise of 
rights of banker's lien, set-off or counterclaim or otherwise) of indebtedness 
other than the Obligations. Borrower expressly consents to the foregoing 
arrangements and agrees that any holder of any such interest or other 
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participation in the Obligations, whether or not acquired pursuant to the 
foregoing arrangements, may to the fullest extent permitted by Law exercise any 
and all rights of banker's lien, set-off, or counterclaim as fully as if such 
holder were a holder of the Obligations in the amount of such interest or other 
participation. If all or any part of any funds transferred pursuant to this 
section is thereafter recovered from the seller under this section which 
received the same, the purchase provided for in this section shall be deemed to 
have been rescinded to the extent of such recovery, together with interest, if 
any, if interest is required pursuant to the order of a Tribunal to be paid on 
account of the possession of such funds prior to such recovery. 
 
         Section 9.7. Investments. Whenever Agent in good faith determines that 
it is uncertain about how to distribute to Lenders any funds which it has 
received, or whenever Agent in good faith determines that there is any dispute 
among Lenders about how such funds should be distributed, Agent may choose to 
defer distribution of the funds which are the subject of such uncertainty or 
dispute. If Agent in good faith believes that the uncertainty or dispute will 
not be promptly resolved, or if Agent is otherwise required to invest funds 
pending distribution to Lenders, Agent shall invest such funds pending 
distribution; all interest on any such investment shall be distributed upon the 
distribution of such investment and in the same proportion and to the same 
Persons as such investment. All moneys received by Agent for distribution to 
Lenders (other than to the Person who is Agent in its separate capacity as a 
Lender) shall be held by Agent pending such distribution solely as Agent for 
such Lenders, and Agent shall have no equitable title to any portion thereof. 
 
         Section 9.8. Benefit of Article IX. The provisions of this Article 
(other than the following Section 9.9) are intended solely for the benefit of 
Bank Parties, and no Restricted Person shall be entitled to rely on any such 
provision or assert any such provision in a claim or defense against any Bank 
Party. Bank Parties may waive or amend such provisions as they desire without 
any notice to or consent of Borrower or any Restricted Person. 
 
         Section 9.9. Resignation. Agent may resign at any time by giving 
written notice thereof to Lenders and Borrower. Each such notice shall set forth 
the date of such resignation. Upon any such resignation, Majority Lenders shall 
have the right to appoint a successor Agent. A successor must be appointed for 
any retiring Agent, and such Agent's resignation shall become effective when 
such successor accepts such appointment. If, within thirty days after the date 
of the retiring Agent's resignation, no successor Agent has been appointed and 
has accepted such appointment, then the retiring Agent may appoint a successor 
Agent, which shall be a commercial bank organized or licensed to conduct a 
banking or trust business under the Laws of the United States of America or of 
any state thereof. Upon the acceptance of any appointment as Agent hereunder by 
a successor Agent, the retiring Agent shall be discharged from its duties and 
obligations under this Agreement and the other Loan Documents. After any 
retiring Agent's resignation hereunder the provisions of this Article IX shall 
continue to inure to its benefit as to any actions taken or omitted to be taken 
by it while it was Agent under the Loan Documents. 
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                            ARTICLE X - Miscellaneous 
 
         Section 10.1. Waivers and Amendments; Acknowledgments. 
 
         (a) Waivers and Amendments. No failure or delay (whether by course of 
conduct or otherwise) by any Bank Party in exercising any right, power or remedy 
which such Bank Party may have under any of the Loan Documents shall operate as 
a waiver thereof or of any other right, power or remedy, nor shall any single or 
partial exercise by any Bank Party of any such right, power or remedy preclude 
any other or further exercise thereof or of any other right, power or remedy. No 
waiver of any provision of any Loan Document and no consent to any departure 
therefrom shall ever be effective unless it is in writing and signed as provided 
below in this section, and then such waiver or consent shall be effective only 
in the specific instances and for the purposes for which given and to the extent 
specified in such writing. No notice to or demand on Borrower or any Guarantor 
shall in any case of itself entitle Borrower or any Guarantor to any other or 
further notice or demand in similar or other circumstances. This Agreement and 
the other Loan Documents set forth the entire understanding between the parties 
hereto with respect to the transactions contemplated herein and therein and 
supersede all prior discussions and understandings with respect to the subject 
matter hereof and thereof, and no waiver, consent, release, modification or 
amendment of or supplement to this Agreement or the other Loan Documents shall 
be valid or effective against any party hereto unless the same is in writing and 
signed by (i) if such party is Borrower, by Borrower, (ii) if such party is 
Agent or LC Issuer, by such party, and (iii) if such party is a Lender, by such 
Lender or by Agent on behalf of Lenders with the written consent of Majority 
Lenders (which consent has already been given as to the termination of the Loan 
Documents as provided in Section 10.9). Notwithstanding the foregoing or 
anything to the contrary herein, Agent shall not, without the prior consent of 
each individual Lender, execute and deliver on behalf of such Lender any waiver 
or amendment which would: (1) waive any of the conditions specified in Article 
IV (provided that Agent may in its discretion withdraw any request it has made 
under Section 4.2(e)), (2) increase the Borrowing Base above the Maximum Loan 
Amount which requires the agreement of all Lenders pursuant to Section 2.9, (3) 
increase the Maximum Loan Amount of such Lender or subject such Lender to any 
additional obligations, (4) reduce any fees payable to such Lender hereunder, or 
the principal of, or interest on, such Lender's Note, (5) postpone any date 
fixed for any payment of any such fees, principal or interest, (6) amend the 
definition herein of "Majority Lenders" or otherwise change the aggregate amount 
of Percentage Shares which is required for Agent, Lenders or any of them to take 
any particular action under the Loan Documents, or (7) release Borrower from its 
obligation to pay such Lender's Note or any Guarantor from its guaranty of such 
payment. 
 
         (b) Acknowledgments and Admissions. Borrower hereby represents, 
warrants, acknowledges and admits that (i) it has been advised by counsel in the 
negotiation, execution and delivery of the Loan Documents to which it is a 
party, (ii) it has made an independent decision to enter into this Agreement and 
the other Loan Documents to which it is a party, without reliance on any 
representation, warranty, covenant or undertaking by Agent or any Lender, 
whether written, oral or implicit, other than as expressly set out in this 
Agreement or in another Loan Document delivered on or after the date hereof, 
(iii) there are no representations, warranties, covenants, undertakings or 
agreements by any Bank Party as to the Loan Documents except as expressly set 
out in this Agreement or in another Loan Document delivered on or after the date 
hereof, (iv) no Bank Party has any fiduciary obligation toward Borrower with 
respect to any Loan Document or the transactions contemplated thereby, (v) the 
relationship pursuant to the Loan Documents between Borrower and the Guarantors, 
on one hand, and each Bank Party, on the 
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other hand, is and shall be solely that of debtor and creditor, respectively, 
(vi) no partnership or joint venture exists with respect to the Loan Documents 
between any Restricted Person and any Bank Party, (vii) Agent is not Borrower's 
Agent, but Agent for Lenders, (viii) should an Event of Default or Default occur 
or exist, each Bank Party will determine in its sole discretion and for its own 
reasons what remedies and actions it will or will not exercise or take at that 
time, (ix) without limiting any of the foregoing, Borrower is not relying upon 
any representation or covenant by any Bank Party, or any representative thereof, 
and no such representation or covenant has been made, that any Bank Party will, 
at the time of an Event of Default or Default, or at any other time, waive, 
negotiate, discuss, or take or refrain from taking any action permitted under 
the Loan Documents with respect to any such Event of Default or Default or any 
other provision of the Loan Documents, and (x) all Bank Parties have relied upon 
the truthfulness of the acknowledgments in this section in deciding to execute 
and deliver this Agreement and to become obligated hereunder. 
 
         (c) Representation by Lenders. Each Lender hereby represents that it 
will acquire its Note for its own account in the ordinary course of its 
commercial lending business; however, the disposition of such Lender's property 
shall at all times be and remain within its control and, in particular and 
without limitation, such Lender may sell or otherwise transfer its Note, any 
participation interest or other interest in its Note, or any of its other rights 
and obligations under the Loan Documents, subject, however, to the provisions of 
Section 10.5. 
 
         (d) Joint Acknowledgment. THIS WRITTEN AGREEMENT AND THE OTHER LOAN 
DOCUMENTS REPRESENT THE FINAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE PARTIES AND MAY NOT BE 
CONTRADICTED BY EVIDENCE OF PRIOR, CONTEMPORANEOUS, OR SUBSEQUENT ORAL 
AGREEMENTS OF THE PARTIES. 
 
           THERE ARE NO UNWRITTEN ORAL AGREEMENTS BETWEEN THE PARTIES. 
 
         Section 10.2. Survival of Agreements; Cumulative Nature. All of 
Restricted Persons' various representations, warranties, covenants and 
agreements in the Loan Documents shall survive the execution and delivery of 
this Agreement and the other Loan Documents and the performance hereof and 
thereof, including the making or granting of the Loans and the delivery of the 
Notes and the other Loan Documents, and shall further survive until all of the 
Obligations are paid in full to each Bank Party and all of Bank Parties' 
obligations to Borrower are terminated. All statements and agreements contained 
in any certificate or other instrument delivered by Borrower or any Guarantor to 
any Bank Party under any Loan Document shall be deemed representations and 
warranties by Borrower or agreements and covenants of Borrower under this 
Agreement. The representations, warranties, indemnities, and covenants made by 
Restricted Persons in the Loan Documents, and the rights, powers, and privileges 
granted to Bank Parties in the Loan Documents, are cumulative, and, except for 
expressly specified waivers and consents, no Loan Document shall be construed in 
the context of another to diminish, nullify, or otherwise reduce the benefit to 
any Bank Party of any such representation, warranty, indemnity, covenant, right, 
power or privilege. In particular and without limitation, no exception set out 
in this Agreement to any representation, warranty, indemnity, or covenant herein 
contained shall apply to any similar representation, warranty, indemnity, or 
covenant contained in any other Loan Document, and each such similar 
representation, warranty, indemnity, or 
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covenant shall be subject only to those exceptions which are expressly made 
applicable to it by the terms of the various Loan Documents. 
 
         Section 10.3. Notices. All notices, requests, consents, demands and 
other communications required or permitted under any Loan Document shall be in 
writing, unless otherwise specifically provided in such Loan Document (provided 
that Agent may give telephonic notices to the other Bank Parties), and shall be 
deemed sufficiently given or furnished if delivered by personal delivery, by 
facsimile or other electronic transmission, by delivery service with proof of 
delivery, or by registered or certified United States mail, postage prepaid, to 
Borrower and Restricted Persons at the address of Borrower specified on the 
signature pages hereto and to each Bank Party at its address specified on the 
signature pages hereto (unless changed by similar notice in writing given by the 
particular Person whose address is to be changed). Any such notice or 
communication shall be deemed to have been given (a) in the case of personal 
delivery or delivery service, as of the date of first attempted delivery during 
normal business hours at the address provided herein, (b) in the case of 
facsimile or other electronic transmission, upon receipt, or (c) in the case of 
registered or certified United States mail, three days after deposit in the 
mail; provided, however, that no Borrowing Notice shall become effective until 
actually received by Agent. 
 
         Section 10.4. Payment of Expenses; Indemnity. 
 
         (a) Payment of Expenses. Whether or not the transactions contemplated 
by this Agreement are consummated, Borrower will promptly (and in any event, 
within 30 days after any invoice or other statement or notice) pay: (i) all 
transfer, stamp, mortgage, documentary or other similar taxes, assessments or 
charges levied by any governmental or revenue authority in respect of this 
Agreement or any of the other Loan Documents or any other document referred to 
herein or therein, (ii) all reasonable costs and expenses incurred by or on 
behalf of Agent (including, without limitation, attorneys' fees, consultants' 
fees and engineering fees, travel costs and miscellaneous expenses) in 
connection with (1) the negotiation, preparation, execution and delivery of the 
Loan Documents, and any and all consents, waivers or other documents or 
instruments relating thereto, (2) the filing, recording, refiling and 
re-recording of any Loan Documents and any other documents or instruments or 
further assurances required to be filed or recorded or refiled or re-recorded by 
the terms of any Loan Document, (3) the borrowings hereunder and other action 
reasonably required in the course of administration hereof, (4) monitoring or 
confirming (or preparation or negotiation of any document related to) Borrower's 
compliance with any covenants or conditions contained in this Agreement or in 
any Loan Document, and (iii) all reasonable costs and expenses incurred by or on 
behalf of any Bank Party (including, without limitation, attorneys' fees, 
consultants' fees and accounting fees) in connection with the defense or 
enforcement of any of the Loan Documents (including this section) or the defense 
of any Bank Party's exercise of its rights thereunder. In addition to the 
foregoing, until and all Obligations have been paid in full, Borrower will also 
pay or reimburse Agent for all reasonable out-of-pocket costs and expenses of 
Agent or its agents or employees in connection with the continuing 
administration of the Loans and the related due diligence of Agent, including 
travel and miscellaneous expenses and fees and expenses of Agent's outside 
counsel, reserve engineers and consultants engaged in connection with the Loan 
Documents. 
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         (b) Indemnity. Borrower agrees to indemnify each Bank Party, upon 
demand, from and against any and all liabilities, obligations, claims, losses, 
damages, penalties, fines, actions, judgments, suits, settlements, costs, 
expenses or disbursements (including reasonable fees of attorneys, accountants, 
experts and advisors) of any kind or nature whatsoever (in this section 
collectively called "liabilities and costs") which to any extent (in whole or in 
part) may be imposed on, incurred by, or asserted against such Bank Party 
growing out of, resulting from or in any other way associated with any of the 
Collateral, the Loan Documents and the transactions and events (including the 
enforcement or defense thereof) at any time associated therewith or contemplated 
therein (whether arising in contract or in tort or otherwise and including any 
violation or noncompliance with any Environmental Laws by any Restricted Person 
or any liabilities or duties of any Restricted Person or any Bank Party with 
respect to Hazardous Materials found in or released into the environment). 
 
THE FOREGOING INDEMNIFICATION SHALL APPLY WHETHER OR NOT SUCH LIABILITIES AND 
COSTS ARE IN ANY WAY OR TO ANY EXTENT OWED, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, UNDER ANY CLAIM 
OR THEORY OF STRICT LIABILITY, OR ARE CAUSED, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, BY ANY 
NEGLIGENT ACT OR OMISSION OF ANY KIND BY ANY BANK PARTY, 
 
provided only that no Bank Party shall be entitled under this section to receive 
indemnification for that portion, if any, of any liabilities and costs which is 
proximately caused by its own individual gross negligence or willful misconduct, 
as determined in a final judgment. If any Person (including Borrower or any of 
its Affiliates) ever alleges such gross negligence or willful misconduct by any 
Bank Party, the indemnification provided for in this section shall nonetheless 
be paid upon demand, subject to later adjustment or reimbursement, until such 
time as a court of competent jurisdiction enters a final judgment as to the 
extent and effect of the alleged gross negligence or willful misconduct. As used 
in this section the term "Bank Parties" shall refer not only to the Persons 
designated as such in Section 1.1 but also to each director, officer, agent, 
attorney, employee, representative and Affiliate of such Persons. 
 
         Section 10.5. Joint and Several Liability; Parties in Interest; 
Assignments. All Obligations which are incurred by Borrower and/or two or more 
Guarantors shall be their joint and several obligations and liabilities. All 
grants, covenants and agreements contained in the Loan Documents shall bind and 
inure to the benefit of the parties thereto and their respective successors and 
assigns; provided, however, that no Borrower or Guarantor may assign or transfer 
any of its rights or delegate any of its duties or obligations under any Loan 
Document without the prior consent of all of the Lenders. Neither Borrower nor 
any Affiliates of Borrower shall directly or indirectly purchase or otherwise 
retire any Obligations owed to any Lender nor will any Lender accept any offer 
to do so, unless each Lender shall have received substantially the same offer 
with respect to the same Percentage Share of the Obligations owed to it. If 
Borrower or any Affiliate of Borrower at any time purchases some but less than 
all of the Obligations owed to all Bank Parties, such purchaser shall not be 
entitled to any rights of any Bank Party under the Loan Documents unless and 
until Borrower or its Affiliates have purchased all of the Obligations. 
 
         (b) No Lender shall sell any participation interest in its commitment 
hereunder or any of its rights under its Loans or under the Loan Documents to 
any Person only if the agreement 
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between such Lender and such participant at all times provides: (i) that such 
participation exists only as a result of the agreement between such participant 
and such Lender and that such transfer does not give such participant any right 
to vote as a Lender or any other direct claims or rights against any Person 
other than such Lender, (ii) that such participant is not entitled to payment 
from any Borrower or Guarantor under Sections 3.2 through 3.7 of amounts in 
excess of those payable to such Lender under such sections (determined without 
regard to the sale of such participation), and (iii) unless such participant is 
an Affiliate of such Lender, that such participant shall not be entitled to 
require such Lender to take any action under any Loan Document or to obtain the 
consent of such participant prior to taking any action under any Loan Document, 
except for actions which would require the consent of all Lenders under the 
next-to-last sentence of subsection (a) of Section 10.1. No Lender selling such 
a participation shall, as between the other parties hereto and such Lender, be 
relieved of any of its obligations hereunder as a result of the sale of such 
participation. Each Lender which sells any such participation to any Person 
(other than an Affiliate of such Lender) shall give prompt notice thereof to 
Agent and Borrower. 
 
         (c) Except for sales of participations under the immediately preceding 
subsection (b), no Lender shall make any assignment or transfer of any kind of 
its commitments or any of its rights under its Loans or under the Loan 
Documents, except for assignments to an Eligible Transferee, and then only if 
such assignment is made in accordance with the following requirements: 
 
                  (i) Each such assignment shall apply to all Obligations owing 
         to the assignor Lender hereunder and to the unused portion of the 
         assignor Lender's commitments, so that after such assignment is made 
         the assignor Lender shall have a fixed (and not a varying) Percentage 
         Share in its Loans and Note and be committed to make that Percentage 
         Share of all future Loans, the assignee shall have a fixed Percentage 
         Share in such Loans and Note and be committed to make that Percentage 
         Share of all future Loans, and the Percentage Share of the Maximum Loan 
         Amount of both the assignor and assignee shall equal or exceed 
         $5,000,000. 
 
                  (ii) The parties to each such assignment shall execute and 
         deliver to Agent, for its acceptance and recording in the "Register" 
         (as defined below in this section), an Assignment and Acceptance in the 
         form of Exhibit G, appropriately completed, together with the Note 
         subject to such assignment and a processing fee payable to Agent of 
         $3,500. Upon such execution, delivery, and payment and upon the 
         satisfaction of the conditions set out in such Assignment and 
         Acceptance, then (i) Borrower shall issue new Notes to such assignor 
         and assignee upon return of the old Notes to Borrower, and (ii) as of 
         the "Settlement Date" specified in such Assignment and Acceptance the 
         assignee thereunder shall be a party hereto and a Lender hereunder and 
         Agent shall thereupon deliver to Borrower and each Lender a schedule 
         showing the revised Percentage Shares of such assignor Lender and such 
         assignee Lender and the Percentage Shares of all other Lenders. 
 
                  (iii) Each assignee Lender which is not a United States person 
         (as such term is defined in Section 7701(a)(30) of the Internal Revenue 
         Code of 1986, as amended) for 
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         Federal income tax purposes, shall (to the extent it has not already 
         done so) provide Agent and Borrower with the "Prescribed Forms" 
         referred to in Section 3.6(d). 
 
         (d) Nothing contained in this section shall prevent or prohibit any 
Lender from assigning or pledging all or any portion of its Loans and Note to 
any Federal Reserve Bank as collateral security pursuant to Regulation A of the 
Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System and any Operating Circular 
issued by such Federal Reserve Bank; provided that no such assignment or pledge 
shall relieve such Lender from its obligations hereunder. 
 
         (e) By executing and delivering an Assignment and Acceptance, each 
assignee Lender thereunder will be confirming to and agreeing with Borrower, 
Agent and each other Lender hereunder that such assignee understands and agrees 
to the terms hereof, including Article IX hereof. 
 
         (f) Agent shall maintain a copy of each Assignment and Acceptance and a 
register for the recordation of the names and addresses of Lenders and the 
Percentage Shares of, and principal amount of the Loans owing to, each Lender 
from time to time (in this section called the "Register"). The entries in the 
Register shall be conclusive, in the absence of manifest error, and Borrower and 
each Bank Party may treat each Person whose name is recorded in the Register as 
a Lender hereunder for all purposes. The Register shall be available for 
inspection by Borrower or any Bank Party at any reasonable time and from time to 
time upon reasonable prior notice. 
 
         Section 10.6. Confidentiality. Each Bank Party agrees that it will take 
all reasonable steps to keep confidential any proprietary information given to 
it by any Restricted Person, provided, however, that this restriction shall not 
apply to information which (i) has at the time in question entered the public 
domain, (ii) is required to be disclosed by Law (whether valid or invalid) of 
any Tribunal, (iii) is disclosed to any Bank Party's Affiliates, auditors, 
attorneys, or agents, (iv) is furnished to any other Bank Party or to any 
purchaser or prospective purchaser of participations or other interests in any 
Loan or Loan Document, or (v) is disclosed in the course of enforcing its rights 
and remedies during the existence of an Event of Default. 
 
         Section 10.7. Governing Law; Submission to Process. EXCEPT TO THE 
EXTENT THAT THE LAW OF ANOTHER JURISDICTION IS EXPRESSLY ELECTED IN A LOAN 
DOCUMENT, THE LOAN DOCUMENTS SHALL BE DEEMED CONTRACTS AND INSTRUMENTS MADE 
UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF TEXAS AND SHALL BE CONSTRUED AND ENFORCED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH AND GOVERNED BY THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF TEXAS AND THE LAWS OF 
THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, WITHOUT REGARD TO PRINCIPLES OF CONFLICTS OF LAW. 
CHAPTER 346 OF THE TEXAS FINANCE CODE (WHICH REGULATES CERTAIN REVOLVING CREDIT 
LOAN ACCOUNTS AND REVOLVING TRI-PARTY ACCOUNTS) DOES NOT APPLY TO THIS AGREEMENT 
OR TO THE NOTES. BORROWER AND EACH GUARANTOR HEREBY IRREVOCABLY SUBMITS ITSELF 
TO THE JURISDICTION OF THE STATE AND FEDERAL COURTS SITTING IN THE STATE OF 
TEXAS AND AGREES AND CONSENTS THAT SERVICE OF PROCESS MAY BE MADE UPON IT IN ANY 
LEGAL PROCEEDING RELATING TO THE LOAN DOCUMENTS OR THE OBLIGATIONS BY ANY MEANS 
ALLOWED UNDER TEXAS OR FEDERAL LAW. ANY LEGAL PROCEEDING ARISING OUT OF OR IN 
ANY WAY RELATED TO ANY OF THE LOAN DOCUMENTS SHALL BE BROUGHT AND LITIGATED 
EXCLUSIVELY IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF 
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TEXAS, DALLAS DIVISION, TO THE EXTENT IT HAS SUBJECT MATTER JURISDICTION, AND 
OTHERWISE IN THE TEXAS DISTRICT COURTS SITTING IN DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS. THE 
PARTIES HERETO HEREBY WAIVE AND AGREE NOT TO ASSERT, BY WAY OF MOTION, AS A 
DEFENSE OR OTHERWISE, THAT ANY SUCH PROCEEDING IS BROUGHT IN AN INCONVENIENT 
FORUM OR THAT THE VENUE THEREOF IS IMPROPER, AND FURTHER AGREE TO A TRANSFER OF 
ANY SUCH PROCEEDING TO A FEDERAL COURT SITTING IN THE STATE OF TEXAS TO THE 
EXTENT THAT IT HAS SUBJECT MATTER JURISDICTION, AND OTHERWISE TO A STATE COURT 
IN DALLAS, TEXAS. IN FURTHERANCE THEREOF, BORROWER AND BANK PARTIES EACH HEREBY 
ACKNOWLEDGE AND AGREE THAT IT WAS NOT INCONVENIENT FOR THEM TO NEGOTIATE AND 
RECEIVE FUNDING OF THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED BY THIS AGREEMENT IN SUCH 
COUNTY AND THAT IT WILL BE NEITHER INCONVENIENT NOR UNFAIR TO LITIGATE OR 
OTHERWISE RESOLVE ANY DISPUTES OR CLAIMS IN A COURT SITTING IN SUCH COUNTY. 
 
         Section 10.8. Limitation on Interest. Bank Parties, Borrower, 
Guarantors and any other parties to the Loan Documents intend to contract in 
strict compliance with applicable usury Law from time to time in effect. In 
furtherance thereof such Persons stipulate and agree that none of the terms and 
provisions contained in the Loan Documents shall ever be construed to create a 
contract to pay, for the use, forbearance or detention of money, interest in 
excess of the maximum amount of interest permitted to be charged by applicable 
Law from time to time in effect. Neither any Borrower or Guarantors nor any 
present or future guarantors, endorsers, or other Persons hereafter becoming 
liable for payment of any Obligation shall ever be liable for unearned interest 
thereon or shall ever be required to pay interest thereon in excess of the 
maximum amount that may be Lawfully charged under applicable Law from time to 
time in effect, and the provisions of this section shall control over all other 
provisions of the Loan Documents which may be in conflict or apparent conflict 
herewith. Bank Parties expressly disavow any intention to charge or collect 
excessive unearned interest or finance charges in the event the maturity of any 
Obligation is accelerated. If (a) the maturity of any Obligation is accelerated 
for any reason, (b) any Obligation is prepaid and as a result any amounts held 
to constitute interest are determined to be in excess of the legal maximum, or 
(c) any Bank Party or any other holder of any or all of the Obligations shall 
otherwise collect moneys which are determined to constitute interest which would 
otherwise increase the interest on any or all of the Obligations to an amount in 
excess of that permitted to be charged by applicable Law then in effect, then 
all sums determined to constitute interest in excess of such legal limit shall, 
without penalty, be promptly applied to reduce the then outstanding principal of 
the related Obligations or, at such Bank Party's or holder's option, promptly 
returned to Borrower or the other payor thereof upon such determination. In 
determining whether or not the interest paid or payable, under any specific 
circumstance, exceeds the maximum amount permitted under applicable Law, Bank 
Parties and Borrower and Guarantors (and any other payors thereof) shall to the 
greatest extent permitted under applicable Law, (i) characterize any 
non-principal payment as an expense, fee or premium rather than as interest, 
(ii) exclude voluntary prepayments and the effects thereof, and (iii) amortize, 
prorate, allocate, and spread the total amount of interest throughout the entire 
contemplated term of the instruments evidencing the Obligations in accordance 
with the amounts outstanding from time to time thereunder and the maximum legal 
rate of interest from time to time in effect under applicable Law in order to 
Lawfully charge the maximum amount of interest permitted under applicable Law. 
In the event applicable Law provides for an interest ceiling under Section 303 
of the Texas Finance Code (the "Texas Finance Code") for that day, the ceiling 
shall 
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be the "weekly ceiling" as defined in the Texas Finance Code, provided that if 
any applicable Law permits greater interest, the Law permitting the greatest 
interest shall apply. As used in this section the term "applicable Law" means 
the Laws of the State of Texas or the Laws of the United States of America, 
whichever Laws allow the greater interest, as such Laws now exist or may be 
changed or amended or come into effect in the future. 
 
         Section 10.9. Termination; Limited Survival. In its sole and absolute 
discretion Borrower may at any time that no Obligations are owing elect in a 
written notice delivered to Agent to terminate this Agreement. Upon receipt by 
Agent of such a notice, if no Obligations are then owing this Agreement and all 
other Loan Documents shall thereupon be terminated and the parties thereto 
released from all prospective obligations thereunder. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing or anything herein to the contrary, any waivers or admissions made by 
any Borrower or any Guarantor in any Loan Document, any Obligations under 
Sections 3.2 through 3.6, and any obligations which any Person may have to 
indemnify or compensate any Bank Party shall survive any termination of this 
Agreement or any other Loan Document. At the request and expense of Borrower, 
Agent shall prepare and execute all necessary instruments to reflect and effect 
such termination of the Loan Documents. Agent is hereby authorized to execute 
all such instruments on behalf of all Lenders, without the joinder of or further 
action by any Lender. 
 
         Section 10.10. Severability. If any term or provision of any Loan 
Document shall be determined to be illegal or unenforceable all other terms and 
provisions of the Loan Documents shall nevertheless remain effective and shall 
be enforced to the fullest extent permitted by applicable Law. 
 
         Section 10.11. Counterparts. This Agreement may be separately executed 
in any number of counterparts and by different parties hereto in separate 
counterparts, each of which when so executed shall be deemed to constitute one 
and the same Agreement. 
 
         Section 10.12. Waiver of Jury Trial, Punitive Damages, etc. BORROWER 
AND EACH BANK PARTY HEREBY KNOWINGLY, VOLUNTARILY, INTENTIONALLY, AND 
IRREVOCABLY (A) WAIVES, TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT NOT PROHIBITED BY LAW, ANY RIGHT 
IT MAY HAVE TO A TRIAL BY JURY IN RESPECT OF ANY LITIGATION BASED HEREON, OR 
DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY AT ANY TIME ARISING OUT OF, UNDER OR IN CONNECTION WITH 
THE LOAN DOCUMENTS OR ANY TRANSACTION CONTEMPLATED THEREBY OR ASSOCIATED 
THEREWITH, BEFORE OR AFTER MATURITY; (B) WAIVES, TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT NOT 
PROHIBITED BY LAW, ANY RIGHT IT MAY HAVE TO CLAIM OR RECOVER IN ANY SUCH 
LITIGATION ANY "SPECIAL DAMAGES", AS DEFINED BELOW, (C) CERTIFIES THAT NO PARTY 
HERETO NOR ANY REPRESENTATIVE OR AGENT OR COUNSEL FOR ANY PARTY HERETO HAS 
REPRESENTED, EXPRESSLY OR OTHERWISE, OR IMPLIED THAT SUCH PARTY WOULD NOT, IN 
THE EVENT OF LITIGATION, SEEK TO ENFORCE THE FOREGOING WAIVERS, AND (D) 
ACKNOWLEDGES THAT IT HAS BEEN INDUCED TO ENTER INTO THIS AGREEMENT, THE OTHER 
LOAN DOCUMENTS AND THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED HEREBY AND THEREBY BY, AMONG 
OTHER THINGS, THE MUTUAL WAIVERS AND CERTIFICATIONS CONTAINED IN THIS SECTION. 
AS USED IN THIS SECTION, "SPECIAL DAMAGES" INCLUDES ALL SPECIAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, 
EXEMPLARY, OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES (REGARDLESS OF HOW NAMED), BUT DOES NOT INCLUDE 
ANY PAYMENTS OR FUNDS WHICH ANY PARTY HERETO HAS EXPRESSLY PROMISED TO PAY OR 
DELIVER TO ANY OTHER PARTY HERETO. 
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         Section 10.13. Amendment and Restatement. This Agreement amends and 
restates in its entirety that certain Credit Agreement dated as of August 27, 
1998, by Borrower, Parent, certain Subsidiaries of Parent, Agent and certain 
financial institutions, as "Lenders", as amended, restated, or supplemented to 
the date hereof (the "Existing Agreement"). Borrower and Parent hereby represent 
and warrant that as of the date hereof all conditions under Section 4.1 of this 
Agreement have been met. Borrower and Parent hereby agree that (i) the Loans 
outstanding under the Existing Agreement and all accrued and unpaid interest 
thereon, (ii) all Letters of Credit issued and outstanding under the Existing 
Agreement, and (iii) all accrued and unpaid fees under the Existing Agreement 
shall be deemed to be outstanding under and governed by this Agreement. 
 
            [THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 
 
 
 
 
 
                                       73 



   74 
 
 
 
         IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement is executed as of the date first 
written above. 
 
                     CHESAPEAKE EXPLORATION LIMITED PARTNERSHIP, 
                     BORROWER 
 
                              By:      Chesapeake Operating, Inc., 
                                       its general partner 
 
                              By: 
                                 ----------------------------------------- 
                                       Martha A. Burger 
                                       Treasurer 
 
 
                     CHESAPEAKE ENERGY CORPORATION, 
                     GUARANTOR 
 
                              By: 
                                 ----------------------------------------- 
                                       Martha A. Burger 
                                       Treasurer 
 
 
                     CHESAPEAKE PANHANDLE LIMITED PARTNERSHIP, 
                     GUARANTOR 
 
                              By:      Chesapeake Operating, Inc., 
                                       its general partner 
 
                              By: 
                                 ----------------------------------------- 
                                       Martha A. Burger 
                                       Treasurer 
 
 
                     CHESAPEAKE LOUISIANA, L.P., 
                     GUARANTOR 
 
                              By:      Chesapeake Operating, Inc., 
                                       its general partner 
 
                              By: 
                                 ----------------------------------------- 
                                       Martha A. Burger 
                                       Treasurer 
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                         CHESAPEAKE ACQUISITION CORPORATION, 
                         GUARANTOR 
 
                                  By: 
                                     ----------------------------------------- 
                                           Martha A. Burger 
                                           Treasurer 
 
 
                         CHESAPEAKE OPERATING, INC., 
                         GUARANTOR 
 
                                  By: 
                                     ----------------------------------------- 
                                           Martha A. Burger 
                                           Treasurer 
 
 
                         CHESAPEAKE ENERGY LOUISIANA CORPORATION, 
                         GUARANTOR 
 
                                  By: 
                                     ----------------------------------------- 
                                           Martha A. Burger 
                                           Treasurer 
 
 
                         CHESAPEAKE ROYALTY COMPANY, 
                         GUARANTOR 
 
                                  By: 
                                     ----------------------------------------- 
                                           Martha A. Burger 
                                           Treasurer 
 
 
                         ARKOMA PITTSBURG HOLDING CORPORATION, 
                         GUARANTOR 
 
                                  By: 
                                     ----------------------------------------- 
                                           Martha A. Burger 
                                           Treasurer 
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                                            Address for Borrower and Guarantors: 
 
                                            6100 North Western 
                                            Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 
                                            Attention: Treasurer 
 
                                            Telephone:        (405) 848-8000 
                                            Telecopy:         (405) 879-9587 
 
                                            With copy to: 
 
                                            Self, Giddens & Lees, Inc. 
                                            2725 Oklahoma Tower 
                                            210 Park Avenue 
                                            Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73102 
                                            Attention: C. Ray Lees 
 
                                            Telephone:        (405) 232-3001 
                                            Telecopy:         (405) 232-5553 
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                                UNION BANK OF CALIFORNIA, N.A., 
                                Agent, LC Issuer and Lender 
 
 
                                         By: 
                                            ------------------------------- 
                                                Name: 
                                                Title: 
 
 
                                         By: 
                                            ------------------------------- 
                                                Name: 
                                                Title: 
 
                                         Address: 
 
                                         500 North Akard 
                                         4200 Lincoln Center 
                                         Dallas, Texas 75201 
 
                                         Telephone:        (214) 922-4200 
                                         Telecopy:         (214) 922-4209 
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                                                                      SCHEDULE 2 
 
 
 
                                SECURITY SCHEDULE 
 
 
         1.       Guaranty dated May 30, 2000, executed by Parent in favor of 
                  Agent. 
 
         2.       Guaranty dated May 30, 2000, executed by the Subsidiary 
                  Guarantors in favor of Agent. 
 
         3.       Second Amendment to that certain Deed of Trust, Mortgage, Line 
                  of Credit Mortgage, Assignment, Security Agreement, Fixture 
                  Filing and Financing Statement dated August 27, 1998, executed 
                  by Borrower in favor of Agent. 
 
         4.       First Amendment to that certain Mortgage, Assignment, Security 
                  Agreement,         Fixture Filing and Financing Statement 
                  dated December 16, 1998, executed by Borrower in favor of 
                  Agent. 
 
         5.       First Amendment to that certain Mortgage, Assignment, Security 
                  Agreement,           Fixture Filing and Financing Statement 
                  dated April 30, 1999, executed by Borrower in favor of Agent 
                  (which shall include, without limitation, the addition of the 
                  properties referenced on Schedule 2-A attached hereto). 
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                                                                       EXHIBIT A 
 
 
                                 PROMISSORY NOTE 
 
 
$100,000,000                                                        May _, 2000 
 
         FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned, Chesapeake Exploration Limited 
Partnership, an Oklahoma limited partnership (herein called "Borrower"), hereby 
promises to pay to the order of Union Bank of California, N.A., a national 
banking association (herein called "Lender"), the principal sum of One Hundred 
Million Dollars ($100,000,000), or, if less, the aggregate unpaid principal 
amount of the Loan made under this Note by Lender to Borrower pursuant to the 
terms of the Credit Agreement (as hereinafter defined), together with interest 
on the unpaid principal balance thereof as hereinafter set forth, both principal 
and interest payable as herein provided in lawful money of the United States of 
America at the offices of the Agent, 445 South Figueroa Street, Los Angeles, 
California 90071, or at such other place, as from time to time may be designated 
by the Agent. 
 
         This Note (a) is issued and delivered under that certain Amended and 
Restated Credit Agreement dated May _, 2000, among Chesapeake Energy 
Corporation, Borrower, certain Guarantors and Union Bank of California, N.A., as 
Agent, and the lenders (the "Credit Agreement"), and is a Note as defined 
therein, (b) is subject to the terms and provisions of the Credit Agreement, 
which contains provisions for payments and prepayments hereunder and 
acceleration of the maturity hereof upon the happening of certain stated events, 
and (c) is secured by and entitled to the benefits of certain Security Documents 
(as identified and defined in the Credit Agreement). Payments on this Note shall 
be made and applied as provided herein and in the Credit Agreement. Reference is 
hereby made to the Credit Agreement for a description of certain rights, 
limitations of rights, obligations and duties of the parties hereto and for the 
meanings assigned to terms used and not defined herein and to the Security 
Documents for a description of the nature and extent of the security thereby 
provided and the rights of the parties thereto. This Note is given in 
replacement and renewal of (but not in extinguishment or novation of) that 
certain Promissory Note dated May 11, 2000, made by Borrower payable to the 
order of Lender in the original principal amount of $50,000,000. Any interest 
accrued and unpaid on such Promissory Note dated May 11, 2000 shall not be 
extinguished but shall be carried forward hereby and shall be payable on the 
applicable date provided for herein. 
 
         For the purposes of this Note, the following terms have the meanings 
assigned to them below: 
 
                  "Base Rate Payment Date" means (i) the last day of each March, 
         June, September and December, beginning June 30, 2000, and (ii) any day 
         on which past due interest or principal is owed hereunder and is 
         unpaid. If the terms hereof or of the Credit Agreement provide that 
         payments of interest or principal hereon shall be deferred from one 
         Base Rate Payment Date to another day, such other day shall also be a 
         Base Rate Payment Date. 
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                  "Eurodollar Rate Payment Date" means, with respect to any 
         Eurodollar Loan: (i) the day on which the related Interest Period ends 
         and, if such Interest Period is three months or longer, the three-month 
         anniversary of the first day of such Interest Period, and (ii) any day 
         on which past due interest or past due principal is owed hereunder with 
         respect to such Eurodollar Loan and is unpaid. If the terms hereof or 
         of the Credit Agreement provide that payments of interest or principal 
         with respect to such Eurodollar Loan shall be deferred from one 
         Eurodollar Rate Payment Date to another day, such other day shall also 
         be a Eurodollar Rate Payment Date. 
 
         The principal amount of this Note, together with all interest accrued 
hereon, shall be due and payable in full on July 15, 2002. 
 
         Unless the Default Rate shall be applicable, Base Rate Loans from time 
to time outstanding shall bear interest on each day outstanding at the Base Rate 
in effect on such day. On each Base Rate Payment Date Borrower shall pay to the 
holder hereof all unpaid interest which has accrued on each Base Rate Loan to 
but not including such Base Rate Payment Date. Unless the Default Rate shall be 
applicable, each Eurodollar Loan shall bear interest on each day during the 
related Interest Period at the related Eurodollar Rate in effect on such day. On 
each Eurodollar Rate Payment Date relating to such Eurodollar Loan, Borrower 
shall pay to the holder hereof all unpaid interest which has accrued on such 
Eurodollar Loan to but not including such Eurodollar Rate Payment Date. After 
the occurrence and during the continuance of an Event of Default and a notice to 
Borrower by Agent that the Default Rate shall apply, all Loans shall bear 
interest on each day outstanding at the Default Rate in effect on such day, and 
such interest shall be due and payable daily as it accrues. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing provisions of this paragraph: (a) this Note shall never bear interest 
in excess of the Highest Lawful Rate, and (b) if at any time the rate at which 
interest is payable on this Note is limited by the Highest Lawful Rate (by the 
foregoing clause (a) or by reference to the Highest Lawful Rate in the 
definitions of Base Rate, Eurodollar Rate and Default Rate), this Note shall 
bear interest at the Highest Lawful Rate and shall continue to bear interest at 
the Highest Lawful Rate until such time as the total amount of interest accrued 
hereon equals (but does not exceed) the total amount of interest which would 
have accrued hereon had there been no Highest Lawful Rate applicable hereto. 
 
         Notwithstanding the foregoing paragraph and all other provisions of 
this Note, in no event shall the interest payable hereon, whether before or 
after maturity, exceed the maximum amount of interest which, under applicable 
law, may be charged on this Note, and this Note is expressly made subject to the 
provisions of the Credit Agreement which more fully set out the limitations on 
how interest accrues hereon. In the event applicable law provides for a ceiling 
under Section 303 of the Texas Finance Code, that ceiling shall be the weekly 
ceiling and shall be used in this Note for calculating the Highest Lawful Rate 
and for all other purposes. The term "applicable law" as used in this Note shall 
mean the laws of the State of Texas or the laws of the United States, whichever 
laws allow the greater interest, as such laws now exist or may be changed or 
amended or come into effect in the future. 
 
         If this Note is placed in the hands of an attorney for collection after 
default, or if all or any part of the indebtedness represented hereby is proved, 
established or collected in any court or in any bankruptcy, receivership, debtor 
relief, probate or other court proceedings, Borrower and all endorsers, sureties 
and guarantors of this Note jointly and severally agree to pay reasonable 
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attorneys' fees and collection costs to the holder hereof in addition to the 
principal and interest payable hereunder. 
 
         Borrower and all endorsers, sureties and guarantors of this Note hereby 
severally waive demand, presentment, notice of demand and of dishonor and 
nonpayment of this Note, protest, notice of protest, notice of intention to 
accelerate the maturity of this Note, declaration or notice of acceleration of 
the maturity of this Note, diligence in collecting, the bringing of any suit 
against any party and any notice of or defense on account of any extensions, 
renewals, partial payments or changes in any manner of or in this Note or in any 
of its terms, provisions and covenants, or any releases or substitutions of any 
security, or any delay, indulgence or other act of any trustee or any holder 
hereof, whether before or after maturity. 
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         THIS NOTE AND THE RIGHTS AND DUTIES OF THE PARTIES HERETO SHALL BE 
GOVERNED BY THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF TEXAS (WITHOUT REGARD TO PRINCIPLES OF 
CONFLICTS OF LAW), EXCEPT TO THE EXTENT THE SAME ARE GOVERNED BY APPLICABLE 
FEDERAL LAW. 
 
                                         CHESAPEAKE EXPLORATION LIMITED 
                                 PARTNERSHIP 
 
 
                                            By:      Chesapeake Operating, Inc., 
                                                     its general partner 
 
                                            By: 
                                               --------------------------------- 
                                                     Martha A. Burger 
                                                     Treasurer 
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                                                                       EXHIBIT B 
 
 
                               REQUEST FOR ADVANCE 
 
 
         Reference is made to that certain Amended and Restated Credit Agreement 
dated as of May _, 2000, among Chesapeake Energy Corporation, Chesapeake 
Exploration Limited Partnership ("Borrower"), certain Guarantors, Union Bank of 
California, N.A., as Agent ("Agent"), and Lenders from time to time party 
thereto (herein, as from time to time supplemented, amended or restated called 
the "Agreement"). Terms which are defined in the Agreement are used herein with 
the meanings given them in the Agreement. Pursuant to the terms of the Agreement 
Borrower hereby requests Lenders to make an Advance to Borrower in the principal 
amount of $ __________ and specifies ____________, 20__, as the date Borrower 
desires for Lenders to make such Advance and to deliver to Borrower the proceeds 
thereof. 
 
         To induce Lenders to make such Advance, Parent and Borrower hereby 
represent, warrant, acknowledge, and agree that: 
 
                  (a) The officer of Parent and Borrower signing this instrument 
         is the duly elected, qualified and acting officer of Parent and 
         Borrower as indicated below such officer's signature hereto having all 
         necessary authority to act for Parent and Borrower in making the 
         request herein contained. 
 
                  (b) The representations and warranties of Restricted Persons 
         set forth in the Agreement and the other Loan Documents are true and 
         correct on and as of the date hereof (except to the extent that the 
         facts on which such representations and warranties are based have been 
         changed by the extension of credit under the Agreement), with the same 
         effect as though such representations and warranties had been made on 
         and as of the date hereof. 
 
                  (c) There does not exist on the date hereof any condition or 
         event which constitutes a Default which has not been waived in writing 
         as provided in Section 10.1(a) of the Agreement; nor will any such 
         Default exist upon Borrower's receipt and application of the Advance 
         requested hereby. Borrower will use the Advance hereby requested in 
         compliance with Section 2.4 of the Agreement. 
 
                  (d) Except to the extent waived in writing as provided in 
         Section 10.1(a) of the Agreement, each Restricted Person has performed 
         and complied with all agreements and conditions in the Agreement 
         required to be performed or complied with by such Restricted Person on 
         or prior to the date hereof, and each of the conditions precedent to 
         Advances contained in the Agreement remains satisfied. 
 
                  (e) The unpaid principal balance of the Loan, after the making 
         of the Advance requested hereby, will not be in excess of the Borrowing 
         Base on the date requested for the making of such Advance. 
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                  (f) The Loan Documents have not been modified, amended or 
         supplemented by any unwritten representations or promises, by any 
         course of dealing, or by any other means not provided for in Section 
         10.1(a) of the Agreement. The Agreement and the other Loan Documents 
         are hereby ratified, approved, and confirmed in all respects. 
 
         The officers of Parent and Borrower signing this instrument hereby 
certify that, to the best of their knowledge after due inquiry, the above 
representations, warranties, acknowledgments, and agreements of Parent and 
Borrower are true, correct and complete. 
 
         IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this instrument is executed as of ____________, 
20__. 
 
                          CHESAPEAKE ENERGY CORPORATION 
 
 
                          By: 
                             ----------------------------------- 
                              Name: 
                              Title: 
 
                          CHESAPEAKE EXPLORATION LIMITED 
                    PARTNERSHIP 
 
 
                          By: Chesapeake Operating, Inc., 
                              its general partner 
 
                          By: 
                             ----------------------------------- 
                              Name: 
                              Title: 
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                                                                       EXHIBIT C 
 
 
                         CONTINUATION/CONVERSION NOTICE 
 
         Reference is made to that certain Amended and Restated Credit Agreement 
dated May _, 2000 among CHESAPEAKE ENERGY CORPORATION, CHESAPEAKE EXPLORATION 
LIMITED PARTNERSHIP ("Borrower"), certain Guarantors and UNION BANK OF 
CALIFORNIA, as Agent ("Agent"), and Lenders from time to time party thereto 
(herein, as from time to time supplemented, amended or restated, called the 
"Agreement"). Terms which are defined in the Agreement and which are used but 
not defined herein are used herein with the meanings given them in the 
Agreement. Pursuant to the terms of the Agreement Borrower hereby elects to 
[Continue the following Eurodollar Loan][Convert a Base Rate Loan to a 
Eurodollar Loan][in the amount of $ __________ with an Interest Period beginning 
on __________________ and continuing for a period of __________________] 
[Convert the following Eurodollar Loan to a Base Rate Loan]: 
 
 
         To meet the conditions set out in the Agreement for the making of such 
election, Parent and Borrower hereby represent, warrant, acknowledge and agree 
that: 
 
                  (a) The officer of Parent and Borrower signing this instrument 
         is the duly elected, qualified and acting officer of Parent and 
         Borrower as indicated below such officer's signature hereto having all 
         necessary authority to act for Parent and Borrower in making the 
         election herein contained. 
 
                  (b) There does not exist on the date hereof any condition or 
         event which constitutes a Default which has not been waived in writing 
         as provided in Section 10.1(a) of the Agreement. 
 
                  (c) The Loan Documents have not been modified, amended or 
         supplemented by any unwritten representations or promises, by any 
         course of dealing, or by any other means not provided for in Section 
         10.1(a) of the Agreement. The Agreement and the other Loan Documents 
         are hereby ratified, approved, and confirmed in all respects. 
 
         The officers of Parent and Borrower signing this instrument hereby 
certifies that, to the best of their knowledge after due inquiry, the above 
representations, warranties, acknowledgments, and agreements of Parent and 
Borrower are true, correct and complete. 
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         IN WITNESS WHEREOF this instrument is executed as of _______________. 
 
                          CHESAPEAKE ENERGY CORPORATION 
 
 
                          By: 
                             ----------------------------------- 
                              Name: 
                              Title: 
 
                          CHESAPEAKE EXPLORATION LIMITED 
                          PARTNERSHIP 
 
 
                          By: Chesapeake Operating, Inc., 
                              its general partner 
 
                          By: 
                             ----------------------------------- 
                              Name: 
                              Title: 
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                                                                       EXHIBIT D 
 
 
                            CERTIFICATE ACCOMPANYING 
                              FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 
         Reference is made to that certain Amended and Restated Credit Agreement 
dated as of May _, 2000, among Chesapeake Energy Corporation, Chesapeake 
Exploration Limited Partnership ("Borrower"), certain Guarantors, Union Bank of 
California, N.A., as Agent ("Agent"), and Lenders from time to time party 
thereto (herein, as from time to time supplemented, amended or restated called 
the "Agreement"), which Agreement is in full force and effect on the date 
hereof. Terms which are defined in the Agreement are used herein with the 
meanings given them in the Agreement. 
 
         This Certificate is furnished pursuant to Section 6.2(b) of the 
Agreement. Together herewith Parent and Borrower are furnishing to Lenders 
[Parent's][Borrower's] financial statements (the "Financial Statements") as at 
____________ (the "Reporting Date"). Parent and Borrower hereby represent, 
warrant, and acknowledge to Lenders that: 
 
         (a) the officer of Parent and Borrower signing this instrument is the 
duly elected, qualified and acting [Chief Financial Officer][Treasurer] of 
Parent and Borrower; 
 
         (b) the Financial Statements are accurate and complete and satisfy, the 
requirements of the Agreement, and fairly present the consolidated financial 
conditions and results of operations of [Parent and its Subsidiaries][Borrower]; 
 
         (c) a review of the activities of each Restricted Person during *[the 
Fiscal Quarter ending on the Reporting Date and during the portion of the Fiscal 
Year Ending on the Reporting Date]* *[the Fiscal Year Ending on the Reporting 
Date] has been made under the supervision of the undersigned and to the 
knowledge of the undersigned, each Restricted Person is in full compliance with 
the disclosure requirements of Section 6.2(d) of the Agreement and has observed, 
performed and fulfilled each and every other obligation and covenant contained 
in each of the Loan Documents (except to the extent properly waived as provided 
herein) and no Restricted Person was in Default under the Loan Documents as of 
the Reporting Date nor is in default as of the date hereof *[except for 
Default(s) under Section(s) ____________ of the Agreement, which *[is/are] more 
fully described on a schedule attached hereto]. 
 
         The officer of Parent and Borrower signing this instrument hereby 
certifies that he has reviewed the Loan Documents and the Financial Statements 
and has otherwise undertaken such inquiry as is in his opinion necessary to 
enable him to express an informed opinion with respect to the above 
representations, warranties and acknowledgments of Borrower and, to the best of 
his knowledge, such representations, warranties, and acknowledgments are true, 
correct and complete. 
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         IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this instrument is executed as of ____________, 
20__. 
 
                           CHESAPEAKE ENERGY CORPORATION 
 
 
                          By: 
                             ----------------------------------- 
                              Name: 
                              Title: 
 
                          CHESAPEAKE EXPLORATION LIMITED 
                          PARTNERSHIP 
 
 
                          By: Chesapeake Operating, Inc., 
                              its general partner 
 
                          By: 
                             ----------------------------------- 
                              Name: 
                              Title: 
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                                                                       EXHIBIT G 
 
                       ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT 
 
 
                                                     Date _______________, 200__ 
 
 
         Reference is made to that certain Amended and Restated Credit Agreement 
dated as of May _, 2000 (as from time to time amended, the "Agreement"), by and 
among Chesapeake Energy Corporation, Chesapeake Exploration Limited Partnership, 
as Borrower, certain Guarantors, Union Bank of California, N.A., as Agent, and 
certain financial institutions, as Lenders, which Agreement is in full force and 
effect on the date hereof. Terms which are defined in the Agreement are used 
herein with the meanings given them in the Agreement. 
 
         ____________________ ("Assignor") and ____________________ ("Assignee") 
hereby agree as follows: 
 
         1. Assignor hereby sells and assigns to Assignee without recourse and 
without representation or warranty (other than as expressly provided herein), 
and Assignee hereby purchases and assumes from Assignor, that interest in and to 
all of Assignor's rights and duties under the Agreement as of the date hereof 
which represents the percentage interest specified in Item 3 of Annex I hereto 
(the "Assigned Share") of all of the outstanding rights and obligations of all 
Lenders under the Agreement, including, without limitation, all rights and 
obligations with respect to the Assigned Share in Assignor's Loans and Note. 
After giving effect to such sale and assignment, Assignee's Percentage Share 
[(and Assignor's remaining Percentage Share)] will be as set forth in Item 3 of 
Annex I hereto. 
 
         2. Assignor: (i) represents and warrants that it is the legal and 
beneficial owner of the interest being assigned by it hereunder and that such 
interest is free and clear of any adverse claim; (ii) makes no representation or 
warranty and assumes no responsibility with respect to any statements, 
warranties or representations made in or in connection with the Agreement, the 
other Loan Documents or the execution, legality, validity, enforceability, 
genuineness, sufficiency or value of the Agreement, the other Loan Documents or 
any other instrument or document furnished pursuant thereto; and (iii) makes no 
representation or warranty and assumes no responsibility with respect to the 
financial condition of Borrower, any other Related Person or the performance or 
observance by any of them of any of their respective obligations under the 
Agreement, the other Loan Documents, or any other instrument or document 
furnished pursuant thereto. 
 
         3. Assignee: (i) confirms that it has received a copy of the Agreement, 
together with copies of the financial statements most recently delivered 
thereunder and such other Loan Documents and other documents and information as 
it has deemed appropriate to make its own analysis of Borrower and the 
transactions contemplated by the Agreement and its own independent decision to 
enter into this Assignment and Assumption Agreement; (ii) agrees that it will, 
independently and without reliance upon Assignor or any other Bank Party and 
based on such documents and information as it shall deem appropriate at the 
time, continue to make its 
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own credit decisions in taking or not taking action under the Agreement; (iii) 
confirms that it is a an Eligible Transferee under the Agreement; (iv) appoints 
and authorizes Agent to take such action as agent on its behalf and to exercise 
such powers under the Agreement and the other Loan Documents as are specifically 
delegated to them, together with all other powers reasonably incidental thereto; 
and (v) agrees that it will perform in accordance with their terms all of the 
obligations which by the terms of the Agreement are required to be performed by 
it as a Lender (including the obligation to make future Loans). [; and (vi) 
attaches the "Prescribed Forms" described in Section 3.7(d) of the Agreement.] 
 
         4. Following the execution of this Assignment and Assumption Agreement 
by Assignor and Assignee, an executed original hereof (together with all 
attachments) will be delivered to Agent. The effective date of this Assignment 
and Assumption Agreement (the "Settlement Date") shall be the date specified in 
Item 4 of Annex I hereto; provided that this Assignment and Assumption Agreement 
shall not be deemed to have taken effect unless (i) the consent hereto of Agent 
and Borrower has been obtained (to the extent required in the Agreement), (ii) 
Agent has received a fully executed original hereof, and (iii) Agent has 
received the processing fee referred to in Section 10.5(c)(ii) of the Agreement. 
 
         5. Upon the satisfaction of the foregoing conditions, then as of the 
Settlement Date: (i) Assignee shall be a party to the Agreement and, to the 
extent provided in this Assignment and Assumption Agreement, have the rights and 
obligations of a Lender thereunder and under the other Loan Documents and (ii) 
Assignor shall, to the extent provided in this Assignment and Assumption 
Agreement, relinquish its rights and be released from its duties under the 
Agreement and the other Loan Documents. 
 
         6. All interest, fees and other amounts that would otherwise accrue 
pursuant to the Agreement and Assignor's Note for the account of Assignor from 
and after the Settlement Date shall, instead accrue for the account of, and be 
payable to, Assignor and Assignee, as the case may be, in accordance with their 
respective interests as reflected in Item 3 to Annex I hereto. All payments of 
principal that would otherwise be payable from and after the Settlement Date to 
or for the account of Assignor pursuant to the Agreement and Assignor's Note 
shall, instead, be payable to or for the account of Assignor and Assignee, as 
the case may be, in accordance with their respective interests as reflected in 
Item 3 to Annex I hereto. On the Settlement Date, Assignee shall pay to Assignor 
an amount specified by Assignor in writing which represents the portion of 
Assignor's Loans which is being assigned and which is outstanding on the 
Settlement Date, net of any closing costs. Assignor and Assignee shall make all 
appropriate adjustments in payments under the Agreement for periods prior to the 
Settlement Date directly between themselves on the Settlement Date. 
 
         7. Each of the parties to this Assignment and Assumption Agreement 
agrees that at any time and from time to time upon the written request of any 
other party, it will execute and deliver such further documents and do such 
further acts and things as such other party may reasonably request in order to 
effect the purposes of this Assignment and Assumption Agreement. 
 
         8. This Assignment and Assumption Agreement shall be governed by, and 
construed in accordance with, the Laws of the State of Texas. 
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         IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused their duly 
authorized officers to execute and deliver this Assignment and Assumption 
Agreement, as of the date first above written, such execution also being made on 
Annex I hereto. 
 
                                               [NAME OF ASSIGNOR] 
                                               as Assignor 
 
 
                                               By: 
                                                  ------------------------- 
                                                  Title: 
 
 
                                               [NAME OF ASSIGNEE] 
 
 
                                               By: 
                                                  ------------------------- 
                                                  Title: 
 
CONSENTED TO AND ACKNOWLEDGED: 
 
 
UNION BANK OF CALIFORNIA, N.A. 
as Agent 
 
 
By: 
   ------------------------- 
   Title: 
 
 
By: 
   ------------------------- 
   Title: 
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                  ANNEX FOR ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT 
 
                                     ANNEX I 
 
1.       Borrower: Chesapeake Energy Corporation and Chesapeake Exploration 
         Limited Partnership 
 
2.       Date of Assignment Agreement: 
 
3.       Amounts (as of date of item #2 above): 
 
 
 
                                            [Assignor             Assignee 
                                           (as Revised)]           (New) 
                                           -------------         --------- 
 
                                                           
         a.  Percentage Share              [__________%]         __________% 
 
         b.  Percentage Share of 
              Borrowing Base:              [$__________]         $__________ 
 
 
4.       Settlement Date: 
 
5.       Notices: 
 
         ASSIGNEE: 
 
         ------------------------ 
         ------------------------ 
         ------------------------ 
         ------------------------ 
         Attention: 
                   -------------- 
         Telephone: 
                   -------------- 
         Telecopy: 
                   -------------- 
 
6.       Wiring Instructions: 
 
         ------------------------ 
         ------------------------ 
         ------------------------ 
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                                                                  EXHIBIT 4.7.1 
 
         FIRST AMENDMENT TO AMENDED AND RESTATED CREDIT AGREEMENT 
 
         THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO AMENDED AND RESTATED CREDIT AGREEMENT (herein 
called this "Amendment") is made effective as of the 31st day of July, 2000 by 
and among Chesapeake Exploration Limited Partnership, an Oklahoma limited 
partnership ("Borrower"), Chesapeake Energy Corporation, an Oklahoma corporation 
("CEC"), certain other Subsidiaries of CEC (the "Subsidiary Guarantors"), Union 
Bank of California, N.A. ("Union Bank"), as administrative agent (in such 
capacity, the "Administrative Agent") and documentation agent, Bear Stearns 
Corporate Lending Inc. ("Bear Stearns"), as syndication agent (in such capacity, 
the "Syndication Agent"), Union Bank and Bear Stearns & Co. Inc., as Co-Lead 
Arrangers, and certain financial institutions party hereto ("Lenders"). 
 
                                   WITNESSETH: 
 
         WHEREAS, Borrower, CEC and the Subsidiary Guarantors, as guarantors, 
Union Bank of California, N.A., as initial Lender and Administrative Agent 
entered into that certain Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of May 
30, 2000 (the "Original Agreement") for the purposes and consideration therein 
expressed; and 
 
         WHEREAS, pursuant to that certain Assignment and Assumption Agreement 
of even date herewith by and between Union Bank and Bear Stearns, Union Bank has 
sold and assigned to Bear Stearns, as a lender, a fifty-percent (50%) interest 
in and to all of Union Bank's rights and obligations under the Original 
Agreement and the other Loan Documents; and 
 
         WHEREAS, Borrower, CEC, the Subsidiary Guarantors, Administrative Agent 
and Syndication Agent and Lenders desire to amend the Original Agreement as 
expressly set forth herein; 
 
         NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual 
covenants and agreements contained herein and in the Original Agreement, in 
consideration of the loans which may hereafter be made by Lenders to Borrower, 
and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 
which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto do hereby agree as follows: 
 
                                   ARTICLE I. 
 
                           DEFINITIONS AND REFERENCES 
 
         Section 1.1 Terms Defined in the Original Agreement. Unless the context 
otherwise requires or unless otherwise expressly defined herein, the terms 
defined in the Original Agreement shall have the same meanings whenever used in 
this Amendment. 
 
         Section 1.2. Other Defined Terms. Unless the context otherwise 
requires, the following terms when used in this Amendment shall have the 
meanings assigned to them in this Section 1.2. 
 
 
 



   2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
         "Amendment" means this First Amendment to Credit Agreement. 
 
         "Credit Agreement" means the Original Agreement as amended hereby. 
 
 
                                   ARTICLE II. 
 
                        AMENDMENTS TO ORIGINAL AGREEMENT 
 
         Section 2.1. Defined Terms. Section 1.1 of the Original Agreement is 
hereby amended as follows: 
 
                  (a) The definition of "Chesapeake Marketing" is hereby amended 
         in its entirety to read as follows: 
 
                  " 'Chesapeake Marketing' means Chesapeake Energy Marketing, 
         Inc., an Oklahoma corporation." 
 
                  (b) The definition of "Maximum Loan Amount" is hereby amended 
         in its entirety to read as follows: 
 
                  " 'Maximum Loan Amount' means the amount of $100,000,000." 
 
                  (c) The definition of "Required Lenders" is hereby deleted. 
 
                  (d) The definition of "Senior Debt Limit" is hereby amended as 
         follows: 
 
                  The reference to "Section 4.8" is changed to "Section 4.9". 
 
                  (e) The definition of "Syndication Agent" is hereby added to 
         read as follows: 
 
                  " 'Syndication Agent' means Bear Stearns Corporate Lending 
         Inc., as Syndication Agent hereunder, and its successors in such 
         capacity." 
 
         Section 2.2. Majority Lenders. All references to "Required Lenders" in 
Sections 1.1, 2.7(b)(iii), 2.9 and 7.5(d) of the Original Agreement are hereby 
changed to "Majority Lenders". 
 
         Section 2.3. Agents' Fees. Section 2.5(b) of the Original Agreement is 
hereby restated for the purposes of this Amendment: 
 
                        "(b) Fees. In addition to all other amounts due to Agent 
            and Syndication Agent under the Loan Documents, Borrower will pay 
            fees to Agent and Syndication Agent as described in a letter 
            agreement dated July 17, 2000 between Agent, Syndication Agent and 
            Borrower." 
 
         Section 2.4. Extension of Maturity Date. Section 2.17 is hereby added 
to the Original Agreement to read as follows: 
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                  "Section 2.17. Option to Extend Maturity Date. On the last day 
         of the Commitment Period, unless sooner paid as provided herein, all 
         Loans shall be paid in full; provided that, upon Borrower's (i) written 
         notice to Agent and Lenders of its intention to do so, given at least 
         thirty (30) days prior to the Maturity Date and specifying the 
         principal amount of Loans that will be outstanding on the Maturity Date 
         and (ii) payment to Agent, on the Maturity Date for the account of each 
         Lender, an amount equal to one-half of one-percent (.50%) times the 
         Loans of each Lender outstanding on the Maturity Date, all Loans 
         outstanding on the Maturity Date (but not to exceed the amount so 
         specified in such written notice ) shall be due and payable in six (6) 
         consecutive monthly installments, each of which shall be equal to 
         one-sixth (1/6) of all Loans outstanding on the Maturity Date, and 
         shall be due and payable on the 15th day of each calendar month, 
         beginning August 15, 2002 and continuing regularly thereafter until 
         January 15, 2003, at which time the unpaid principal balance of the 
         Loans and all interest accrued thereon shall be due and payable in 
         full." 
 
         Section 2.5. Limitation on Dividends and Redemptions. Section 7.6 of 
the Original Agreement is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows: 
 
                  "Section 7.6. Limitation on Dividends and Redemptions. No 
         Restricted Person will declare or pay any dividends on, or make any 
         other distribution in respect of, any class of its capital stock or any 
         partnership or other interest in it, nor will any Restricted Person 
         directly or indirectly make any capital contribution to or purchase, 
         redeem, acquire or retire any shares of the capital stock of or 
         partnership interests in any Restricted Person (whether such interests 
         are now or hereafter issued, outstanding or created), or cause or 
         permit any reduction or retirement of the capital stock of any 
         Restricted Person, except as expressly provided in this section. 
         Dividends, distributions, contributions, purchases, redemptions, 
         acquisitions, retirements or reductions may be made by any Restricted 
         Person to another Restricted Person. Dividends on Parent's 7% 
         Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock ("Preferred Stock") accrued for 
         the Fiscal Quarter then most recently ended may be paid by Parent 
         during each Fiscal Quarter beginning with a payment in the Fiscal 
         Quarter ended September 30, 2000 (in respect of dividends accrued for 
         the Fiscal Quarter ended June 30, 2000) provided (i) such dividends 
         declared and paid in any Fiscal Quarter shall not exceed $.875 per 
         share of Preferred Stock and (ii) at the time any such dividend is so 
         declared and after giving effect to such declaration and payment, no 
         Event of Default will result under Section 7.12 and no other Default or 
         Event of Default will have occurred and be continuing or will result 
         from such declaration and payment. No other dividends of any type to 
         any Person shall be paid without the prior written consent of the Agent 
         and Majority Lenders." 
 
         Section 2.6. Other Agents. Section 9.10 is hereby added to the Original 
Agreement to read as follows: 
 
                  "Section 9.10. Other Agents. The Syndication Agent, in such 
         capacity, shall not have any duties or responsibilities or incur any 
         obligation or liabilities under this Agreement or other Loan 
         Documents." 
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         Section 2.7. Borrowing Base. As of the date hereof and until compliance 
with the conditions set forth in the immediately following sentence of this 
paragraph, the Borrowing Base shall be $75,000,000. Upon (i) Borrower's 
execution, acknowledgment and delivery to Agent of Security Documents in form 
and substance satisfactory to Agent, granting to Agent, on behalf of the 
Lenders, first perfected Liens on and in the properties listed on Schedule 1 
attached hereto and (ii) completion by counsel to Agent of title review in 
respect of the properties listed on Schedule 2 attached hereto satisfactory in 
form and scope to Agent reflecting to Agent's satisfaction, that Borrower has 
good and defensible title to such properties free and clear of all Liens other 
than Permitted Liens and such other matters as Agent shall specify, the 
Borrowing Base shall be $100,000,000. Nothing in this paragraph shall prevent 
the Borrowing Base from continuing to be subject to the provisions of Sections 
2.9 and 2.10 of the Original Agreement. 
 
 
                                  ARTICLE III. 
 
                           CONDITIONS OF EFFECTIVENESS 
 
         Section 3.1 This Amendment shall become effective as of the date first 
above written when, and only when Administrative Agent shall have received the 
following, at Administrative Agent's office in Los Angeles, California, duly 
executed and delivered in form, substance and date satisfactory to Agent: 
 
                  (a) This Amendment and any other documents that Administrative 
         Agent, Syndication Agent and Lenders are to execute in connection 
         herewith. 
 
                  (b) Certain certificates of Borrower including: 
 
                           (i) An "Omnibus Certificate" of the Secretary and of 
                  the Chairman of the Board or President of the general partner 
                  of Borrower, which shall contain the names and signatures of 
                  the officers of the general partner of Borrower authorized to 
                  execute Loan Documents and which shall certify to the truth, 
                  correctness and completeness of the following exhibits 
                  attached thereto: (1) a copy of resolutions attached thereto 
                  duly adopted by the Board of Directors of the general partner 
                  of Borrower and in full force and effect at the time this 
                  Amendment is entered into, authorizing the execution of this 
                  Amendment and the other Loan Documents delivered or to be 
                  delivered in connection herewith and the consummation of the 
                  transactions contemplated herein and therein, (2) a copy of 
                  the charter documents of Borrower and of the general partner 
                  of Borrower and all amendments thereto, certified by the 
                  appropriate official of the Borrower's state and general 
                  partner's state of organization, and (3) a copy of any bylaws 
                  of the general partner of Borrower previously delivered to 
                  Agent and Lenders in connection with the Original Agreement 
                  (which may, with respect to any such charter documents or 
                  bylaws, reference documents previously delivered in connection 
                  with the Original Agreement); and 
 
                           (ii) A "Compliance Certificate" of the Chairman of 
                  the Board or President and of the chief financial officer of 
                  Parent, of even date with such Loan 
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                  or such Letter of Credit, in which such officers certify to 
                  the satisfaction of the conditions set out in subsections (a), 
                  (b), (c) and (d) of Section 4.2 of the Original Agreement. 
 
                  (c) Documents similar to those specified in subsection (b)(i) 
         of this Section with respect to each Guarantor (which may, with respect 
         to charter documents or bylaws, reference documents previously 
         delivered in connection with the Original Agreement). 
 
                  (d) A favorable opinion of Messrs. Self, Giddens and Lees, 
         counsel for Restricted Persons, substantially in the form set forth in 
         Exhibit F of the Original Agreement. 
 
                  (e) A certificate executed by the chief financial officer of 
         Parent of even date herewith reflecting the computation of the then 
         current Senior Debt Limit together with supporting information 
         satisfactory to Agent. 
 
                  (f) Payment of all commitment, facility, agency and other fees 
         required to be paid to any Bank Party pursuant to the letter agreement 
         referred to in Section 2.3 of this Amendment. 
 
                                   ARTICLE IV. 
 
                         REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 
 
         Section 4.1. Representations and Warranties of Borrower and CEC. In 
order to induce Administrative Agent, Syndication Agent and Lenders to enter 
into this Amendment, Borrower and CEC represent and warrant to Administrative 
Agent, Syndication Agent and Lenders that: 
 
                  (a) The representations and warranties contained in Article V, 
         subsections 5.01 to 5.19, inclusive, of the Original Agreement are true 
         and correct at and as of the time of the effectiveness hereof. 
 
                  (b) Borrower, CEC and the Subsidiary Guarantors are duly 
         authorized to execute and deliver this Amendment and are and will 
         continue to be duly authorized to borrow monies and to perform their 
         obligations under the Credit Agreement. Borrower, CEC and the 
         Subsidiary Guarantors have duly taken all partnership and corporate 
         action necessary to authorize the execution and delivery of this 
         Amendment and to authorize the performance of the obligations of 
         Borrower, CEC and the Subsidiary Guarantors hereunder. 
 
                  (c) The execution and delivery by Borrower, CEC and the 
         Subsidiary Guarantors of this Amendment, the performance by Borrower, 
         CEC and the Subsidiary Guarantors of their obligations hereunder and 
         the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby do not and 
         will not conflict with any provision of law, statute, rule or 
         regulation or the articles of incorporation and bylaws of Borrower or 
         CEC, or of any material agreement, judgment, license, order or permit 
         applicable to or binding upon 
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         Borrower, CEC and the Subsidiary Guarantors, or result in the creation 
         of any lien, charge or encumbrance upon any assets or properties of 
         Borrower, CEC and the Subsidiary Guarantors. Except for those which 
         have been obtained, no consent, approval, authorization or order of any 
         court or governmental authority or third party is required in 
         connection with the execution and delivery by Borrower, CEC and the 
         Subsidiary Guarantors of this Amendment or to consummate the 
         transactions contemplated hereby. 
 
                  (d) When duly executed and delivered, this Amendment and the 
         Credit Agreement will each be a legal and binding obligation of 
         Borrower, CEC and the Subsidiary Guarantors, enforceable in accordance 
         with its terms, except as limited by bankruptcy, insolvency or similar 
         laws of general application relating to the enforcement of creditors' 
         rights and by equitable principles of general application. 
 
                  (e) The audited Consolidated financial statements of the 
         Parent dated as of December 31, 1999 and the unaudited Consolidated 
         financial statements of the Parent dated as of March 31, 2000, fairly 
         present the Parent's Consolidated financial position at such date and 
         the Consolidated results of the Parent's operations and changes in the 
         Parent's Consolidated cash flow for the period thereof. Copies of such 
         financial statements have heretofore been delivered to Administrative 
         Agent, Syndication Agent and Lenders. 
 
 
                                   ARTICLE V. 
 
                                  MISCELLANEOUS 
 
         Section 5.1. Ratification of Agreements. The Original Agreement as 
hereby amended and each other Loan Document affected hereby are ratified and 
confirmed in all respects. Any reference to the Credit Agreement in any Loan 
Document shall be deemed to be a reference to the Original Agreement as hereby 
amended. The execution, delivery and effectiveness of this Amendment shall not, 
except as expressly provided herein or therein, operate as a waiver of any 
right, power or remedy of Administrative Agent, Syndication Agent or Lenders 
under the Credit Agreement or any other Loan Document nor constitute a waiver of 
any provision of the Credit Agreement or any other Loan Document. 
 
         Section 5.2. Survival of Agreements. All representations, warranties, 
covenants and agreements of Borrower, CEC and the Subsidiary Guarantors herein 
shall survive the execution and delivery of this Amendment and the performance 
hereof, including without limitation the making or granting of the Loan, and 
shall further survive until all of the Obligations are paid in full. All 
statements and agreements contained in any certificate or instrument delivered 
by Borrower or CEC or any Subsidiary Guarantor hereunder or under the Credit 
Agreement to Administrative Agent, Syndication Agent or Lenders shall be deemed 
to constitute representations and warranties by, and/or agreements and covenants 
of, Borrower, CEC and the Subsidiary Guarantors under this Amendment and under 
the Credit Agreement. 
 
         Section 5.3. Consent of Guarantors. Each of the undersigned Guarantors 
hereby consents to the provisions of this Amendment and the transactions 
contemplated herein and hereby (i) 
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acknowledges and agrees that any and all indebtedness, liabilities or 
obligations arising under or in connection with the Notes are Obligations and 
are secured indebtedness under, and are secured by, each and every Security 
Document to which it is a party, (ii) re-pledges, re-grants and re-assigns a 
security interest in and lien on all of its assets described as collateral in 
any Security Document, (iii) ratifies and confirms its Guaranty dated May 30, 
2000 made by it for the benefit of Administrative Agent and Lenders, and (iv) 
expressly acknowledges and agrees that such Guarantor guarantees all 
indebtedness, liabilities and obligations arising under or in connection with 
the Notes pursuant to the terms of such Guaranty, and agrees that its 
obligations and covenants thereunder are unimpaired hereby and shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
 
         Section 5.4. Release of Claims. Borrower hereby releases and forever 
discharges Administrative Agent, Syndication Agent and Lenders, together with 
their employees, agents, attorneys, officers, and directors (all of the 
foregoing hereinafter called the "Released Parties"), from any and all actions 
and causes of action, judgments, executions, suits, debts, claims, demands, 
liabilities, obligations, damages and expenses of any and every character, known 
or unknown, direct and/or indirect, at law or in equity, of whatsoever kind or 
nature, whether heretofore or hereafter accruing, for or because of any matter 
or things done, omitted or suffered to be done by any of the Released Parties 
prior to and including the date hereof, and in any way directly or indirectly 
arising out of or in any way connected to the Original Agreement, including but 
not limited to claims of usury (although no such claims are known to exist) (all 
of the foregoing hereinafter called the "Released Matters"). Borrower 
acknowledges that the agreements in this Section 5.4 are intended to cover and 
be in full satisfaction for all or any alleged injuries or damages arising in 
connection with the Released Matters herein compromised and settled. 
 
         Section 5.5. Loan Documents. This Amendment is a Loan Document, and all 
provisions in the Credit Agreement pertaining to Loan Documents apply hereto. 
 
         Section 5.6. Governing Law. This Amendment shall be governed by and 
construed in accordance the laws of the State of Texas and any applicable laws 
of the United States of America in all respects, including construction, 
validity and performance. 
 
         Section 5.7. Counterparts. This Amendment may be separately executed in 
counterparts and by the different parties hereto in separate counterparts, each 
of which when so executed shall be deemed to constitute one and the same 
Amendment. 
 
         THIS AMENDMENT AND THE OTHER LOAN DOCUMENTS REPRESENT THE FINAL 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE PARTIES AND MAY NOT BE CONTRADICTED BY EVIDENCE OF PRIOR, 
CONTEMPORANEOUS, OR SUBSEQUENT ORAL AGREEMENTS OF THE PARTIES. 
 
         THERE ARE NO UNWRITTEN ORAL AGREEMENTS BETWEEN THE PARTIES. 
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         IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Amendment to be 
executed as of the date first written above by their duly authorized officers. 
 
 
                                    CHESAPEAKE EXPLORATION LIMITED PARTNERSHIP, 
                                    BORROWER 
 
                                        By: Chesapeake Operating, Inc., 
                                            its general partner 
 
                                        By: 
                                           ------------------------------------ 
                                            Martha A. Burger 
                                            Treasurer 
 
 
                                    CHESAPEAKE ENERGY CORPORATION, 
                                    GUARANTOR 
 
                                    By: 
                                       ---------------------------------------- 
                                         Martha A. Burger 
                                         Treasurer 
 
 
                                    CHESAPEAKE PANHANDLE LIMITED 
                                    PARTNERSHIP, 
                                    GUARANTOR 
 
                                        By:  Chesapeake Operating, Inc., 
                                             its general partner 
 
                                        By: 
                                           ------------------------------------ 
                                             Martha A. Burger 
                                             Treasurer 
 
 
                                    CHESAPEAKE LOUISIANA, L.P., 
                                    GUARANTOR 
 
                                        By:  Chesapeake Operating, Inc., 
                                             its general partner 
 
                                        By: 
                                           ------------------------------------ 
                                             Martha A. Burger 
                                             Treasurer 
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                                    CHESAPEAKE ACQUISITION CORPORATION, 
                                    GUARANTOR 
 
                                    By: 
                                       ---------------------------------------- 
                                        Martha A. Burger 
                                        Treasurer 
 
 
                                    CHESAPEAKE OPERATING, INC., 
                                    GUARANTOR 
 
                                    By: 
                                       ---------------------------------------- 
                                        Martha A. Burger 
                                        Treasurer 
 
 
                                    CHESAPEAKE ENERGY LOUISIANA CORPORATION, 
                                    GUARANTOR 
 
                                    By: 
                                       ---------------------------------------- 
                                        Martha A. Burger 
                                        Treasurer 
 
 
                                    CHESAPEAKE ROYALTY COMPANY, 
                                    GUARANTOR 
 
                                    By: 
                                       ---------------------------------------- 
                                        Martha A. Burger 
                                        Treasurer 
 
 
                                    ARKOMA PITTSBURG HOLDING CORPORATION, 
                                    GUARANTOR 
 
                                    By: 
                                       ---------------------------------------- 
                                        Martha A. Burger 
                                        Treasurer 
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                                  UNION BANK OF CALIFORNIA, N.A., 
                                  ADMINISTRATIVE AGENT, DOCUMENTATION AGENT, LC 
                                  ISSUER, LENDER AND CO-LEAD ARRANGER 
 
 
                                    By: 
                                       ---------------------------------------- 
                                         Name: 
                                         Title: 
 
 
                                    By: 
                                       ---------------------------------------- 
                                         Name: 
                                         Title: 
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                                    BEAR STEARNS CORPORATE LENDING INC., 
                                    SYNDICATION AGENT AND LENDER 
 
 
                                    By: 
                                       ---------------------------------------- 
                                         Name: 
                                         Title: 
 
 
                                    BEAR STEARNS & CO. INC., 
                                    CO-LEAD ARRANGER 
 
 
                                    By: 
                                       ---------------------------------------- 
                                         Name: 
                                         Title: 
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                              EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
 
         THIS AGREEMENT is made effective July 1, 2000, between CHESAPEAKE 
ENERGY CORPORATION, an Oklahoma corporation (the "Company"), and Steven C. 
Dixon, an individual (the "Executive") and replaces and supersedes that certain 
Employment Agreement between Company and Executive dated July 1, 1997. 
 
                                  WITNESSETH: 
 
         WHEREAS, the Company desires to retain the services of the Executive 
and the Executive desires to make the Executive's services available to the 
Company. 
 
         NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises herein 
contained, the Company and the Executive agree as follows: 
 
1. Employment. The Company hereby employs the Executive and the Executive hereby 
accepts such employment subject to the terms and conditions contained in this 
Agreement. The Executive is engaged as an employee of the Company, and the 
Executive and the Company do not intend to create a joint venture, partnership 
or other relationship which might impose a fiduciary obligation on the Executive 
or the Company in the performance of this Agreement. 
 
2. Executive's Duties. The Executive is employed on a full-time basis. 
Throughout the term of this Agreement, the Executive will use the Executive's 
best efforts and due diligence to assist the Company in achieving the most 
profitable operation of the Company and the Company's affiliated entities 
consistent with developing and maintaining a quality business operation. 
 
        2.1     Specific Duties. The Executive will serve as Senior Vice 
                President - operations for the Company. The Executive will 
                perform all of the services required to fully and faithfully 
                execute the office and position to which the Executive is 
                appointed and such other services as may be reasonably requested 
                by the Executive's supervisor. During the term of this 
                Agreement, the Executive may be nominated for election or 
                appointed to serve as a director or officer of the Company's 
                subsidiaries as determined in the board of directors' sole 
                discretion. 
 
        2.2     Supervision. The services of the Executive will be requested and 
                directed by the President and Chief Operating Officer, Mr. Tom 
                L. Ward, and the Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Aubrey K. 
                McClendon. 
 
        2.3     Rules and Regulations. The Company currently has an Employment 
                Policies Manual which sets forth the general human resources 
                policies of the Company and addresses frequently asked questions 
                regarding the 
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                Company. The Executive agrees to comply with the Employment 
                Policies Manual except to the extent inconsistent with this 
                Agreement. The Employment Policies Manual is subject to change 
                without notice in the sole discretion of the Company at any 
                time. 
 
        2.4     Stock Investment. The Executive agrees to hold not less than one 
                thousand (1,000) shares of the Company's common stock during the 
                term of this Agreement. 
 
3. Other Activities. Unless the Executive has obtained the prior written 
approval of the board of directors of the Company, the Executive will not: (a) 
engage in business independent of the Executive's employment by the Company; (b) 
serve as an officer, general partner or member in any corporation, partnership, 
company, or firm; (c) directly or indirectly invest in, participate in or 
acquire an interest in any oil and gas business, including, without limitation, 
(i) producing oil and gas, (ii) drilling, owning or operating oil and gas leases 
or wells, (iii) providing services or materials to the oil and gas industry, 
(iv) marketing or refining oil or gas, or (v) owning any interest in any 
corporation, partnership, company or entity which conducts any of the foregoing 
activities. The limitation in this paragraph 3 will not prohibit an investment 
by the Executive in publicly traded securities; or the continued direct 
ownership and operation of oil and gas interests and leases to the extent such 
interests were owned by the Executive on the Executive's first date of 
employment with the Company. The Executive agrees not to directly or indirectly 
acquire any additional oil and gas interests or increase ownership of any oil 
and gas interests owned by the Executive on the Executive's first date of 
employment with the Company. 
 
4. Executive's Compensation. The Company agrees to compensate the Executive as 
follows: 
 
        4.1     Base Salary. A base salary (the "Base Salary"), at the initial 
                annual rate of not less than Two Hundred Five Thousand Dollars 
                ($205,000.00), will be paid to the Executive in equal 
                semi-monthly installments beginning July 15, 2000 during the 
                term of this Agreement. 
 
        4.2     Bonus. In addition to the Base Salary described at paragraph 4.1 
                of this Agreement, the Company may periodically pay bonus 
                compensation to the Executive. Any bonus compensation will be at 
                the absolute discretion of the Company in such amounts and at 
                such times as the board of directors of the Company may 
                determine. 
 
        4.3     Stock Options. In addition to the compensation set forth in 
                paragraphs 4.1 and 4.2 of this Agreement, the Executive may 
                periodically receive grants of stock options from the Company's 
                various stock option plans, subject to the terms and conditions 
                thereof. 
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        4.4     Benefits. The Company will provide the Executive such retirement 
                benefits, reimbursement of reasonable expenditures for dues, 
                travel and entertainment and such other benefits as are 
                customarily provided by the Company and as are set forth in and 
                governed by the Company's Employment Policies Manual. The 
                Company will also provide the Executive the opportunity to apply 
                for coverage under the Company's medical, life and disability 
                plans, if any. If the Executive is accepted for coverage under 
                such plans, the Company will make such coverage available to the 
                Executive on the same terms as is customarily provided by the 
                Company to the plan participants as modified from time to time. 
                The following specific benefits will also be provided to the 
                Executive at the expense of the Company: 
 
                4.4.1   Vacation. The Executive will be entitled to take three 
                        (3) weeks of paid vacation each twelve months during the 
                        term of this Agreement. No additional compensation will 
                        be paid for failure to take vacation and no vacation may 
                        be carried forward from one twelve month period to 
                        another. 
 
                4.4.2   Membership Dues. The Company will reimburse the 
                        Executive for: (a) the monthly dues necessary to 
                        maintain a full membership in a country club in the 
                        Oklahoma City area selected by the Executive in an 
                        amount not to exceed Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00) per 
                        month; and (b) the reasonable cost of any approved 
                        business entertainment at such country club. All other 
                        costs, including, without implied limitation, any 
                        initiation costs, initial membership costs, personal use 
                        and business entertainment unrelated to the Company will 
                        be the sole obligation of the Executive and the Company 
                        will have no liability with respect to such amounts. 
 
                4.4.3   Compensation Review. The compensation of the Executive 
                        will be reviewed not less frequently than annually by 
                        the board of directors of the Company. 
 
5. Term. The employment relationship evidenced by this Agreement is an "at will" 
employment relationship and the Company reserves the right to terminate the 
Executive at any time with or without cause. In the absence of such termination, 
this Agreement will extend for a term of three (3) years commencing on July 1, 
2000, and ending on June 30, 2003 (the "Expiration Date"). 
 
6. Termination. This Agreement will continue in effect until the expiration of 
the term stated at paragraph 5 of this Agreement unless earlier terminated 
pursuant to this paragraph 6. 
 
        6.1     Termination by Company. The Company will have the following 
                rights to terminate this Agreement: 
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                6.1.1   Termination without Cause. The Company may terminate 
                        this Agreement without cause at any time by the service 
                        of written notice of termination to the Executive 
                        specifying an effective date of such termination not 
                        sooner than sixty (60) business days after the date of 
                        such notice (the "Termination Date"). In the event the 
                        Executive is terminated without cause, or the Company 
                        elects not to renew this Agreement, the Executive will 
                        receive as termination compensation: (a) Base Salary for 
                        a period of ninety (90) days; (b) any benefits payable 
                        by operation of paragraph 4.4 of this Agreement; and (c) 
                        any vacation pay accrued through the Termination Date. 
                        The termination compensation in (a) shall be paid only 
                        if the Executive executes the Company's standard 
                        termination agreement releasing all legally waivable 
                        claims arising from the Executive's employment. 
 
                6.1.2   Termination for Cause. The Company may terminate this 
                        Agreement for cause if the Executive: (a) 
                        misappropriates the property of the Company or commits 
                        any other act of dishonesty; (b) engages in personal 
                        misconduct which materially injures the Company; (c) 
                        willfully violates any law or regulation relating to the 
                        business of the Company which results in injury to the 
                        Company; or (d) willfully and repeatedly fails to 
                        perform the Executive's duties hereunder. In the event 
                        this Agreement is terminated for cause, the Company will 
                        not have any obligation to provide any further payments 
                        or benefits to the Executive after the Termination Date. 
 
                6.1.3   Termination after Change of Control. If, during the term 
                        of this Agreement, there is a "Change of Control" and 
                        within one (1) year from the effective date of such 
                        Change of Control: (a) this Agreement expires and is not 
                        extended; or (b) the Executive resigns as a result of 
                        (i) a reduction in the Executive's compensation 
                        (including the Executive's then current Base Salary 
                        under Paragraphs 4.1 of this Agreement and bonuses equal 
                        to those paid to the Executive during calendar year 2000 
                        under paragraph 4.2 of this Agreement), or (ii) a 
                        required relocation more than twenty five (25) miles 
                        from the Executive's then current place of employment; 
                        or within one (1) year from the effective date of the 
                        Change of Control the Executive is terminated other than 
                        under Paragraphs 6.1.2, 6.3 or 6.4 based on adequate 
                        grounds; then the Executive will be entitled to a 
                        severance payment (in addition to any other amounts 
                        payable to the Executive under this Agreement or 
                        otherwise, excluding any Base Salary payable under 
                        Paragraph 6.1.1, as of the date of 
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                        termination or resignation hereunder) in an amount equal 
                        to six (6) months of the Executive's then current Base 
                        Salary under Paragraph 4.1 of this Agreement plus 
                        bonuses equal to those paid to the Executive during 
                        calendar year 2000 under Paragraph 4.2. The term "Change 
                        of Control" means any action of a nature that would be 
                        required to be reported in response to Item 6(e) of 
                        Schedule 14A of Regulation 14A under the Securities 
                        Exchange Act of 1934 with respect to Chesapeake Energy 
                        Corporation ("Chesapeake") including, without limitation 
                        (i) the direct or indirect acquisition by any person 
                        after the date hereof of beneficial ownership of the 
                        right to vote or securities of Chesapeake representing 
                        the right to vote fifty one percent (51%) or more of the 
                        combined voting power of Chesapeake's then outstanding 
                        securities having the right to vote for the election of 
                        directors, or (ii) a merger, consolidation, sale of 
                        assets or contested election or (iii) any combination of 
                        (i) and (ii) which results in a majority of the members 
                        of Chesapeake's board of directors being replaced by 
                        directors who were not nominated and approved by the 
                        existing board of directors. 
 
        6.2     Termination by Executive. The Executive may voluntarily 
                terminate this Agreement with or without cause by the service of 
                written notice of such termination to the Company specifying a 
                Termination Date no sooner than thirty (30) days after the date 
                of such notice. In the event this Agreement is terminated by the 
                Executive, neither the Company nor the Executive will have any 
                further obligations hereunder including, without limitation, any 
                obligation of the Company to provide any further payments or 
                benefits to the Executive after the Termination Date. 
 
        6.3     Incapacity of Executive. If the Executive suffers from a 
                physical or mental condition which in the reasonable judgment of 
                the Company's management prevents the Executive in whole or in 
                part from performing the duties specified herein for a period of 
                three (3) consecutive months, the Executive may be terminated. 
                Although the termination may be deemed as a termination for 
                cause, any compensation payable under paragraph 4 of this 
                Agreement will be continued for ninety (90) days following the 
                Termination Date. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Executive's 
                Base Salary specified in paragraph 4.1 of this Agreement will be 
                reduced by any benefits payable under any disability plans. 
 
        6.4     Death of Executive. If the Executive dies during the term of 
                this Agreement, the Company may thereafter terminate this 
                Agreement without compensation to the Executive's estate except: 
                (a) the obligation to continue the Base Salary payments under 
                paragraph 4.1 of this Agreement for ninety (90) days 
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                following the date of the Executive's death; and (b) the 
                benefits described in paragraph 4.4 of this Agreement accrued 
                through the date of the Executive's death. 
 
        6.5     Effect of Termination. The termination of this Agreement will 
                terminate all obligations of the Executive to render services on 
                behalf of the Company from and after the Termination Date, 
                provided that the Executive will maintain the confidentiality of 
                all information acquired by the Executive during the term of 
                Executive's employment in accordance with paragraph 7 of this 
                Agreement. Except as otherwise provided in paragraph 6 of this 
                Agreement, no accrued bonus, severance pay or other form of 
                compensation will be payable by the Company to the Executive by 
                reason of the termination of this Agreement. All keys, entry 
                cards, credit cards, files, records, financial information, 
                furniture, furnishings, equipment, supplies and other items 
                relating to the Company in the Executive's possession will 
                remain the property of the Company. The Executive will have the 
                right to retain and remove all personal property and effects 
                which are owned by the Executive and located in the offices of 
                the Company. All such personal items will be removed from such 
                offices no later than two (2) days after the Termination Date, 
                and the Company is hereby authorized to discard any items 
                remaining and to reassign the Executive's office space after 
                such date. Prior to the Termination Date, the Executive will 
                render such services to the Company as might be reasonably 
                required to provide for the orderly termination of the 
                Executive's employment. 
 
7. Confidentiality. The Executive recognizes that the nature of the Executive's 
services are such that the Executive will have access to information which 
constitutes trade secrets, is of a confidential nature, is of great value to the 
Company or is the foundation on which the business of the Company is predicated. 
The Executive agrees not to disclose to any person other than the Company's 
employees or the Company's legal counsel nor use for any purpose, other than the 
performance of this Agreement, any confidential information ("Confidential 
Information"). Confidential Information includes data or material (regardless of 
form) which is: (a) a trade secret; (b) provided, disclosed or delivered to 
Executive by the Company, any officer, director, employee, agent, attorney, 
accountant, consultant, or other person or entity employed by the Company in any 
capacity, any customer, borrower or business associate of the Company or any 
public authority having jurisdiction over the Company of any business activity 
conducted by the Company; or (c) produced, developed, obtained or prepared by or 
on behalf of Executive or the Company (whether or not such information was 
developed in the performance of this Agreement) with respect to the Company or 
any assets oil and gas prospects, business activities, officers, directors, 
employees, borrowers or customers of the foregoing. However, Confidential 
Information shall not include any information, data or material which at the 
time of disclosure or use was generally available to the public other than by a 
breach of this Agreement, was available to the party to whom disclosed on a 
non-confidential basis by disclosure or access provided by the Company or a 
third party, or was otherwise developed or obtained independently by the 
 
 
 
                                       6 



   10 
 
person to whom disclosed without a breach of this Agreement. On request by the 
Company, the Company will be entitled to the return of any Confidential 
Information in the possession of the Executive. The Executive also agrees that 
the provisions of this paragraph 7 will survive the termination, expiration or 
cancellation of this Agreement for a period of three (3) years. The Executive 
will deliver to the Company all originals and copies of the documents or 
materials containing Confidential Information. For purposes of paragraphs 7, 8, 
and 9 of this Agreement, the Company expressly includes any of the Company's 
affiliated corporations, partnerships or entities. 
 
8. Noncompetition. For a period of twelve (12) months after Executive is 
no longer employed by the Company as a result of either the resignation by the 
Executive pursuant to paragraph 6.1.3 or 6.2 above, or termination for cause 
pursuant to paragraph 6.1.2 above, Executive will not acquire, attempt to 
acquire or aid another in the acquisition or attempted acquisition of an 
interest in oil and gas assets, oil and gas production, oil and gas leases, 
mineral interests, oil and gas wells or other such oil and gas exploration, 
development or production activities within one (1) mile of any operations or 
ownership interests of the Company or its affiliated corporations, partnerships 
or entities for which Executive had primary responsibilities within three (3) 
years prior to the Executive's Termination Date and while employed with the 
Company. The Executive further agrees that the Executive will not circumvent or 
attempt to circumvent the foregoing agreements by any future arrangement or 
through the actions of a third party. 
 
9. Proprietary Matters. The Executive expressly understands and agrees 
that any and all improvements, inventions, discoveries, processes or know-how 
that are generated or conceived by the Executive during the term of this 
Agreement, whether generated or conceived during the Executive's regular working 
hours or otherwise, will be the sole and exclusive property of the Company. 
Whenever requested by the Company (either during the term of this Agreement or 
thereafter), the Executive will assign or execute any and all applications, 
assignments and or other instruments and do all things which the Company deems 
necessary or appropriate in order to permit the Company to: (a) assign and 
convey or otherwise make available to the Company the sole and exclusive right, 
title, and interest in and to said improvements, inventions, discoveries, 
processes, know-how, applications, patents, copyrights, trade names or 
trademarks; or (b) apply for, obtain, maintain, enforce and defend patents, 
copyrights, trade names, or trademarks of the United States or of foreign 
countries for said improvements, inventions, discoveries, processes or know-how. 
However, the improvements, inventions, discoveries, processes or know-how 
generated or conceived by the Executive and referred to above (except as they 
may be included in the patents, copyrights or registered trade names or 
trademarks of the Company, or corporations, partnerships or other entities which 
may be affiliated with the Company) shall not be exclusive property of the 
Company at any time after having been disclosed or revealed or have otherwise 
become available to the public or to a third party on a non-confidential basis 
other than by a breach of this Agreement, or after they have been independently 
developed or discussed without a breach of this Agreement by a third party who 
has no obligation to the Company or its affiliates. 
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10. Arbitration. The parties will attempt to promptly resolve any dispute 
or controversy arising out of or relating to this Agreement or termination of 
the Executive by the Company. Any negotiations pursuant to this paragraph 10 are 
confidential and will be treated as compromise and settlement negotiations for 
all purposes. If the parties are unable to reach a settlement amicably, the 
dispute will be submitted to binding arbitration before a single arbitrator in 
accordance with the Employment Dispute Resolution Rules of the American 
Arbitration Association. The arbitrator will be instructed and empowered to take 
reasonable steps to expedite the arbitration and the arbitrator's judgment will 
be final and binding upon the parties subject solely to challenge on the grounds 
of fraud or gross misconduct. Except for damages arising out of a breach of 
paragraphs 7, 8 or 9 of this Agreement, the arbitrator is not empowered to award 
total damages (including compensatory damages) which exceed 200% of compensatory 
damages and each party hereby irrevocably waives any damages in excess of that 
amount. The arbitration will be held in Oklahoma County, Oklahoma. Judgment upon 
any verdict in arbitration may be entered in any court of competent jurisdiction 
and the parties hereby consent to the jurisdiction of, and proper venue in, the 
federal and state courts located in Oklahoma County, Oklahoma. Each party will 
bear its own costs in connection with the arbitration and the costs of the 
arbitrator will be borne by the party who the arbitrator determines did not 
prevail in the matter. Unless otherwise expressly set forth in this Agreement, 
the procedures specified in this paragraph 10 will be the sole and exclusive 
procedures for the resolution of disputes and controversies between the parties 
arising out of or relating to this Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a 
party may seek a preliminary injunction or other provisional judicial relief if 
in such party's judgment such action is necessary to avoid irreparable damage or 
to preserve the status quo. 
 
11. Miscellaneous. The parties further agree as follows: 
 
        11.1    Time. Time is of the essence of each provision of this 
                Agreement. 
 
        11.2    Notices. Any notice, payment, demand or communication required 
                or permitted to be given by any provision of this Agreement will 
                be in writing and will be deemed to have been given when 
                delivered personally or by telefacsimile to the party designated 
                to receive such notice, or on the date following the day sent by 
                overnight courier, or on the third (3rd) business day after the 
                same is sent by certified mail, postage and charges prepaid, 
                directed to the following address or to such other or additional 
                addresses as any party might designate by written notice to the 
                other party: 
 
                To the Company:                  Chesapeake Energy Corporation 
                                                 Post Office Box 18496 
                                                 Oklahoma City, OK   73154-0496 
                                                 Attn: Aubrey K. McClendon 
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                To the Executive:                Mr. Steven C. Dixon 
                                                 4300 Rock Canyon 
                                                 Edmond, OK  73003 
 
        11.3    Assignment. Neither this Agreement nor any of the parties' 
                rights or obligations hereunder can be transferred or assigned 
                without the prior written consent of the other parties to this 
                Agreement; provided, however, the Company may assign this 
                Agreement to any wholly owned affiliate or subsidiary of the 
                Company without Executive's consent. 
 
        11.4    Construction. If any provision of this Agreement or the 
                application thereof to any person or circumstances is 
                determined, to any extent, to be invalid or unenforceable, the 
                remainder of this Agreement, or the application of such 
                provision to persons or circumstances other than those as to 
                which the same is held invalid or unenforceable, will not be 
                affected thereby, and each term and provision of this Agreement 
                will be valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by 
                law. This Agreement is intended to be interpreted, construed and 
                enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Oklahoma 
                and any litigation relating to this Agreement will be conducted 
                in a court of competent jurisdiction located in Oklahoma County, 
                Oklahoma. 
 
        11.5    Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire 
                agreement between the parties hereto with respect to the subject 
                matter herein contained, and no modification hereof will be 
                effective unless made by a supplemental written agreement 
                executed by all of the parties hereto. 
 
        11.6    Binding Effect. This Agreement will be binding on the parties 
                and their respective successors, legal representatives and 
                permitted assigns. In the event of a merger, consolidation, 
                combination, dissolution or liquidation of the Company, the 
                performance of this Agreement will be assumed by any entity 
                which succeeds to or is transferred the business of the Company 
                as a result thereof, and the Executive waives the consent 
                requirement of paragraph 11.3 to effect such assumption. 
 
        11.7    Attorneys' Fees. If any party institutes an action or proceeding 
                against any other party relating to the provisions of this 
                Agreement or any default hereunder, the unsuccessful party to 
                such action or proceeding will reimburse the successful party 
                therein for the reasonable expenses of attorneys' fees and 
                disbursements and litigation expenses incurred by the successful 
                party, except with respect to any arbitration proceeding 
                conducted pursuant to paragraph 10 above. 
 
        11.8    Supersession. On execution of this Agreement by the Company and 
                the Executive, the relationship between the Company and the 
                Executive will be bound by the terms of this Agreement and the 
                Employment Policies Manual 
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                and not by any other agreements or otherwise. In the event of a 
                conflict between the Employment Policies Manual and this 
                Agreement, this Agreement will control in all respects. 
 
        IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this Agreement 
effective the date first above written. 
 
                                           CHESAPEAKE ENERGY CORPORATION, an 
                                           Oklahoma corporation 
 
                                           By: /s/ Aubrey K. McClendon 
                                              ---------------------------------- 
                                              Aubrey K. McClendon, Chief 
                                              Executive Officer 
                                              (the "Company") 
 
 
 
                                           By: /s/ Steven C. Dixon 
                                              ---------------------------------- 
                                              Steven C. Dixon, Individually 
                                              (the "Executive") 
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                              EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
 
         THIS AGREEMENT is made effective July 1, 2000, between CHESAPEAKE 
ENERGY CORPORATION, an Oklahoma corporation (the "Company"), and J. Mark Lester, 
an individual (the "Executive") and replaces and supersedes that certain 
Employment Agreement between Company and Executive dated July 1, 1997. 
 
                                   WITNESSETH: 
 
         WHEREAS, the Company desires to retain the services of the Executive 
and the Executive desires to make the Executive's services available to the 
Company. 
 
         NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises herein 
contained, the Company and the Executive agree as follows: 
 
1. Employment. The Company hereby employs the Executive and the Executive hereby 
accepts such employment subject to the terms and conditions contained in this 
Agreement. The Executive is engaged as an employee of the Company, and the 
Executive and the Company do not intend to create a joint venture, partnership 
or other relationship which might impose a fiduciary obligation on the Executive 
or the Company in the performance of this Agreement. 
 
2. Executive's Duties. The Executive is employed on a full-time basis. 
Throughout the term of this Agreement, the Executive will use the Executive's 
best efforts and due diligence to assist the Company in achieving the most 
profitable operation of the Company and the Company's affiliated entities 
consistent with developing and maintaining a quality business operation. 
 
         2.1      Specific Duties. The Executive will serve as Senior Vice 
                  President - Exploration for the Company. The Executive will 
                  perform all of the services required to fully and faithfully 
                  execute the office and position to which the Executive is 
                  appointed and such other services as may be reasonably 
                  requested by the Executive's supervisor. During the term of 
                  this Agreement, the Executive may be nominated for election or 
                  appointed to serve as a director or officer of the Company's 
                  subsidiaries as determined in the board of directors' sole 
                  discretion. 
 
         2.2      Supervision. The services of the Executive will be requested 
                  and directed by the President and Chief Operating Officer, Mr. 
                  Tom L. Ward, and the Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Aubrey K. 
                  McClendon. 
 
         2.3      Rules and Regulations. The Company currently has an Employment 
                  Policies Manual which sets forth the general human resources 
                  policies of the Company and addresses frequently asked 
                  questions regarding the 
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                  Company. The Executive agrees to comply with the Employment 
                  Policies Manual except to the extent inconsistent with this 
                  Agreement. The Employment Policies Manual is subject to change 
                  without notice in the sole discretion of the Company at any 
                  time. 
 
         2.4      Stock Investment. The Executive agrees to hold not less than 
                  one thousand (1,000) shares of the Company's common stock 
                  during the term of this Agreement. 
 
3.       Other Activities. Unless the Executive has obtained the prior written 
         approval of the board of directors of the Company, the Executive will 
         not: (a) engage in business independent of the Executive's employment 
         by the Company; (b) serve as an officer, general partner or member in 
         any corporation, partnership, company, or firm; (c) directly or 
         indirectly invest in, participate in or acquire an interest in any oil 
         and gas business, including, without limitation, (i) producing oil and 
         gas, (ii) drilling, owning or operating oil and gas leases or wells, 
         (iii) providing services or materials to the oil and gas industry, (iv) 
         marketing or refining oil or gas, or (v) owning any interest in any 
         corporation, partnership, company or entity which conducts any of the 
         foregoing activities. The limitation in this paragraph 3 will not 
         prohibit an investment by the Executive in publicly traded securities; 
         or the continued direct ownership and operation of oil and gas 
         interests and leases to the extent such interests were owned by the 
         Executive on the Executive's first date of employment with the Company. 
         The Executive agrees not to directly or indirectly acquire any 
         additional oil and gas interests or increase ownership of any oil and 
         gas interests owned by the Executive on the Executive's first date of 
         employment with the Company. 
 
4.       Executive's Compensation. The Company agrees to compensate the 
         Executive as follows: 
 
         4.1      Base Salary. A base salary (the "Base Salary"), at the initial 
                  annual rate of not less than Two Hundred Five Thousand Dollars 
                  ($205,000.00), will be paid to the Executive in equal 
                  semi-monthly installments beginning July 15, 2000 during the 
                  term of this Agreement. 
 
         4.2      Bonus. In addition to the Base Salary described at paragraph 
                  4.1 of this Agreement, the Company may periodically pay bonus 
                  compensation to the Executive. Any bonus compensation will be 
                  at the absolute discretion of the Company in such amounts and 
                  at such times as the board of directors of the Company may 
                  determine. 
 
         4.3      Stock Options. In addition to the compensation set forth in 
                  paragraphs 4.1 and 4.2 of this Agreement, the Executive may 
                  periodically receive grants of stock options from the 
                  Company's various stock option plans, subject to the terms and 
                  conditions thereof. 
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         4.4      Benefits. The Company will provide the Executive such 
                  retirement benefits, reimbursement of reasonable expenditures 
                  for dues, travel and entertainment and such other benefits as 
                  are customarily provided by the Company and as are set forth 
                  in and governed by the Company's Employment Policies Manual. 
                  The Company will also provide the Executive the opportunity to 
                  apply for coverage under the Company's medical, life and 
                  disability plans, if any. If the Executive is accepted for 
                  coverage under such plans, the Company will make such coverage 
                  available to the Executive on the same terms as is customarily 
                  provided by the Company to the plan participants as modified 
                  from time to time. The following specific benefits will also 
                  be provided to the Executive at the expense of the Company: 
 
                  4.4.1    Vacation. The Executive will be entitled to take 
                           three (3) weeks of paid vacation each twelve months 
                           during the term of this Agreement. No additional 
                           compensation will be paid for failure to take 
                           vacation and no vacation may be carried forward from 
                           one twelve month period to another. 
 
                  4.4.2    Membership Dues. The Company will reimburse the 
                           Executive for: (a) the monthly dues necessary to 
                           maintain a full membership in a country club in the 
                           Oklahoma City area selected by the Executive in an 
                           amount not to exceed Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00) 
                           per month; and (b) the reasonable cost of any 
                           approved business entertainment at such country club. 
                           All other costs, including, without implied 
                           limitation, any initiation costs, initial membership 
                           costs, personal use and business entertainment 
                           unrelated to the Company will be the sole obligation 
                           of the Executive and the Company will have no 
                           liability with respect to such amounts. 
 
                  4.4.3    Compensation Review. The compensation of the 
                           Executive will be reviewed not less frequently than 
                           annually by the board of directors of the Company. 
 
5. Term. The employment relationship evidenced by this Agreement is an "at will" 
employment relationship and the Company reserves the right to terminate the 
Executive at any time with or without cause. In the absence of such termination, 
this Agreement will extend for a term of three (3) years commencing on July 1, 
2000, and ending on June 30, 2003 (the "Expiration Date"). 
 
6. Termination. This Agreement will continue in effect until the expiration of 
the term stated at paragraph 5 of this Agreement unless earlier terminated 
pursuant to this paragraph 6. 
 
         6.1      Termination by Company. The Company will have the following 
                  rights to terminate this Agreement: 
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                  6.1.1    Termination without Cause. The Company may terminate 
                           this Agreement without cause at any time by the 
                           service of written notice of termination to the 
                           Executive specifying an effective date of such 
                           termination not sooner than sixty (60) business days 
                           after the date of such notice (the "Termination 
                           Date"). In the event the Executive is terminated 
                           without cause, or the Company elects not to renew 
                           this Agreement, the Executive will receive as 
                           termination compensation: (a) Base Salary for a 
                           period of ninety (90) days; (b) any benefits payable 
                           by operation of paragraph 4.4 of this Agreement; and 
                           (c) any vacation pay accrued through the Termination 
                           Date. The termination compensation in (a) shall be 
                           paid only if the Executive executes the Company's 
                           standard termination agreement releasing all legally 
                           waivable claims arising from the Executive's 
                           employment. 
 
                  6.1.2    Termination for Cause. The Company may terminate this 
                           Agreement for cause if the Executive: (a) 
                           misappropriates the property of the Company or 
                           commits any other act of dishonesty; (b) engages in 
                           personal misconduct which materially injures the 
                           Company; (c) willfully violates any law or regulation 
                           relating to the business of the Company which results 
                           in injury to the Company; or (d) willfully and 
                           repeatedly fails to perform the Executive's duties 
                           hereunder. In the event this Agreement is terminated 
                           for cause, the Company will not have any obligation 
                           to provide any further payments or benefits to the 
                           Executive after the Termination Date. 
 
                  6.1.3    Termination after Change of Control. If, during the 
                           term of this Agreement, there is a "Change of 
                           Control" and within one (1) year from the effective 
                           date of such Change of Control: (a) this Agreement 
                           expires and is not extended; or (b) the Executive 
                           resigns as a result of (i) a reduction in the 
                           Executive's compensation (including the Executive's 
                           then current Base Salary under Paragraphs 4.1 of this 
                           Agreement and bonuses equal to those paid to the 
                           Executive during calendar year 2000 under Paragraph 
                           4.2 of this Agreement), or (ii) a required relocation 
                           more than twenty five (25) miles from the Executive's 
                           then current place of employment; or within one (1) 
                           year from the effective date of the Change of Control 
                           the Executive is terminated other than under 
                           Paragraphs 6.1.2, 6.3 or 6.4 based on adequate 
                           grounds; then the Executive will be entitled to a 
                           severance payment (in addition to any other amounts 
                           payable to the Executive under this Agreement or 
                           otherwise, excluding any Base Salary payable under 
                           Paragraph 6.1.1, as of the date of 
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                           termination or resignation hereunder) in an amount 
                           equal to six (6) months of the Executive's then 
                           current Base Salary under Paragraph 4.1 of this 
                           Agreement plus bonuses equal to those paid to the 
                           Executive during calendar year 2000 under Paragraph 
                           4.2. The term "Change of Control" means any action of 
                           a nature that would be required to be reported in 
                           response to Item 6(e) of Schedule 14A of Regulation 
                           14A under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 with 
                           respect to Chesapeake Energy Corporation 
                           ("Chesapeake") including, without limitation (i) the 
                           direct or indirect acquisition by any person after 
                           the date hereof of beneficial ownership of the right 
                           to vote or securities of Chesapeake representing the 
                           right to vote fifty one percent (51%) or more of the 
                           combined voting power of Chesapeake's then 
                           outstanding securities having the right to vote for 
                           the election of directors, or (ii) a merger, 
                           consolidation, sale of assets or contested election 
                           or (iii) any combination of (i) and (ii) which 
                           results in a majority of the members of Chesapeake's 
                           board of directors being replaced by directors who 
                           were not nominated and approved by the existing board 
                           of directors. 
 
         6.2      Termination by Executive. The Executive may voluntarily 
                  terminate this Agreement with or without cause by the service 
                  of written notice of such termination to the Company 
                  specifying a Termination Date no sooner than thirty (30) days 
                  after the date of such notice. In the event this Agreement is 
                  terminated by the Executive, neither the Company nor the 
                  Executive will have any further obligations hereunder 
                  including, without limitation, any obligation of the Company 
                  to provide any further payments or benefits to the Executive 
                  after the Termination Date. 
 
         6.3      Incapacity of Executive. If the Executive suffers from a 
                  physical or mental condition which in the reasonable judgment 
                  of the Company's management prevents the Executive in whole or 
                  in part from performing the duties specified herein for a 
                  period of three (3) consecutive months, the Executive may be 
                  terminated. Although the termination may be deemed as a 
                  termination for cause, any compensation payable under 
                  paragraph 4 of this Agreement will be continued for ninety 
                  (90) days following the Termination Date. Notwithstanding the 
                  foregoing, the Executive's Base Salary specified in paragraph 
                  4.1 of this Agreement will be reduced by any benefits payable 
                  under any disability plans. 
 
         6.4      Death of Executive. If the Executive dies during the term of 
                  this Agreement, the Company may thereafter terminate this 
                  Agreement without compensation to the Executive's estate 
                  except: (a) the obligation to continue the Base Salary 
                  payments under paragraph 4.1 of this Agreement for ninety (90) 
                  days 
 
 
                                       5 



   9 
 
 
                  following the date of the Executive's death; and (b) the 
                  benefits described in paragraph 4.4 of this Agreement accrued 
                  through the date of the Executive's death. 
 
         6.5      Effect of Termination. The termination of this Agreement will 
                  terminate all obligations of the Executive to render services 
                  on behalf of the Company from and after the Termination Date, 
                  provided that the Executive will maintain the confidentiality 
                  of all information acquired by the Executive during the term 
                  of Executive's employment in accordance with paragraph 7 of 
                  this Agreement. Except as otherwise provided in paragraph 6 of 
                  this Agreement, no accrued bonus, severance pay or other form 
                  of compensation will be payable by the Company to the 
                  Executive by reason of the termination of this Agreement. All 
                  keys, entry cards, credit cards, files, records, financial 
                  information, furniture, furnishings, equipment, supplies and 
                  other items relating to the Company in the Executive's 
                  possession will remain the property of the Company. The 
                  Executive will have the right to retain and remove all 
                  personal property and effects which are owned by the Executive 
                  and located in the offices of the Company. All such personal 
                  items will be removed from such offices no later than two (2) 
                  days after the Termination Date, and the Company is hereby 
                  authorized to discard any items remaining and to reassign the 
                  Executive's office space after such date. Prior to the 
                  Termination Date, the Executive will render such services to 
                  the Company as might be reasonably required to provide for the 
                  orderly termination of the Executive's employment. 
 
7. Confidentiality. The Executive recognizes that the nature of the Executive's 
services are such that the Executive will have access to information which 
constitutes trade secrets, is of a confidential nature, is of great value to the 
Company or is the foundation on which the business of the Company is predicated. 
The Executive agrees not to disclose to any person other than the Company's 
employees or the Company's legal counsel nor use for any purpose, other than the 
performance of this Agreement, any confidential information ("Confidential 
Information"). Confidential Information includes data or material (regardless of 
form) which is: (a) a trade secret; (b) provided, disclosed or delivered to 
Executive by the Company, any officer, director, employee, agent, attorney, 
accountant, consultant, or other person or entity employed by the Company in any 
capacity, any customer, borrower or business associate of the Company or any 
public authority having jurisdiction over the Company of any business activity 
conducted by the Company; or (c) produced, developed, obtained or prepared by or 
on behalf of Executive or the Company (whether or not such information was 
developed in the performance of this Agreement) with respect to the Company or 
any assets oil and gas prospects, business activities, officers, directors, 
employees, borrowers or customers of the foregoing. However, Confidential 
Information shall not include any information, data or material which at the 
time of disclosure or use was generally available to the public other than by a 
breach of this Agreement, was available to the party to whom disclosed on a 
non-confidential basis by disclosure or access provided by the Company or a 
third party, or was otherwise developed or obtained independently by the 
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person to whom disclosed without a breach of this Agreement. On request by the 
Company, the Company will be entitled to the return of any Confidential 
Information in the possession of the Executive. The Executive also agrees that 
the provisions of this paragraph 7 will survive the termination, expiration or 
cancellation of this Agreement for a period of three (3) years. The Executive 
will deliver to the Company all originals and copies of the documents or 
materials containing Confidential Information. For purposes of paragraphs 7, 8, 
and 9 of this Agreement, the Company expressly includes any of the Company's 
affiliated corporations, partnerships or entities. 
 
8. Noncompetition. For a period of twelve (12) months after Executive is no 
longer employed by the Company as a result of either the resignation by the 
Executive pursuant to paragraph 6.1.3 or 6.2 above, or termination for cause 
pursuant to paragraph 6.1.2 above, Executive will not acquire, attempt to 
acquire or aid another in the acquisition or attempted acquisition of an 
interest in oil and gas assets, oil and gas production, oil and gas leases, 
mineral interests, oil and gas wells or other such oil and gas exploration, 
development or production activities within one (1) mile of any operations or 
ownership interests of the Company or its affiliated corporations, partnerships 
or entities for which Executive had primary responsibilities within three (3) 
years prior to the Executive's Termination Date and while employed with the 
Company. The Executive further agrees that the Executive will not circumvent or 
attempt to circumvent the foregoing agreements by any future arrangement or 
through the actions of a third party. 
 
9. Proprietary Matters. The Executive expressly understands and agrees that any 
and all improvements, inventions, discoveries, processes or know-how that are 
generated or conceived by the Executive during the term of this Agreement, 
whether generated or conceived during the Executive's regular working hours or 
otherwise, will be the sole and exclusive property of the Company. Whenever 
requested by the Company (either during the term of this Agreement or 
thereafter), the Executive will assign or execute any and all applications, 
assignments and or other instruments and do all things which the Company deems 
necessary or appropriate in order to permit the Company to: (a) assign and 
convey or otherwise make available to the Company the sole and exclusive right, 
title, and interest in and to said improvements, inventions, discoveries, 
processes, know-how, applications, patents, copyrights, trade names or 
trademarks; or (b) apply for, obtain, maintain, enforce and defend patents, 
copyrights, trade names, or trademarks of the United States or of foreign 
countries for said improvements, inventions, discoveries, processes or know-how. 
However, the improvements, inventions, discoveries, processes or know-how 
generated or conceived by the Executive and referred to above (except as they 
may be included in the patents, copyrights or registered trade names or 
trademarks of the Company, or corporations, partnerships or other entities which 
may be affiliated with the Company) shall not be exclusive property of the 
Company at any time after having been disclosed or revealed or have otherwise 
become available to the public or to a third party on a non-confidential basis 
other than by a breach of this Agreement, or after they have been independently 
developed or discussed without a breach of this Agreement by a third party who 
has no obligation to the Company or its affiliates. 
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10. Arbitration. The parties will attempt to promptly resolve any dispute or 
controversy arising out of or relating to this Agreement or termination of the 
Executive by the Company. Any negotiations pursuant to this paragraph 10 are 
confidential and will be treated as compromise and settlement negotiations for 
all purposes. If the parties are unable to reach a settlement amicably, the 
dispute will be submitted to binding arbitration before a single arbitrator in 
accordance with the Employment Dispute Resolution Rules of the American 
Arbitration Association. The arbitrator will be instructed and empowered to take 
reasonable steps to expedite the arbitration and the arbitrator's judgment will 
be final and binding upon the parties subject solely to challenge on the grounds 
of fraud or gross misconduct. Except for damages arising out of a breach of 
paragraphs 7, 8 or 9 of this Agreement, the arbitrator is not empowered to award 
total damages (including compensatory damages) which exceed 200% of compensatory 
damages and each party hereby irrevocably waives any damages in excess of that 
amount. The arbitration will be held in Oklahoma County, Oklahoma. Judgment upon 
any verdict in arbitration may be entered in any court of competent jurisdiction 
and the parties hereby consent to the jurisdiction of, and proper venue in, the 
federal and state courts located in Oklahoma County, Oklahoma. Each party will 
bear its own costs in connection with the arbitration and the costs of the 
arbitrator will be borne by the party who the arbitrator determines did not 
prevail in the matter. Unless otherwise expressly set forth in this Agreement, 
the procedures specified in this paragraph 10 will be the sole and exclusive 
procedures for the resolution of disputes and controversies between the parties 
arising out of or relating to this Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a 
party may seek a preliminary injunction or other provisional judicial relief if 
in such party's judgment such action is necessary to avoid irreparable damage or 
to preserve the status quo. 
 
11. Miscellaneous. The parties further agree as follows: 
 
         11.1     Time. Time is of the essence of each provision of this 
                  Agreement. 
 
         11.2     Notices. Any notice, payment, demand or communication required 
                  or permitted to be given by any provision of this Agreement 
                  will be in writing and will be deemed to have been given when 
                  delivered personally or by telefacsimile to the party 
                  designated to receive such notice, or on the date following 
                  the day sent by overnight courier, or on the third (3rd) 
                  business day after the same is sent by certified mail, postage 
                  and charges prepaid, directed to the following address or to 
                  such other or additional addresses as any party might 
                  designate by written notice to the other party: 
 
                  To the Company:  Chesapeake Energy Corporation 
                                   Post Office Box 18496 
                                   Oklahoma City, OK 73154-0496 
                                   Attn: Aubrey K. McClendon 
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                  To the Executive:     Mr. J. Mark Lester 
                                        13525 Green Cedar Lane 
                                        Edmond, OK 73131 
 
         11.3     Assignment. Neither this Agreement nor any of the parties' 
                  rights or obligations hereunder can be transferred or assigned 
                  without the prior written consent of the other parties to this 
                  Agreement; provided, however, the Company may assign this 
                  Agreement to any wholly owned affiliate or subsidiary of the 
                  Company without Executive's consent. 
 
         11.4     Construction. If any provision of this Agreement or the 
                  application thereof to any person or circumstances is 
                  determined, to any extent, to be invalid or unenforceable, the 
                  remainder of this Agreement, or the application of such 
                  provision to persons or circumstances other than those as to 
                  which the same is held invalid or unenforceable, will not be 
                  affected thereby, and each term and provision of this 
                  Agreement will be valid and enforceable to the fullest extent 
                  permitted by law. This Agreement is intended to be 
                  interpreted, construed and enforced in accordance with the 
                  laws of the State of Oklahoma and any litigation relating to 
                  this Agreement will be conducted in a court of competent 
                  jurisdiction located in Oklahoma County, Oklahoma. 
 
         11.5     Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire 
                  agreement between the parties hereto with respect to the 
                  subject matter herein contained, and no modification hereof 
                  will be effective unless made by a supplemental written 
                  agreement executed by all of the parties hereto. 
 
         11.6     Binding Effect. This Agreement will be binding on the parties 
                  and their respective successors, legal representatives and 
                  permitted assigns. In the event of a merger, consolidation, 
                  combination, dissolution or liquidation of the Company, the 
                  performance of this Agreement will be assumed by any entity 
                  which succeeds to or is transferred the business of the 
                  Company as a result thereof, and the Executive waives the 
                  consent requirement of paragraph 11.3 to effect such 
                  assumption. 
 
         11.7     Attorneys' Fees. If any party institutes an action or 
                  proceeding against any other party relating to the provisions 
                  of this Agreement or any default hereunder, the unsuccessful 
                  party to such action or proceeding will reimburse the 
                  successful party therein for the reasonable expenses of 
                  attorneys' fees and disbursements and litigation expenses 
                  incurred by the successful party, except with respect to any 
                  arbitration proceeding conducted pursuant to paragraph 10 
                  above. 
 
         11.8     Supersession. On execution of this Agreement by the Company 
                  and the Executive, the relationship between the Company and 
                  the Executive will be bound by the terms of this Agreement and 
                  the Employment Policies Manual 
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                  and not by any other agreements or otherwise. In the event of 
                  a conflict between the Employment Policies Manual and this 
                  Agreement, this Agreement will control in all respects. 
 
         IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this Agreement 
effective the date first above written. 
 
                                 CHESAPEAKE ENERGY CORPORATION, an 
                                 Oklahoma corporation 
 
 
 
                                 By: /s/ Aubrey K. McClendon 
                                    -------------------------------------------- 
                                    Aubrey K. McClendon, Chief Executive Officer 
                                    (the "Company") 
 
 
 
                                 By: /s/ J. Mark Lester 
                                    -------------------------------------------- 
                                    J. Mark Lester, Individually 
                                    (the "Executive") 
 
 
                                       10 



   1 
                                                                  EXHIBIT 10.2.7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                              EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
 
 
                                     between 
 
 
                                  HENRY J. HOOD 
 
 
                                       and 
 
 
                          CHESAPEAKE ENERGY CORPORATION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                             Effective July 1, 2000 
 
 



   2 
 
 
                                TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                                          Page 
                                                                          ---- 
                                                                        
1.       Employment....................................................       1 
 
2.       Executive's Duties............................................       1 
         2.1  Specific Duties..........................................       1 
         2.2  Supervision..............................................       1 
         2.3  Rules and Regulations....................................       1 
         2.4  Stock Investment.........................................       2 
 
3.       Other Activities..............................................       2 
 
4.       Executive's Compensation......................................       2 
         4.1  Base Salary..............................................       2 
         4.2  Bonus....................................................       2 
         4.3  Stock Options............................................       2 
         4.4  Benefits.................................................       3 
              4.4.1  Vacation .........................................       3 
              4.4.2  Membership Dues ..................................       3 
              4.4.3  Compensation Review...............................       3 
 
5.       Term..........................................................       3 
 
6.       Termination...................................................       3 
         6.1  Termination by Company...................................       3 
              6.1.1  Termination without Cause.........................       4 
              6.1.2  Termination for Cause.............................       4 
              6.1.3  Termination After Change in Control...............       4 
         6.2  Termination by Executive.................................       5 
         6.3  Incapacity of Executive..................................       5 
         6.4  Death of Executive.......................................       5 
         6.5  Effect of Termination....................................       6 
 
7.       Confidentiality...............................................       6 
 
8.       Noncompetition................................................       7 
 
9.       Proprietary Matters...........................................       7 
 
 
 



   3 
 
                          TABLE OF CONTENTS (continued) 
 
 
                                                                          
10.      Arbitration...................................................       8 
 
11.      Miscellaneous.................................................       8 
         11.1  Time....................................................       8 
         11.2  Notices.................................................       8 
         11.3  Assignment..............................................       9 
         11.4  Construction............................................       9 
         11.5  Entire Agreement........................................       9 
         11.6  Binding Effect..........................................       9 
         11.7  Attorney's Fees.........................................       9 
         11.8  Supersession............................................       9 
 
 



   4 
                              EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
 
         THIS AGREEMENT is made effective July 1, 2000, between CHESAPEAKE 
ENERGY CORPORATION, an Oklahoma corporation (the "Company"), and Henry J. Hood, 
an individual (the "Executive") and replaces and supersedes that certain 
Employment Agreement between Company and Executive dated July 1, 1997. 
 
                                  WITNESSETH: 
 
         WHEREAS, the Company desires to retain the services of the Executive 
and the Executive desires to make the Executive's services available to the 
Company. 
 
         NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises herein 
contained, the Company and the Executive agree as follows: 
 
1. Employment. The Company hereby employs the Executive and the Executive hereby 
accepts such employment subject to the terms and conditions contained in this 
Agreement. The Executive is engaged as an employee of the Company, and the 
Executive and the Company do not intend to create a joint venture, partnership 
or other relationship which might impose a fiduciary obligation on the Executive 
or the Company in the performance of this Agreement. 
 
2. Executive's Duties. The Executive is employed on a full-time basis. 
Throughout the term of this Agreement, the Executive will use the Executive's 
best efforts and due diligence to assist the Company in achieving the most 
profitable operation of the Company and the Company's affiliated entities 
consistent with developing and maintaining a quality business operation. 
 
         2.1      Specific Duties. The Executive will serve as Senior Vice 
                  President - Land and Legal for the Company. The Executive will 
                  perform all of the services required to fully and faithfully 
                  execute the office and position to which the Executive is 
                  appointed and such other services as may be reasonably 
                  requested by the Executive's supervisor. During the term of 
                  this Agreement, the Executive may be nominated for election or 
                  appointed to serve as a director or officer of the Company's 
                  subsidiaries as determined in the board of directors' sole 
                  discretion. 
 
         2.2      Supervision. The services of the Executive will be requested 
                  and directed by the President and Chief Operating Officer, Mr. 
                  Tom L. Ward, and the Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Aubrey K. 
                  McClendon. 
 
         2.3      Rules and Regulations. The Company currently has an Employment 
                  Policies Manual which sets forth the general human resources 
                  policies of the Company and addresses frequently asked 
                  questions regarding the 
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                  Company. The Executive agrees to comply with the Employment 
                  Policies Manual except to the extent inconsistent with this 
                  Agreement. The Employment Policies Manual is subject to change 
                  without notice in the sole discretion of the Company at any 
                  time. 
 
         2.4      Stock Investment. The Executive agrees to hold not less than 
                  one thousand (1,000) shares of the Company's common stock 
                  during the term of this Agreement. 
 
3.       Other Activities. Unless the Executive has obtained the prior written 
         approval of the board of directors of the Company, the Executive will 
         not: (a) engage in business independent of the Executive's employment 
         by the Company; (b) serve as an officer, general partner or member in 
         any corporation, partnership, company, or firm; (c) directly or 
         indirectly invest in, participate in or acquire an interest in any oil 
         and gas business, including, without limitation, (i) producing oil and 
         gas, (ii) drilling, owning or operating oil and gas leases or wells, 
         (iii) providing services or materials to the oil and gas industry, (iv) 
         marketing or refining oil or gas, or (v) owning any interest in any 
         corporation, partnership, company or entity which conducts any of the 
         foregoing activities. The limitation in this paragraph 3 will not 
         prohibit an investment by the Executive in publicly traded securities; 
         or the continued direct ownership and operation of oil and gas 
         interests and leases to the extent such interests were owned by the 
         Executive on the Executive's first date of employment with the Company. 
         The Executive agrees not to directly or indirectly acquire any 
         additional oil and gas interests or increase ownership of any oil and 
         gas interests owned by the Executive on the Executive's first date of 
         employment with the Company. 
 
4.       Executive's Compensation. The Company agrees to compensate the 
         Executive as follows: 
 
         4.1        Base Salary. A base salary (the "Base Salary"), at the 
                    initial annual rate of not less than Two Hundred Five 
                    Thousand Dollars ($205,000.00), will be paid to the 
                    Executive in equal semi-monthly installments beginning July 
                    15, 2000 during the term of this Agreement. 
 
         4.2        Bonus. In addition to the Base Salary described at paragraph 
                    4.1 of this Agreement, the Company may periodically pay 
                    bonus compensation to the Executive. Any bonus compensation 
                    will be at the absolute discretion of the Company in such 
                    amounts and at such times as the board of directors of the 
                    Company may determine. 
 
         4.3        Stock Options. In addition to the compensation set forth in 
                    paragraphs 4.1 and 4.2 of this Agreement, the Executive may 
                    periodically receive grants of stock options from the 
                    Company's various stock option plans, subject to the terms 
                    and conditions thereof. 
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   4.4   Benefits. The Company will provide the Executive such retirement 
         benefits, reimbursement of reasonable expenditures for dues, travel and 
         entertainment and such other benefits as are customarily provided by 
         the Company and as are set forth in and governed by the Company's 
         Employment Policies Manual. The Company will also provide the Executive 
         the opportunity to apply for coverage under the Company's medical, life 
         and disability plans, if any. If the Executive is accepted for coverage 
         under such plans, the Company will make such coverage available to the 
         Executive on the same terms as is customarily provided by the Company 
         to the plan participants as modified from time to time. The following 
         specific benefits will also be provided to the Executive at the expense 
         of the Company: 
 
         4.4.1    Vacation. The Executive will be entitled to take three (3) 
                  weeks of paid vacation each twelve months during the term of 
                  this Agreement. No additional compensation will be paid for 
                  failure to take vacation and no vacation may be carried 
                  forward from one twelve month period to another. 
 
         4.4.2    Membership Dues. The Company will reimburse the Executive for: 
                  (a) the monthly dues necessary to maintain a full membership 
                  in a country club in the Oklahoma City area selected by the 
                  Executive in an amount not to exceed Five Hundred Dollars 
                  ($500.00) per month; and (b) the reasonable cost of any 
                  approved business entertainment at such country club. All 
                  other costs, including, without implied limitation, any 
                  initiation costs, initial membership costs, personal use and 
                  business entertainment unrelated to the Company will be the 
                  sole obligation of the Executive and the Company will have no 
                  liability with respect to such amounts. 
 
         4.4.3    Compensation Review. The compensation of the Executive will be 
                  reviewed not less frequently than annually by the board of 
                  directors of the Company. 
 
5. Term. The employment relationship evidenced by this Agreement is an "at will" 
employment relationship and the Company reserves the right to terminate the 
Executive at any time with or without cause. In the absence of such termination, 
this Agreement will extend for a term of three (3) years commencing on July 1, 
2000, and ending on June 30, 2003 (the "Expiration Date"). 
 
6. Termination. This Agreement will continue in effect until the expiration of 
the term stated at paragraph 5 of this Agreement unless earlier terminated 
pursuant to this paragraph 6. 
 
         6.1      Termination by Company. The Company will have the following 
                  rights to terminate this Agreement: 
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                  6.1.1    Termination without Cause. The Company may terminate 
                           this Agreement without cause at any time by the 
                           service of written notice of termination to the 
                           Executive specifying an effective date of such 
                           termination not sooner than sixty (60) business days 
                           after the date of such notice (the "Termination 
                           Date"). In the event the Executive is terminated 
                           without cause, or the Company elects not to renew 
                           this Agreement, the Executive will receive as 
                           termination compensation: (a) Base Salary for a 
                           period of ninety (90) days; (b) any benefits payable 
                           by operation of paragraph 4.4 of this Agreement; and 
                           (c) any vacation pay accrued through the Termination 
                           Date. The termination compensation in (a) shall be 
                           paid only if the Executive executes the Company's 
                           standard termination agreement releasing all legally 
                           waivable claims arising from the Executive's 
                           employment. 
 
                  6.1.2    Termination for Cause. The Company may terminate this 
                           Agreement for cause if the Executive: (a) 
                           misappropriates the property of the Company or 
                           commits any other act of dishonesty; (b) engages in 
                           personal misconduct which materially injures the 
                           Company; (c) willfully violates any law or regulation 
                           relating to the business of the Company which results 
                           in injury to the Company; or (d) willfully and 
                           repeatedly fails to perform the Executive's duties 
                           hereunder. In the event this Agreement is terminated 
                           for cause, the Company will not have any obligation 
                           to provide any further payments or benefits to the 
                           Executive after the Termination Date. 
 
                  6.1.3    Termination after Change of Control. If, during the 
                           term of this Agreement, there is a "Change of 
                           Control" and within one (1) year from the effective 
                           date of such Change of Control: (a) this Agreement 
                           expires and is not extended; or (b) the Executive 
                           resigns as a result of (i) a reduction in the 
                           Executive's compensation (including the Executive's 
                           then current Base Salary under Paragraphs 4.1 of this 
                           Agreement and bonuses equal to those paid to the 
                           Executive during calendar year 2000 under Paragraph 
                           4.2 of this Agreement), or (ii) a required relocation 
                           more than twenty five (25) miles from the Executive's 
                           then current place of employment; or within one (1) 
                           year from the effective date of the Change of Control 
                           the Executive is terminated other than under 
                           Paragraphs 6.1.2, 6.3 or 6.4 based on adequate 
                           grounds; then the Executive will be entitled to a 
                           severance payment (in addition to any other amounts 
                           payable to the Executive under this Agreement or 
                           otherwise, excluding any Base Salary payable under 
                           Paragraph 6.1.1, as of the date of 
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                           termination or resignation hereunder) in an amount 
                           equal to six (6) months of the Executive's then 
                           current Base Salary under Paragraph 4.1 of this 
                           Agreement plus bonuses equal to those paid to the 
                           Executive during calendar year 2000 under Paragraph 
                           4.2. The term "Change of Control" means any action of 
                           a nature that would be required to be reported in 
                           response to Item 6(e) of Schedule 14A of Regulation 
                           14A under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 with 
                           respect to Chesapeake Energy Corporation 
                           ("Chesapeake") including, without limitation (i) the 
                           direct or indirect acquisition by any person after 
                           the date hereof of beneficial ownership of the right 
                           to vote or securities of Chesapeake representing the 
                           right to vote fifty one percent (51%) or more of the 
                           combined voting power of Chesapeake's then 
                           outstanding securities having the right to vote for 
                           the election of directors, or (ii) a merger, 
                           consolidation, sale of assets or contested election 
                           or (iii) any combination of (i) and (ii) which 
                           results in a majority of the members of Chesapeake's 
                           board of directors being replaced by directors who 
                           were not nominated and approved by the existing board 
                           of directors. 
 
         6.2        Termination by Executive. The Executive may voluntarily 
                    terminate this Agreement with or without cause by the 
                    service of written notice of such termination to the Company 
                    specifying a Termination Date no sooner than thirty (30) 
                    days after the date of such notice. In the event this 
                    Agreement is terminated by the Executive, neither the 
                    Company nor the Executive will have any further obligations 
                    hereunder including, without limitation, any obligation of 
                    the Company to provide any further payments or benefits to 
                    the Executive after the Termination Date. 
 
         6.3        Incapacity of Executive. If the Executive suffers from a 
                    physical or mental condition which in the reasonable 
                    judgment of the Company's management prevents the Executive 
                    in whole or in part from performing the duties specified 
                    herein for a period of three (3) consecutive months, the 
                    Executive may be terminated. Although the termination may be 
                    deemed as a termination for cause, any compensation payable 
                    under paragraph 4 of this Agreement will be continued for 
                    ninety (90) days following the Termination Date. 
                    Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Executive's Base Salary 
                    specified in paragraph 4.1 of this Agreement will be reduced 
                    by any benefits payable under any disability plans. 
 
         6.4        Death of Executive. If the Executive dies during the term of 
                    this Agreement, the Company may thereafter terminate this 
                    Agreement without compensation to the Executive's estate 
                    except: (a) the obligation to continue the Base Salary 
                    payments under paragraph 4.1 of this Agreement for ninety 
                    (90) days 
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                    following the date of the Executive's death; and (b) the 
                    benefits described in paragraph 4.4 of this Agreement 
                    accrued through the date of the Executive's death. 
 
         6.5        Effect of Termination. The termination of this Agreement 
                    will terminate all obligations of the Executive to render 
                    services on behalf of the Company from and after the 
                    Termination Date, provided that the Executive will maintain 
                    the confidentiality of all information acquired by the 
                    Executive during the term of Executive's employment in 
                    accordance with paragraph 7 of this Agreement. Except as 
                    otherwise provided in paragraph 6 of this Agreement, no 
                    accrued bonus, severance pay or other form of compensation 
                    will be payable by the Company to the Executive by reason of 
                    the termination of this Agreement. All keys, entry cards, 
                    credit cards, files, records, financial information, 
                    furniture, furnishings, equipment, supplies and other items 
                    relating to the Company in the Executive's possession will 
                    remain the property of the Company. The Executive will have 
                    the right to retain and remove all personal property and 
                    effects which are owned by the Executive and located in the 
                    offices of the Company. All such personal items will be 
                    removed from such offices no later than two (2) days after 
                    the Termination Date, and the Company is hereby authorized 
                    to discard any items remaining and to reassign the 
                    Executive's office space after such date. Prior to the 
                    Termination Date, the Executive will render such services to 
                    the Company as might be reasonably required to provide for 
                    the orderly termination of the Executive's employment. 
 
7. Confidentiality. The Executive recognizes that the nature of the Executive's 
services are such that the Executive will have access to information which 
constitutes trade secrets, is of a confidential nature, is of great value to the 
Company or is the foundation on which the business of the Company is predicated. 
The Executive agrees not to disclose to any person other than the Company's 
employees or the Company's legal counsel nor use for any purpose, other than the 
performance of this Agreement, any confidential information ("Confidential 
Information"). Confidential Information includes data or material (regardless of 
form) which is: (a) a trade secret; (b) provided, disclosed or delivered to 
Executive by the Company, any officer, director, employee, agent, attorney, 
accountant, consultant, or other person or entity employed by the Company in any 
capacity, any customer, borrower or business associate of the Company or any 
public authority having jurisdiction over the Company of any business activity 
conducted by the Company; or (c) produced, developed, obtained or prepared by or 
on behalf of Executive or the Company (whether or not such information was 
developed in the performance of this Agreement) with respect to the Company or 
any assets oil and gas prospects, business activities, officers, directors, 
employees, borrowers or customers of the foregoing. However, Confidential 
Information shall not include any information, data or material which at the 
time of disclosure or use was generally available to the public other than by a 
breach of this Agreement, was available to the party to whom disclosed on a 
non-confidential basis by disclosure or access provided by the Company or a 
third party, or was otherwise developed or obtained independently by the 
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person to whom disclosed without a breach of this Agreement. On request by the 
Company, the Company will be entitled to the return of any Confidential 
Information in the possession of the Executive. The Executive also agrees that 
the provisions of this paragraph 7 will survive the termination, expiration or 
cancellation of this Agreement for a period of three (3) years. The Executive 
will deliver to the Company all originals and copies of the documents or 
materials containing Confidential Information. For purposes of paragraphs 7, 8, 
and 9 of this Agreement, the Company expressly includes any of the Company's 
affiliated corporations, partnerships or entities. 
 
8. Noncompetition. For a period of twelve (12) months after Executive is no 
longer employed by the Company as a result of either the resignation by the 
Executive pursuant to paragraph 6.1.3 or 6.2 above, or termination for cause 
pursuant to paragraph 6.1.2 above, Executive will not acquire, attempt to 
acquire or aid another in the acquisition or attempted acquisition of an 
interest in oil and gas assets, oil and gas production, oil and gas leases, 
mineral interests, oil and gas wells or other such oil and gas exploration, 
development or production activities within one (1) mile of any operations or 
ownership interests of the Company or its affiliated corporations, partnerships 
or entities for which Executive had primary responsibilities within three (3) 
years prior to the Executive's Termination Date and while employed with the 
Company. The Executive further agrees that the Executive will not circumvent or 
attempt to circumvent the foregoing agreements by any future arrangement or 
through the actions of a third party. 
 
9. Proprietary Matters. The Executive expressly understands and agrees that any 
and all improvements, inventions, discoveries, processes or know-how that are 
generated or conceived by the Executive during the term of this Agreement, 
whether generated or conceived during the Executive's regular working hours or 
otherwise, will be the sole and exclusive property of the Company. Whenever 
requested by the Company (either during the term of this Agreement or 
thereafter), the Executive will assign or execute any and all applications, 
assignments and or other instruments and do all things which the Company deems 
necessary or appropriate in order to permit the Company to: (a) assign and 
convey or otherwise make available to the Company the sole and exclusive right, 
title, and interest in and to said improvements, inventions, discoveries, 
processes, know-how, applications, patents, copyrights, trade names or 
trademarks; or (b) apply for, obtain, maintain, enforce and defend patents, 
copyrights, trade names, or trademarks of the United States or of foreign 
countries for said improvements, inventions, discoveries, processes or know-how. 
However, the improvements, inventions, discoveries, processes or know-how 
generated or conceived by the Executive and referred to above (except as they 
may be included in the patents, copyrights or registered trade names or 
trademarks of the Company, or corporations, partnerships or other entities which 
may be affiliated with the Company) shall not be exclusive property of the 
Company at any time after having been disclosed or revealed or have otherwise 
become available to the public or to a third party on a non-confidential basis 
other than by a breach of this Agreement, or after they have been independently 
developed or discussed without a breach of this Agreement by a third party who 
has no obligation to the Company or its affiliates. 
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10. Arbitration. The parties will attempt to promptly resolve any dispute or 
controversy arising out of or relating to this Agreement or termination of the 
Executive by the Company. Any negotiations pursuant to this paragraph 10 are 
confidential and will be treated as compromise and settlement negotiations for 
all purposes. If the parties are unable to reach a settlement amicably, the 
dispute will be submitted to binding arbitration before a single arbitrator in 
accordance with the Employment Dispute Resolution Rules of the American 
Arbitration Association. The arbitrator will be instructed and empowered to take 
reasonable steps to expedite the arbitration and the arbitrator's judgment will 
be final and binding upon the parties subject solely to challenge on the grounds 
of fraud or gross misconduct. Except for damages arising out of a breach of 
paragraphs 7, 8 or 9 of this Agreement, the arbitrator is not empowered to award 
total damages (including compensatory damages) which exceed 200% of compensatory 
damages and each party hereby irrevocably waives any damages in excess of that 
amount. The arbitration will be held in Oklahoma County, Oklahoma. Judgment upon 
any verdict in arbitration may be entered in any court of competent jurisdiction 
and the parties hereby consent to the jurisdiction of, and proper venue in, the 
federal and state courts located in Oklahoma County, Oklahoma. Each party will 
bear its own costs in connection with the arbitration and the costs of the 
arbitrator will be borne by the party who the arbitrator determines did not 
prevail in the matter. Unless otherwise expressly set forth in this Agreement, 
the procedures specified in this paragraph 10 will be the sole and exclusive 
procedures for the resolution of disputes and controversies between the parties 
arising out of or relating to this Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a 
party may seek a preliminary injunction or other provisional judicial relief if 
in such party's judgment such action is necessary to avoid irreparable damage or 
to preserve the status quo. 
 
11.      Miscellaneous.  The parties further agree as follows: 
 
         11.1     Time. Time is of the essence of each provision of this 
                  Agreement. 
 
         11.2     Notices. Any notice, payment, demand or communication required 
                  or permitted to be given by any provision of this Agreement 
                  will be in writing and will be deemed to have been given when 
                  delivered personally or by telefacsimile to the party 
                  designated to receive such notice, or on the date following 
                  the day sent by overnight courier, or on the third (3rd) 
                  business day after the same is sent by certified mail, postage 
                  and charges prepaid, directed to the following address or to 
                  such other or additional addresses as any party might 
                  designate by written notice to the other party: 
 
                  To the Company:         Chesapeake Energy Corporation 
                                          Post Office Box 18496 
                                          Oklahoma City, OK   73154-0496 
                                          Attn: Aubrey K. McClendon 
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                  To the Executive:           Mr. Henry J. Hood 
                                              6700 N.W. Grand Blvd. 
                                              Oklahoma City, OK  73116 
 
         11.3     Assignment. Neither this Agreement nor any of the parties' 
                  rights or obligations hereunder can be transferred or assigned 
                  without the prior written consent of the other parties to this 
                  Agreement; provided, however, the Company may assign this 
                  Agreement to any wholly owned affiliate or subsidiary of the 
                  Company without Executive's consent. 
 
         11.4     Construction. If any provision of this Agreement or the 
                  application thereof to any person or circumstances is 
                  determined, to any extent, to be invalid or unenforceable, the 
                  remainder of this Agreement, or the application of such 
                  provision to persons or circumstances other than those as to 
                  which the same is held invalid or unenforceable, will not be 
                  affected thereby, and each term and provision of this 
                  Agreement will be valid and enforceable to the fullest extent 
                  permitted by law. This Agreement is intended to be 
                  interpreted, construed and enforced in accordance with the 
                  laws of the State of Oklahoma and any litigation relating to 
                  this Agreement will be conducted in a court of competent 
                  jurisdiction located in Oklahoma County, Oklahoma. 
 
         11.5     Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire 
                  agreement between the parties hereto with respect to the 
                  subject matter herein contained, and no modification hereof 
                  will be effective unless made by a supplemental written 
                  agreement executed by all of the parties hereto. 
 
         11.6     Binding Effect. This Agreement will be binding on the parties 
                  and their respective successors, legal representatives and 
                  permitted assigns. In the event of a merger, consolidation, 
                  combination, dissolution or liquidation of the Company, the 
                  performance of this Agreement will be assumed by any entity 
                  which succeeds to or is transferred the business of the 
                  Company as a result thereof, and the Executive waives the 
                  consent requirement of paragraph 11.3 to effect such 
                  assumption. 
 
         11.7     Attorneys' Fees. If any party institutes an action or 
                  proceeding against any other party relating to the provisions 
                  of this Agreement or any default hereunder, the unsuccessful 
                  party to such action or proceeding will reimburse the 
                  successful party therein for the reasonable expenses of 
                  attorneys' fees and disbursements and litigation expenses 
                  incurred by the successful party, except with respect to any 
                  arbitration proceeding conducted pursuant to paragraph 10 
                  above. 
 
         11.8     Supersession. On execution of this Agreement by the Company 
                  and the Executive, the relationship between the Company and 
                  the Executive will be bound by the terms of this Agreement and 
                  the Employment Policies Manual 
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                  and not by any other agreements or otherwise. In the event of 
                  a conflict between the Employment Policies Manual and this 
                  Agreement, this Agreement will control in all respects. 
 
         IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this Agreement 
effective the date first above written. 
 
                              CHESAPEAKE ENERGY CORPORATION, an 
                              Oklahoma corporation 
 
 
 
                              By: /s/ Aubrey K. McClendon 
                                  -------------------------------------------- 
                                  Aubrey K. McClendon, Chief Executive Officer 
                                  (the "Company") 
 
 
 
                              By: /s/ Henry J. Hood 
                                  -------------------------------------------- 
                                  Henry J. Hood, Individually 
                                  (the "Executive") 
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                              EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
 
         THIS AGREEMENT is made effective July 1, 2000, between CHESAPEAKE 
ENERGY CORPORATION, an Oklahoma corporation (the "Company"), and Michael A. 
Johnson, an individual (the "Executive") and replaces and supersedes that 
certain Employment Agreement between Company and Executive dated July 1, 1997. 
 
                                   WITNESSETH: 
 
         WHEREAS, the Company desires to retain the services of the Executive 
and the Executive desires to make the Executive's services available to the 
Company. 
 
         NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises herein 
contained, the Company and the Executive agree as follows: 
 
1. Employment. The Company hereby employs the Executive and the Executive hereby 
accepts such employment subject to the terms and conditions contained in this 
Agreement. The Executive is engaged as an employee of the Company, and the 
Executive and the Company do not intend to create a joint venture, partnership 
or other relationship which might impose a fiduciary obligation on the Executive 
or the Company in the performance of this Agreement. 
 
2. Executive's Duties. The Executive is employed on a full-time basis. 
Throughout the term of this Agreement, the Executive will use the Executive's 
best efforts and due diligence to assist the Company in achieving the most 
profitable operation of the Company and the Company's affiliated entities 
consistent with developing and maintaining a quality business operation. 
 
         2.1      Specific Duties. The Executive will serve as Senior Vice 
                  President - Accounting and Controller for the Company. The 
                  Executive will perform all of the services required to fully 
                  and faithfully execute the office and position to which the 
                  Executive is appointed and such other services as may be 
                  reasonably requested by the Executive's supervisor. During the 
                  term of this Agreement, the Executive may be nominated for 
                  election or appointed to serve as a director or officer of the 
                  Company's subsidiaries as determined in the board of 
                  directors' sole discretion. 
 
         2.2      Supervision. The services of the Executive will be requested 
                  and directed by the Senior Vice President - Finance and Chief 
                  Financial Officer, Mr. Marcus C. Rowland, and the Chief 
                  Executive Officer, Mr. Aubrey K. McClendon. 
 
         2.3      Rules and Regulations. The Company currently has an Employment 
                  Policies Manual which sets forth the general human resources 
                  policies of the Company and addresses frequently asked 
                  questions regarding the 
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                  Company. The Executive agrees to comply with the Employment 
                  Policies Manual except to the extent inconsistent with this 
                  Agreement. The Employment Policies Manual is subject to change 
                  without notice in the sole discretion of the Company at any 
                  time. 
 
         2.4      Stock Investment. The Executive agrees to hold not less than 
                  one thousand (1,000) shares of the Company's common stock 
                  during the term of this Agreement. 
 
3. Other Activities. Unless the Executive has obtained the prior written 
approval of the board of directors of the Company, the Executive will not: (a) 
engage in business independent of the Executive's employment by the Company; (b) 
serve as an officer, general partner or member in any corporation, partnership, 
company, or firm; (c) directly or indirectly invest in, participate in or 
acquire an interest in any oil and gas business, including, without limitation, 
(i) producing oil and gas, (ii) drilling, owning or operating oil and gas leases 
or wells, (iii) providing services or materials to the oil and gas industry, 
(iv) marketing or refining oil or gas, or (v) owning any interest in any 
corporation, partnership, company or entity which conducts any of the foregoing 
activities. The limitation in this paragraph 3 will not prohibit an investment 
by the Executive in publicly traded securities; or the continued direct 
ownership and operation of oil and gas interests and leases to the extent such 
interests were owned by the Executive on the Executive's first date of 
employment with the Company. The Executive agrees not to directly or indirectly 
acquire any additional oil and gas interests or increase ownership of any oil 
and gas interests owned by the Executive on the Executive's first date of 
employment with the Company. 
 
4. Executive's Compensation. The Company agrees to compensate the Executive as 
follows: 
 
         4.1      Base Salary. A base salary (the "Base Salary"), at the initial 
                  annual rate of not less than One Hundred Fifty Thousand 
                  Dollars ($150,000.00), will be paid to the Executive in equal 
                  semi-monthly installments beginning July 15, 2000 during the 
                  term of this Agreement. 
 
         4.2      Bonus. In addition to the Base Salary described at paragraph 
                  4.1 of this Agreement, the Company may periodically pay bonus 
                  compensation to the Executive. Any bonus compensation will be 
                  at the absolute discretion of the Company in such amounts and 
                  at such times as the board of directors of the Company may 
                  determine. 
 
         4.3      Stock Options. In addition to the compensation set forth in 
                  paragraphs 4.1 and 4.2 of this Agreement, the Executive may 
                  periodically receive grants of stock options from the 
                  Company's various stock option plans, subject to the terms and 
                  conditions thereof. 
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         4.4      Benefits. The Company will provide the Executive such 
                  retirement benefits, reimbursement of reasonable expenditures 
                  for dues, travel and entertainment and such other benefits as 
                  are customarily provided by the Company and as are set forth 
                  in and governed by the Company's Employment Policies Manual. 
                  The Company will also provide the Executive the opportunity to 
                  apply for coverage under the Company's medical, life and 
                  disability plans, if any. If the Executive is accepted for 
                  coverage under such plans, the Company will make such coverage 
                  available to the Executive on the same terms as is customarily 
                  provided by the Company to the plan participants as modified 
                  from time to time. The following specific benefits will also 
                  be provided to the Executive at the expense of the Company: 
 
                  4.4.1    Vacation. The Executive will be entitled to take 
                           three (3) weeks of paid vacation each twelve months 
                           during the term of this Agreement. No additional 
                           compensation will be paid for failure to take 
                           vacation and no vacation may be carried forward from 
                           one twelve month period to another. 
 
                  4.4.2    Membership Dues. The Company will reimburse the 
                           Executive for: (a) the monthly dues necessary to 
                           maintain a full membership in a country club in the 
                           Oklahoma City area selected by the Executive in an 
                           amount not to exceed Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00) 
                           per month; and (b) the reasonable cost of any 
                           approved business entertainment at such country club. 
                           All other costs, including, without implied 
                           limitation, any initiation costs, initial membership 
                           costs, personal use and business entertainment 
                           unrelated to the Company will be the sole obligation 
                           of the Executive and the Company will have no 
                           liability with respect to such amounts. 
 
                  4.4.3    Compensation Review. The compensation of the 
                           Executive will be reviewed not less frequently than 
                           annually by the board of directors of the Company. 
 
5. Term. The employment relationship evidenced by this Agreement is an "at will" 
employment relationship and the Company reserves the right to terminate the 
Executive at any time with or without cause. In the absence of such termination, 
this Agreement will extend for a term of three (3) years commencing on July 1, 
2000, and ending on June 30, 2003 (the "Expiration Date"). 
 
6. Termination. This Agreement will continue in effect until the expiration of 
the term stated at paragraph 5 of this Agreement unless earlier terminated 
pursuant to this paragraph 6. 
 
         6.1      Termination by Company. The Company will have the following 
                  rights to terminate this Agreement: 
 
 
                                       3 



   7 
 
 
                  6.1.1    Termination without Cause. The Company may terminate 
                           this Agreement without cause at any time by the 
                           service of written notice of termination to the 
                           Executive specifying an effective date of such 
                           termination not sooner than sixty (60) business days 
                           after the date of such notice (the "Termination 
                           Date"). In the event the Executive is terminated 
                           without cause, or the Company elects not to renew 
                           this Agreement, the Executive will receive as 
                           termination compensation: (a) Base Salary for a 
                           period of ninety (90) days; (b) any benefits payable 
                           by operation of paragraph 4.4 of this Agreement; and 
                           (c) any vacation pay accrued through the Termination 
                           Date. The termination compensation in (a) shall be 
                           paid only if the Executive executes the Company's 
                           standard termination agreement releasing all legally 
                           waivable claims arising from the Executive's 
                           employment. 
 
                  6.1.2    Termination for Cause. The Company may terminate this 
                           Agreement for cause if the Executive: (a) 
                           misappropriates the property of the Company or 
                           commits any other act of dishonesty; (b) engages in 
                           personal misconduct which materially injures the 
                           Company; (c) willfully violates any law or regulation 
                           relating to the business of the Company which results 
                           in injury to the Company; or (d) willfully and 
                           repeatedly fails to perform the Executive's duties 
                           hereunder. In the event this Agreement is terminated 
                           for cause, the Company will not have any obligation 
                           to provide any further payments or benefits to the 
                           Executive after the Termination Date. 
 
                  6.1.3    Termination after Change of Control. If, during the 
                           term of this Agreement, there is a "Change of 
                           Control" and within one (1) year from the effective 
                           date of such Change of Control: (a) this Agreement 
                           expires and is not extended; or (b) the Executive 
                           resigns as a result of (i) a reduction in the 
                           Executive's compensation (including the Executive's 
                           then current Base Salary under Paragraphs 4.1 of this 
                           Agreement and bonuses equal to those paid to the 
                           Executive during calendar year 2000 under Paragraph 
                           4.2 of this Agreement), or (ii) a required relocation 
                           more than twenty five (25) miles from the Executive's 
                           then current place of employment; or within one (1) 
                           year from the effective date of the Change of Control 
                           the Executive is terminated other than under 
                           Paragraphs 6.1.2, 6.3 or 6.4 based on adequate 
                           grounds; then the Executive will be entitled to a 
                           severance payment (in addition to any other amounts 
                           payable to the Executive under this Agreement or 
                           otherwise, excluding any Base Salary payable under 
                           Paragraph 6.1.1, as of the date of 
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                           termination or resignation hereunder) in an amount 
                           equal to six (6) months of the Executive's then 
                           current Base Salary under Paragraph 4.1 of this 
                           Agreement plus bonuses equal to those paid to the 
                           Executive during calendar year 2000 under Paragraph 
                           4.2. The term "Change of Control" means any action of 
                           a nature that would be required to be reported in 
                           response to Item 6(e) of Schedule 14A of Regulation 
                           14A under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 with 
                           respect to Chesapeake Energy Corporation 
                           ("Chesapeake") including, without limitation (i) the 
                           direct or indirect acquisition by any person after 
                           the date hereof of beneficial ownership of the right 
                           to vote or securities of Chesapeake representing the 
                           right to vote fifty one percent (51%) or more of the 
                           combined voting power of Chesapeake's then 
                           outstanding securities having the right to vote for 
                           the election of directors, or (ii) a merger, 
                           consolidation, sale of assets or contested election 
                           or (iii) any combination of (i) and (ii) which 
                           results in a majority of the members of Chesapeake's 
                           board of directors being replaced by directors who 
                           were not nominated and approved by the existing board 
                           of directors. 
 
 
         6.2      Termination by Executive. The Executive may voluntarily 
                  terminate this Agreement with or without cause by the service 
                  of written notice of such termination to the Company 
                  specifying a Termination Date no sooner than thirty (30) days 
                  after the date of such notice. In the event this Agreement is 
                  terminated by the Executive, neither the Company nor the 
                  Executive will have any further obligations hereunder 
                  including, without limitation, any obligation of the Company 
                  to provide any further payments or benefits to the Executive 
                  after the Termination Date. 
 
         6.3      Incapacity of Executive. If the Executive suffers from a 
                  physical or mental condition which in the reasonable judgment 
                  of the Company's management prevents the Executive in whole or 
                  in part from performing the duties specified herein for a 
                  period of three (3) consecutive months, the Executive may be 
                  terminated. Although the termination may be deemed as a 
                  termination for cause, any compensation payable under 
                  paragraph 4 of this Agreement will be continued for ninety 
                  (90) days following the Termination Date. Notwithstanding the 
                  foregoing, the Executive's Base Salary specified in paragraph 
                  4.1 of this Agreement will be reduced by any benefits payable 
                  under any disability plans. 
 
         6.4      Death of Executive. If the Executive dies during the term of 
                  this Agreement, the Company may thereafter terminate this 
                  Agreement without compensation to the Executive's estate 
                  except: (a) the obligation to continue the Base Salary 
                  payments under paragraph 4.1 of this Agreement for ninety (90) 
                  days 
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                  following the date of the Executive's death; and (b) the 
                  benefits described in paragraph 4.4 of this Agreement accrued 
                  through the date of the Executive's death. 
 
         6.5      Effect of Termination. The termination of this Agreement will 
                  terminate all obligations of the Executive to render services 
                  on behalf of the Company from and after the Termination Date, 
                  provided that the Executive will maintain the confidentiality 
                  of all information acquired by the Executive during the term 
                  of Executive's employment in accordance with paragraph 7 of 
                  this Agreement. Except as otherwise provided in paragraph 6 of 
                  this Agreement, no accrued bonus, severance pay or other form 
                  of compensation will be payable by the Company to the 
                  Executive by reason of the termination of this Agreement. All 
                  keys, entry cards, credit cards, files, records, financial 
                  information, furniture, furnishings, equipment, supplies and 
                  other items relating to the Company in the Executive's 
                  possession will remain the property of the Company. The 
                  Executive will have the right to retain and remove all 
                  personal property and effects which are owned by the Executive 
                  and located in the offices of the Company. All such personal 
                  items will be removed from such offices no later than two (2) 
                  days after the Termination Date, and the Company is hereby 
                  authorized to discard any items remaining and to reassign the 
                  Executive's office space after such date. Prior to the 
                  Termination Date, the Executive will render such services to 
                  the Company as might be reasonably required to provide for the 
                  orderly termination of the Executive's employment. 
 
7. Confidentiality. The Executive recognizes that the nature of the Executive's 
services are such that the Executive will have access to information which 
constitutes trade secrets, is of a confidential nature, is of great value to the 
Company or is the foundation on which the business of the Company is predicated. 
The Executive agrees not to disclose to any person other than the Company's 
employees or the Company's legal counsel nor use for any purpose, other than the 
performance of this Agreement, any confidential information ("Confidential 
Information"). Confidential Information includes data or material (regardless of 
form) which is: (a) a trade secret; (b) provided, disclosed or delivered to 
Executive by the Company, any officer, director, employee, agent, attorney, 
accountant, consultant, or other person or entity employed by the Company in any 
capacity, any customer, borrower or business associate of the Company or any 
public authority having jurisdiction over the Company of any business activity 
conducted by the Company; or (c) produced, developed, obtained or prepared by or 
on behalf of Executive or the Company (whether or not such information was 
developed in the performance of this Agreement) with respect to the Company or 
any assets oil and gas prospects, business activities, officers, directors, 
employees, borrowers or customers of the foregoing. However, Confidential 
Information shall not include any information, data or material which at the 
time of disclosure or use was generally available to the public other than by a 
breach of this Agreement, was available to the party to whom disclosed on a 
non-confidential basis by disclosure or access provided by the Company or a 
third party, or was otherwise developed or obtained independently by the 
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person to whom disclosed without a breach of this Agreement. On request by the 
Company, the Company will be entitled to the return of any Confidential 
Information in the possession of the Executive. The Executive also agrees that 
the provisions of this paragraph 7 will survive the termination, expiration or 
cancellation of this Agreement for a period of three (3) years. The Executive 
will deliver to the Company all originals and copies of the documents or 
materials containing Confidential Information. For purposes of paragraphs 7, 8, 
and 9 of this Agreement, the Company expressly includes any of the Company's 
affiliated corporations, partnerships or entities. 
 
8. Noncompetition. For a period of twelve (12) months after Executive is no 
longer employed by the Company as a result of either the resignation by the 
Executive pursuant to paragraph 6.1.3 or 6.2 above, or termination for cause 
pursuant to paragraph 6.1.2 above, Executive will not acquire, attempt to 
acquire or aid another in the acquisition or attempted acquisition of an 
interest in oil and gas assets, oil and gas production, oil and gas leases, 
mineral interests, oil and gas wells or other such oil and gas exploration, 
development or production activities within one (1) mile of any operations or 
ownership interests of the Company or its affiliated corporations, partnerships 
or entities for which Executive had primary responsibilities within three (3) 
years prior to the Executive's Termination Date and while employed with the 
Company. The Executive further agrees that the Executive will not circumvent or 
attempt to circumvent the foregoing agreements by any future arrangement or 
through the actions of a third party. 
 
9. Proprietary Matters. The Executive expressly understands and agrees that any 
and all improvements, inventions, discoveries, processes or know-how that are 
generated or conceived by the Executive during the term of this Agreement, 
whether generated or conceived during the Executive's regular working hours or 
otherwise, will be the sole and exclusive property of the Company. Whenever 
requested by the Company (either during the term of this Agreement or 
thereafter), the Executive will assign or execute any and all applications, 
assignments and or other instruments and do all things which the Company deems 
necessary or appropriate in order to permit the Company to: (a) assign and 
convey or otherwise make available to the Company the sole and exclusive right, 
title, and interest in and to said improvements, inventions, discoveries, 
processes, know-how, applications, patents, copyrights, trade names or 
trademarks; or (b) apply for, obtain, maintain, enforce and defend patents, 
copyrights, trade names, or trademarks of the United States or of foreign 
countries for said improvements, inventions, discoveries, processes or know-how. 
However, the improvements, inventions, discoveries, processes or know-how 
generated or conceived by the Executive and referred to above (except as they 
may be included in the patents, copyrights or registered trade names or 
trademarks of the Company, or corporations, partnerships or other entities which 
may be affiliated with the Company) shall not be exclusive property of the 
Company at any time after having been disclosed or revealed or have otherwise 
become available to the public or to a third party on a non-confidential basis 
other than by a breach of this Agreement, or after they have been independently 
developed or discussed without a breach of this Agreement by a third party who 
has no obligation to the Company or its affiliates. 
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10. Arbitration. The parties will attempt to promptly resolve any dispute or 
controversy arising out of or relating to this Agreement or termination of the 
Executive by the Company. Any negotiations pursuant to this paragraph 10 are 
confidential and will be treated as compromise and settlement negotiations for 
all purposes. If the parties are unable to reach a settlement amicably, the 
dispute will be submitted to binding arbitration before a single arbitrator in 
accordance with the Employment Dispute Resolution Rules of the American 
Arbitration Association. The arbitrator will be instructed and empowered to take 
reasonable steps to expedite the arbitration and the arbitrator's judgment will 
be final and binding upon the parties subject solely to challenge on the grounds 
of fraud or gross misconduct. Except for damages arising out of a breach of 
paragraphs 7, 8 or 9 of this Agreement, the arbitrator is not empowered to award 
total damages (including compensatory damages) which exceed 200% of compensatory 
damages and each party hereby irrevocably waives any damages in excess of that 
amount. The arbitration will be held in Oklahoma County, Oklahoma. Judgment upon 
any verdict in arbitration may be entered in any court of competent jurisdiction 
and the parties hereby consent to the jurisdiction of, and proper venue in, the 
federal and state courts located in Oklahoma County, Oklahoma. Each party will 
bear its own costs in connection with the arbitration and the costs of the 
arbitrator will be borne by the party who the arbitrator determines did not 
prevail in the matter. Unless otherwise expressly set forth in this Agreement, 
the procedures specified in this paragraph 10 will be the sole and exclusive 
procedures for the resolution of disputes and controversies between the parties 
arising out of or relating to this Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a 
party may seek a preliminary injunction or other provisional judicial relief if 
in such party's judgment such action is necessary to avoid irreparable damage or 
to preserve the status quo. 
 
11. Miscellaneous. The parties further agree as follows: 
 
         11.1     Time. Time is of the essence of each provision of this 
                  Agreement. 
 
         11.2     Notices. Any notice, payment, demand or communication required 
                  or permitted to be given by any provision of this Agreement 
                  will be in writing and will be deemed to have been given when 
                  delivered personally or by telefacsimile to the party 
                  designated to receive such notice, or on the date following 
                  the day sent by overnight courier, or on the third (3rd) 
                  business day after the same is sent by certified mail, postage 
                  and charges prepaid, directed to the following address or to 
                  such other or additional addresses as any party might 
                  designate by written notice to the other party: 
 
                  To the Company:   Chesapeake Energy Corporation 
                                    Post Office Box 18496 
                                    Oklahoma City, OK   73154-0496 
                                    Attn: Aubrey K. McClendon 
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                  To the Executive: Mr. Michael A. Johnson 
                                    2100 Faircloud Dr. 
                                    Edmond, OK  73034 
 
         11.3     Assignment. Neither this Agreement nor any of the parties' 
                  rights or obligations hereunder can be transferred or assigned 
                  without the prior written consent of the other parties to this 
                  Agreement; provided, however, the Company may assign this 
                  Agreement to any wholly owned affiliate or subsidiary of the 
                  Company without Executive's consent. 
 
         11.4     Construction. If any provision of this Agreement or the 
                  application thereof to any person or circumstances is 
                  determined, to any extent, to be invalid or unenforceable, the 
                  remainder of this Agreement, or the application of such 
                  provision to persons or circumstances other than those as to 
                  which the same is held invalid or unenforceable, will not be 
                  affected thereby, and each term and provision of this 
                  Agreement will be valid and enforceable to the fullest extent 
                  permitted by law. This Agreement is intended to be 
                  interpreted, construed and enforced in accordance with the 
                  laws of the State of Oklahoma and any litigation relating to 
                  this Agreement will be conducted in a court of competent 
                  jurisdiction located in Oklahoma County, Oklahoma. 
 
         11.5     Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire 
                  agreement between the parties hereto with respect to the 
                  subject matter herein contained, and no modification hereof 
                  will be effective unless made by a supplemental written 
                  agreement executed by all of the parties hereto. 
 
         11.6     Binding Effect. This Agreement will be binding on the parties 
                  and their respective successors, legal representatives and 
                  permitted assigns. In the event of a merger, consolidation, 
                  combination, dissolution or liquidation of the Company, the 
                  performance of this Agreement will be assumed by any entity 
                  which succeeds to or is transferred the business of the 
                  Company as a result thereof, and the Executive waives the 
                  consent requirement of paragraph 11.3 to effect such 
                  assumption. 
 
         11.7     Attorneys' Fees. If any party institutes an action or 
                  proceeding against any other party relating to the provisions 
                  of this Agreement or any default hereunder, the unsuccessful 
                  party to such action or proceeding will reimburse the 
                  successful party therein for the reasonable expenses of 
                  attorneys' fees and disbursements and litigation expenses 
                  incurred by the successful party, except with respect to any 
                  arbitration proceeding conducted pursuant to paragraph 10 
                  above. 
 
         11.8     Supersession. On execution of this Agreement by the Company 
                  and the Executive, the relationship between the Company and 
                  the Executive will be bound by the terms of this Agreement and 
                  the Employment Policies Manual 
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                  and not by any other agreements or otherwise. In the event of 
                  a conflict between the Employment Policies Manual and this 
                  Agreement, this Agreement will control in all respects. 
 
         IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this Agreement 
effective the date first above written. 
 
                                   CHESAPEAKE ENERGY CORPORATION, an 
                                   Oklahoma corporation 
 
 
 
                                   By: /s/ Aubrey K. McClendon 
                                   --------------------------------------------- 
                                   Aubrey K. McClendon, Chief Executive Officer 
                                   (the "Company") 
 
 
 
                                   By: /s/ Michael A. Johnson 
                                   --------------------------------------------- 
                                   Michael A. Johnson, Individually 
                                   (the "Executive") 
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                              EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
 
         THIS AGREEMENT is made effective July 1, 2000, between CHESAPEAKE 
ENERGY CORPORATION, an Oklahoma corporation (the "Company"), and Martha A. 
Burger, an individual (the "Executive") and replaces and supersedes that certain 
Employment Agreement between Company and Executive dated July 1, 1997. 
 
                                   WITNESSETH: 
 
         WHEREAS, the Company desires to retain the services of the Executive 
and the Executive desires to make the Executive's services available to the 
Company. 
 
         NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises herein 
contained, the Company and the Executive agree as follows: 
 
1. Employment. The Company hereby employs the Executive and the Executive hereby 
accepts such employment subject to the terms and conditions contained in this 
Agreement. The Executive is engaged as an employee of the Company, and the 
Executive and the Company do not intend to create a joint venture, partnership 
or other relationship which might impose a fiduciary obligation on the Executive 
or the Company in the performance of this Agreement. 
 
2. Executive's Duties. The Executive is employed on a full-time basis. 
Throughout the term of this Agreement, the Executive will use the Executive's 
best efforts and due diligence to assist the Company in achieving the most 
profitable operation of the Company and the Company's affiliated entities 
consistent with developing and maintaining a quality business operation. 
 
          2.1  Specific Duties. The Executive will serve as Treasurer and Senior 
               Vice President - Human Resources for the Company. The Executive 
               will perform all of the services required to fully and faithfully 
               execute the office and position to which the Executive is 
               appointed and such other services as may be reasonably requested 
               by the Executive's supervisor. During the term of this Agreement, 
               the Executive may be nominated for election or appointed to serve 
               as a director or officer of the Company's subsidiaries as 
               determined in the board of directors' sole discretion. 
 
          2.2  Supervision. The services of the Executive will be requested and 
               directed by the Senior Vice President - Finance and Chief 
               Financial Officer, Mr. Marcus C. Rowland, and the Chief Executive 
               Officer, Mr. Aubrey K. McClendon. 
 
          2.3  Rules and Regulations. The Company currently has an Employment 
               Policies Manual which sets forth the general human resources 
               policies of the Company and addresses frequently asked questions 
               regarding the 
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               Company. The Executive agrees to comply with the 
               Employment Policies Manual except to the extent inconsistent with 
               this Agreement. The Employment Policies Manual is subject to 
               change without notice in the sole discretion of the Company at 
               any time. 
 
          2.4  Stock Investment. The Executive agrees to hold not less than one 
               thousand (1,000) shares of the Company's common stock during the 
               term of this Agreement. 
 
3. Other Activities. Unless the Executive has obtained the prior written 
approval of the board of directors of the Company, the Executive will not: (a) 
engage in business independent of the Executive's employment by the Company; (b) 
serve as an officer, general partner or member in any corporation, partnership, 
company, or firm; (c) directly or indirectly invest in, participate in or 
acquire an interest in any oil and gas business, including, without limitation, 
(i) producing oil and gas, (ii) drilling, owning or operating oil and gas leases 
or wells, (iii) providing services or materials to the oil and gas industry, 
(iv) marketing or refining oil or gas, or (v) owning any interest in any 
corporation, partnership, company or entity which conducts any of the foregoing 
activities. The limitation in this paragraph 3 will not prohibit an investment 
by the Executive in publicly traded securities; or the continued direct 
ownership and operation of oil and gas interests and leases to the extent such 
interests were owned by the Executive on the Executive's first date of 
employment with the Company. The Executive agrees not to directly or indirectly 
acquire any additional oil and gas interests or increase ownership of any oil 
and gas interests owned by the Executive on the Executive's first date of 
employment with the Company. 
 
4. Executive's Compensation. The Company agrees to compensate the Executive as 
follows: 
 
          4.1  Base Salary. A base salary (the "Base Salary"), at the initial 
               annual rate of not less than One Hundred Seventy Thousand Dollars 
               ($170,000.00), will be paid to the Executive in equal 
               semi-monthly installments beginning July 15, 2000 during the term 
               of this Agreement. 
 
          4.2  Bonus. In addition to the Base Salary described at paragraph 4.1 
               of this Agreement, the Company may periodically pay bonus 
               compensation to the Executive. Any bonus compensation will be at 
               the absolute discretion of the Company in such amounts and at 
               such times as the board of directors of the Company may 
               determine. 
 
          4.3  Stock Options. In addition to the compensation set forth in 
               paragraphs 4.1 and 4.2 of this Agreement, the Executive may 
               periodically receive grants of stock options from the Company's 
               various stock option plans, subject to the terms and conditions 
               thereof. 
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          4.4  Benefits. The Company will provide the Executive such retirement 
               benefits, reimbursement of reasonable expenditures for dues, 
               travel and entertainment and such other benefits as are 
               customarily provided by the Company and as are set forth in and 
               governed by the Company's Employment Policies Manual. The Company 
               will also provide the Executive the opportunity to apply for 
               coverage under the Company's medical, life and disability plans, 
               if any. If the Executive is accepted for coverage under such 
               plans, the Company will make such coverage available to the 
               Executive on the same terms as is customarily provided by the 
               Company to the plan participants as modified from time to time. 
               The following specific benefits will also be provided to the 
               Executive at the expense of the Company: 
 
               4.4.1 Vacation. The Executive will be entitled to take three (3) 
                     weeks of paid vacation each twelve months during the term 
                     of this Agreement. No additional compensation will be paid 
                     for failure to take vacation and no vacation may be carried 
                     forward from one twelve month period to another. 
 
               4.4.2 Membership Dues. The Company will reimburse the Executive 
                     for: (a) the monthly dues necessary to maintain a full 
                     membership in a country club in the Oklahoma City area 
                     selected by the Executive in an amount not to exceed Five 
                     Hundred Dollars ($500.00) per month; and (b) the reasonable 
                     cost of any approved business entertainment at such country 
                     club. All other costs, including, without implied 
                     limitation, any initiation costs, initial membership costs, 
                     personal use and business entertainment unrelated to the 
                     Company will be the sole obligation of the Executive and 
                     the Company will have no liability with respect to such 
                     amounts. 
 
               4.4.3 Compensation Review. The compensation of the Executive will 
                     be reviewed not less frequently than annually by the board 
                     of directors of the Company. 
 
5. Term. The employment relationship evidenced by this Agreement is an "at will" 
employment relationship and the Company reserves the right to terminate the 
Executive at any time with or without cause. In the absence of such termination, 
this Agreement will extend for a term of three (3) years commencing on July 1, 
2000, and ending on June 30, 2003 (the "Expiration Date"). 
 
6. Termination. This Agreement will continue in effect until the expiration of 
the term stated at paragraph 5 of this Agreement unless earlier terminated 
pursuant to this paragraph 6. 
 
          6.1  Termination by Company. The Company will have the following 
               rights to terminate this Agreement: 
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               6.1.1 Termination without Cause. The Company may terminate this 
                     Agreement without cause at any time by the service of 
                     written notice of termination to the Executive specifying 
                     an effective date of such termination not sooner than sixty 
                     (60) business days after the date of such notice (the 
                     "Termination Date"). In the event the Executive is 
                     terminated without cause, or the Company elects not to 
                     renew this Agreement, the Executive will receive as 
                     termination compensation: (a) Base Salary for a period of 
                     ninety (90) days; (b) any benefits payable by operation of 
                     paragraph 4.4 of this Agreement; and (c) any vacation pay 
                     accrued through the Termination Date. The termination 
                     compensation in (a) shall be paid only if the Executive 
                     executes the Company's standard termination agreement 
                     releasing all legally waivable claims arising from the 
                     Executive's employment. 
 
               6.1.2 Termination for Cause. The Company may terminate this 
                     Agreement for cause if the Executive: (a) misappropriates 
                     the property of the Company or commits any other act of 
                     dishonesty; (b) engages in personal misconduct which 
                     materially injures the Company; (c) willfully violates any 
                     law or regulation relating to the business of the Company 
                     which results in injury to the Company; or (d) willfully 
                     and repeatedly fails to perform the Executive's duties 
                     hereunder. In the event this Agreement is terminated for 
                     cause, the Company will not have any obligation to provide 
                     any further payments or benefits to the Executive after the 
                     Termination Date. 
 
               6.1.3 Termination after Change of Control. If, during the term of 
                     this Agreement, there is a "Change of Control" and within 
                     one (1) year from the effective date of such Change of 
                     Control: (a) this Agreement expires and is not extended; or 
                     (b) the Executive resigns as a result of (i) a reduction in 
                     the Executive's compensation (including the Executive's 
                     then current Base Salary under Paragraphs 4.1 of this 
                     Agreement and bonuses equal to those paid to the Executive 
                     during calendar year 2000 under paragraph 4.2 of this 
                     Agreement), or (ii) a required relocation more than twenty 
                     five (25) miles from the Executive's then current place of 
                     employment; or within one (1) year from the effective date 
                     of the Change of Control the Executive is terminated other 
                     than under Paragraphs 6.1.2, 6.3 or 6.4 based on adequate 
                     grounds; then the Executive will be entitled to a severance 
                     payment (in addition to any other amounts payable to the 
                     Executive under this Agreement or otherwise, excluding any 
                     Base Salary payable under Paragraph 6.1.1, as of the date 
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                     of termination or resignation hereunder) in an amount equal 
                     to six (6) months of the Executive's then current Base 
                     Salary under Paragraph 4.1 of this Agreement plus bonuses 
                     equal to those paid to the Executive during calendar year 
                     2000 under Paragraph 4.2. The term "Change of Control" 
                     means any action of a nature that would be required to be 
                     reported in response to Item 6(e) of Schedule 14A of 
                     Regulation 14A under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 
                     with respect to Chesapeake Energy Corporation 
                     ("Chesapeake") including, without limitation (i) the direct 
                     or indirect acquisition by any person after the date hereof 
                     of beneficial ownership of the right to vote or securities 
                     of Chesapeake representing the right to vote fifty one 
                     percent (51%) or more of the combined voting power of 
                     Chesapeake's then outstanding securities having the right 
                     to vote for the election of directors, or (ii) a merger, 
                     consolidation, sale of assets or contested election or 
                     (iii) any combination of (i) and (ii) which results in a 
                     majority of the members of Chesapeake's board of directors 
                     being replaced by directors who were not nominated and 
                     approved by the existing board of directors. 
 
          6.2  Termination by Executive. The Executive may voluntarily terminate 
               this Agreement with or without cause by the service of written 
               notice of such termination to the Company specifying a 
               Termination Date no sooner than thirty (30) days after the date 
               of such notice. In the event this Agreement is terminated by the 
               Executive, neither the Company nor the Executive will have any 
               further obligations hereunder including, without limitation, any 
               obligation of the Company to provide any further payments or 
               benefits to the Executive after the Termination Date. 
 
          6.3  Incapacity of Executive. If the Executive suffers from a physical 
               or mental condition which in the reasonable judgment of the 
               Company's management prevents the Executive in whole or in part 
               from performing the duties specified herein for a period of three 
               (3) consecutive months, the Executive may be terminated. Although 
               the termination may be deemed as a termination for cause, any 
               compensation payable under paragraph 4 of this Agreement will be 
               continued for ninety (90) days following the Termination Date. 
               Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Executive's Base Salary 
               specified in paragraph 4.1 of this Agreement will be reduced by 
               any benefits payable under any disability plans. 
 
          6.4  Death of Executive. If the Executive dies during the term of this 
               Agreement, the Company may thereafter terminate this Agreement 
               without compensation to the Executive's estate except: (a) the 
               obligation to continue the Base Salary payments under paragraph 
               4.1 of this Agreement for ninety (90) days 
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               following the date of the Executive's death; and (b) the benefits 
               described in paragraph 4.4 of this Agreement accrued through the 
               date of the Executive's death. 
 
          6.5  Effect of Termination. The termination of this Agreement will 
               terminate all obligations of the Executive to render services on 
               behalf of the Company from and after the Termination Date, 
               provided that the Executive will maintain the confidentiality of 
               all information acquired by the Executive during the term of 
               Executive's employment in accordance with paragraph 7 of this 
               Agreement. Except as otherwise provided in paragraph 6 of this 
               Agreement, no accrued bonus, severance pay or other form of 
               compensation will be payable by the Company to the Executive by 
               reason of the termination of this Agreement. All keys, entry 
               cards, credit cards, files, records, financial information, 
               furniture, furnishings, equipment, supplies and other items 
               relating to the Company in the Executive's possession will remain 
               the property of the Company. The Executive will have the right to 
               retain and remove all personal property and effects which are 
               owned by the Executive and located in the offices of the Company. 
               All such personal items will be removed from such offices no 
               later than two (2) days after the Termination Date, and the 
               Company is hereby authorized to discard any items remaining and 
               to reassign the Executive's office space after such date. Prior 
               to the Termination Date, the Executive will render such services 
               to the Company as might be reasonably required to provide for the 
               orderly termination of the Executive's employment. 
 
7. Confidentiality. The Executive recognizes that the nature of the Executive's 
services are such that the Executive will have access to information which 
constitutes trade secrets, is of a confidential nature, is of great value to the 
Company or is the foundation on which the business of the Company is predicated. 
The Executive agrees not to disclose to any person other than the Company's 
employees or the Company's legal counsel nor use for any purpose, other than the 
performance of this Agreement, any confidential information ("Confidential 
Information"). Confidential Information includes data or material (regardless of 
form) which is: (a) a trade secret; (b) provided, disclosed or delivered to 
Executive by the Company, any officer, director, employee, agent, attorney, 
accountant, consultant, or other person or entity employed by the Company in any 
capacity, any customer, borrower or business associate of the Company or any 
public authority having jurisdiction over the Company of any business activity 
conducted by the Company; or (c) produced, developed, obtained or prepared by or 
on behalf of Executive or the Company (whether or not such information was 
developed in the performance of this Agreement) with respect to the Company or 
any assets oil and gas prospects, business activities, officers, directors, 
employees, borrowers or customers of the foregoing. However, Confidential 
Information shall not include any information, data or material which at the 
time of disclosure or use was generally available to the public other than by a 
breach of this Agreement, was available to the party to whom disclosed on a 
non-confidential basis by disclosure or access provided by the Company or a 
third party, or was otherwise developed or obtained independently by the 
 
 
 
                                       6 



   10 
 
 
person to whom disclosed without a breach of this Agreement. On request by the 
Company, the Company will be entitled to the return of any Confidential 
Information in the possession of the Executive. The Executive also agrees that 
the provisions of this paragraph 7 will survive the termination, expiration or 
cancellation of this Agreement for a period of three (3) years. The Executive 
will deliver to the Company all originals and copies of the documents or 
materials containing Confidential Information. For purposes of paragraphs 7, 8, 
and 9 of this Agreement, the Company expressly includes any of the Company's 
affiliated corporations, partnerships or entities. 
 
8. Noncompetition. For a period of twelve (12) months after Executive is no 
longer employed by the Company as a result of either the resignation by the 
Executive pursuant to paragraph 6.1.3 or 6.2 above, or termination for cause 
pursuant to paragraph 6.1.2 above, Executive will not acquire, attempt to 
acquire or aid another in the acquisition or attempted acquisition of an 
interest in oil and gas assets, oil and gas production, oil and gas leases, 
mineral interests, oil and gas wells or other such oil and gas exploration, 
development or production activities within one (1) mile of any operations or 
ownership interests of the Company or its affiliated corporations, partnerships 
or entities for which Executive had primary responsibilities within three (3) 
years prior to the Executive's Termination Date and while employed with the 
Company. The Executive further agrees that the Executive will not circumvent or 
attempt to circumvent the foregoing agreements by any future arrangement or 
through the actions of a third party. 
 
9. Proprietary Matters. The Executive expressly understands and agrees that any 
and all improvements, inventions, discoveries, processes or know-how that are 
generated or conceived by the Executive during the term of this Agreement, 
whether generated or conceived during the Executive's regular working hours or 
otherwise, will be the sole and exclusive property of the Company. Whenever 
requested by the Company (either during the term of this Agreement or 
thereafter), the Executive will assign or execute any and all applications, 
assignments and or other instruments and do all things which the Company deems 
necessary or appropriate in order to permit the Company to: (a) assign and 
convey or otherwise make available to the Company the sole and exclusive right, 
title, and interest in and to said improvements, inventions, discoveries, 
processes, know-how, applications, patents, copyrights, trade names or 
trademarks; or (b) apply for, obtain, maintain, enforce and defend patents, 
copyrights, trade names, or trademarks of the United States or of foreign 
countries for said improvements, inventions, discoveries, processes or know-how. 
However, the improvements, inventions, discoveries, processes or know-how 
generated or conceived by the Executive and referred to above (except as they 
may be included in the patents, copyrights or registered trade names or 
trademarks of the Company, or corporations, partnerships or other entities which 
may be affiliated with the Company) shall not be exclusive property of the 
Company at any time after having been disclosed or revealed or have otherwise 
become available to the public or to a third party on a non-confidential basis 
other than by a breach of this Agreement, or after they have been independently 
developed or discussed without a breach of this Agreement by a third party who 
has no obligation to the Company or its affiliates. 
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10. Arbitration. The parties will attempt to promptly resolve any dispute or 
controversy arising out of or relating to this Agreement or termination of the 
Executive by the Company. Any negotiations pursuant to this paragraph 10 are 
confidential and will be treated as compromise and settlement negotiations for 
all purposes. If the parties are unable to reach a settlement amicably, the 
dispute will be submitted to binding arbitration before a single arbitrator in 
accordance with the Employment Dispute Resolution Rules of the American 
Arbitration Association. The arbitrator will be instructed and empowered to take 
reasonable steps to expedite the arbitration and the arbitrator's judgment will 
be final and binding upon the parties subject solely to challenge on the grounds 
of fraud or gross misconduct. Except for damages arising out of a breach of 
paragraphs 7, 8 or 9 of this Agreement, the arbitrator is not empowered to award 
total damages (including compensatory damages) which exceed 200% of compensatory 
damages and each party hereby irrevocably waives any damages in excess of that 
amount. The arbitration will be held in Oklahoma County, Oklahoma. Judgment upon 
any verdict in arbitration may be entered in any court of competent jurisdiction 
and the parties hereby consent to the jurisdiction of, and proper venue in, the 
federal and state courts located in Oklahoma County, Oklahoma. Each party will 
bear its own costs in connection with the arbitration and the costs of the 
arbitrator will be borne by the party who the arbitrator determines did not 
prevail in the matter. Unless otherwise expressly set forth in this Agreement, 
the procedures specified in this paragraph 10 will be the sole and exclusive 
procedures for the resolution of disputes and controversies between the parties 
arising out of or relating to this Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a 
party may seek a preliminary injunction or other provisional judicial relief if 
in such party's judgment such action is necessary to avoid irreparable damage or 
to preserve the status quo. 
 
11. Miscellaneous. The parties further agree as follows: 
 
          11.1 Time. Time is of the essence of each provision of this Agreement. 
 
          11.2 Notices. Any notice, payment, demand or communication required or 
               permitted to be given by any provision of this Agreement will be 
               in writing and will be deemed to have been given when delivered 
               personally or by telefacsimile to the party designated to receive 
               such notice, or on the date following the day sent by overnight 
               courier, or on the third (3rd) business day after the same is 
               sent by certified mail, postage and charges prepaid, directed to 
               the following address or to such other or additional addresses as 
               any party might designate by written notice to the other party: 
 
               To the Company:          Chesapeake Energy Corporation 
                                        Post Office Box 18496 
                                        Oklahoma City, OK   73154-0496 
                                        Attn: Aubrey K. McClendon 
 
 
               To the Executive:        Ms. Martha A. Burger 
                                        3005 Red Oak. Rd. 
                                        Oklahoma City, OK  73120 
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          11.3 Assignment. Neither this Agreement nor any of the parties' rights 
               or obligations hereunder can be transferred or assigned without 
               the prior written consent of the other parties to this Agreement; 
               provided, however, the Company may assign this Agreement to any 
               wholly owned affiliate or subsidiary of the Company without 
               Executive's consent. 
 
          11.4 Construction. If any provision of this Agreement or the 
               application thereof to any person or circumstances is determined, 
               to any extent, to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of 
               this Agreement, or the application of such provision to persons 
               or circumstances other than those as to which the same is held 
               invalid or unenforceable, will not be affected thereby, and each 
               term and provision of this Agreement will be valid and 
               enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law. This 
               Agreement is intended to be interpreted, construed and enforced 
               in accordance with the laws of the State of Oklahoma and any 
               litigation relating to this Agreement will be conducted in a 
               court of competent jurisdiction located in Oklahoma County, 
               Oklahoma. 
 
          11.5 Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement 
               between the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter 
               herein contained, and no modification hereof will be effective 
               unless made by a supplemental written agreement executed by all 
               of the parties hereto. 
 
          11.6 Binding Effect. This Agreement will be binding on the parties and 
               their respective successors, legal representatives and permitted 
               assigns. In the event of a merger, consolidation, combination, 
               dissolution or liquidation of the Company, the performance of 
               this Agreement will be assumed by any entity which succeeds to or 
               is transferred the business of the Company as a result thereof, 
               and the Executive waives the consent requirement of paragraph 
               11.3 to effect such assumption. 
 
          11.7 Attorneys' Fees. If any party institutes an action or proceeding 
               against any other party relating to the provisions of this 
               Agreement or any default hereunder, the unsuccessful party to 
               such action or proceeding will reimburse the successful party 
               therein for the reasonable expenses of attorneys' fees and 
               disbursements and litigation expenses incurred by the successful 
               party, except with respect to any arbitration proceeding 
               conducted pursuant to paragraph 10 above. 
 
          11.8 Supersession. On execution of this Agreement by the Company and 
               the Executive, the relationship between the Company and the 
               Executive will be bound by the terms of this Agreement and the 
               Employment Policies Manual 
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               and not by any other agreements or otherwise. In the event of a 
               conflict between the Employment Policies Manual and this 
               Agreement, this Agreement will control in all respects. 
 
         IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this Agreement 
effective the date first above written. 
 
 
                                    CHESAPEAKE ENERGY CORPORATION, an 
                                    Oklahoma corporation 
 
 
 
                                By: /s/ Aubrey K. McClendon 
                                   --------------------------------------------- 
                                    Aubrey K. McClendon, Chief Executive Officer 
                                    (the "Company") 
 
 
 
                                By: /s/ Martha A. Burger 
                                   --------------------------------------------- 
                                    Martha A. Burger, Individually 
                                    (the "Executive") 
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THIS SCHEDULE CONTAINS SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION EXTRACTED FROM BALANCE 
SHEET AS OF JUNE 30, 2000 AND STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 
JUNE 30, 2000. 
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